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* Reconalations between all the slatutary and non-statutory measures and the
axplanations as o why the non stalutary measures give valuable further ingight
into the Group's perfarmance are given in note 2 to the Group financial staterments,
In particular, profit belore all tax 1s used because 1t reflects the way the Group is run
ona propartionatly consobdated basis. and because it also rermoves the taxation
effects on equity accounted entios from the statutory profit before tax figuse.



What we do

We respect

We take a principled, responsible and
long-term approach to transforming
prownfield land into cleaner, greener and
brighter environments where businesses
and communities can thrive.

We revive

We breathe new life into areas of the UK
that need it the most, working closely with
communities, businesses and government
organisations 1o create sustainable places
for people to live and work.

We resource

We bring together everything needed

to deliver a successful project; our skilled
people, trusted suppliers and financial
stability make us an attractive partner

to work with.

We realise

We continually reinvest in the business
through actively enhancing the value of
our property assets at all stages of the
development lifecycle. Partners can rely
on us to deliver on our promises.

Above from left
The regeneration of Coed Darcy, a 1.080 acre scheme
and the formier site of the Llandarcy ol refinery.

The Irentham Estate, Stoke-on-Trent continues Lo
attract a growing number of visitors year on year
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. Branston Leas,
- Burton upon Trent
- Creating new communities

i Adisused barren area of land, lacking :
i any environmental or economic benefits, !
i the site was previously extracted for :
i gravel and filled with pulverised fuel

i ash, making it a less appealing option

i for many developers.

Progress to date

n 2013, St. Modwen secured planning

¢ permission for the new Branston Leas

i community, which includss a total of 660

! new homes. The first phase of 64 homes

! sold within 14 months of being launched,

i and there was a waiting list of over 200

i people for the second phase of 205 homes. |
i Demonstrating that the development is {
i answenng the shortfall in new homes in this

i area, 100% of occupiers are local of which

i 53% have used Help to Buy.

i The entire development is set to create

1.500 jobs. The retail centre is already 80%

i let and an 87,000 sq ft distribution unit has ¢
i recently been leased to Cimpress, a leading
! mass customisation company. We will start
i on site with a further phase of speculative

i development in the first quarter of 2017,

i having secured planning permission during
i 2016 for twe industrial and distribution units
i comprising 328,000 sq ft. i

1,500

. new jobs created

[IMAGE REMOVED]

et Creating new communities

i public realm, which includes play areas,

parkland and an 82 acre woodland. The that en hance the enViron ment

i latter s being created in partnership with

Cemiiacwmers. - as well as the local and broader
e o @CONOMY IS & fundamental

i of a Peace Wood and we have involved

approximately 100 volunteers with the part Of regeneration. EXtending

i planting of some 17,000 {of 21,000) treas

and scattering of 8,000 bluebell seeds. Over 280 acreS, Branston
Nextsteps  Leas demonstrates our skil

i We will continue to davelop the next phase

of housing starting on site in 2017, Over a‘t tranSformlng beWﬂfleld |and

i the next 12 months, we anticipate the retail

! centre being fully let and il consid P . .
et ies et nt o stainable mixed-use

i of industrial space to answer demand.

I with the new environment being oversean

Planting of the wood will also continue developments .

i by the Staffordshire Wildlife Trust.

Above from left

SL Modwen Homes is now progressing with
the second phase ot 205 hones.

The first phase of St. Modwen Homes sold

outinust 14 months

Wo continue to engage with the local community

with trea planting evenls.

2 St. Modwen Properties PLC
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660

. new homes

IMAGE REMOVED]

82 acres

of new woodland
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- St. Andrew’s Park, Uxbridge
Tackling complex sites

[IMAGE REMOVED)]

Our innovative approach
enables us to tackle complex
and challenging sites whilst
managing risk throughout
the development lifecycle,

to create inspirational and
thriving new business and
residential communities.

Above from left
St. Modwen Homes started on sile with
85 homes in 2016,

Owver 275 homes built by Persimmon pic
dre already sold.

The John | ocke Acaderny prnmary school

opened in 2014,
4 5t. Modwen Properties PLC
Annual report and financial staterments 2016

i Home to the Battle of Britain, the formal
i closure of RAF Uxbridge on 31 March

: 2010 ended 95 years of continuous

: military service, but the closing of one

: chapter was the catalyst of a new, more
: public and community focused feature.

P VBM, a WV partrership between St. Modwen
¢ and VINCI ple, was appainted by the MoD
i in 2006 as the principal contractor for

! 'Project MoDEL', a task involving the

! relocation of six London-based MoD

i units to an integrated site at RAF Northolt.

: We were charged with delivering the new

i facilities at RAF Northolt as well as securing
i planning consent for the six redundant

¢ sites, which were available for development
i for residential, commercial and community

i uses. Of the six sites, we retained two,

i including RAF Uxbridge (St. Andrew's Park)
which we are now transforming into a new

i residential-led mixed-use community.

Progress to date

! BExtending over 110 acres, we secured

i planning consent for the new St. Andrew’s
{ Park community in 2010, to include new

i homes, commerclal space and community
i facilities. Construction started in 2011

i on 470 homes, deliverad through our JV

i with Persimmon plc of which over 275 are

i sold. In 2018, St. Modwen Homes started

i on site with a phase of 85 family homes,

i forming part of the town centre extension.

i Planning permission was secured in the
i period for 120,000 sq ft of office scace

i which will create around 1,000 jobs and
i could be delivered as early as 2018,

Next steps

i In 2017, we anticipate starting work

¢ onthe first phase of the consented 249

i apartments. As the town centre begins

¢ totake shape, the offices will be developed
i to reflect ceoupier demand.

i The 40 acre public park, the largest new

i park in Greater London, wil come to fruition
N 2017 with 167 new trees planted. over

¢ 4,800 cubic metres of top soil moved and

i almost 20 acres seeded. Works to the

! landscaping will also progress well into
{2017 as St. Modwen Homes continues

i 1o develop the new phase of housing.



1,340

new homes to be created

IMAGE REMOVED]

40 acre

. new park

New

i primary school
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. Longbridge, Birmingham
. A long-term commitment
to the areas in which we build

i The birthplace of classic British

i motoring, the 468 acre Longbridge

i site was acquired by St. Modwen in

i 2004, in partnership with the Homes

i and Communities Agency. Since then,
i the site has been subject to a long

i treatment process, painstakingly

i removing hydrocarbons from the

i soil and ground water.

Progress to date

i Ws have already added £134m of value

i to the regional economy and created

i 3,700 jobs, following a comprehensive

i redevelopment programme that has seen:

s delivery of 400 new homes and six
¢ acres of new parkland;

i = completion of a £70m town centre;

= creation of the Longbridge Technology
i Park and the Cofton Centre, collectively
creating almost 1,000 jobs;

» provision of a £30m infrastructure
i programme; and

| = delivery of the £66m Bournville College
i for over 3,500 students.

This year, we welcomed a range of new

i tenants to the commercial areas of the

i scheme, including the town centre. Here,
i anumber of national brands opened their
i doors for trading including Smyths Toys,

¢ Holland and Barrett, Specsavers and

i Carphone Warehouse, joining Marks &

i Spencer, Sansbury’s and Beots, along

i with other local retailers. We have also

i recently started on site with the next phase
i of housing for 215 homes on land south

i of the new town centre. This new phase

¢ will be delivered by St. Modwen Homes.

Next steps

i During the first half of 2017 the works to

i the £:35m ExtraCare retirement village wil
: complete, along with the 180 bedroom

i accommodation for the Royal Centre for
i Defence Medicine. In fine with cccupier

! demand, we will also seek to progress

I 500,000 sq ft of manufacturing facilities

i at Longbridge West and phase three of

i the town centre.

6 St. Modwen Properties PLC

Annual report and Tinancial statements 2016

We have a proven strategy

of adding value to the lana
we own and generating
returns through commercial
and residential development
at every stage of the property
lifecycle. The regeneration

of Longbridge, Birmingham
reflects this skillset well.

[IMAGE REMOVED]

Above from left
The 180 bedroom facility for the Roval Centre
for Defence Medicine will complete n 2017

We have uncovered 255m of the River Rea which
has been in culvert for over 100 years,

The Longbridge Light Festival 201G saw 5000
npeanle visit the town centre

30

. infrastructure programme



£/0m

town centre completed

IMAGE REMOVED]

3700

: new jobs created
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- Centurion Park, Tamworth
Excellent track record in
value creation

153 OOO sq ft

under constructlon

- We have a strong track

~ record in identifying sites

~ with excellent potential for

- value creation that we realise
~ through our skills in planning,
~ development and asset

~ management. We deliver

~ sites ready for development

-~ and will make a commitment
- to their regeneration in the

- short, medium and long-term.

IMAGE REMOVED]

Above from left
Qur doveloprnent activity al Tamwaorth
i5 @ long standing commitrment,

The 153,000 s 1t speculatve industrial
unit is prograssing well,

53,000 sy fl space has alsa boen lot
and sold dunng 2016,

8 St. Modwen Properties PLC
Arnual report and financal statements 2016



Prime

industrial and logistics hub

i St. Modwen has had a long-standing
{ commitment to Tamworth and

: continues to invest in this strategic
! area. In recognition of its strategic
! position, since commencing

¢ development of Centurion Park in

¢ 1994 our presence has grown with
: a number of other developments

i capitalising on the location. It is

i now recognised as a logistics and
i distribution hub for the Midlands.

Fallowing this early success, in 2014

¢ we acquired a site, located adjacent to

{ Centurion Park, situated on junction 10

: of the M42, and for which we subsequently
secured planning consent for 200,000 sq ft
: ofindustrial and distribution space.

. Progress to date

i Inresponse to the lack of supply of new
i warehouse space across the Midlands,
I we gpeculatively commenced works to
i 253,000 sq ft distribution unit in 2015.
! Inadvance of its completion, we leased

¢ this unit to national furniture brand DFS
¢ for its customer distribution centre, at a [l MAG E REMOVED]
¢ rent of £314,000 per annum. The unit was

i subsequently sold to Limes Developments

ELtd for £5.1m.

We have since speculatively commenced
i works on a 153,000 sq ft distribution unit
i in this popular logistics location.

i More recently, in 20716, we secured planning
i permigsion for 700,000 sq ft of industrial :
i and logistics space at Tamwaorth East,

¢ which is located opposite Centurion Park.

Next steps

In 2017, we will progress works on the

¢ 153,000 sg ft unit at Centurion Park and
i anticipate its completion in the first half

i of 2017. Itis also expected that works

i toihe first phase of Tamworth East wil

{ commence in the year.

¢ Already in progress across the Midlands

¢ we have around 400,000 sq ft of industrial
¢ gpace under development, and we plan to
i add to this pipeline with additional projects
i over the course of the next 12 months.

700,000 sq ft

' of planning secured

St. Modwen Properties PLC 9
Annual report and financial staterments 2016
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. Regeneration and remediation
. The UK’s leading regeneration specialist

! The recycling and retuming of previously
i developed (brownfield) land to beneficial
i use safeguards the countryside and

i helps to preserve natural habitats.

i It helps tackle the blight of dereliction

¢ in communities by bringing pocr quality

: sites back into use and enables the reuse
i of existing infrastructure and utilities.

i As experts in this field we have reclaimed
i thousands of acres over the last 30 years
i and brownfield land now makes up over
i 80% of our land bank with specified use.

! Cnce on site, we reclaim and recycle as

i many of the waste materials as possible to
¢ avold unnecessary transportation from site
i that in tum could causs road corgestion

¢ and unnacessary CC. emissions. This year
i we reclaimed and recycled hundreds of

i thousands of tonnes of materials from site,
i including 128,000 tonnes of concrete waste
i which, in accordance with the Specification
¢ for Highways Works, is retained in order to
i avoid the use of natural quarried materials.

i Equally, we ensure that protected species
i and habitats are safeguarded or new

{ habitats provided in our developrments,

i with site design allowing for the moverment
i of protected wildlife. We also seek to

! enhance the wildlife value of sites by the

i retention or infroduction of native species
i appropriate to the site and prevaling

! conditions, the creation of new wildlife

i hapitats and corridors and by limiting

i the area of hard surfaces.

83%

. of our land bank with
i specified use is brownfield

1 0 St. Modwen Properties PLC

Annual report and financial staternents 20168

Glan Liynis a 25 year
brownfield regeneration
project, located in Newport,
South Wales. It occupies the
site of the former Lianwern
Steelworks and comprises
800 acres of former

derelict land.

IMAGE REMOVED]



4,000

new homes

C.1 .5m sq fi

Celtic Business Park

Glan Liyn

The Uanwern Steelworks was the first
oxygen blown integrated steelworks

in the UK and, at its peak, produced

a combined four million tonhes of steel
per year.

The site benefits from planning
permission far:

« 4,000 new homes for around
10,000 people

= Two primary schools
* Community facilities and retail areas

» Approximately 1.5m sq ft Celtic
Business Park, providing 6,000 jobs

in 2004, following the purchase of
the site an active reclarmation and
remediation programme started in
earnest. The clean-up of this site is
complex. In lne with the remediation
of coal tars, metals and potentially
expansive slags, one of the principal
constraints to redevelopment is the
ground is peat and soft clay.

During construction of the steelworks
in the 1960s a fill was used across

the site to raise levels and provide a
working platform. Major structures
were piled with approximately 90,000
piles being installed. Such a feat of
engineering was not appropriate for
Glan Llyn's residential end use and
therefore a more appropriate treatment
had to be implemented which produced
a platform for residential development,

A number of best practice techniques
were therefore employed. The highly
technical process, designed and
monitored by experienced brownfield
professionals, has resulted in an
exemplary residential scheme for

the new community.

To date, we have delivered over

400 homes and plan to start on site

with a further phase in 2017, alongside
additional third party housebuilders.

In addition, we anticipate starting on
site with a new primary school this year
and have recently leased 50,000 sq ft

to Amazon at the Celtic Business Park
with further employment phases to come.

IMAGE REMOVED)]
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Group at a glance

Business unit

Regeneration and
remediation

Income producing
properties

Commercial land
and development

Residential land
and development

12
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. Activity

i We have over 30 years'

i experience of cleaning up, :
! recycing and reusing previously
i developed land which has 5
i enabled us to reclaim

i ! thousands of acres. Our
i expertise in this area rests
[IMAGE REMOVED] ! in-house construction and
: : remediation experts.

with our team of highly skilled

I Assets are managed and

i held with a long-term view

i to generate significant value,
i In the short-term, a large

i proportion generate income
: i before development and in

: doing so, cover the running

- [IMAGE REMOVED)] |

i This diverse portfolio is spiit into
i two distinct categories: high

i yielding and investrent portfolio.

costs of the business,

¢ Maximising the value of

¢ commercial land through

¢ remediation, planning gain,
i development and asset

! management.

Commercial development
! activities cover industrial
i and logistics, retal, student

 IMAGE REMOVED]

projects.

accommaodation and office

Acquiring sites with potential
i for residential development

i and adding value to the land
i throughout the development
i process. We realise that

i residential value through two
i principal routes to market:

IMAGE REMOVED]

residential land sales and
housebuilding.

Relative size

83%

of land with specmed
. use is brownfield

45%

! Proportion of Group activity by
i value, representing £786.7m

. [CHART REMOVED]

13%

Proportion of Group activity by
value, representing £223.6m

. [CHART REMOVED)]

42%

Proportion of Group activity by
i value, representing £742.0m

. [CHART REMOVED]

- 2016 key facts

128,000

¢ tonnes of Concrete reclamed
¢ and recycled

14,000+

! trees planted

£504m

! see-through net rental
i and other income

1700+

i temants

16m sq ft

i commercial developrmeant
: pipgline

£30.4m

¢ commercial development
i profits

25,000+

i plots Wi planning
recagnition

£271m

residential development
i profits



Explore our
portfolio online

Across our 6,000 acre land bank we

are progressing over 100 regeneration
projects. This extensive portfolio
diversifies risk and creates opportunities
whilst our network of seven regicnal
offices and highly skilled team of
property professionals provides us

with the local knowledge and expetrtise
that keeps us abreast of the needs

of the local communities.

Find out more online via our interactive
map which enables you to browse by
region or sector.

www.stmodwen.co.uk/
property-portfolic

IMAGE REMOVED]
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- Chairman’s statement

Regeneration
remains at the
heart of our
business and
our expertise in
this area allows
us to continue
to generate
value from

our substantial
land bank. [IMAGE REMOVED]

Bill Shannon
Charman

14 5t. Modwen Properties PLC
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i The year to November 2016 saw

¢ 5t. Modwen deliver a solid performance
¢ in an uncertain market environment.

¢ NAV per share increased 4.2% to

i 431.0 pence (2015: 413.5 pence) and

i EPRA NAV per share increased 3.2%

i to 460.5 pence (2015: 446.4 pence)

i delivering, together with dividends

i paid in the year, a total accounting

¢ return per share of 4.5% (2015: 31.9%).

i The Group reported a profit before all tax
{oof £80.8m (2015: £258.4m) and eamings

i per share of 24,1 pence (2015: 97.9 pence)
i for the year. The results are therefore below
i those reported for last year and this is due

i largely to a combination of extemal market

i factors and significant valuation gains

i booked in 2015.

importantly, the business continued

i to generate heafthy cash flows and net

i debt and gearing levels remain carefully

¢ controllied. Cash generated (before

i new investment, tax and dividends)

{was £306.4m (2015: £298.1m) and new

¢ investment was managed prudently such

i that net borrowings, including our share of
i Vs, increased only marginally to £517.0m
from C489.3m at the start of the year.

i Regeneration remains at the heart of

i our business and our expertise in this

i area allows us to continue to generate

i value from cur substantial land bank of

i over 6,000 developable acres. Projects

i are well balanced between residential

i and commercial opportunities, with

¢ residential activities accounting for

i 47% of deveiopment profits for the

i year and commercial activities 53%,

i and the Company is well diversified

! both gecgraphically and from a sector

i perspective. This leaves us well placed to
i continue creating value for the longer-term.

i Continued progress at three of our major
! projects also showcases the impact we

¢ can have in supporting and regenerating
{ communities over the long-term:;

i = New Covent Garden Market, London
i —We are well progressed in the planned
redevelopment of the existing flower
and fruit and vegetable markets, having
recently completed the interim flower
market facility which will release 20
acres of land for the development of

approximately 3,000 new homes in the
centre of London in the medium-term.
We started working with the Covent
Garden Market Authority in 2010 and
will continue our partnership with them
well into the next decade.

» Bay Campus, Swansea University —
We are advancing with the development
phase of the Bay Campus which will
bring the number of student rooms 1o
over 2,000 by the start of the 201718
acacemic year. The Bay Campus now
provides teaching and learning facilities
for around 5,000 students across 35
acres, with further opportunities in the
future to expand across the remainder
of the 65 acre site. Our Swansea
regeneration activities started in 2011
and are likely 1o continue into the
earty 2020s.

Longbridge, Birmingham - We
commenced delivery of this 468 acre
flagship scheme in 2004 and expect
regeneration activity to continue for at
least another 10 years as we progress
through the remaining 185 acres

of developable land. We have now
completed and let the latest phase

of the town centre, overseen the
delivery of a total of 400 out of 2,000
planned new homeas and are nearing
completion of the construction of a
new accommaodation facility comprising
180 bedrooms for medical staff based

at the Royal Centre for Defence Medicine.

In addition, 2017 will see the opening of
260 ExtraCare retirement apartments.

Dividend

In line with our stated policy of increasing
dividends in line with NAV growth, the
Board is pleased to recommend an
increase in total dividend for the year

of 4.3% to 6.00 pence per share (2015:
5.75 pence per share). Taking into account
the interim dividend already dectared and
paid this results in & proposed final dividend
of 4.06 pence per share (2015: 3.85 pence
per share).

The final dividend will be paid on 4 April
2017 to shareholders on the register as
at 10" March 2017.

5t. Modwen Properties PLC
Annual report and Iinancial statcrments 2016

Board changes

On 30" November 2016 BHl Oliver retired
as Chief Executive, a role he had held since
2008. In his 10 years as Chief Executive,
and six years prior 10 that as Managing
Director and Finance Director, Bill played

a pivotal role in building St. Modwen into
the business it is today. On behalf of the
Board and everyone at St. Modwen,
I'would like to thank him for his service

and wish him well in his future endeavours.

Bill's successor as Chief Executive is

Mark Allan, who icined us on 1+ November
2016 from The Unite Group pic, the FTSE
250 student accommaedation business,
where he was Chief Executive for 10 years.
We are pleased to have been able to
appoint such an experienced sUCCessor to
Bilt and | look forward to working with him
as he continues to settle into the business.

Prospects

St. Modwen is a long-term business but
we operate in cyclical markets and must
plan and manage our business accordingly.
The past 12 months have been unsettled

in this respect and the outlook for 2017
and 2018 lcoks to be similarly uncertain,

as a range of macre-economic factors play
out both globally and more locally 1o the UK.

With this outlook, it will be important that
we continue 1o manage cur balance sheet
prudently while also seeking out appropriate
new value creation opportunities and
converting existing ones. This will require

an innovative and agile approach but our
track record suggests we remain well
placed to succeed.

Bill Shannon
Chairman
&' February 2017
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- Chief Executive’s review

EPRA NAV per share

460.50

+3.2%

Trading profit

£56.1m

1 6 5t. Modwen Properties PLC
Annual report and fnancial statcnments 201G

i 8t Modwen is a business that is centred
i on value creation. Since its formation

i 30 years ago, its business model has

i been focused on acquiring assets with

i limited initial intrinsic worth and applying
i its considerable development and asset
i management expertise to create and

i capture sustainable value over the

! long-term. This has resulted in a

i business today with a diverse £1.75bn

i property portfolio of approximately

i £800m of income generating assets

¢ and a 6,000 acre developable land

i bank, itself comprising approximately

: 15m sq ft of consented commercial

i development and over 25,000

i consented residential units.

! This diverse portfolio and focus on value

i crealion formed the basis of St. Modwen'’s

¢ solid parformance during 2016, despite the
! broader uncertain market environment. The
! key performance metrics of the business for
i the vear are set out below;

2016 2015
EPRANAV pershare”  460.5p  446.4p
NAV per share - 4516;) 4135;)
Total accounting 4.5% 31.8%
return®
Total dividend per 7630;.; . 5%5[:3

share

Trading profit* £56.1m £63.3m

Profit before all tax” ?60.8m £258.4m-

Profit before tax £66.9m £2352m
Earnings per share 241p 979p

See-through net £517.0m £489.3m
borrowing”

See-through LTV 30.5% 298%
ratic”

I Recaoncilations between all the statutory and

non-statutory measures and the explanations as

o why 1he non-statutory measures give valuablc
further insight nto the Group's performance arc
given in note 2 to the Group financial statements.

In particuiar, profit before all fax is used becauss it
reflacts tho way the Group is run ona proporfionally
consolidated basis, and because it also removes
the taxation effects on equity accounted entities
from the statutery prafil hefore tax igure.

While levels of performance are below that
reported for 2015, this is largely due to:

» the absence of the significant valuation
gains booked for New Covent Garden
Market (NCGM} in 2015 (£127.4m),
coupled with a subsequent £24.3m
reduction in the value of our NCGM
investment in 2016;

= a noticeably weaker investment market
delivered £12.8m of market valuation
gains versus £35.7m in 2015; and

= the impact on valuations of changes
to Stamp Duty Land Tax rates on
commercial property in the year
{£12.5m).

The underlying business performed
well, as evidenced by trading profits,
and importantly gearing levels were
carefully controlled.

Value creation

The key areas of value creation during
the year were as follows:

= commercial development profits
of £30.4m (2015: £38.3m);

= prafits from housebuilding activities
of £271m (2015: £26.7my;

= internally generated increases in
the value of our portfolio of £28.3m
2015: £38.6my); and

» market movements in the value of
our portfolio of £12.6m (2015: £35.7m,.

Profits from residential and housebuilding
activities continue to grow and we
expact this trend to continue in 2017
such that development profits are likely
to be evenly split between residential and
commercial acltivities.

Taking account of our planned programme
of activities and the outlock for the sectors
in which we are invested, we anticipate
overall returns for 2017 to beinline or
slightly ahead of those achieved for 2016.



Our diverse
portfolio and
focus on value
creation formed
the basis of our
solid performance
during 2016.

Mark Allan
Chief Executive

IMAGE REMOVED)]
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Chief Executive’'s review
continued

. Income generating portfolio

¢ Our income generating portfolio 1s valued at
i £786.7m, including our share of investment
¢ property held in JVs, and represents 45%

i of see-through gross asset value. This is

i split between £309.7m of high yielding

! assets which axhibit further value creation

i opportunities {the high yielding portfolio)

i and £477.0m of assets where further

i internal value creation potential is more

¢ limited (the investment portfolic).

i The high yielding portfolio is spiit betwesn
§indlustrial and logistics assets (£201.5m,

i or 65%), retail (£100.8m or 33%,

i predominantly town centres) and offices/

i other (£7.3m or 2%) and has an average

i eguivalent yield of 8.9% (2015: 8.9%).

! The outlook for high vielding industrial/

i logistics assets remains substantially

i positive, based on robust demand

¢ for good value, secure, flexible space

i and longer-term re-planning potential.

i The outlook for town centre retail is more

¢ asset specific and needs to be considered
¢ inlight of the broader environment of low
or negative real wage inflation impacting

i on consumer spending and reduced

i investment demand foliowing the outcome
i of the EU Referendurm. We expect both

i of these factors to contribute to a modest
¢ level of yield expansion in our retail portfolio
i during 2017 while rental values are likely

i to remain broadly flat,

The investment portfolio principally
i comprises £241.3m of retail assets (51%),

i £115.8m of Private Rented Sector/student

i accommoedation assets (24%;), £82.0m

i of industriallogistics (17%) and £37.9m

i of office/other (8%). The average equivalent
i vield of the investment portfolio is 6.3%

P {2015 8.4%).

i We are currently assassing our options

¢ with respect to our student accommadation
¢ assets at the Bay Campus in Swansea,
comprising cver 2,000 rooms, and this will

i form an important part of our strategy and

¢ portfolio review.

St. Modwen Properties PLC
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We consider the outlock for the remainder
of the investment portfolio to be broadly
neutral and we will De reviewing our strategy
in respect of allincome generating assets
over the next few months to ensure that its
longer term size and shape is appropriate.

. Income generating portfolio

£786.7n

New space delivered (sq ft)

800,000

Commercial development
activity

We invested £99.5m into commercial
development activity in the year to

30" November 2018, booking profits

of £230.4m (2015: £38.3m) and delivering
approximately 800,000 sq ft of new space.

As at 30" November, the anticipated
value on completion of our committed
development pipeline was £237.1m and
weighted towards sectors with healthy
long-term structural growth prospects
{(41% industrial/logistics, 18% student
accommedation, 23% retal and 18%
office/other). Our anticipated vield on cost
for the full commmitted development pigeline
is 8.0% with an expected valuation yield
on completion of 6.7% and a profit on
cost of approximately 20%.

We continue 1o undertake a proportion
of development activity speculatively,
particularly for industrial and logistics
assets where we believe immediacy

of availlability is an important factor for
prospective occupiers. In response 1o
this anticipated demand, of our Tm sg fit
of committad industrial/logistics pipeline
80% is being developed speculatively,
reprasenting 50% of the entire
development pipeline.

There is significant further value creation
potential in our medium/longer-term
commercial development pipeline.

This medium-term pipeling includes
major opportunities at Chippenham
Gateway {over 900,000 sq ft of

potential industrial/logistics space) and
Stanton Cross (1.5m sq ft of industrial
accommaodation), as well as town centre
regeneration projects at Kirkby and Great
Homer Street, Liverpool. Bringing these
opportunities forward in & timely manner
will be an important focus for 2017,



i Over the coming months, as with our

i income generating portfolio, we wil be

i reviewing our strategy in respect of our

i development pipeline, both committed

i and longer term. The principal objective

i of this review will be to determing the

i appropriate level of actvity as wel as the
: balance between onward sales to realise
i development profits and assets that

i could be retained for the longer-tarm.

Residential activity

¢ Qur residential business continues to

i have two principal streams of activity:

¢ sales of ‘oven ready” development

i sites to housebuilders and our own

i housebuilding activity, pursued both

i through St. Modwen Homes and our
PV with Persimmon pic (Persimmon),

¢ Additionally, we see some polential to

i develop assets for the emerging Private
i Rented Sector (PRS) and we will assess
i the scale of this opporturity during 2017.

¢ Housebuilding contributed £27.1m

i (2015: £26.7m) to profit pefore all tax

i (oefore indirect overheads of £5.2m),

i comprising £15.3m from St. Modwen

i Homes (2015: £10.3m) based on 485

P (2015: 315) units sold and £11.8m (2015:

{ £16.4m) from our Persimmon JV based on
¢ a50% share of 402 (2015: 652) units sold.
i Ower the course of the year, the average

i seling price of a St. Modwen Homes unit

i has increased by 4.6% to £206,000 (2015:
i £197,000), demonstrating the strength of

¢ damand for quality housing in the regions.

i As previously indicated, activity in the

i Persimmon JV will decling in line with

i plan over the next two years as it reaches

i its conclusion, with expected unit volumes
i reducing by 35% in 201 7. Conversely,

! we expect St. Modwen Homes to increase
i unit volumes meaningfully and this should

i at least offset reduced retums from the JV.
¢ The broader market remains supportive

i of regional housebuilding and we see

i significant potential for growth in our

: 5t Modwen Homes business in the

¢ years ahead.

Residential land sales completed or agreed
during the year, including our share of Jvs,
totalled £47.6m for the year and athough
there was some mid-year Brexit-related
disrugtion. demand generally remained
steady. The outlock for land sales remains
firm for the year ahead and we expect activity
to remain at a similar leve! provided there
are no major shocks to the housing market.

As at 30" Novemnber 2018 our residential
land and work in progress, including our
share of JVs, was held at a total value

of €742.0m (2015: £757.7m), of which
approximately 45% was represented by
holdings at NCGM and in South Wales.
In total, cur land bank comprises over
25,000 consented residential units
(approximately 14,500 units excluding
NCGM and South Wales) and represents
a significant scurce of potential future value.

New Covent Garden Market
{(NCGM)

Our largest residential land holding by

value is our 50% share of consented

land at NCGM in London. Our share of

the land, less our obligation to procure

the new market and the associated tax,

is now £97.7m, representing approximately
10% of our NAV.

As praviously disclosed, we commenced
marketing of & substantial proportion of
this site {10 acres at Nine Eims Sqguare) in
conjunction with our JV partner, VINCI plc
VINCI), in late summer 2016. While there
can be no guarantee of any transaction
completing, we are now in exclusive
negoetiations with a progpective purchaser
at alevel which is firmly supportive of book
value. We will update the market on further
progress as appropriate.

Financing

Group net borrowings, including

our share of JVs, increased marginally
to £517.0m at 30" November 2016
(2015: £489.3m). Taking into account
growth in the valuation of the Group’s
portfolio, lcan-to-value remained broadly
consistent with the prior year at 30.5%
(2015: 29.9%) and we are likely to seek
to reduce this further over time.

People

St. Modwen's pedigree as a creator

of value is built on the experience,
expertise, commitment and teamwaork

of its employees. In my first few months

I have been extremely impressed with the
calibre of pecple in the business and I am
very much locking forward to working with
them in the years ahead. On behalf of the
Board | would like to thank all of my new
colleagues for their efforts and congratulate
them on their achievements.

Outlook

The broader econcmic environment is
likety 1o remain unsettled throughout
2017 as a range of macro factors, such
as Brexit, continue to play out. We cannct
seek to predict the outcomes of these
various external events but with such
an uncertain backdrog we can and will
manage the business in a prudent and
agile manner. However, uncertainty can
alse lead to opportunity and we remain
confident in our ability to seek out and
create value from such opportunities
that may arise.

Of course, any change in leadership
provides an cpportunity for the Board to
step back and review strategy and following
my arrival as the Company's new Chief
Executive, we intend to do this during 2017.
Given that the business is fundamentalfly
strong, this review is likely to focus on how
we ¢an build on our existing strengths and
focus our activities in the optimum manner.
I am excited about the prospects ahead.

Mark Allan
Chief Executive
& February 2017
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. Regeneration across the generations
30 years of St. Modwen

In 2016 we celebrated our 30" anniversary as a listed company. .

- Since 1986 we've established our proud reputation as the UK’s

leading regeneration specialist: we've builtt new communities, created
new jobs and investment, and cleaned up thousands of acres of
brownfield fand. We owe much of this success to our strong presence
_in key areas across the UK.

Today we own and manage a £1.75bn portfolio of over 100 development
projects and 6,000 acres of land for ongeing development.

- To mark this milestone we launched a series of initiatives, including
“anational schools photography competition supported by a number
- of organisations and experts in urban design, architecture, education
- and photography, such as The Prince’s Foundation for Building

- Community. A celebratory film and book were also produced

- to capture what 30 years of regeneration really looks like.

Read and watch the
. whole story online

www. stmodwen.co.uk/corporate-sociak-responsibility/
i 30th-anniversary

[IMAGE REMOVED] IMAGE REMOVED]
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1986

St. Modwen founded

i St Modwen established

i by reverse takeover in April

¢ 1986 by Redman Heenan

¢ International plc and becomes
Y apublicly listed company.

. 1986-1990

' Rapid growth and

. strategic shift

i Rapid growth due to substantial
i development programme

i based on enterprise zones
{ and industrial schemes.

Programme moved 1o include
i retall schemes and office parks.

. 1991
: Regeneration
. strategy established

Attention switched to increasing
: rental ncome.

Major expansion of range of

: partnerships with lanciowners,
i local authorities and major

I companies.

[IMAGE REMOVED]

1997

Maijor joint venture
established
Established joint venture with

Salhia Real Estate Company
K.S.C. (KPi.

(IMAGE REMOVED]

2000-2003
Significant
acquisitions
completed

Major acquisitions inciuded

portfolios from Alstom and
Marconi (through KPI JV).

St. Modwen entered FTSE 250
(Novernber 2003).

2005-2010
Portfolio growth

(IMAGE REMOVED]

Selected as preferred
developer on many town
centre regeneration schemes.

Acquisition of large industrial
sites including Longlridge,
Uanwem, Project MoDEL
and BP Portfolic.

£107m equity issue in 2009.

Established JV with
Persimmon.

Established St. Modwen
Homes.

2015

Bay Campus, Swansea
University opensd to 1,462
new student residents.

2012

80m

retail bond issued

2013

Development Agreement
signed with Swansea University
for the first phase of the £450m
Bay Campus development.

£49m

equity placing

[IMAGE REMOVED)]

Phase 2 Longbridge town
centre plus 150,000 sg ft M&S
store completed and trading.

2014

£100m

convertible bond
launched

Planning permission secured
far the regeneration of the New
Covent Garden Market sites,
Nine Elms, London.

IMAGE REMOVED]

[IMAGE REMOVED]

2016

Celebrates 30"
anniversary as
a publicly listed
company

Mark Allan joins the business
as Chief Executive.

St. Modwen Properties PLC
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- Our markets
. Responding to
key opportunities

i Whilst the outcome of the EU Referendum
i has reverberated across the property

i industry, there is litle evidence to

i suggest that it has had any fundamental
i negative impact on the sector. Until

: the scope and impact of our separation
i from the EU becomes clearer and other
i macro-economic factors continue to

i play out, it is inevitable that uncertainty

: over the UK economy will remain.

: Qur diverse portfolio, the flexibility of

¢ ourland bank and our strong financial

. base support our resilience in uncertain
i times, whilst our vision and innovative

{ approach enable us to adapt with

i agility to changing trends and an

i ever-evolving marketplace.

Trends

Industrial/logistics

! The industrial and logistics sector has

i proved resilient in the last 12 menths,

i with robust demand for good value,

i secure and flexible space with longar-term
! re-planning potential. Strong cccupier

i demand, coupled with a lack of ready

i to occupy space, is driving an increase

i in speculative development. The Midlands’
i ‘golden triangle’ of the M1, MB and M42

i continues to deminate the legistics sector,
i offering access 1o over 90% of the UK

{ population within a four-hour drive, but

i there is also increasing demand for space
i in the South West. Progpects for continued
i growthin the sector are good as onliine

i retailing continues to Increase.

. Residential

¢ Stamp duty and other tax changes,

i comipined with Brexit, have created some
i hesitation in the prime London residential

! market. However, regional demand for

i housing remains strong despite same

i uncertainties as to how the LUK economy

£ will evolve in the near term. The shortage

¢ of property for sale, low levels of

! housebuilding and exceptionally low

i interest rates are expacted to support

! UK house prices. Demand for new homes
i remains robust against the backdrop of

¢ ahousing shortage in the UK. Governmeant
i policy will cortinue to stimulate growth
i terms of facilitating demand but also,

¢ increasingly, through addressing supply.

22 St. Modwen Properties PLC
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Retail

Ornline retal has undoubtedly caused
significant structural change in the sector.
which is continuing to evolve 1o meet
changing consumer demand. The retail
market is also facing other pressures arising
from inflation and its impact on disposable
income, iIncreased costs following the fall
in value of sterfing and reduced investment
demand foliowing the outcome of the

EL Referencium. Modest levels of yvield
expansion are anticipated during 2017
whilst rental values are likely to remain
brcadly flat. There is a focus on
repositioning fo create ‘destination’

retail centres, which offer a range of
shopping, dining and leisure faciities.

Investment market

Whilst the investment market had seen
strong demand in 2015, this noticeably
weakened in 2016 caused in the main

by uncertainty in the UK economic

outlook felliowing the EU Referendum.
Interest from overseas purchasers, who

are able to benefit from the fall in the value
of sterling, remains strong, particularly for
property in supply-constrained markets
with long income and good covenants.

The investment market is influenced by
trends experienced across the wider
property sector, as well as macrc-economic
factors, and is anticipated to remain subdued
in line with reduced transaction activity.

Three mega trends
impacting our market

Changing lifestyles

We are living and working fonger

and are developing multi-phased,

less structured lives, such that across
ali demographic groups, pecple are
reassessing their career and lifestyle
choices, as well as their needs from
property and their wider environments.

Urbanisation

The United Nations has recently
projected that nearly all global
population growth from 2016 to 2030
will be absorbed by cities. This equates
to over 1bn new city-dwellers over the
next 14 years. Urbanisation is already
impacting town and urban planning

as people demand more convenience
from their environment and more
sustainable communities.

Technology

Innovations in energy, technology.,
science and food will have a significant
macro impact over the next 15 years.
In the nearer term, technology as a
catalyst for cuttural and social change
will also affect the property industry

in areas such as retail and housing.



Opportunities for St. Modwen

Growth of St. Modwen Homes

With a 48% increase in profitability this year, the growth of

5t. Modwen Homes demonstrates real demand for housing.
Now bulld active on 18 sites and with an additional eight planned
in 2017, the business is perfectly positicned to take advantage of
the continued regional demand for new homes. With a substantial
land bank. we can also satisfy the continued appetite from
housebuilders for ‘oven ready’ land for development and

exploit initiatives to drive housing supply.

[IMAGE REMOVED]

Delivering mixed-use communities

We are a true mixed-use developer with a diverse development
portfolio. We are increasingly using technelogy in order to
understand customer spending habits and what drives footfall.
This is helping us to better understand the spaces we are
creating as well as finding and retaining the right retailer match.

Often situated outside of established town centres, our mixed-use
communities reflect the growth of urbanisation. They combing
shopping, leisure, workspace and new homes and thus offer a hub
that is well-suited to the growing market for convenience living.

[IMAGE REMOVED]

Well positioned in the regions to capture
the growing industrial marketplace

Our industrial portfclic is perfectly placed o capitalise on the
growing regional demand for space, particularly in the historically
strong Midlands and South West regions. We continue tc develop
speculatively in areas that demonstrate demand and currently
have 1m sq ft of speculative schemes in the pipeline. Our ability

1o secure planning permisstons and offer ‘oven ready’ land for
development from our land bank enables us to react quickly

to occupier demand, whilst continuing to add value through

our own actions.

IMAGE REMOVED]

Well positioned sites attract investors

Our regional portfclio is well-spread across the UK and we have
realised £76m of value through asset sales in 2016, We anticipate
continued interest in 2017 but with the focus pregominantly on
the industrial and logistics marketplace for which we have a goced
pipeline of speculative development that should capture demand
for much needed space.

IMAGE REMOVED]
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. Our business model
- The value we create

- Inputs

Our business model generates
recurring revenue and drives
portfolio value,

Resources and
relationships

It is successful because it enables » Employescs
us to reinvest continually into the i

: . = hinancial capital
business, ensuning a steady stream ANl L iE

of development opportunities = Land bank
and income. i "
P Buldings
What makes E e Local commiunes and terants

us diﬂerent? » Partners and jont ventures
iow Supply chain

Our land bank of over 6,000 acres

prowvicies us with the flexibility to move

with rnarket demands and pursue

those praects that gengrate the:

greatest opporunity al any one ime.

Ve are a resiient business, operating

from a strong tinancial position. with

Our Inceme ganeratng porttolio

undaerpinning our Cost base.

CSR sits at our heart

Cleaning up or remediating trownheld
land 15 fundamental to almost euenytiing
we do, enabing us to breathe new

Ife: nto run - down or disused arcas of
the LUK and create new communitics
that have a posithve impact on the
envikonment, the economy and socilly.

Our values underpin
the business model

They defing our cmployee behaviour,
our culture as a business and our
appreach 1o develonment and
regeneration. Ullirmately, they drive
vaile creation.

{IMAGE REMOVED)

We think long-term

Our resources and
relationships

(IMAGE REMOVED] See pages 26 to 29

We are innovative

[IMAGE REMOVED]

We do what we say
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Investment

[IMAGE REMO

Investment

We acquire new assets

that present opportunities
for value creation throughout
the development lifecycle.

We continually reinvest in the
business through acquiring new
oppertunities that we hold for
income in the short-term and then
actively enhance their value at all
stages of the development lifecycle
through our planning, development
and assel management expertise,

Income generating
portfolio

I I RN R T YR NY  )

[IMAGE REMOVED]

Land bank cleaning

We have over 30 years of
expenance In remediating

and reclaiming brownfield land
in advance of its redevelopment.

We continue to make a long-term
commitment to the areas in which
we build. Both new and existing
partners trust our proven capability
to remove risk from any site and
leave a positive and inspiring legacy
for business and communities to
enjoy for years to come.

Regeneration and
remeditation

L N Y Y R



[IMAGE REMOVED)

Asset development

Once a site is cleaned we start

te realise our vision through our
regicnal teams of planning experls
who have local knowledge and are

Returns

[MAGE REMOVED)

Shareholder

returns

Outputs and
outcomes

The business madel enabies Us 10
nvigorate once neglected spaces,
former industnal estates and disused
brownfield land and create thiving
new BUSINESs parks and new town
cenires that helg to satisfy housing
dernand. create new jobs and
provacle a boost o the immediate
regional and national cconormy.

It also helps to ensure that we put
into place the right mix of uses and
supporting infrastructure: and create
new places that can be enjoyed for
generalions 1o come.

in touch with local communities.

We are a true mixed-use developer
with a diverse development portfolio.
We have a strong track record

n securing planning consents
making us a relable and atiractive
commercial and residential partner
that delivers sites ready for
development and will make a
commitrment to their regeneration

in the short, medium and long-term.

Chairman’s statement
14 aned 15

Income generating
portfolio
e

Income generating
portfolic

Commercial land

and development
> What we do

Seepages 209

P Y Y Y

R N N R RN
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- Our resources and relationships
. Building long lasting partnerships

i We invest much needed time, financial

i capital and expertise into our sites.

i Across the entire lifecycle of our

i projects we continue to ensure that

i environmental, social and community

i considerations are integrated within our
i day-to-day practices. In order to do this
successfully we look to our employees,
i our partners and our supply chain to

i enable us to achieve our short and

i long-term goals. Our relationship with

i each is therefore pivotal to the success
i of not only our Corporate Social

i Responsibility (CSR) activities but our
business as a whole and consequently

i we continue to nurture and respect each,

Our 10 CSR objectives

i We continue to use the 10 CSR objectives,
i set at the beginning of the financial year,

! to help focus our CSR capabilities and

¢ 1o further the positive work being carred
{out across our portfolio. We are pleased

i 1o report that this year these objectives

i have either been achieved or exceeded,

i with good progress meade against the

i longer-term objectives.

i In addition, we continue to support individual
i project-led intiatives which have a positive

i impact on the local community, environment
i and economy in which we build.

Working with charities

We continue to work with a variety of

i charities from across the UK which have

i asynergy with our developments. These

: charitios are either located within the vicinity
¢ of our sites or have similar objectives 1o us

i in terms of ensuwring sustainable business;

i creating better environments; or supporting
¢ the communities in which we build.

CSR Steering Group

! The CSR Steering Group, which is chaired
i by Steve Burke, Group Gonstruction

i Director, meets once a quarter to raview

! progress against our CSR objsctives

¢ and to ensure the Company maintains a

i best practice approach to CSR activilies

i across its operations. The Steering Group
i represents each of the St. Modwen

! business disciplines and continues

! to evolve as the business grows.

St. Modwen Properties PLC
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Employees

The experience, expertise, commitment
and teamwork of our employees is critical
to the continued success and growth of the
business, In 2016 our recruitment activities
were focused on increasing resource to
support St. Modwen Homes as well as
seeking staff to strengthen existing teams
and provide for individual development
and succession planning. We ended

the year with 393 employees (2015: 345},
a testament to our ability to continue to
attract, develep and retain individuals who
uphold our values and strive for excellence.,

Training and development

We are committed to the training and
continued professional develcpment of
all our employees. During the year, we
have supported employees from all areas
of the business on a total of 227 training
days, including employment law; driving
awareness; and numerous health and
safety training courses.

In the pericd we have supported directly

{or on site via our contractors) 58 graduates/

trainees across the business and for the
second consecutive year have increased
our gracduates/trainees CSR objective.

All new permanent employees attend a
formal induction at the beginning of their
employment. This covers allimmediate
and commercially important business
matters and provides an opportunity

for new staff to meet and spend time with
key employees from across the business.

Employee diversity

We have a duty of care 1o look after the
wellbeing of our staff. We are committed to
providing an inclusive working environment

where everycne feels valued and respected.

The diverse range of talent, skills and
experience across the business is reflected
in the new communities that we build and
ensures our continued success.

The Company adheres tc a clear equality
policy which sets out individuals' rights and
obligations as defined by the Equality Act
2010. This policy covers the responsibilities
and approach we have to cur employees
and our duty to avoid discrimination in all
aspects of recruitment and employment.

. CSR objectives achieved,
. exceeded or on target

10/10

Days of training
: provided to staff



i The charts below set out the number

i of men and women employed (fuil- and
i part-time) as at 30" November 2016,

i across our businass and spiit between
i the Board, our senicr management and
i our employees.

[CHART REMCVED]

[CHART REMOVED]

[CHART REMOVED)]

[CHART REMCVED]

Tree planting surpassing expectations

across the UK

IMAGE REMOVED]

As part of our commitment to enhance
the communities in which we operate,
our CSR objectives have focused on
the planting of trees across our UK-wide
development portfolio. Our target has
increased year on year, and in 2016
was set at a minimum of 12,000 trees.
We exceeded this again by planting

in excess of 14,000 trees in the year.

Tree planting in
South Wales

in 2009/10, we collected over 1,400
acorns from the woodlands across

our sites in South Wales and since then
have carefully cultivated the acoms into
saplings for planting on our development
sites across the region.

In 2016, we planted all the surviving
cak saplings, totalling over 1,200, at
Cced Darcy, South Wales. Another
468 whips of native species have alse
been plantec and once established,
the reintroduced woodland will open
to the public for the first time since it
was removed in the 1920s.

Throughout 2016 we collected additional
acorns from the established oak trees
across our sftes, enabling us tc continue
thig initiative on a rofing programme.

Coed Darcy was previcusly the site
of Britain's first crude il refinery, and
having acquired it in 2008, we spent
four years successiulty remediating
the land which was heavily polluted
with the oll bi-products of more than
70 years cf industrial production.

A 25 year project, the site is already

a thriving new community which will
eventually boast 4,000 homes, 40,000
sq t of retail and leisure space, three
primary schools, 500,000 sq ft of new
employment accommodation and now
an expanse of public green open space.

Creating public green
open space in 2017

Based on the success of our tree planting
cbjective, the CSR Steering Group has
extended the commitment 1o create
public green spaces, including parks

and wildlife areas, across a minimum

of 100 acres.
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Qur resources and relationships
continued

i Human rights

! We support the Unitad Nation’s Universal
! Declaration of Human Rights and have

! policies in place to ensure that we adt in

i accordance with our principles in retation
i to areas such as anti-corruption, diversity
i and whistleblowing.

. Health and safety

{ In addition to our Safety, Health and

i Environment (SHE) Stearing Group; our

i Group SHE Committee; indepandent

i consultants and SHE management systern:
i in 2016, we appointed a SHE Manager

i whose role it is to help St. Modwen

i Homes set the highest standard across

i the construction industry in terms of

i health and safety. As part of this ongoing
i cbjective, we have been working on

i anumber of projects during 2016

i which represent our commitment

i to health and safaty.

¢ We take ownership and responsibility

i for the health, safety and welfare of our

i employees, contractors, subcontractors,

i customers and visitors to our sites. This

i contributes to us becoming the preferred
i development partner for both private and
! public sector organisations. In addition,

i our meticuious approach to health, safety
i and welfare directly influences the quality

¢ of our developments.

Our partners

i Our abiity to form long-lasting public

and private sector partnerships is key

¢ to the success of many of our regeneration
¢ projects. We beliave that the basis of a

¢ successful partnership includes working

¢ with transparency and integrity as wel

i as understanding our partners’ needs,

¢ their objectives, core values and culture.

! We have formed many strong relationships
I with the public and private sector, with

i whom we work closely to bring about

¢ major economic change to areas across

i the UK. In tum, this has stimulated

i investrment, growth and created better

! environments for businesses and

i communities alike.

5t. Modwen Properties PLC
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Local communities
and tenants

We continue to engage and maintain an
cngoing relationship with local communities
and our tenants; two-way communication
is essential to both the regeneration and the
long-term management of a site. We work
with a variety of local schools, community
and interest groups and stakehclders 1o
reach residents and engage them in activities
and conversation to ensure we remain
sensitive to the impact of our schemes.

Supply chain

To further our relationship with the

local communities in which we work.

We encourage the use of local resources,
materials, sulz-contractors and apprentices
through our supply chain.

As an extension of the St. Modwen brand
it is vital that our supply chain partners
share cur core principles with regards to
community engagement, health and safety
and delivering projects to the highest
quality, on time and within budget. Many of
cur contractors are active across a number
of our development sites and this further
enhances our working relationship and
mutual trust with each.

Our contractors adhere 10 site specific and
Group recycling and reclamation objectives
which reduce both cost and the impact on
the environment.

83%

. of land bank with specified
i use is brownfield

1,700+

i tenants across portfolio



. Buildings

! Where it is sustainably and economically

¢ viable, we seek to re-purpose existing

i buildings during the development process
¢ of a site. Where this is not feasible our

¢ CSR objectives ensure that the demolition
i process is led foramost by environmental

i concerns; we aim to reclaim and recycle

i as much existing material as is possitle.

i The decisions we then make when

i designing new buildings, and indeed

i designing our sites as a whole, are

i important in delivering a sustainable

i development. A high guality building

i desigred to reduce energy and water

i use can deliver benefits to both our tenants
i and the environment; in tumn creating high

i guality, sustainable and safer communities.

. Land bank

i Over 80% of our land bank with specified

i useis brownfield. With this, we bring

i previously used buildings and land back

i into productive use; we provide accessible
i developments and whilst deing so, ensure
i that we utilise existing resources, protect

! the environment and contribute to the social
i and economic regeneration of communities.

i Our 6,000 acre land bank comprises an

| assortment of sites all at differing stages in

¢ the development cycle. This gives us the

i flexibility to remediate, plan, design, develop
i and manage a number of sites at any one

i time. We have the wherewithal to then

i dispose of these sites and acquire new

! schemes at the appropriate time; our

i portfolio is aver evolving.

Financial capital

i By Utilising cur asset management activities
i acress our land ank, our recurring INCome
i stream broadly covers our overheads.

! Through the sale of assets and the disposal
i of schermes, we have a divarsified source

! of cash flow which we continue to reinvest
{into new property and generate returns for

i our shareholders.

Community engagement with the return of

Longbridge Light Festival

[IMAGE REMCVED]

Our approach to regeneration is to
embrace change whilst appreciating
the heritage of the site. The Longbridge
Light Festival is a great example of

our ability to do just that.

This year, the theme the ‘Shadow
Factory' was adopted, a historical
reference to the Shadow Scheme

of WWII, when the MG Rover factory
was painted by local artists to resemble
houses and streetscapes from the air.

. For more information
. on our CSR and

. charitable activities,

. please see our

. CSR Report

i www.stmodwen.co.uk/
i corporate-social-responsibility

Owver 6,000 people descended on the
town centre for this year's Light Festival,
where 35 international and locally based
artists presented a dramatic series of
spectacular light and art installations,
alongside family workshops, live music,
pop-up art and theatre performances.

[MAGE REMOVED]

St. Modwen Properties PLC
Annual repart and financial staterments 2018

29

UOIBLLIOIUI [BUOHIDPY  SIUSLUSIR)S [BIoUBLY  a0uBLLeA0l ArIndlor)  Jodal o16ajess



- Our strategy and
- key performance indicators
- Measuring our success

As the UK’s leading

: : =~ {[GRAPHIC
. regeneration specialist, | SO g:g;::nt
: our expertise in : returns...

. remediation, planning,

. asset development

. and construction

. supports our strategy

. of securing excellent

. returns through a focus

. on long-term significant

. added value while

. protecting our assets.

; GRAPHC ...through a
focus on long-
term significant
added value...

oy --while
protecting our
assets

30 5t. Modwen Properties PLC
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Our broad regeneration
expertise and land bank

of 6,000 acres provides us
with the flexibility to move
with market demands and
pursue those opportunities
that generate the greatest
value at any one time.

We have the financial strength
and vision to acquire sites
opportunistically that have

clear potential to benefit from
our specialist value-adding skills
and which can generate profits
from commercial and residential
development at every stage of
the property lifecycle.

As the UK’s leading
regeneration specialist we
strive to adopt only the most
sustainable approaches to
regeneration and development.
We operate from a firm financial
footing, carefully monitoring
cash flow and debt, whilst

our development activities

are underpinned by a reliable
and recurring income stream
that enables us to fund our
cost base and progress

our longer-term regeneration
projects at low risk and in

a profitable manner.



L crarmc Secure

P REMOVED]

e excellent
returns...

. Objectives

Invest at a point in the property lifecycle
from which we can achieve maximum
development returns,

Maximise individual asset values
through our locally-based expertise.

Recycle assets where significant
opportunities to add value are
exhausted in order to generate
capital for reinvestment.

. Progress

We have performed solidly in the

year, with NAV per share growing

4.2%, in spite of an uncertain economic
environment. Trading profit benefited
from growth in net rental income from

a larger income generating portfolio;
strong residential profits as our

St. Modwen Homes business continues
to grow and a continued strong level

of commercial development profits.

Added-value valuation gains of £28.3m
were secured through our own asset
management inftiatives, handled in
each region and including remediation,
planning gains and rental growth.

Against the backdrop of some economic
uncertainty, our prevalence in the regions,
our strong financial position and the
diverse nature of our UK-wide property

portfolic enables us to avoid overexposure

to a single scheme, tenant or sector and
safeguards our strong financial position.

Next steps

Continue to grow commercial and
residential profits and generate
valuation gains through planning gain,
strategic acquisitions and identifying
naw cpporiunities from our existing
6,000 acre land bank.

Continue to promote and enhance
the Group's inherent value and
lcng-term prospects.

Develop and grow our net asset
base to maximise future dividend
growth. Continue to secure profitable
development to generate consistent
future returns,

Principal

risks

= Changes to the planning framework

at a national and regional level could
impact our ability to obtain planning
permissions, resulting in a failure to
maximise returns from developments
and a loss of competitive advantage.

= Unforeseen exposures, costs and

liabilities on projects could impact
our ability to deliver development

schemes resulting in financial loss
oN major projects.

= The absence of high quality contractors,

consultants and third parties could
adversely impact the quality of work
on our projects resulting in an inability
to meet demand and support the
growth of the business and a financial
impact on the returns achieved on
individua! developrments.

Downturn in market and economic
conditions could result in reduced
demand for sites and properties and
declining vields and a fall in the valuation
of our assets.

Financial collapse of, or dispute with,
a key joint venture partner could result
in financial loss and affect our ability
to geliver development schemes

on schedule.

Principal risks and uncertainties
See pages 49 to 5?7
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. Key
. performance
. indicator

[CHART REMOVED]

[CHART REMOVED]

[CHART REMOVED)]

Link to remuneration

Profit before all tax and growth in NAV
per share were amongst the measures
against which financial performance
was assessed for the purposes of the
executive directors’ annual bonus
arrangements in the year ended

30" November 2018. Trading profit
performance is one of the metrics that
will be used to determine annual bonus
awards for the 2016/17 financial year.

Directors’ remuneration report
See pages 74 to 98
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Our strategy and key performance indicators
caninued

[gaee ..througha

e focus on long-
term significant
added value...

Objectives

i = Utilise our land bank to deliver future

! opportunities and secure planning gains,
with a focus on brownfieid renewal and
sustainable development.

» Adapt our asset strategies over
i thelong-term to meet changing
market demands.

. = Employ highly skilled and motivated
i people to deliver our asset strategies
and future growth.

. Progress

i = We continue to acquire brownfield sites
¢ atlow cost and prepare for development
through remediation and secunng planning
permissions which in turn realises vaiue.

i » We have completed a number of

i sfrategic acquisitions during the year,
including land at Wellingborough and
Chippenham Gateway and business
parks in South Wales and Long Marston.
in this way, we have added value to the
portfolic in terms of securing immediate
rental income and presenting good
future developrment potential.

{ = The business has continued to grow

i throughout the year, particularly in

St. Modwen Homes, through a number
of senior appointments. The Group's
management team has grown by 1.5%
o 84 (2015: 63).

Next steps

! » Selective and capital efficient
! acquisitions,

» Continue to adopt the latest,
¢ most sustainable, development
and remediation technigues.

= Continued recycling of assets with
i limited opportunity for further significant
added value.
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. Principal . Key
. risks . performance

indicator

Failure to manage long-term
environmental issues relating to
brownfield and contaminated sites
could result in a major environmental
issue and censeguent financial and

reputaticnal damage. [CHART REMOVED)

Failure to recruit and retain staff with
the necessary skills and expertise
could result in significant disruption

to the business and a loss of intellectual
property, which may adversely affect
our abllity to grow the business.

[CHART REMOVED)]

ICHART REMOVED)]

Link to remuneration

Total accounting retumn is to replace
absolute TSR as a measure which,
together with relative TSR, will form
the performance criteria for the
exacutive directors’ long-term
share-based incentive arrangements.
People succession and development
chiectives are set annually for each
exacutive director, with performance
contributing to the personal objective
glement of annual bonus awards.

Principal risks and uncertainties
Soo pages 49 to b2

Directors’ remuneration report
See pages 7410 98



%, -while

= protecting our
assets

Objectives

=« Maintain an appropriate capital
i structure to meet our future
development and funding needs.

i = Generate cash-backed income
¢ streams to substantially cover the
running costs of our business.

= Promote positive Group-wide
i culture towards safety, health
and envirocnmental matters.

. Progress

¢ = Recurring income levels have

i been enhanced by increases in
the income generating portfolio,
sfrategic acquisitions and robust
asset management.

No facllity refinancing is now required
before 2019, with the weighted average
facility life increased to 3.7 years (2015;
3.6 years) and al facilities expiring either
in 2019 or 2021. See-through headroom
of £207m and maintenance of LTV at
€.30% enables us to be agile in exploiting
new opportunities while retaining a good
level of prudence to support future
development and funding requirements.
At 30" November 2016 we had £517m
see-through net borrowings against
£724m see-through facilities.

Accident frequency rates for our
development sites and for St. Modwen
Homes significantly outperformed the
industry benchmark in the year.

Next steps

i » Continue to enhancs the income

¢ generating portfolio through asset
managermeant whilst achieving

an appropriate balance between
retention of income producing assets
and generation of cash to fund
development opportunities.

» Continue to keep our debt facilities under

review 1o ensure they remain appropriate
in the light of ongoing strategic planning.

« Continue to attain or exceed 2017 health
i and safety related CSR objectives.

¢ Principal
. risks

Failure to effectively manage major
projects could result in financial loss
and an adverse reputational impact.

= A major health and safety incident or

nen-compliance with legislation could
result in serious injury or death to an
employee, client, contractor or member
of the public in addition to financial
penalties and reputational damage.

= Reduced availability of funding and

unforeseen changes to cash flow
requirements from rmacroeccncmic
changes could lead to a lack of iquidity,
which could adversely impact the
saleapility of assets, limit the business
to meet its ongoing commitments

and restrict the abllity of the business
to grow.

Principal risks and uncertainties
See pages 49 1o 52

Directors’ remuneration report
See pages 74 10 98

- Key
. performance
. indicator

[CHART REMOVED)]

[CHART REMOVED]

[CHART REMOVED]

[CHART REMOVED)]

Link to remuneration

Debt metrics are amongst the
measures against which financial
performance is assessed for the
purposes of the executive directors’
annual bonus arrangerments.

St. Modwen Properties PLC
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Operating and portfolio review

St. Modwen benefits from a portfolic which is diverse in terms of geography,
i sector and occupiers. It comprises over £1.75bn of assets, in three areas:

= income generating properties;
i = commercial land and development; and
! = residential land and development.

We have experienced an active 12 months, during which we were able to protect,
i enhance and create value across this broad portfolio:

lincome  Residential land: Cormmercial land/

generating development development Total

£m £m £m Em

Nov 2015 valuation 7271 757.7 206.8 1,691.6
Additions/other movements 509 1868 93.9 311.6
Disposals Mo {160.2) 83.8) (255.0)
Added value gains 177 4.8 58 28.3
Market valuation gains 2.0 (27.1)7 7 o 09 {24.2)
Nov 2016 valuation 7867 7420 223.6 1,752.3

Stated on a proportionally consolidated basts, including cur shars of joint ventures and assocales. See note 2c
i to the Group financial statements.

Additions/cther movements include purchases. capital expenditure and inward reclassifications

As at 30" Novernber 2016 our income generating portfolio was mace up as follows:

Income generating portfolio — valuation and equivalent yields

Investment portfolio Total

High yiglding portfolio
Valua-  Louva- Valua-  Eguiva- Valua  Equva-
tion lent Initial tien lent Intial tion lent Initial
£m yield vield rm yield yield B Erpi yield yield
i Industrial/
{ Logslics 2015 87% 74% 820 69% 69% 2835 8.4% 7.3%
: Petall 1009 9.0% 77% 2413 66% 61% 3422 75% 67%
Student/PRS/
Other 73 9B% 7T% 1537 54% 54% 161.0 6.0% 5.8%
Total 309.7 8.9% 75% 477.0 6.3% 6.0% 7867 75% 6.7%
Income generating portfolio - portfolio movements
- ) High yielding portfoha \;/csrtimom porﬂo@- Total
m 'm o
Nov2015 2774 450.0 7271
Additions/other movements A8 283 5090
Disposals o {0y (1@4} i (1.0
¢ Added value gains _ 7 8.5 ez 17.7
i Market valuation gains 01 19 2.0
Nov 2016 309.7 477.0 786.7
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Income generating portfolio

Representing £786.7m of value (45% of the
portfclio), cur income generating properties
provide a robust and diverse see-through
net rental income stream of £45.9m (2015:
£238.7m) from over 1,700 tenants. Managed
by our skiled teams of asset managers, the
portfolio covers a broad range ¢f sectors,
such as industriallogistics, retal and student
accormmodation and can be separated into
two distinct categories of assets:

» High yielding — Comprising £209.7m
cf high yielding assets that provide
opportunity for further development
and value creation in the longer-term;
and

= Investment portfolio — Comprising
£477.0m of assets where our
development and asset management
activities are substantially complete.

Industrial and logistics

Qur industrial and logistics income generating
portfolic represents a total £283.5m of value
and Is concentrated predominantly in the
Midlands and the South West, Cver the

last 12 months, occupier demand has been
robust and wa have been well positioned to
meet this demand.

Throughout the year, equivalent yields have
remained broadly in ine with the prior year £
at 8.4% (2015: 8.5%) and net rental income
has grown as a result of acquisitions, new 1
lettings and rent reviews.

Across the industrial and logistics portfolio,
during the year we achieved £1.6m of new
lettings. Highlights include:

* Meon Vale Business Park, Long
Marston — The commercial part of this
new community comprises 800,000
sq ft of retained industrial space. This is
now 100% let after Ford Retail expanded
its presence by taking 75,000 sq ft
space on a 10 year lease. The total rental
inceme of the fully occupied business
park now stands at £2.1m per annum
and a vield of 8.5%.

» Celtic Business Park, South Wales -
A 48,000 sg ft warehousing unit leased
to Arnazon for 10 years for an annual
rent of £0.3m at this 100 acre business
park development in Newport.



i Acquisitions, disposals and
i asset management

Acquisitions

Throughout the year, we have mare

i than offset any income lost through the

i disposal of mature assets by acquining

: new opporiunities with good added value
potential. Transactiona highlights include:

i = Barming, Kent - Acquisition of this
: 10.5 acre logistics depot for £6.2m,
reflecting a net initial vield of 7.5%.

The depot is leased to DHL Supply

Chain Ltd at a rent of £0.5m per annum.

i = Warth, Bury - Acquisition of this

i 257000 sq ft industrizl estate situated
on a 14.3 acre site for £9.3m, refiecting
a net intial vield of 9.6%. The asset

is leased to a range of tenants and
provides an annualised net rental
income of £0.9m.

| Disposals

i Realising value from the portfolio is an

i important element of our business modef
¢ and during the year we completed or

i agreed a number of notable sales:

! » Centurion Park, Derby - Disposal

i of aB3,000 sq ft warehouse for £5.1m,
reflecting a net initial yield of 5.75%.
The unitis let to naticnal brand DFS

at a rent of £0.3m per annum.

i = Heartlands Park, Birmingham —

i Disposal of thig long-standing asset,
held in joint venture with KF, to the
Secretary of State for Transport for
the HSZ project for £24.5m. Acguired
as part of the Alstom portfolio in 2002,
this 50 acre business and industrial
park comprises 880,000 sq ft of
industrial accommodation which

will be transformed into the proposed
HS2 Rolling Stock Maintenance Depot.

Asset management

Buring the year, we have continued to
add value 1o the portfolic through cur
own acticns with highlights including:

= Eastleigh Works, Hampshire -
Following a £2.5m investment into its
industrial premises. the long leasehold
interest has been re-geared to provide
animproved new lease to 2035 for
tenant Arlington Fleet.

[IMAGE REMOVED]

Parkside, Doncaster — Re-geared a
leass to National Grid at this 80,000 sq ft
industrial estate resulting in a 60% rental
increase to £224,500.

= Trident Business Park, Warrington -
As aresult of active asset management
across this 223,000 sq ft office and
industrial park, the rent has increased
by 13% to £620,000,

I ourincome generating porttalio.

Qutlook

Our ability to add value through our own
actions, combined with concentration
of our portfolic in the historically strong
Midlandis and South West regions,
positions us well to capitalise on the
strength of this resilient sector.

Retail

Our retail assets represent £342.2m

of value, of which the majority, reflecting :
£241.3m of value, are held in our investment
portfolio. The remaining assets, refliecting
£100.9m of value, are categorised as high
vielding properties.

QOur retail properties are mainly town

centres where, over the last 12 months,
performance has been more asset specific
and where intensive asset managementis
often required. During the second half of the !

year, equivalent yields have moved out by High yiel ding assets

approximately 10 bps to 7.5% May 2016: ;

7.4%, Nov 2015: 7.5%), although we were
. Investment portfolio

able to offset this impact through our own

management actions.

St. Modwen Properties PLC
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Qperating and portfolio review
continued

i Investment portfolio - highlights:

: = Longbridge Town Centre,

¢ Birmingham - Phase 2 of the town
centre is now complete and over 95%
let. having leased space this year to
national brands including Smyths Toys,
Specsavers, Holland & Barrett and a
rumber of local retailers. Longbridge
now provides £4m of annual net rental
income and with the third phase likely
to commence development in 2017,
there is further opportunity to grow
the income.

Edmonton Green, Enfield — Since
acquisition in 1999, over £100m has
been invested in the regeneration of
the centre. Totalling 450,000 sq ft and
benefitting from an average annual
footfall of 12 million, the centre is now
almost 100% occupied. The annual

net rental income is £4.3m and the long
leasehold interest has been re-geared
with the London Borough of Enfield to

provide an improved new 150 year lease.

The Trentham Estate, Stoke-on-Trent
- Visitor numbers to the Gardens at this
725 acre tourist and leisure destination
graw by 17% in the pericd and annual
net rental income from the Shopping
Vilage increased ¢n a like-for-like

basis over the same period tc £2.8m,
whilst, total visitor income increased

by 17.6% to £2.4m. Works are now

wall prograssed to extend the Shopping
Village by 21,000 sq ft which will lead

to further growth in the rent roll in 2017
and into 2018.

High yielding properties -
i highlights:

i = Kirkby, Liverpool - This town cenire

i scheme comprising 400,000 sq ft
of retail and leisure space, across
80 tenants, was acquired in 2015.
In the period, we have completed a
range of lease renewals and new lettings.
securing a number of local and national
retailers. The town centre currently
generates an annual net rental income
of over £2.5m and provides future
potential for incorme and value creation
through our ongoing asset management
and planned redevelopment activities
which will be a focus for 2017.

St. Modwen Properties PLC
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* Queensmead Shopping Centre,
Farnborough — We disposed of this
Shopping Centre, part of our town centre
regeneration scheme in Farnborough and
held in cur KPI joint venture, for £18.8m.
reflecting a net initial yield of 7.8%.

Qutlook

We continue 1o see some valug-add
opportunities across our retail portfolio,
both through intensive asset management
activity and development opportunities.
However, we expect these upsides to

be offset by modest yield expansion
during 2017 as inflation puts pressure

on consumer spending. Cur retall portfolic
will require careful management to ensure
we are appropriately selective when
pursuing value-add opportunities.

Student accommodation and PRS

The remaining income generating
assets include the Bay Campus student
accommodation facilities that we are
developing and managing in partnership
with Swansea University and our Private
Rented Sector assets. Highlights during
the year include:

Bay Campus, Swansea University

MNow entering the second academic year

at the Bay Campus, we have achieved
£5.5m net rental income (before associated
finance lease charges of £2.0m) from

the first two phases of the student
accommodation, totaling 1,462 studert
rooms, We are progressing works to the
third phase of accommodation which is
due to open in September 2017 and will
bring total student rooms to over 2,000.

We are already achieving 100% occupancy
at the Bay Campus and the demand is set
to remain strong as the University vacates
its older accommcedation at Hendrefollan
Campus, which is already being redeveicped
in phases by St. Modwen Homes into a
scheme of 300 high quality new homes.
We expect this to support further growth
and development opportunities across

the remaining 30 acres of the 65 acre

Bay Campus site in the coming years.

(IMAGE REMOCVELD]

Above Kirkby town centre has benefited this vear
¢ from an extensie asset management programme
¢ and community engagerment intiatves.

Commercial land and
. development portfolio

£.224m

Commercial
i development pipeline



i We are currently assessing our options
i for our student accommaodation assets
i at the Bay Campus, which wilf form an

i important element of our wider strategy
i and portfolio review.

Private Rented Sector (PRS)

! We have started to realise some PRS

i opportunities from our existing portfolio on
i asmall scale at Wambley Central, London

i and Edison Place, Rugby. Amounting to a

i total of 64 apartments, both schemes are

! now fully occupied and generating a total

i annualised income of £0.7m. During 2017
! we will continue to work on our strategy in

! this area and assess the land bank for PRS
i opportunities in terms of location and scale.

: In the right situation, PRS projects offer

i potential to accelerate resicdential development
¢ and gain exposure 1o a market with good
structural growth prospects.

Commercial land and
. development

¢ It has been an active ysar for our commercial
i land and development portfolio which now
i represents £223.6m of value. Overall, our

i committed programme of commercial

¢ development now stands at 1.6m sg fi,

Commercial development pipeline

having added a steady stream of new
cpportunities to replace the approximate
800,000 sq ft of space completed over
the last 12 months. The folowing table
summarises our committed development
pipeline as at 30" November 2016,

Our investment of £99.5m into commercial
development activity during the year

was reflected in a strong performance in
commercial development profits, particularty
during the first half of the year. Following

the outcome of the EU Referendurm in June
2018, we slowed down new daveloprment
commitments to allow time 1o assess any
changes in market conditions. Atthough we
subsequently resumed development activity at
similar levels, this pause resulted in reduced
commercial development profits in the second
half of the year. Profits from commercial
developrment for the full year to 30™ Novermber
2016 were £30.4m (2015; £38.3m).

Our immediate commercial pipeline is
largely focused on sectcrs with good
long-term prospects for growth, namely
industrial and logistics and student
accormmaodation. Currently, it comprises
approximately 700,000 sg ft of committed/
pre-let accommaodation with the remaining
approximate 900,000 sg ft made up of a
pregramime of speculative development

which is predominantly responding to
healthy demand in the industrial and
logistics sector, particularly in the
Midlands and the South West.

In the period, we have continued tc be
successful in securing commiercial planning
applications for delivery in the near term,
with highlights including:

= Tamworth East, Tamworth,
Staffordshire — Planning consent secured
for 700,000 sq ft of industrial and logistics
space. We anticipate commencing works
on the first phase of units during 2017

= Burton Gateway, Burton-upon-Trent —
Planning approval granted for two
industrial and logistics units totalling
328,000 sq ft in the next phase of this
64 acre business park which has outline
consent for up to 1M sg ft of industrial
space. Works on the next phase are
anticipated to commence in 2017,

Thurleigh Airfield Business Park —
Planning consent has been secured for
the development of a new 40,000 sq fi
workshop and office facility for SMH
Fleet Sciutions, an existing tenant

at the business park. Works started

on the new facilities in January 2017
and will complete later in the year.

txpecied value

No. of sq it  Pre-let/pre-sold (,o(r;?slle}g on completion Yield on cost Proft on cost
P Movernant dunng the yoar schemes ‘000 %’7 L £m £m 2 agerox.f’i__
. Position at Nov 2015 33 1500 sl 114 213
E %-/Fovea to ih;estment o
properties/other movements (19) (760} -
Schemeas added to the pirpainer B 15 790 i __ N
Position at Nov 2016 29 1620 41 136 237 -
Analysis of position at Nov 2016 - - -
7Industria\/logistics N 18 1,025 21 54 96 8.5 20
. Retail B R 255 51 o 55 86 15
| Swdent/PRS - g0 100 o8 43 6.2 25
Other - 2 160 89 30 43 77 20
Total - . 20 1,620 41 136 237 80 20

PorAsatdt danuary 201/
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COperating and portfolic review
oontinuecd

i These new opportunities are replacing the
i approximate 800,000 sg ft of completed

i commercial space, from which we have

i realised £75.5m of value through asset

! sales, with highlights including:

i = Travis Perkins, Whitley Business

¢ Park, Goventry — Delivery of a 215,000
sq ft design and bulld unit for Travis
Perkins for £23.4m. This transaction
signified the completion of this 83 acre
business park which, in addition t¢ over
50,000 sq ft of office space, houses the
main UK Head Office and engineering
works of Jaguar Land Rover.

i = Kent Foods, Access 18, Avonmouth —
¢ Delivery of a 37,000 sq ft speculative unit
that was sold to owner occupier Kent
Foods Ltd for £3.7m.

¢ Qver the course of 2017 we will continue

i to review our regiond land bank and target
i development in those areas where we can
! capitalise on positive demand prospects for
¢ commercial accommodation. We expect

i both development capital expenditure and

i returns for 2017 1o be broadly in line with

i the prior year.

¢ In the medium to longer-term, our

i development pipeline comprises over

¢ 13m sq ft of commercial space that already
! benefits from planning permission. At

i present, this is made up of 84% industrial
i and logistics space, 3% retail and the

i remainder comprising mainky offices and

i student accommeodation, In addition, we
i have approximately a further 7m sq ft of

i space for which planning permissions are
currently being pursued,

St. Modwen Properties PLC
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Adding to our medium to longar-term
commercial development pipeling, during
the period we have invested £38.5m

in acguisitions, being a combination of
Development Agreements and acquiring

land with significant potential for commercial

development. Highlights include:

= Stanton Cross, Wellingborough —
Signed an agreement with Bovis
Homes 1o be the housebuilder's
commercial development partner for
the delivery of 1.5m sq ft of industrial
accommodation as part of this £900m
major regeneration project.

s Chippenham Gateway, Wiltshire -
Development of this 79 acre site for over
200,000 sqg ft of industrial accommaodation.

Outlook

The efficient creation and realisation of value |

from our land bank through development
will continue to form an important part of
our future strategy. Over the coming
months we will be undertaking a full review
of the land bank to determine the most
appropriate and effective prioritisation of
activities for the years ahead. This wil
inform decisions regarding the allocation
of resources and capital.

Residential iand and
development

Representing £742.0m of value and 42%
of our portfolio, cur residential business has
complated another active year as a result of
our strong presence in the regions, coupled
with the ongoing success of 3t. Modwen
Homes which is now active on 18 sites across
the UK. We have also experienced continued
appetite from third party housebuilders for
‘cven ready’ land for development.

We realise residential value through two
principal routes to market:

* Residential land sales - The sale of
land benefiting from residential planning
permission to third party housebuilders.

» Housebuilding — The sale and
development of new homes through
both St Modwen Homes and the
Persimmaon joint venture.

. Over the course

- of 2017 we will

- continue to review
- our regional land
bank and target

. those areas where
. we can capitalise

- on positive

. demand prospects
. for commercial

- accommodation.



i We are also assessing the potential for PRS
i to become a third route to market, helping

i 1o accelerate development on larger sites

i and improving returns. However., the scale

i of opportunity will depend on the suitability

i of our land bank. which is not vet clear.

Residential land sales

¢ During the period we have pursued a series
i of planning applications across our land

i bank which we have either taken forward

i ourselves through St. Modwen Homes or

i sold on to third party housebuilders at or

¢ above book value. This year, including our

! share of joint ventures, we sold or agreed

¢ for sale 42.7 acres of land for proceeds of

P 247.6m (2015: 70.1 acres, £58.1m) with

! highlights including:

= Millbrook Park, Mill Hill - The sale of

: 575 acres in two transactions to Wilmott
Dixon and Laidlaw Estates for a total of
£47m, of which the St. Modwen share

is £20.3m.

= Glan Llyn, Newport, South Wales -
! Thesale of 13 acres to Bellway for 268.4m.

» Longbridge, Birmingham - The sale
i of six acres to Taylor Wimnpey for £7.6m.

! The level of disposals achieved during

i the period reflects the ongoing appetite

i for regional land amaongst third party

i housebuilders and we expect a similar

¢ level of sales to be achieved during 2017,

1 Whilst we experienced a brief siow-down

i in demand following the result of the EU

i Referendum, this proved short-lived and

i demand soon returned to prior levels. It is

i this dermand that supports our view for 2017.

. Housebuilding

i Inresponse to continued strong regional

i demand for quality new homes, we have

i experienced another year of growth in

¢ our houssbuilding activities, translating

¢ into an overall residential profit of £27.1m

P (2015: £26.7m). Cf this, St. Modwen

i Homes has contributed £15.3m (2015:

P £10.3m). an increase of 49% year on year,

¢ and the Persimmon joint venture £11.8m
{2015 £16.4m). We expect the joint venture
¢ to remain live for a further twe vears as

i Persimmon traces out of its remairing sites,
i with volumes declining by approximately

i 35% in2017.

House completions over the past 12 months
have totalled 887 units (2015: 887). at a
sales rate of 0.8 private units per cutlet

per week and comprisa:

v 485 for St. Modwen Homes (2015: 315)
at an average selling price of £206,000,
an increase of 4.6% from £127,000 in
2015; and

= 402 for Persimmon (2015: 652) at an
average selling price of £242,000
(including St. Andrew’s Park, Uxbridge).

For the coming year, we have already
secured a healthy level of forward sales,
achieving 42% of the targst set for

St. Modwen Homes and 58% of the
Persimmon JV target, with the latter
reflecting the relative maturity of the

JV sites.

St. Modwen Homes

St. Modwen Homes was launched in
2010 and in six years has grown to 129

IMAGE REMOVED]

IMAGE REMCVED)

employees (2015: 84 employees), cperating

currently from 15 sales outlets. Over the
course of 2017, we expect to operate
from an average of 16 sales outlets 2016:
average of 11 outlets), growing to 18 by
the year end and we expect to achieve
unit volume growth of approximately 40%,
at least offsetting the reducing profits from
the Persimmon joint venture as it continues
to wind down.

Highlights include:

= St. Andrew’s Park, Uxbridge -
Progressing with St. Modwen Homes'
first phase of 85 family homes as part
of this 110 acre former BAF site, held
in joint venture with VINCI plc. Once
complete, this new community will
comprise 1,340 new homes, 200,000
sq ft of commercial space, a theatre and
other key community facilities, including
anew 40 acre park for Greater London.

= Meon Vale, Warwickshire —
Progressing with St. Modwen Homes’
first phase of 258 homes as part of
this 478 acre leisure-led, mixed-use
community of 1,050 homes, 800,000
sq ft of commercial accommadation,
primary schoaol, a community centre,
gym and leisure hub.

Above 5t Modwen Homes 13 progressing wel with
¢ thefirst phase at Meon Vale.

Below The second phase of homes at Branston Leas
i forms part of the wider mixed use commurity which
P8t Modwertig delivering
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Operating and portfolio review
continued

i = Branston Leas, Burten upon Trent -
! Progressing with St. Modwen Homes'
second phase of 206 homes as part
of this new community which, when
complete, will comprise 660 homes,
1m sq ft of employment space, an
8,000 sq ft retall centre and 82 acres
of new woodland.

{ Subject to planning, the eight new sites
i where we anticipate commencing works
i N 2017 include:

i = Littlecombe, Dursley, Gloucestershire —
i The third phase of approximately 200
homes at this long-term regeneration
project which is the site of the former
Lister Petter factory. When complete

it will comprise 200,000 sg ft of
commaercial space and 600 homes.

i = Egstow Park, Derbyshire — The first
! phase of approximately 160 homes
at ithis new community in Derbyshire
which, when complete, will provide
approximately 820 new homes and
80,000 sg ft of commercial space,
with a local centre and public house.

¢ = Glan Llyn, Newport, South Wales -
i The fourth phase of approximately
160 homes at this major regeneration
scheme in South Wales which is
transforming the former Llanwern
Steelworks site, When complete

it will provide 4,000 homes, two
primary schools, a retall centre

and a 500,000 sq ft business park.

. Residential land

i Our medium to long-term residential
i pipeline represents a significant source of
! potential value creation and we expect to

sustain the current levels of annual planning
i gain across our portfolio for at least the next

i few years.

i Over the last 12 months. we have secured
i planning permissions for 1,670 new plots

i and we are targeting a further 1,235 in

i 2017, Now 25,230 plots or 84% of our

i portfolio (or approximately 14,500 plots

i excluding NCGM and Scuth Wales) benefit
¢ from some form of planning recognition.

i Qur total potential residential portfolio

i comprises 30,215 plots (2015: 32,51€).

St. Modwen Properties PLC
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Highlights - planning
consents achieved:

s Bramshall Meadows, Uttoxeter -
Cutline planning permission secured
for 700 homes and 25 acres of
employment space. Detailled permission
obtained for an initial 58 homes for
which St. Modwen Homes has already
commenced works.

» Leegate, London - Fora £125m
residential-led, mixed-use scheme
in Lewisham, London comprising 229
apartments and over 100,000 sg ft
of retail, leisure and education facilities.

= Wolverton Works, Wolverton — For
the £100m regeneration of Wolverton
Works, providing 375 homes, 300,000
sq ft of commercial space and a
Lidl foodstore.

Highlights - applications submitted:

* Land West of Locking Parklands,
Weston-super-Mare — For 300
new homes at the adjacent Locking
Parklands site which forms part of a
£400m mixed-use project which will
sit alongside 1,450 homes and be
delivered over 20 years.

= The Fairway, Stafford — For 280
hcmes, alongside a local retail centre
and pubiic open space.

s Kenn, Clevedon - For 120 homes and
three acres of employment space.

Outlook

Looking forward, we expect the housing
shortage in the UK to persist and for
Government policy to continue to stimulate
growth, both in terms of facilitating demand
but also increasingly through addressing
supply. St. Modwen is well placed in this
regard being a housebuilder that is able

to cater for strong regional demand for
housing and possessing a wider land bank
that can benefit from supply sidg initiatives.
Our residential portfolio and business will
be a key part of cur growth plans for the
long-term.

- Our residential

. portfolio and
business will be
- a key part of our
- growth plans for
- the long-term.

i Above | ne Wolverton Works designs will enhance the
¢ uniqua identity of the town and reflect the niuch-loved
i rallwey heritage

Below 5t. Modwen Homes is progressing well at
i Bramshall Meadows following detarled permission
¢ being achieved in the year.

IMAGE REMOVED)
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. Financial review

- Solid performance in an
- uncertain market environment

. Overview

¢ During the year, we have delivered a solid
! performance against the backdrop of an

¢ uncertain market environment. NAY per

¢ share increased 4.2% to 431.0 pence

! {2015 413.5 pence) and EPRA NAV

¢ per share increased 3.2% to 460.5 pence
¢ (2015: 448.4 pence) delivering, together

P owith dividends, a total accourting returm

! pershare of 4,5% (2015: 31.9%). The

¢ Group reported a profit before all tax of

i £60.8m (2015 £258.4m) and earnings pear
i share of 24.1 pence (2015 97.9 pence}.

i As previously highlighted in the Chief

i Executive's review, there are a serigs of

¢ key factors that explain why these results
are below those reported for the prior year.

i The underlying business performed well,

i as evidenced by trading profits of £56.1m
P {2015: ©63.3m), with added value gains

¢ driven by our acticns remaining strong
Poat £28.3m {2015; £38.6m; following a

i particularly active year to 30™ Novernber

¢ 2015 and despite a noticeably weaker

i investrnent market.

¢ Growp net borrowing, including our share
i of JVs, increased marginally to £517.0m

! at 30" November 2016 (2015; £.489.3m).
! Taking into account growth in the valuation
i of the Group’s portfolio, see-through

i loan-to-value remained broadly in line with
{ the prior period at 30.5% (2015: 28.9%,).

i Excluding residential land value, the

i Group's loan-to-value ratio was 54.3%
(2015 55.8%) and we are likely to seek

i to reduce this over time.

. These results

. demonstrate

. the underlying

. resilience of the
- business.

Presentation of financial
information

As we use a number of joint venture
arrangements, the statutory financial
statement disclosures do not always
provide a straightforward way of

understanding our business. Reconciliations |

between all the statutory and non-statutory
measures and the explanations as to why
the non-statutory measures give valuable

IMAGE REMOVED]

further insight into the Group’s performance

are given in nota 2 to the Group financial
staterments. In particular, profit before all
tax is used because it reflects the way

the Group is run on a proporticnally
consolidated basis, and because it also
removes the taxation effects on equity
accounted entities from the statutory profit
before tax figure.

The Group has four material joint ventures,
three of which are in partnership with VINCI
and one in partnership with Salhia. The
VINCI joint ventures comprise the NCGM
operation and joint ventures at Uxbridge
and Mill Hill {the latter through the Inglis
Consortiurm), both of which are engaged

in the remediation and subsequent sale of
land, The Salhia joint venture, Key Property
Investments (KPI), owns a broad pertfolio
of principally income producing industrial
assets acquired between 1998 and 2002

Rob Hudson

i Group Finance Director

Trading profits

£56.1

Added value gains

£28.3n
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Financial review
contnued

Income statement

30 Now 2018 30 Mow 2015

oM em

Nef rental and otherincome 50.1 429
Property profits a
- commercial - 30.4 383
— residential™ 274 267
Cwerheads (29.3) (240
Operating profit 78.3 33.8
Interest (22.2) 20.5)
Tradiné proﬁr 7 56.1 B83.3
Valuation - added value 28.3 386
Valuation — market™ 0.1 357
Valuation — NCGM (249 1274
Other finance credits/{charges) o o 0.6 6.6
Profit before all tax N 60.8 2584
Earnings per share 241 979
éa--coGe_rage“-‘ B 98% 96%

(1) Reskdertial properly profits nclude direct residential overheads of £4.5m 2015: £2.4m),

21 Valuation — miarket includes a P12.5mimpact from the changes 1o SOLT tor the year cnded 30" November 2016,

{3) Cost coverage — the ratio of recurring rental and other iInceme 1o operaling costs compnang INterest and
: averheads, excluding the direct overheads relating to the residental business.

Net rental and other income

i We aim to caver our recurring overheads

i and interest costs with revenue from our

i income generating portfolio. The Group's
¢ share of net rental and other income

! hasincreased in the year to £50.1m
{2015 £42.8m). This is largely driven

i by acquisitions and asset management

i activity, along with strong income streams
¢ from major assets completed towards the
i end of 2015 including Longoridge Town

i Centre and the Bay Campus, Swansea

¢ University. As a result of these actions,

¢ we continue to largely cover the running

i costs of the business from recurring rental
i and other income.
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As aresult of proactive asset management,
our ocoupancy levels have increased to
90% (2015: 89%) and excluding the Bay
Campus student accommodation at
Swansea University, the averags lease
length has been maintained at five years.

A degree of void in our portfolio will be
structural as we secure vacant possession
of units to prepare our high vielding income
generating properties for redevelopment.

Overheads

Administrative expensses for the year
increased to £29.3m (2015: £24.1m).

This increase included £3m of one-off costs
relating to corporate restructuring of legal
entities which is now complete. For 2017
we expect £1.5m of costs associated

with executive share buy-out arrangements
and the uncerlying cost base to increase
broadly in line with inflation.

Finance costs and income

Finance costs have increased during the
year in line with the marginal increases in
the average levels of see-through net debt
as a result of increased investment activity.
See-through net interest charges have
increased to £22.2m (2015: £20.5m)

while our weighted average cost of
borrowing reduced further in the year to
3.8% (2015: 3.9%) as a result of increased
porrowing at the low marginal rates on

our kanking facilities. Assuming LIBOR
remains relatvely stable, we would expect
an increase to our finance costs of
approximately £0.7m for the next financial
year, as the convertible bond reverts to

a fixed rate in March 2017, although we
will seek to offset this through our intention
to reduce berrowings over time.

Property valuation

All of our investment properties are
independently valued every six months
oy our external valuers Cushman &
Wakefield and Jenes Lang LaSalle (the
latter for NCGM only). Our valuers base
their valuations upon an open market
transaction between a wiling buyer and
a willing seller at the balance sheet date.
Therefore, no value is taken for any future
expected increases but discounts are
applied tc reflect any future uncertainties.

In accordance with accounting standards,
vallation movements are reflected as
gains or losses in the income statement.
Where appropriate, we will also
independently assess our work in progress
for any impairment issues. Valuations in

alt our asset classes have been validated
wherever possible by open market
transactions during the course of the year.

The total valuation gain in the year was
£4.1m, compared to £201.7min 2015,
for the reasons previcusly outlined.



. Profit before all tax

i Profit before all tax for the year was

¢ DB0.8m (2015: £258.4m), and is stated

i before tax on joint venture income and

i after movements in the market value of

i our interest rate swaps and our convertible
¢ bond. The derivative valuations are

i based on the financial market's forward

i predictions for interest rates. In contrast to
i the previous year, the convertible bond was
i trading below par at the end of the financial
¢ reporting period and togsther with other

! non-cash financial items, this resutted in

a credit of C0.6m (2015: £6.6m charge).

Taxation and profits after tax

i As aresult of the reduction in profit before

: all tax noted above, our total tax charge

¢ (including joint venture tax and deferred tax
included in negative goodwill) for the year

: reduced to £7.2m (2015: 241.1m) resulting
in profit after tax on a proportionally

i consolidated basis of £563.6m (2015

Balance sheet

£217.3m). Basic eamings per share were
24.1 pence (2015: 97.9 pencel.

As a property group, tax and its treatment
is often an integral part of transactions.

The outcome of tax treatments, including
tax planning, is recognised by the Group
1o the extent that the outcome is reasonably
certain. The effective rate of tax for the year
fell to 11.8% (2015: 15.9%,;), as a result

of a higher proportion of our 20186 profits
being taxed at the Group rate of tax of
14.0% (2015; 13.9%) as opposed to

the JV rate of tax 17.8% (2015: 17.8%)

in comparison to 2015.

The Group rate benefits from land
remedciation refief, certain investment gains
not being taxable as a result of indexation,
and the property ownership structure within
the Group. As a result of proposed changes
in the Group structure, from 2017 the
effective tax rate is expected to move
towards, but remain below, the standard
rate of tax of 19%.

Balance sheet

At the year-end the shareholders’ eguity
value of net assets was £955.2m (2015;
£2914,7m) or 431.0 pence per share which
represents a 4.2% increase over the year
{(2015: 413.5 pence per share), This growth
is after the increased dividend payments
(2018 interim and 2015 final) of £12.8m
(5.79 pence per share} in 2016 (2015:
C11.1m or 5.04 pence per share). Our total
dividend payable for 2016 is 6.00 pence
(2015: 5.75 pence), an increase of 4.3%,

in line with NAV growth. Our EPRA net
asset value rose 3.2% to 460.5 pence

per share from 446.4 pence per share.

2016 2015

Grou;; o _J_V o Total Total

£m £m £m m

Property portfolio N - 1,370.5 _3818_ - 7 1,?523 1681.6

Other assets 1262 444 170.6 156.5
Gross aséets o - 1,49677 426.2 1,922.9 1.8487.17

! Net borrowings (470.0} (47.0} ~ (517.0) {489.3}
Finance leases B {66.8) o (_09) {67.7} 7 (56:3)
Other labilities (192.6) {193.5) (386.1) (381.0)
Gross liabilities (719.4) {241.4) (960.8) (926.6)

: Netassets 777.3 184.8 9621 921.5
{ Nor-controling interests (6.9) - 69 6.8

: -Equity attributable to owners of fhe Company 7777047 1 84.é 955.2 914.7

. NAV per share - 431.0p 4135p
i EPRA NAV per sﬁaré_ - - o 460__.E_p L 446.4p

. See-through LTV ) _ 30.5% | 299%

: Tl'btél_ accounting return o 4.5% 31.9%

i his table 15 presented on a propartionally conscldated basis. mcluding the Grougr's share of assets and liabilities of Joint Ventures and Associates in the balance sheet

i categones towhich they relate, rather thar on a statutory basis as one Ine representing the share of net assets of those joint ventures and associates.
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Financial review
contmerd

. Weighted average
. interest rate

3.8%

See-through loan-to-value

30.5%
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2016 2015 204 2013 s01?
Group adjustecg _g;_e;aring 48_95/0 481%  468%  54.3% 71.2%
See-throughloan-o-value  30.5%  209%  306%  327%  40.8%
S_e;thrdagh oan-tovalue
excluding residential land value 54.3% 556% 554%  56.6%  64.0%

Financing
Following a year of net investment to grow

i ourincome generating asset base in 2015,
¢ wa have continued to generate strong

i cashinflows and have carefully managed

¢ our net borrowing position. Cash generated

(before new investment, tax and dividends)

| was £306.4m (2015: £298.1m) and new

investment was managed tightly such that

net borrowings. including our share of JVs,
increased only marginally to £517.0m, from
£2489.3m at the start of the year.

Taking into account growth in the
i valuation of the Group’s portfolio,

see-through loan-to-value of 30.5%

i and adjusted gearing of 48.9% (at

i amortised cost and excluding finance

: Jeases) remained breadly inling with the

¢ prior year. Excluding residential land value,
! the Group’s sea-through loan-to-value

¢ ratio fell to 54.3% (20156: 55.6%) and.

¢ whilst the Company’s capital structure

¢ remains strong, we are likely to seek to

i reduce this over time,

Corporate facilities

! Qur refinancing programme has

i continued with the increase of facilities

I with Barclays and HSBC to £163m and
i £150m, respectively, with both facilities
i now extending to 2021. These actions

increased our weighted average facility
life to 3.7 years (2015: 3.6 years) and

i going forward, we have no facilty maturities

until 2019, We have further reduced

i our weighted average cost of debt to

P 3.8% (2015: 3.9%} and, with £724m of
i see-through commiitted facilities against
i see-through nat borrowings of £517m,

i we have ample funding to transact.

¢ Group adusted gearng. see-through loan-to-value and see-through loan-to-vaue excluding residential land valug
i arereconcied in note 21 to the Group financial staterments.

Hedging and cost of debt

We aim to have predictable costs attached
to our borrowing and therefore hedge a
significant portion of our interest rate risk.
At the year end, 50% of our berrowings
were fixed or hedged (2015: 47%,). This

will increase further as the convertible bond
reverts to fixed rate in March 2017, adding
approximately 20% 1o the proportion of our
debt that is fixed. As any new financing is
put in place we will ensure that cur hedging
positions are appropriate for our future
development expectations.

Our actions and mix of debt have continued |
to benefit cur weighted average interest :
rate, which reduced in the year to 3.8%
from 3.9%. At current LIBOR levels, we
expect our weighted average interest rate |
to increase partly through a 20 bps increase |
upon expiry of the convertible swap, and :
a further potential increase of 30 to 80 bps
over fime as we execute our likely strategy
to de-gear, which will require us to pay
down cheaper rate debt, impacting on mix.

Corporate funding covenants

Covenant compliance continuas at all levels
and across all metrics and we continue to
cperate with considerable headroom
against all measures.



Risk management

: Risk management
: and internal control

i Asthe UK's leading regeneration specialist,
! exposure to risk is inherent in the delivery

i of our strategy. The Board recognises

i that effective risk management and robust
i intemal control is critical in managing

¢ risk effectively and enabling the business

! o mitigate the potential downside whitst

i leveraging the potential opportunities

i and upside that may arise in a considered

i and informed way.

i The Board is ultimately responsiole

i for maintaining a sound system of risk

i management and internal control and

i for determining the nature and extent

i of the principal risks it is willing to take

: 1o achigve its strategic objectives. The

i Board has established a structure for the

i delivery of its responsibilities in assessing,
¢ monitoring and assuring the effectiveness

i of the management of risk within the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committes,
has carried out a robust assessment of
the principal risks facing the Company,
including those that would threaten its
business model, future performance,
sotvency or liquidity. Its evaluation of these
scolvency risks 18 described further in the
going concern and viability statements
on pages 102 and 52, respectively,
Details of how St. Modwen’s principal
risks are managed and mitigated are

set out on pages 49 to 52.

Our risk management framework
incorporates both a top-down and
bottom-up approach to the evaluation

of rigk, to ensure there is a common
understanding of those risks that the
Group is exposed to and their potential
impact on the performance of the business
and achievement of strategy.

The Board and risk management
The Board

» Maintaining sound risk management and internal control systems
= Determining and reviewing risk appetite and key rigk indicators
* Assessing and monitoring principal risks

Audit Committee

* Monitoring the Group's risk management
and internal control systems

= Receiving reports from management
on its review of risk management
and internal controls

= Reviewing principal risks
= Reviewing of reports from [nternal Audit

Internal Audit

* Reviewing internal controls
» Reporting to the Audit Committee

Executive directors and
Property Board
« Delivering Group strategy and

managing operational risk

* Reviewing principal risks

= Monitoring and managing operaticnal

risk in ine with risk appetite

= Identifying emerging risks

Regions, Functions,
Employees
* Sharing responsibility for effective
management of risk
» Contributing 1o nsk registers at Group,
regicnal and functional level

» Maintaining risk registers and monitaring
the management of risk at regional
and functional levels

* |dentifying emerging risk

St. Modwen Properties PLC
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Top-down risk
management process

A top-down process is driven by

the Board, who have respensibility
for maintaining robust systems of risk
rmanagement and intemal control.

The Beard regularly considers and
challenges the organisation's nsk profile
and the effectiveness of mitigation
strategies in order to ensure the risk
exposure remains within the Board's
risk appetite.

The Board formelly reviews St. Modwen's
principal risks twice yearly and will
consider the movements and trends

of the existing risks, as well as the
addition of new or emerging risks.

In evaluating the risk exposure the
Board considers the interdependency
between risks across all financial and
non-financial categories. The Board's
consideration of risk is further supported
by the Audit Committee who will
assess and challenge the robustness
of St. Medwen's risk management
process twice per year.

The executive directors, consisting

of the Chief Executive, Group Finance
Director and Group Construction
Director, maintain day-tc-day
respensitility for the management
and monitoring of St. Modwen's
strategic risks in line with the delivery
of the Group's strategy. The executive
directors alsc provide oversight and
challenge to the Property Board who
are responsible for the management
of operational and functional risks.
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Risk management
cortinued

Bottom-up risk
management process

Risks are identified and escalated via
the bottom up process by individual
regions, divisions and functional
departments who maintain their

own operational risk registers.

The respective Regional/Divisional
Director or Head of Department is
responsible for ensuring their risks
are subject to regular review,
mitigating controls remain effective
and additional actions are completed
within the agreed timescales.

External risk management specialists
meet with the owners of the respactive
risk registers twice per year to facilitate
the discussion of risk and to provide
challenge to the status of risk,

A revised summary of the consolicdated
operational risk profile is presented

to the Property Board twice per year,
Where the risk exposure of one or a
number of cperational risks may have
a potentially significant impact on the
Group, the Property Board will escalate
these to the executive directors who
will consider their inclusion within the
Group risk register.

Risk profiles exist at a project level

for significant projects and/or schemes
with joint venture partners. These risks
are managed and monitored by the
respactive project teams. The risks
associated with these projects and
schemes are also subject o regular
review by the executive directors

and Property Board.
46 St. Modwen Properties PLC
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! Key features of St. Modwen's risk
: management and internal controls
i framework

= Clear crganisational structure

with delegations of authority and
responsibilities for the managerment
of risk across the Group.

i = Robust system of monthly reporting

including financial budgeting, reporting
and re-forecasting, and the menitoring
of performance against financial and
cperational KPls.

« Monthly operational reviews between
executive management, regional
directors and functional heads.

« Board and Audit Committee monitoring
and review of business performance,
risk and internal contral,

= Periodic assessment. reporting and
monitoring of risk at a group, regional
and departmental level.

v Risk profiles and risk registers
maintained and regularly reviewed
for major projects and joint ventures.

= Group-wide policy framewaork in place
which includes key policies in areas
such as anti-bribery, whistleblowing
and IT security.

» Independent reports from Internal Audit
on the effective design and operation
of controls within selected areas of nisk.

= Annual environmental audits undertaken

at all sites with acticns monitored
through to completion,

» Proactive management of health and

safety across all sites supported by
independent audits and regular
management reporting.

i Assurances over the effectiveness of

¢ interal controls to mitigate strategic and

! operational risk are alsc provided to the

i executive directors, Audit Committes and
i the Board by the Internal Audit functicn.

¢ Aprogramme of internal audit activity is

! delivered throughcut the vear taking a risk
¢ based approach with the outcomes from
¢ the work of Internal Audit used to inform

! the residual risk exposure levels.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group's systerns of internal control
and risk management during the penod
covered by this Annual Report. It confirms
that the processes described above, which
accord with guidance on interal control,
have been in place throughout that period
angl up to the date of approval of this
report. The Board also confirms that it has
not identified. nor been advised ¢f, a failing
or weakness which it has determined to
be significant.

St. Modwen's risk management and
internal control systems are designed to
identify, manage and, where practicable,
reduce and mitigate the effect of the risk of
falure to achieve business cbjectives. They
are not designed 1o eliminate such risk and
can only provide reasonable, not absolute,
assurance against material misstaternent
or 10ss.

Developments in our risk
management process

During 2018 the Board instigated a
Group-wide initiative to review and refresh
the risk management process, (o ensure
it remains effective in identitying and
managing current and future challenges
and uncertainties that may arise.

External risk management specialists were
engaged to work alongside managerment
and suppaort the Group in the delivery

of these risk management activities,
incorporating a ‘Dest in class’ approach
both from within the industry and more
broadly. These activities have been
underpinned by strong leadership,

and reinforcement of the importance

of risk management from the Board

angd executive directors, which has

been cascaded down to individual regions,
divisions, and functional departments.

The review of the risk management
process covered a number of areas

set out opposite.



i Review of the Board framework
: for risk appetite

i During 2016 the Board commenced a
review of the risk appetite framework to

i ensure that the Group continues to operate
i within a level of risk exposure acceptable

i 1o the Board. The revised risk appetite

¢ framework, and associated tolerance

¢ levels, will be complated in 2017 but wil

¢ be regularly reassessed and will continue

i 1o evolve. A suite of kay risk indicators will

! also be established and integrated into the
i overall framework for the monitoring of risk
¢ during 2017, This will assist the Board and
. executive directors in evaluating whether

i the business is operating within defined

i risk appetite tolerances.

Updated risk management
i process and risk registers

A comprehensive business-wide refresh
i of our risk management process was

! completed during the year, which

i incorporated both the top-down and

i bottom-up risk assessment processes.

Risk appetite

Secure excellent returns

Focus on long-tenm significant value

This included:

= Review and challenge of the Group risk
register by the executive directors and
the Board, including consideration of
the bottom-up risk assessment,
resulting in revisions to the description
and assessment of specific risks
detalled within the Group risk register.
This reflected changes in the internal
and external environment within which
we operate, including consideration of
the potential impact of the results of the
EU Referendum in June 2016.

= Risk workshops with individual regions.
divisions and functional departments
to identify and assess their operational
risks. Revised risk registers now exist
for each region, division and functional
department which contains clear
ownership of risk and allecation of
responsibility for the completion of further
mitigating action where appropriate.
Furthermore, the refresh of the bottom-
up process has enabled common risks,
themes and trends to be identified
which has improved the visibility of risk
at all levels of the organisation. The risk
registers have been reviewed as part of
the regional and functional management
meetings and have been subject 1o
challenge by those independent of
the region or function.

Protecting our assets

Strategic risk profile and core values

v
Overarching risk appet'rte statement

v v \j v \j
LCconomic Construction and Regulatory and Financial sk Crganisatioral risk
environment and developrment risk compliance risk appetite stalemen! appatite staterment
external market appetite staternent appetite statement
sk appetite
statement
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* The implementation of an automated
risk management system which provides
a single platform for recording, assessing
and monitoring risk across the Group
on an cngoing basis. This will improve
the accountability and visibility of nsk
across St. Modwen and enable more
effective risk reporting 1o the Property
Board, Audlit Committee and Board.

Our risk profile

During the year there have been a number
of events, predominately at a macro-level,
which have resulted in changes to our

risk profile.

The uncertainty within the investment
market and concemns over the softening of
the wider UK econcmy, to which the result
cf the EU Referendum in June 2016 was a
contributory factor, has changed the profile
of risks faced by the business with regards
the pctential level of investor and occupier
demand, the potential impact on the UK
housing market, and the valuation of our
assets across all sectors.

Whilst the longer-term impact of these
macro-economic uncertainties are not yat
known, we are proactively monitoring and
managing these risks at both a strategic
and operational level, underpinned by
maintaining a strong financial position
during this pericd of uncertainty.

Further details on the principal risks
which could prevent the achisvernent

of our strategic obieclives and may have
a material impact on our business are
set out on pages 49 1o 52,
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Risk management

coninued

Principal risks heat map*

Hef
1

Risk leve
|I ‘ Lowy

category

Risk

Coris;dction and
development

Economic environmental
and market

Regulatory and compliance

Organisational

Financial

l\A | Medium

'H - High
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Strategic Risk o Fii;k
objective descnption lavel
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Protecting our assets Failure to effectively manage major projects H
Secure excellent returns Unforeseen exposures, costs and liabilities H
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. Principal risks and
- uncertainties

Construction and
. development

1. Changes to the planning
framework at a national
and regional level

2. Failure to effectively
manage major projects

3. Unforeseen egbsﬁés,
costs and liabilities on
projects

Risk assessment L Risk assessment H | Risk assessment H
Trend = Trend = Trend =
Impact Impact Impact

= nability to obxtain planning permission

= Failure to maximise returns from
developments

= Loss of competitive advantage

Commentary

Qur daily expesure (o all aspects of
the planning process, and intemal
procedures for sharing best practice,
ensure we remain abreast of

mast developments, Furthermore,
we continue our efforts to influence
public policy debate.

Although the current fluctuations in
proposed planning legislation mean that
future rules are uncertain, at a national
level there appears to be a continued
focus on the regeneration of brownfield
sites which, combined with our planning
expertise, we believe will enable us to
prosper relative to our competitors,

Mitigation

v Use of high quality professional
advisors

= Active involvement in public
consultations

» Constant monitoring of the planning
framework by in-house experts

= Reguiar dialogue with central and
local government

v Financial loss
= Negative reputational impact

Commentary

We use our extensive knowledge

and experience in remediation,

asset development and construction

to manage our major projects. A numicer
of our major projects are joint ventures
which shares the risk exposure whilst
benefitting from the considerable
expertise of both parties.

Maijor projects are subject to regular
review by the executive directors and also
by the Board to ensure that we continue
to manage these risks effectively.

Mitigation

= Joint ventures on a number of
maijor projects reduces the overall
risk exposure

» Significant in-house development
skills and expertise

= Sites are often prime locations
allowing flexibility over their use and
increasing develcpment options.

= Regular performance review by
executive directors and the Board

5t. Modwen Properties PLC
Annuat report and linancial statements 2016

= Inabiity to deliver development scherme
» Financial ioss on major projects

Commentary
All developrments are subject to financial
appraisal and approved in accordance
with defined authority limits. Contractor
selection and management processes
are rigorous whilst subcontractor
packages and direct material purchases
are subject 1o robust procurement
processes and competitively tendered
to secure best value. However,
fluctuations in the value of sterling

and inflationary pressures may lead

to an increase in the cost of goods

and materials.

Progress on all developments is
monitored at a regional level and
through the Property Board, with
regular oversight from the executive
directors and the Board.

Mitigation

» Robust procurement and purchasing
processes in place

= Detallad budgets are established
for each project which are regularly
monitored with significant variances
investigated

» Frime assets have alternate uses.

= Projects, acguisitions and disposals
are reviewed and financially appraised
in detail, with clearly defined authority
limits

= Contractual liability clearly defined
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Principal risks and uncertainties
cornaed

Construction and
development
continued

. Economic environment
. and market

4. Absence of high quality
contractors, consultants
and third parties

Risk assessment

5. Downturn in market and
economic conditions

6. Financial collapse of, or
dispute with, a key joint
venture partner

! Risk assessment H

M
Trend n

Impact

v Adversely impacts on the quality
of work

= [nability to meet demand and support
the growth of the business

» Financial impact on the returns
achieved on individual developments

Trend ) o

Impact
= Reduced demand for sites
and properties
s Declining yields
= Afallin the valuation of cur assets

Commentary

The expansicn of the business and
increased volume of work, particularty
in residential housing, has resutted

in the need for additional contractors
and consultants in order 1o mest

this demand.

We continue to use trusted contractors
and consultants working in a partnership
approach. YWe also seek to continually
develop our pocl of third party expertise
and ensure value for money at both a
national and regional level through regular
market testing. This ensures we do not
kecome overly reliant on a single supplier.

Mitigation

» Regular tendering is undertaken for
new consultants and contractors

= Reliance on a single consultant/
contractor minimised through the
use of pocls of specialists

= Close monitering of contractor/
consultant performance and
financial viability

Risk level
L Low
“I\/I Mecium

7H_‘ FHigh
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Risk assessment L
Trend =
Impact

» Financial loss
» Delays and/or inability to deliver
development schemes

Commentary
Buring 2016 there has been increased
uncertainty in the UK property market
and broader UK economy, partly as a
consequence of the EL) Referendum in
June 2C16.

We mitigate the risk through the diversity
of geographical regions and sectors
within which we hold assets, including
residential, industrial/icgistics and retal
which creates diversification meaning
we are not exposed 1o any one sector
or region. Additionally, the land bank

of approximately 6,000 acres provides
flexikility to move with market demands
and pursue these opportunities that
generate the greatest value at any

one fime.

We continue to focus on maximising net
rent and other income in order that the
revenue generated broadly covers the
running costs of the business.

Commentary

Our key partners are Persimmcn, VINCI
pic and Salhia Real Estate Company
K.8.C of Kuwait. These are financlally
strong partners with good prospects
and strong halance sheets, Whare we
had financially weaker partners, we
have exited from those arrangements.

Mitigation

= Regional spread and portfolio diversity
mitigates sector or location specific risks

v Active portfolic management achieves
better than market utilisation of assets

* PRS developments less susceptible
to short-term market fluctuations

» Extensive land bank with a continuing
stream of planning applications

= Regular monitoring of macro
level indicators

Mitigation

= Monthly review of performance
to identify if senior management
intervention is reguired

= Flexible but legally secure contracts
with partners

» Funding structure has reduced
the exposure

= Fewer but financially strong
JV partners



. Regulatory and
. compliance

. Organisational

7A maior health and safety
incident occurs or non-
compliance with legislation

Risk assessment

8. Failure to manage long-
term environmental issues
relating to brownfield and

contaminated sites

Risk assessment

' 9. Failure to reéruit and

retain staff with the
necessary skills and
expertise

Risk assessment

Trend

Impact

» Sericus injury or death o an
employee, client, contractor
or member of the public

= Financial penalties

» Reputaticnal damage

M=

Commentary
The nature of our operations means
that ensuring effective health and safety
arrangements remains a pricrity as the
Group has no appetite for health and
safety risk exposure.

The SHE Committee has continued to
meet during 2016 and has undertaken
a review to further enhance our health
and safety framework. This has resulted
in the development of a revised health
and safety training programme which
will be rolled out to staff in 2017.

Mitigation

= Use of high quality HS&E adviscors

s Annual cycle of SHE audits

= SHE Steering Group chaired by

the Group Caenstruction Director

Regular reporting of performance

against indicators 1o executive

directors and the Beard

= Defined business processes in place
to proactively manage issues arising

Commentary

Trend - =

Impact
= Major environmeantal issue
» Financial and reputational damage

in line with cur risk appetite, we are willing
to accept a degree of ervironmental risk
where cpportunities for higher retumns
exist, The inherent risks are minimised

or passed on wherever possible and the
residual risk remains acceptably low.

During 2016, as in previous years, we
have undertaken regular emvironmental
audits of cur land bank 1o ensure we
have visibility of, and can adequately
manage, environmental risks effectively.
Actions arising from these audits are
monitored through to implementation.

Mitigation

= Use of high quality external achvisors

= Risk assessments conducted as part
of due diligence process

» Contamination remediated
immediately following acguisition

= Cost plans allow for unforeseen
remediation costs

= Annual independent audit of
environment risk

» Full warranties from consultants
and contractors

" Edmmentary

M
Trend a

Impact

= Significant disruption to the business

« {ecss of intelectual property

« Adversely affects the ability 1o grow
the business

In 2015 all members of our management
team completed a multi-faceted
development programme cperated

by external provicers. During 2016

we have also enhanced existing reward
programmes as part of the annual salary
review process to ensure that packages
remain competitive.

Staff turnover remains low and the
proportion of management with more
than threg years’ senice is 69%. There
have been a number of new hires at
senior management and Board level
during 2015 and 2018, including a
new Chief Executive and Group Finance
Director. The cngeing effort to attract
the best people with relevant skills will
support the Company's long-term
business chjectives.

Mitigation

» Succession planning moenitored
at Beard level and below
Leadership and management
development plans in place

» Targeted recruitment with competitive,
parformance-driven remuneration
packages to secure highly-skilled
and motivated employees.

Key information is documented
to safeguard knowledge

St. Modwen Properties PLC 51
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Principal risks and uncertainties
continued

Financial

10. Reduced availability of
funding and unforeseen
changes to cash flow
requirements

Risk assessment
. Trend

Impact

= Lack of liquidity

» Acversely impacts the saleability
of assets

= Limits the business to meet its
oNgoing commitments

« Restricts the ability of the business
o grow.

Commentary

The increased uncertainty in the UK
property market and broader UK
economy may impact on the Group’s
cash flow requirements and also the
availability of funding.

Our prudent approach to forward
commitments. speculative development
and asset disposals has enabled us

to optimise operational cash flows and
offset the impact of fluctuating market
conditions. We aiso continue to monitor
cash flow carefully and regularty
undertake downside risk analysis.

QOur banking relationships are strong,
our gearing is broadly constant and the
interest rale risk is hedged. We continue
to operate within our headroom and
during 2016 have increased our facilities
further to provide greater flexibility.

Viability statement

i The directors have assessed the viability

i of the Company over the pericd to

¢ 30" November 2020, which is coterminous
¢ with our most recent strategy process.

i The Group currently has an average lease

! length of five years (excluding the Bay

! Campus at Swansea) but the four year

¢ timeframe gives more certainty over the

! availability of finance and the farecasting

i assumptions used. The strategy process
s conducted at Group level and reviewed

i each year by the Beard with key influencers
I within the business having ownership of

i the cutcomes from the process. Once

i approved by the Board, the plan provides

! the basis for setting all detailed financial

i budgets and strategic actions that are

i subseguently used by the Board to

i monitor performance.

i The strateqy process considers the

i Group’s cash flows including the normal

¢ level of capital recycling expected to ocour,
i funding requirements, the sustainability of

¢ dividend payments and other key financial
! ratios over the period, as well as the

¢ headroom in the financial covenants
¢ contained in ifs various loan agreements.
i In making their assessment the directors

Mitigation

» Recurring net rental and other income
broadly covers the overhead and
interest cost base

= Financial headroom is maintained
to provide flexibility

= Regular and detailed cash flow
forecasts enable monitaring of
performance and management of
future cash flows

= All corporate debt refinanced until
at least 2019

Risk level
‘[[ Low

i [\/II Medium
H High
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! assessed the potential impacts, in severe
¢ but plausible scenarios, of the principal

i risks and uncertainties set out on pages

i 49 to 52 together with the kely degree

¢ of effectivenass of mitigating actions

! reasonably expected o be available to

¢ the Company. The most rslevant potential
! impact of these risks on viability was

: considered to be:

i = the impact of the forthcoming triggering

of Article 50, with the potential for a
downturn in market and economic
conditions, causing reduced demand for

sites and properties, declining yields and
a fall in the valuation of our assets;

» reduced avallability of funding and
unforeseen changes to cash flow
requirements, with the resultant lack
of liquidity adversely impacting the
saleability of assets, causing the
business to limit its focus on meeting its
oNgeing commitments and restricting
growth; and

= fallure t© manage major projects
effectively, causing financial loss
and a negative reputational impact.

On the basis of this and other matters
considered and reviewed by the Board !
during the year, the Board has a reasonable
expectation that the Company will be i
able to continue in operation and meet
its liabilities as they fall due over the
viability assessment period. In doing so,
it is recognised that future assessments
are subject 1o a leval of uncertainty

that increases with time and, therefore,
future outcomes cannot ke guaranteed
or predicted with certainty, The directors
also considered it appropriate to prepare
the financial statements on the going
concern basis, as discussed further in
the Directors’ report on page 102.

| Approval of Strategic report

The Strategic report for the year ended
30" November 2016 has been approved by
ihe Board and was signed on its behalf by

Mark Allan
Chict Cxecutive
€t cbruary 2017



Chairman’s introduction to governance

[IMAGE REMOVED]

- Our governance framework
. is kept under close review

- to sustain success over the
longer-term.

Bill Shannon
i Non-executive Chairman

.|
. The Board remains committed to:

s Driving the Group's long-term objectives.

= Owversight of operations to ensure competent and

¢ prudent management.

» Sound planning and internal control.

» Developing leadership and succession olans.

= Maintaining strong relationships with key stakeholders.

. Areas of focus for 2016/17:

= Following the appointment of Mark Alian as Chief Exacutive,
! undertake a review of portfolio and business strategy, with
outcomes tc be communicated in early summer 2017.

i = Continue to ensure the business is managed in a prudent
i and agile manner against the continuing uncertain
market envircnment.

i = Finalise a risk appetite framework, with associated
tolerance levels and kay risk indicators, to ensure that
the business continues to operate within an acceptatle
level of risk exposure.

As a Board, we are responsible for the stewardship of the
business and are committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate govemance across the Group. We believe good
govermance enhances business performance as well as our
reputation within our market place and across relationships
with our stakeholders.

Our approach to governance is outlined in the following report,
which describes how we integrate into our business the main
principies of the 2016 UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code).
The Code's principles on remuneration are addressed in the
DCirectors’ remuneration report which is set out on pages 74 to 98.
St. Modwen’s risk management and internal control framework
together with details of the principal risks and uncertainties that

the Group faces are described on pages 45 1o 52.

We remain mindfut of the need for businesses 1o operate in an
open and transparent manner, supported by a strong, accountable
culture and a clear approach to governance. In line with the
development of our business, our govemance framework ig kept
under close review in order to ensure that shareholders’ interests
are safeguarded and to sustain the success of the Company over
the longer-term,

In 2018, and with the support of the Board's Committees, wea
appointed Mark Allan as Chief Executive; following competitive
tenders we selected KPMG as our extemal auditors and Pw( to
provide internal audit services; we reviewed our remuneration policy
and consulted with major shareholders on proposed amendments
to it; and we continued to strengthen the risk and control environment.

At this year's AGM, resolutions will be proposed tc approve

the revisaed remuneration policy for directors and to renew the
Company’s long-term incentive arrangements for both directors
and the wider management population. The notice of meeting,
which includes the special business tc be transacted and an
explanation of all the resolutions to be considered at the AGM,
is set out on pages 166 to 177.

| hope that you find the corperate govemnance section of this report
informative and | look forward to seeing you at our AGM in March.

Bill Shannon
Chaimman
B February 2017

Code principles — how they are applied

Remuneration

Prudent oversight of
axacutive remuneration,

Leadership

Continued focus on strategy
and its execution.

Leadership Remuneration
See pages 58 to 80 See pages 74 10 98
Effectiveness Relations with
shareholders

A strong, open and
effective Board. Open engagement
Effectiveness with shareholders.

See pages 671 and 62

Accountability

Close scrutiny of risks
and controls.

Relations with shareholders
See page 63

Accountability
See pages 4510 52
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The Board

IMAGE REMOVED)

Bill Shannon
Non-executive Chairman

Appointed: Novermber 2010 as non-executive
director and Charman Designate, March 2011 as
non-executive Charman.

Key strengths: significant management and board
expenence across refall, leisure, financial services
and property sectors.

Experience: a 30 year careor at Whitbread plc

which culminated n s appeintment as a main board
director for 10 years until his retirerment in 2004, Forrmer
Charman of ACGON UK ple, Gaucho Grill Holdings Ltd
and Pizza Hut (UKD Ltd, and former non-executive
director of The Rank Group ple, Barratt Developiments
nlc and Matalan plo. A qualfied Charlered Accountant
{Seotland).

External appointments: Doputy Ghairman and Senior
Independent Director of LSL Property Senvices plc,
non-executive director of Johnson Service Group pic
and Council Membzer of the University of Southarmplton.

M=

[MAGE REMOVED)

Rob Hudson
Group Finance Director

Appointed: Scptember 2015,

Key strengths: strong financial management.
commercial and operational expenence in financial
sendces. nformation servces and commercial property
sactors.

Experience: over 20 years’ experience in finance.
miast recently as Group Finanaial Controlier at British
Land ple from 2011 Joined PricowaterhouseCoopers
on graduating then moved (o Fxpenan pic n 2000
where he held a number of senicr financial rolos.
nclucing Global Finance Director of its Decision
Anatytics business and LK Finance Directar,

A gualilied Chartered Accountant.

Extemnal appointments: none.

St. Modwen Properties PLC
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Mark Allan
Chief Executive

Appointed: 1 Novernber 2016 as Chief Executive
Designate, 1 Decemnber 2016 as Chief Dxeoutre,

Key strengths: extensive knowledge and experence
of the property sector combined wath strong operational
leadershin and financal and strategic management skills.

Experience: joined St Modwen from The Unite Group
ple where he had been Chigf Executve since 2006.
He moved to Unite n 1993 from KPMG and held

a nurnber of financial and commeraial rales in the
business, ncluding Crief Fnancial Cificer from

2003 to 2006, A qualfied Chartered Accountant

and a member of the Royal institution of

Chartered Surveyors.

External appointments: 1rustes director on the
non-executive board of Anchor Trust.

[IMAGE REMOVED]

Richard Mully
Senior Independent Director

Appointed: September 2013 as non-executive drector,
Decembar 2013 as Senior Independent Direclor.

Key strengths: extensive expenence in investmert
banking, fund rmanagement, captal markets and
real estate private equity nvesting with considerable
hoard experience.

Experience: Partner and Managing Drector at Bankers
Trusl Company from 14892 to 1998 and Managing
Direclor and Head of European Merchant Banking from
1988 to 2000, Co-Founder and Managing Partner of
Soros Real Estate Parners | LC and its succaessor firm,
Crove International Partners LLP, a mayor real estate
private equity fim frony 2000 to 201 ¥, Former Seniar
Independent Director of Hanstoen Holdings ple and
ISG ple,

Extemnal appointments: non executve director of
Aberdesn Assct Management plc and Great Pertland
Eslales ple Vice Charman of Alstria Office RETT AG.

A N'R!

IMAGE REMOVED]

Steve Burke
Group Construction Director

Appainted: November 2006,

Key strengths: s'reng operational leadershin and
project management experience i the construction
sector, ncluding brownficld reclamaton.

Experience: joined St. Modwen in 1995 ag

a Contracts Surveyor after & nurmber of years'
construction oxpenence N senior roles with national
contracting companies including Balfour Beatty and
Clarke Construction. Apponted Construction Director
1N 1898 and joined the Board as & director in 2006,

External appointments: none.

[MAGE REMOVED]

lan Buki
Independent non-executive director

Appointed: September 2014,

Key strengths: strong inancial management and
operational experience in majer commercial businesses
across A range of sectors.

Experience: Chief Nnancial Officer of Parkdean Resorts
UK Ltd since March 2016, Previously Chief Financaal
Cificer and man hoard director at Ladbrokes plc (2011
to P016) and Group Finance Director of Greene King plo
(2006 to 2013 Over 24 years' inancial experience with
companies such as Whitbread ple, Buena Vista Home
Entertainment (Walt Disney Company) and 8T Group.
['ormer non-executive director of Paypoint Ltd. A Felow
ot the Charlered Instiute of Management Accountants,

External appointments: nonc.

~ G



IMAGE REMOVED]

Kay Chaidecott
Independent non-executive director

Appointed: October 2012,

Key strengths: significant knowledge of the retail
property sector, ncluding the retall development
process, retall mix and leasing and shoging
centre operations.

Experience: joined Capital Shopping Centres Group
Pl {new Intu Properties plor on graduating and held

a number of senior managenent positions. INcluding
Managing Director, dunng a career spanning 27 years
Also served as a man board director from 2005 until
legwing the group in 2G11, Former non-éxecutive
director of Boyer Planning Lid. A member of the
Roval Instibution of Chartored Surveyors.

External appointments: non execulive director of
NewRiver REIT plo and Advisory Board mermber of
Next Leadership.

AN R

IMAGE REMOVED]

Lesley James, CBE
Independent non-executive director

Appointed: October 2009,

Key strengths: extensive execulive remuneration and
human rescurces experience and considerable board
expenence across public, private. voluntary and
adducation sectors.

Experience: HR Director for Tesco plo from 1988 1o
1999 and & man board drector from 1994, Former
non-cxoeutive director for vanous comparnies including
Alpha Arports Group ple. Anchor Trust. Care UK ple,
Inspicio ple. Liberty International plc and the West
Brormwich Building Society Former trustes of the charty
| CAN. Awarded a CBF in 2003 for services to the D11
Partnership at Work Assessiment Panel. A Companon
af the Chartared Institute of Personnel and Developrent.

External appointments: nonc.

N &

IMAGE REMOVED) [CHART REMCVED]

Simon Clarke, DL
Non-executive director

Appointed: October 2004
[CHART REMOVED]

Key strengths: strong commeraial and management
experence N both farnming and property and extensive
knowledge of the Company's history,

Experience: the son of Sr Stanley Clarke, the founder
and former Chairman of 3t. Modvsen. he represents
1he interests of the Clarke and Leavesley famnilies. the
Company's largest shareholders. on the Board. Former
Deputy Charrman of Northern Racing plc and direclor
and Vice-Chairmman of The Racecourse Assocation Lid.
An Honorary Doctor of Staffordshire University.

Extemal appointments: Charman of Dunstall
Holcings 1td Trustee of Racing Weffare and
Charman of Racing Haomes. Member of Staffordshire
University's Developrment Board, Deputy Lisutenart
far Staffordshire.

[CHART REMOVED)]

Composition of the Board
MWl MNon-executive Charman
I Non-independert directors
Hl Independent directors
Committee membership

A Member of the Audit Commitiee

(MAGE REMCNVED)
. Denotes Committee Chairman

Changes to the Board
= Bill Oliver retired from the Board as

Chief Executive on 307 November 2018,

Tanya Stote
Company Secretary

Appointed: March 2012,

Expetience: aver 15 years of governance and
compliance exparience in FTSE Isted companies,
including Misys ple, Taylor Woodrow pic (now Taylor
Wimpey plc) and Travis Perking ple. Jeined St Modwen
from GKN plc whers she was Deputy Conpany
Secretary and Head of Secretanal Department,

A Fellow of the: Institute of Chartered Secretanes.

Key responsibilities: include Board and Board
Committee support, cormorate governance, statutory
and regulatony comalianue, nsurance, HR and
[Ensions.

5t. Modwen Properties PLC
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‘ N Member of the Normination Com mittee

i R Member of the Remuncration Committee

= Mark Allan joined the Board as Chiet Executive
Designate on 17 Novermber 2016 and became
Chief Executive on 1- December 2016,
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The Property Board

[MAGE REMOVED]

Richard Bannister
Regional Director -
Yorkshire and North East

Length of service: Light years.

Experience: began his career at St Modwen as
Development Manager for the Yorkshire and Narth Easl
region in 2008 and was promoted to Regional Manager
N 2014 and Regional Director in 2015, Presously
Strategic Direslor of Pearson Developments Lid

and worked at Turner & Partners Chartered Surveyors.
A mermber of the Royal Institution of Chartered Sunveyors,

Key activity in the year: secured planning consent

tor and delivery of over 100,000 sg ft of pre let and
speculative buitd across the retall and ndustrial sectors
N Concaster. Continues to oversee the angoing
development of Waterdale Shopping Centre, Doncaster
and Bllingham Town Centre, inclucing 22,000 sq ft of
new developrment at Waterdale and lettings 1o Costa
and Co op at Blingham.

[IMAGE REMOVED)]

Rupert Joseland
Regional Director -
South West and South Wales

Length of service: 15 years

Experience: jnincd Chestertons on graduating belore
moving to Boots Properties Ltd and then to Miller
Developrnents Lid 1o gan further experience in
vormmercial development and estate management.
Promoted frorm Midlands Development Surveyor in
2004 and moved to Bristal to establish the South West
and South Wales regional office A member of the Hoyal
Instiution of Chartered Surveyors,

Key activity in the year: continucd deveioprment at
Swansea University Bay Campas, now offering
accommodaton for over 1,640 students with facilitics
management prowvision through St Modwen Student
Living, Completed a number of speculative and cocupicr
ler! deats dunng the vear and signed a condiional
contract o develop a distribution park at Chippenham
Galeway, a strategic 79 acre site immediately adiacent
to junction 17 of the M4 motorway.

5t. Modwen Properties PLGC
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Guy Gusterson
Group Residential Director
Length of service: 10 years.

Experience: joined St Modwen as Land Director
for Project MoDFL i 2006 and became Residential

Director in 2009 and Group Resdential Director n 2015,

Previously Developmert Director at Crast Nichaolson plc
overseang residential-led mixed-use developrments in
London and the South kast. Led the establishment
and early developrment of St Madwen Homes.

Key activity in the year: responsitile for maximising
the value of the Group's residential land bank
through St Maodwen's residential projects. delvery
of infrastructure, working wath joint venture partners
and co-ordinating development with St. Mochwen
Homes and the Compary’s PRS actvities.

IMAGE REMOVED)

Steven Knowles
Regional Director - North West

Length of service: 13 vears,

Experience: has over 20 years' experience in the
proparty sector, ncluding in the mvestment and
develnpment division at Evans Property Group Lid.
Joined as Norhern Development Surveyor in 2003
and prormoted to North West Regional Director

n 2014, A member of the Royad Institution of
Chartored Surveyors.

Key activity in the year strategic acquistions of Warlh
Business Park. Bury (£9.5my and Crasby Town Cenire
€2 670m) and selection as develepment partner for
Chamberhal Business Park. Bury. Commenced
construction work o the £2150m regenaration scheme
at Great Homer Street., including a Sainstury's food
store and 80,000 so it of additional retall space wath
pre-lets at 90%;. Further speculative development

at Stonebndge Business Park, Liverpool, undenway
following completion of a 68,000 s ft faciity for
DPDAUK).

[IMAGE REMOVED]

Mike Herbert
Regional Director -
The Trentham Estate

Length of service: 76 yoars.

Experience: began his career as a chartered surveyor
at | ouis Taylor Lid adwvising on commercial property
projects before jonng St Modwen as Development
Surveyor and promaoted 1o Regional Directar in 18997,
Delrvared nurmerous major projacts across the North
Staffordshire region including Trentham Lakes, Etruria
Walley and Fastieal Park.

Key activity in the year: continues 1o oversee the
rogeneration and management of the Trentham Estate,
a 725 acre tourist. lessure and shopping destination
centred on the restored Trenthan Gardens and
gttracting over 3 mithon visttors per year. Construction
of 26 new retail unils in the Trentham Shopping Vilage
commenced in the year: scheduled for completion

In 2017 thesc units will increase the exasting Tootpnnt
of the: Village which comprises 80 shops, calés

and restaurants.

[MAGE REMOVED)

Richard Powell
Buifd Director

Length of service: 10 years.

Expenience: a construction career spanming almost

30 years, ncluding commercial management and
quantity surveying roles with cormpanies such as

Bowvis Lend | ease Ltd, Balfour Beatty Bulding Lid

and Skanska Construction LK Ltd, Joned St Mochwen
N 2006 as Construction Manager and promoted lo
Buld Directar in 2015,

Key activity in the year: responsible for delivery of
the regional construction programme, including the
ongong management of the third phase of studont
accommodation al Swansea University Bay Campus
which will provide a further 538 student rooms at the
site: by autumnn 2017,




(IMAGE REMCVED)

Stephen Prosser
Regional Director - Midlands

Length of service: 19 years

Experience: background in surveying. property
valuation and azset management Tor both local councils
and Allied | ondon Properties ple. Established the
Yorkshire and North East office in 2005 and became
Regional Direclor for the North in 2012, Promoted to
Midlands Regional Director in 2014, A member of the
Roval Institunion of Charterad Sunveyors,

Key activity in the year: oversess the ongeing £1bn
regeneration of Longbndge, ncluding the continued
deveiopment of the Town Centre and the new 180
bedroorm residential faciity for the Defence Infragtructure
Organisation. Other regional activity ncluded progress
at the rmixed-use schermes at Bramshiall Meadows,
Uittoseter and Lgstow Park. Clay Cross.

IMAGE REMOVED]

Dave Smith
Managing Director -
St. Modwen Homes

Length of service: One year.

Expenience: joinad St. Modwen in 2015 frorm Morgan
Sindal where he was Construction and Infrastruciure
Managing Director and a member of the execulive team.
Previously worked for St Mochwen from 2003 until 2009
as a Construction Manager A member of the Royal
Instrution of Chartered Surveyors and a fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Building.

Key activity in the year: responsible for St Modwen
Homes, the Group's hausabilding business, which has
18 schemes under development across the country and
aght dugs to start on site in 2017, The business delivered
485 completions In the year and £15.3m property profit

Mark Allan, Steve Burke. Rob Hudson andd
Tanya Stote are alse members of the Property

Board See pages 54 and 53 for ther biographies.

IMAGE REMOVED)]

Tim Seddon
Regicnal Director —
London and South East

Length of service: 10 years.

Experience: bagan his career at Bdward Erdman
as Development Surveyor before moving 1o 1 and
Secuntics pic in 1994, Here he gained experience

in both the retail and commercial offices sectors and
became Development Director, with responsibilty for
anumber of fown and city centre regeneration led
projects throughout the UK.

Key activity in the year: concluded conditional land
agreement for the £200m redevelopment of Spray
Stregt Quarter, Wodchwich in jomt venture with Notting
Hill Housing) and secured the sale of the third residontial
scheme at South Ockendon. Completed refurbishment
works of  amborough Shopping Centre and secured
vanaus iothings at Henley Business Park. Oversight of
the delivery of lhe new wholesale facility for the Covent
Garden Markel Authority at New Covent Garden
Market.

[IMAGE REMOVED)

Rupert Wood
Regional Director -
Northern Home Counties

Length of service: 10 vears.

Experience: over 20 years’ real estate experience
across nvestment, development, asset and property
management. Joined St Modwen in 2006 from
lLendl ease where he was Senicr Dievelopment
Manager, Established the Northern |Home Counties
regional office in 2008 as Regicnal Manager and
promoted to Regional Director n 2009, A member of
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

Key activity in the year: secured the appointiment of
St Modwen as Bovis Homes' commercial developnient
partner on 108 acres at Stanton Cross, Welingborough.
Sale of 90.000 sq H speculatively developed industrial
astate at Letchworth at a yeld of 5.2%. Continues to
lead St Modwen Energy, cstablished 1o promote large
scale power generation projects such as Wroxham
Cnergy Centre, North Wales and Meaford Lnergy
Centre, Staffordshire, a Developrment Congent Orcler

for the latter was sccured in July,
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Governance - Leadership

The Board

The Board provides leadership of the Company and direction

for management. It is collectively responsible and accountable

to shareholders for St. Modwen's long-ferm success. It sets

the strategy. oversees implementaticn and reviews performance,
ensuring that cnly acceptable risks are taken and the appropriate
pecple and resources are in place to deliver long-term value to
shareholders and kzenefits to the wider community.

To assist the Board in carrying out its functions and to ensure
independent oversight of matters such as remuneration, intermal
control and risk management, the Board delegates certain
responsibilities to its three principal Committees, Membership
of these Committees comprises primarily the independent
non-executive directors and, in some cases, the Chairman.

The Chairmen of each Board Committee report to the Board
on matters discussed at Committee mestings.

Matters reserved to the Board

To help ratain control of key decisions, the Board has put
In place a formal schedule of reserved matters that reguire
its approval. The principal reserved matters include:

strategy:

new business or gecgraphical areas;

authorisation of transactions in excess of £10m and

those which are otherwise significant;

risk management and internal control;

dividend pclicy;

documents to shareholders and the annual and half year

report and financial staterments;

matters relating to share capital, such as share 1ssues

or buybacks; and

the appointment/removal of directors and the

Company Secretary.

The Board

Audit Nomination

Committee

Owversees financial and
narrative reporting.

property portfolio
valuations. internal control,
risk managament
systemns, and internal and
external audit processes

Committee

Oversees Board and
senior management
succession, leads the
process for Board
appointments and
maonitors membership
of Board Committees

v

Safety, Health
and Environment
Steering Group

Audit Committee Nomination Committee

repori report

See pages 64 10 70 See pages 71to 73

Supported by:
A\ \/
Executive Capital Projects Property
directors Committee Board
Implement strategic Established Reviews performance

to review significant
projects, either in terms
of capital investment
and/or risk

decisions approved by
the Board and monitor
operational performance
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and censiders
Group-wide cperational
issues and initiatives

Cversees Group
strategy, procedure and
performance in relation

to safety, health and
environmental matters

Remuneration
Committee

Determines the
remunearation
ngements for the

tive directors,
ainman and the

Company Secretary

Directors’ rernuneration

Seo pages 7 o 08

\j

CSR Steering
Group

Co-ordinates the Group's
approach to, and
enhances the reporting
of, its comorate socal
responsibility activities



i How the responsibilities of the Board are divided

The Board comprises the Chairman, three executive directors and five non-executive directors. Their responsibilities are summarised in the
i table below and their biographical details can be found on pages 54 and 55. There is a clear division of responsibiity between the Chairman,
: whois accountable for the ieadership of the Beard, and the Chief Executive, who manages and leads the business.

_C};ail;nan

Bill Shannom’s role is to lead the Board and ensure that itéperates effactively, His responsibifities
inciude:;

= setting appropriate agendas for Board meetings and ensuring that all matters are given
due consideration;

maintaining a culture of openness, debate and constructive challenge in the beardroom;

ensuring effective dialogue takes place between St. Modwen and its shareholders;

providing a tailored induction programme for newly appointed directors and agreeing any
training and development needs with other members of the Board; and

= ensuring the Board's effectivensass.

Chief éxécuti\fé

Mark Allan is responsible for the lsadership of the busingé; and maﬁaéihé it wathin the éutﬁbﬁtieg
delegated by the Board. His regponsibilities include:

« day-to-day management of the business;

» recommending proposals for St. Modwen's strategic development and implermenting the strategy

agreed by the Board;
v leading the executive management team; and
= ensuring the efficient use of resources.

Group Finance Director

Group Construction Director -

Rob Hudson is responsible for devising and implementing the Group's financiat strategy and
policies, as well as financial reporting and internal controls. He alse oversees investor relations,
internal audit and [T.

Ste\}e Burke is responsible for procurement and programme delivery and oversees the Group’s
maijor projects. He also chairs the Company’s Steering Groups for CSR and safety, heafth and
the envircnment.

Senior Independent Director

Richard Mully’s role invclves:

= acting as a sounding board for the Chairman;

= gerving as an intermediary for the other directors when necessary; and
= providing an additional communication channel for shareholders.

Non-executive directors

The non-executive directors work with and challenge the executive directors in the development
of St. Modwen's strategy. They offer an independent, external perspective on the business and
bring wide and varied commercial experience to both the Board and its Committees. With the

exception of Simon Clarke, all non-executive directors are considered to k_)e_mdependent.

Company Secretary

Tanya Stote:

» supports the Chairman and Chief Executive in fulfilling their duties,
= is available to all directors for advice and support;

= keeps the Board regularly updated on governance matters; and

» attends, and maintaing a record of the matters discussed and approved at, Board and
Committee meetings.

She also oversees the Group's HR and Insurance functions and supports the trustee of the
Group's pension scheme.

St. Modwen Properties PLC
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Governance - Leadership
continueed

Board meetings

_ . — Matters considered at each Board meeting
The Board discharges its respeonsibilities through an annual

programme of Board and Commillee meetings which are * Strategic matters
supplemented by visits to sites within the Company's property » Acquisition and development opportunities
portfolio. In the year ended 30" Novemtber 2016 the Board met )
formally on eight occasions; individual directer attendance is set * Operational updates
out in the table below. = Trading results and forecasts
In addition. the Capita! Projects Committee met on a number of » Management accounts, key performance indicators
occasions during the year to consider a range of projects desmed and financial commentary
significant either in terms of capital investment and/or risk. Whilst
not a formal committee of the Board, the activities of the Capital * Health and safety
Projects Committes {(whose membership is drawn from the Board) = Board Committee activities
supported the Board in fulfiling its oversight respensibilities, )
© particularly in light of Chief Executive succession activity during = Investor reiations and shareholder fesdback
i the year. » Legal, company secretarial and regulatory matters

= Minutes of previous mestings
= Implementation of actions from previous mesetings

= Rolling programme of agenda items

Key Board activity in 2016

i 1« Approved the 2015 = Towred the surplus land i = Reviewed the impact of i = Reviewed and approved
i preliminary results. including i sites at New Covenl Garden i the EU Referendum on the i the 2017 budget
the Group's property portfolio 1 Market in Ning Elrms, London ¢ husiness, its strategy and

» Considered updates on

:S(‘,L;ertmli?eigcitfgﬁ‘ cmidend » Anproved the appontment of fls markets Group PH & Communications.
© P Mark Allan as Chielf Executive 3 = Formalised the strategy to
» Considered the annual ¢ and KPMG as external auditor | market the 10 acre Ning Fims

renewal of Insurance ¢ Square site
arrangements for the Group i

Approved the 2016 haff
year resulls

- 5 i 18ing ] i
i » Discussed actions ansing i = Joint broker presentation on

ar : = Through the Rermuner: -

from the external Board : ough the uneration : St Mochwen i the contest of
evaluation T Commitee, considered H .

H : R H the wider real estate market

H . proposed changes to the i s Annual strategy review :

t = Considered Group - . . : : :

F— . } Company's remuneration i coverng strategic context, i = Through the Remunaration
financing strategy . . - : L :

H i policy for directors prior 1o i forecast scenarios. i Committee, considered

i« Considered AGM-related i consuling wath magor ioresidential and commercial i investor feedback on
matters i sharehokders P development, and financing i remuneration paolicy proposals

Attendance at Board meetings

Meetings attended

in year out of
maximum %5 attended
Drractor Role Director since possible In year
Mark Allan® Chief Executive Nov20is 2/2 100%
lan Bul Non executive director -  Sep20i4 8/8 100%
Steve Burke 7Grc¥up Coﬁstruction Director - ) Nov 2006 8/8 - 100%
Kay Chaldecotl Non-executive director ) Octzol2 88  100%
‘Gimon Clarke  Non-executive director © Oct2004 8/8 100%
Rob Hudson Group Finance Eirector B i Sep 2015 8/8 100%
Lesley James* 7 Non-executive drector o Oct 2009 ' s 875%
Richard Mully Serior Independent Director o Sep 2013 &8 100%
Bil Oliver™ Chief Executive R Jan2000 88 100%
Bill Shannon ‘Chairman - © Nov20lo Y 100%

1y Appointed to the Board as Chist Executive Designate on 1 November 2018 and became Chief txecutive on 1+ December 2016,
I [2) Unable 1o atlend the Board Meeting n late Noverrber 2016 due to illness
13) Retired from the Board on 30" November 2016,
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Governance - Effectiveness

Induction of a new director

The Chairman, assisted by the Company Secretary, is responsibie
for the induction of all new directors,

On joining the Board, a director receives a comprehensive induction
i pack which includtes background information on the Comparry.

i material on matters relating to the activities of the Board and its

i Committees and governance-related information (including the

i duties and responsibilities of directors).

i Mestings are arranged with the executive directors for briefings on
i strategy and performance, as well as with the external auditor and
i valuers. Visits to key sites within the Company’s property portfolio
i are scheduled and external training, particularly on matters relating
! to membership of Board Committees, is arranged as appropriate.
¢ Major sharehclders are also offered the opportunity to meet newly
i appointed directors should they express a desire to do sc.

Director development

i The Company is committed to the continuing development

¢ of directors in order that they may build on their expertise and
i develop an ever more detailed understanding of the business
i and the markets in which 5t. Modwen operates.

i Training and development needs are discussed with each director

! by the Chairman as part of the annual individual performance

i evaluation process and kept under review. Development activities

! include visits to sites within the Company’s property portfalio,

i both as a Board and individually, regular presentations to the Beard
i by regional directors and senior management on key issues and

i projects, and meetings with the external valuers to review their

i property valuation reports.

The attendance by members of Board Committees on courses
i relevant to aspects of their respective Committee specialisms is
i also encouraged.

Director independence and re-election to
: the Board

The Board censiders Bill Shannon to have been independent on
¢ his appointment as Chairman in 2011 and that he remains so.

! Simon Clarke, a non-executive director, represents the interests

i of the Clarke and Leavesley families on the Board. Togsther the

! families hold 14.5% of the Company’s issued share capital and are
! 8t Modwen's largest shareholder. Conseguently, the Board has

i determined that Simon Clarke is not independent for the purposas
i of the Code.

The Board considers that all other non-executive directors are
independent and is not aware of any relationship or circumstance
likely to affect the judgement of any director.

At the 2017 AGM, and in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association, Mark Allan will retire and offer himself for election.
All other directors will retire and offer themselves for re-election in
accordance with the provisions of the Code.

The explanatory notes set out in the netice of meaeting state the
reasons why the Board believes that the directors proposed for
re-election at the AGM should be re-appointed. The Board has
based, in part, its reccrmmendaticn for re-glection on its review

of the results from the Board evaluation process and the
Chairman’s review of individual evaluations. It has concluded

that the performance of each director continues 1o be effective,
that they continue to dermonstrate commitment to their respective
roles, and that their respective skills complement one another to
enhance the overall cperation of the Board.

Notice of annual general meeting
See pages 16610 177

External appointments

On appointment diirectors are advised of, and reguested to

make, the necessary time commitment required to discharge their
responsibilities effectively. This time commitment is alse outlingd

in the letters of appointment issued to non-executive directors.

The Chairman reviews annually the time each director has
dedicated to St. Modwen as part of their individual performance
evaluations and is satisfied that their other duties and time
commitments do nct conflict with those as directors of the
Company. Similarly, the Board is content that the Chairman'’s
external appointments do not impact on his ability to allocate
sufficient time to discharge his responsibilities to St. Modwen.

Conflicts of interest

The Board operates a policy to identify and, where appropriate,
manage any conflicts of interest affecting directors. This enables
the Board to consider and, if thought appropriate, to authorise
a director's actual or potential conflict of interest, taking into
consideration what is in the best interests of the Company and
whethar the director's ability to act in accordance with his or
her wider duties is affected.
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Governance - Effectiveness
coninued

Performance evaluation

The annual Board performance evaluation review provides an
! opportunity for the directors to reflect on their collective and

2015-16 evaluation process

indlivicuel effectiveness and consider any Changes‘that could GRaPHic  Review of governance framework

i improve the operation of the Board and its Committees. REMOVED

; } ) ] A suite of Board and Committee information was sent to

i The most recent avaluation review commenced in late 2015 BRR to provide information on the govemance framework
i following the appeintment of Rob Hudsen as Group Finance within which the Board operates.

i Director in order that his initial views on the operation of the Board
i could be considered. In accordance with the Code, the assessment
¢ was facilitated by Dr. Tracy Long of Boardroom Review Ltd (BRR), Y

who received a comprehensive brief from the Chairman, Neither [GRAPHIC One-to-one interviews
¢ Tracy nor BRR has any other connection with the Company and REMOVED] |1 ividual in-depth interviews were conducted by BRR
i is considered by the Board to be independent, with each director and the Company Secretary.

The evaluation covered areas such as the cperation of the Board,
i its culture and composition, its focus, and risk and control. Progress
i against some of the key findings identified by the review can be

¢ found in the table Delow. [GRAPHIC  Board meeting observation
¢ Board Commitiee performance was also evaluated in late 2015 REMOVED]  gaR attended the January 2016 Board meeting
i by means of a questionnaire completed by relevant Committee fo observe the conduct and operation of the Board.
i members and meeting attendees. The outturn of these evaluations Capies of meeting papers were circulated to BRR
i was considered as part of the Board performance review meeting ; in advance for briefing purposes.
i InMarch 2016. In general, all were considered well-run, challenging, i
i structured, trusted and effective. Specific findings of these v
i evaluations can be found in the relevant Committes reports, [GRAPHIC  Reporting
i Inlight of the recent appointment of Mark Allan, the next evaluation REMOVED]  ggp prepared a discussion document which analysed
i of the performance of the Board and its Committees will be %’gﬁ;};‘{:‘;‘?:fjggosrm’;;{?;}g::a' areas for
: undertaken in the secend half of 2017.
i The individual performance of the directors was evaluated through i
i cne-to-one discussions with the Chairman. Richard Mully, as Senior \
{ Independent Director, led the review by the non-executive directors [GRAPHIC  Discussion and evaluation
i of the Chairman’s performance. which took into account the views BEMOVED] 5 conclusions were discussed with the Ghairman and
i of the executive directors. No actions weare considered necessary subsequently considered by all directors at a meeting with
i as aresult of these evaluations and the Board is of the view that BRR in March 2018.
the performance of all directors continues to be effective, that they :
i continue to demonstrate commitment to their regpective roles, and :
i that their regpective skills complement one another to enhance the Y
¢ overall operation of the Board. [GRAPHIC  Implementation
REMOVED] An action plan to implement agreed recornmendations was
prepared and progress monitored by the Board.
. 2015/16 Board evaluation

Key findings The Board to play a key role in The Board, through the The Board, with the assistance
supporting the CEO transition Nomination Committee, to of the Audit Committee, to
process to facilitate on-boarding  monitor its future compaosition define and articulate its risk
and stakeholder engagement to ensure that it continues to appetite and ensure the
whilst maintaining business have an appropriate balance of  development and execution
performance and strategic knowledge and skills, combined  of strategy within defined risk
delivery, with the right cufture and appetite tolerances.

{ diversity of views.

Progress made in the year A comprehensive, tailored A gkills matrix has been A review of the risk appetite
induction programme was developed and Board framework has been
developed involving sessions composition assessed against  commenced and a suite of key
with all Board and Property it to ensure that succession risk indicators considered; both
Board members, meetings planning remains closely will be integrated into the risk
with joint venture partners aligned to the strategic direction  management framework in 2017,

and institutional shareholders, of the Group.
and visits to key sites,
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- Governance - Relations with shareholders

. Dialogue with investors

i The Board has a comprehensive investor relations programme

i which aims to provide existing and potential investors with a means

i of developing their understanding of St. Modwen. The programme
! is split between institutional sharsholders (who, In aggregate, hold
¢ over 80% of the issued share capital in the Company), private

i shareholders and debt investors. Feedback from the programme of
i events is provided to the Board to ensure that directors develop an

understanding of the views ¢f the Company's major investors.

i As part of the programme, presentations on the half year and

: annual results are given by the Chief Executive and Group Finance
¢ Director in face to face meetings and on conference calls with

¢ institutional investors, analysts and the media. Copies of these

i presentations, together with trading updates, are published on

i the Company's website at wwaw . stmodwen.co.uk. Meetings with

i principal shareholders were also held and the Company had reguler

i dialogue with its key relationship banks. The Chairman is available
¢ to meet with institutional shareholders and investor representatives
: to discuss matters relating to strategy and governance. Private

i shareholders are encouraged to give feedback and communicate
i with the Board through the Company Secretary.

. Annual general meeting

i The AGM provides an opportunity for all shareholders to vote on

i the resolutions proposed and te question the Board and the

i Chairmen of the Board Committees on matters put to the meeting.
¢ Resolutions for consideration at the 2017 AGM will be voted on by
¢ way of a poll rather than by a show of hands as the Board believes
i that this is a more transparent method of voting as it allows the

i votes of all shareholders to be counted, including those cast

i by proxy. The results of the poll vote will be published on the

i Company's website, www.stmodwen.co.uk, after the maeting.

Notice of annual general meeting
See pages 166 to 177

Compliance statement

This corporate governance report. together with the Audit
Committee report. the Nomination Committee report, the
Directors' remuneration report and the sections of this Annugl
Report entitled ‘Risk management’ and ‘Principal risks and
uncertainties’, provide a description of how the main principles
of the Code have been appiied by St. Modwen in 2015/16.
The Code is published by the Financial Reporting Council and
15 availabie on its website at www fre.org.uk.

it is the Board's view that, throughout the financial year ended
30" November 2016. the Company complied with the relevant
provisions set out in the Code with the exception of provision
B.1.2, which requires that at least half the Board, excluding

the Chairman, should comprise independent non-executive
directors. For the month of November 2016 only {following Mark
Allan joining the Board cn 17 November 2016 and prior to the
retirement of Bill Oliver on 30" November 2016), the Beoard
comprised four executive directers and six non-executive
directors. Excluding the Chairman, the number of independent
and non-independent directors in the month was four and five
respectively. The Board was of the view that non-compliance
with this provision of the Code during the month was sufficiently
justified by the need to ensure a suitable period for a handover
of responsibilities between Bill Oliver and Mark Allan.

With the exception of disclosures required by Rule 7.2.6
which are set out In the Directors’ report, this corporate
governance report contains the information required by Rule
7.2 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authority.

The directors are responsible for preparing this Annual report.
The statement of directors’ responsibilities on page 103 Is made
at the conclusion of a robust and effective process undertaken
by the Cormpany for the preparation and review of the Annual
Report. The directors believe that these well-established
amangements, details of which are set out on pages 67 and 68,
enable them to ensure that the information presented in this
Annual Report is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders 10 assess
the Company’s position and performance, business model

and strategy.
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Audit Committee report

IMAGE REMOVED]

. The Committee’s activities

. continue to enhance how

. we understand and monitor
. the business.

! lan Bul
i Chairman of the Audit Committee

. Principal role

Monitors the integrity of the Group's financial reporting and audit
i processes and the development and maintenance of sound
i systerns of risk management and intermnal control.

. Key activities in 2015/16
= Competitive tender held for the external auditor appointment.
i = Qversight of outsourcing of internal audit function.

= Focus on the Group's approach to the management of risk,
{  mitigating actions and provisions.

 Areas of focus for 2016/17

= Continuous improvement of risk managerment and
! internal controls.

« Continuing enhancements to the Group’s risk assurance
¢ framework, including cyber security.

! = Embedding internal audit (now outsourced to PwC) into an
! integrated approach to management of risk and controls.

Terms of reference
WWWSTMoOWen.co.Uk/about-us corporate-govemanca
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At a glance

- Meetngs

attended in

year out of
XTI “z allendecd
Comsmittee member Merniber since: possible n year
lan Bull Sep 2014 5/5 100%
Kay Chaldecott - Dec 2012 4/5 80%
Lesley James* QOct QQOQ /5 80%
Richard Mully Sep 2013 5/5 100%

117 Unablc 1o attend tne meeting n May 20ME due to a prior business commitment.

21 Unable to attend the rmeeting in June 2016 due 1o a pricr personal commitment.

Committee meeting attendees (by invitation)
s Bill Shannon (Chairman)

= Rob Hudson (Group Finance Director)

v Simon Clarke (non-executive director)

v Andy Taor (to 29" February 2016) and Simon Redfern {from
9 May 2016} {Greup Financial Controlier)

» David Edwards {to 30" November 2016} and Rebecca Cooke
of PwC (from 1% December 2016) (Head of Internal Audit)

= Tanya Stote (Company Secretary and secrétary 1o the
Committee)

» Representatives from Delcitte {external auditor)™

» Representatives from Cushman & Wakefield and Jones Lang
LaSalle (external valuers)

» Representatives from PwC (tax compliance), RSM
{risk management) and BDC {internal audit and controls)
{external advisers)

(1} F ollowing the anncuncement made by the Company on 28" April 2016 regarding
its Intention to recommend 1o shareholders the appontment of KPMG as its
external auditor for the year ending 30" Novembar 2017, represcntatives from
KPMG were alsonvited to attend 1o support a smooth transition from Delortic
from this point orwards,

. JH
As Chairman of the Audit Committee | am pleased to present the
Committee’s report for the financial year ended 30" Novermber
2016. The report is intended to provide maaningful insight into
the Committee’s activities in the year and sets out how we have
performed our responsibilties in relation to those areas within

the Committee’s terms of reference, including financial reporting,
internal control, risk management and external audit matters.

The year was one of good progress in a number of areas which
continue to enhance how we understand and monitor the business.
A Group-wide initiative was instigated to review and refresh the risk
management process to ensure it remained effective in supporting
the identification and management of the uncertainties faced by

St. Modwen. These activities were underpinned by strong feadership
from the Board and executive directors, which was cascaded down
to individual regions, divisions and functional departments, thereby
enhancing the risk management culture across the business.

Additional scope for internal audit activities was agreed and
implemented, initially through a co-sourcing model supported by
BDC and culminating in the decision o fully outsource the function
to PwC with effect from 17 December 2016 following a competitive
tender process.

As noted in last vear's report, the Committes determined that the
external audit would be put out to competitive tender during 2016
in line with regulatory requirements. That process was concluded in
April with a recommendation by the Committee to the Board to



i appoint KPMG as the Company's exdernal auditor for the 2016/17

i financiat year. Deloitte, the Company's current auditor. will remain

i npost to complete the 2015/16 year end audit: | would lke to take
¢ this opportunity to offer my thanks to them for their service over the
i years and commitment to ensuring & smooth handover to KPMG,

1 In conjunction with the external audit tender, the Committes also
¢ considerad and reaffirmed the arrangements it has developed to
: define and manage the use of the external auditor for non-audit

! services. These are key to ensuring the continued independence
i and objectivity of the external auditor and we will continue to

¢ report on the non-audit services undertaken in line with these

i arrangements in future reports.

i lam encouraged by the progress which continues to be made
and would like to thank my fellow Committee members for

i their continued support and commitment to ensuring effective

¢ governance through the Committee's activities. My thanks also

i go to the executive team for their positive engagement on matters
! within the Committee’s remit.

i Finally, after just over seven years’ service, Lesley James will be
¢ stepping down as a member of the Committee following the

: anncuncament of the Company’s 2016 results. | am grateful to
i Lesley for her unwavering advice and support and | look forward
¢ 1o continuing to work with her on the Board's wider agenda.

| hope that the following report provides a useful guide to the
i activities of the Committee during the year.

: lan Bull
i Chairman of the Audit Committee
i 6" February 2017

Committee membership

i Al members of the Committee are independent non-executive

t directors, with each bringing bread financial and commercial

i experience at senior levels across a range of industries. The

i Committes’s composition is kept under review by the Nomination
! Committes, which is responsible for making recommendations to
i the Board as to its membership.

¢ lan Bul was appointed Committes Chairman in March 2015, lan

i was Chief Financial Officer of Ladbrokes plc until Felruary 2016

¢ and is currently Chief Financial Officer of Parkdean Resorts UK Ltd.
i The Board considers him to have significant, recent and relevant

i financial experience as required by the Code and is of the view that
¢ the Committee as a whole has competence relevant to the sector

i inwhich the Company operates.

i Al members of the Committee receive an appropriate induction

i to ensure that they have an understanding of the principles of,

i and recent developments in, financial reporting, key aspects of

i the Company’s accounting policies and judgements, and internal
i control and risk managerment arrangements, as well as the role of
i the internal and external auditors. Ongoing training is undertaken

! as required.

How the Committee operates

The Committee met five imes during the year; the schedule

i included a separate meeting with specific focus on risk

i management and internal controls plus a stand-alone meeting

i with the external valuers 1o review and discuss their valuation

i reports. Meetings of the Committee generally take place just pricr
i to a Board meeting to mexirmisa the efficiency of interaction with

i the Board and the Committee Chalrman reports to the Board,

as a separate agenda itemn, on the activity of the Committee

i and matters of relevance to the Board in the conduct of its work,

Representatives from the external auditor are invited 1o each
meeting together with other Board members, the Group Financial
Controller, the Head of internal Audit and the Company Secretary.
Representatives from both Cushman & Wakefield and Jones Lang
LaSalle (JLL). the external valuers, are invited to attend meetings &t
which the half year and annual valuations of the Group's investment
properties are considered by the Committee. Representatives

from the Group's external advisors, such as PwG ftax compliance}
and RSM (risk management), are invited to attend meetings as
appropriate. Following the announcerment mads by the Company
on 28° April 2018 regarding its intention to recommend to
shareholders the appointment of KPMG as its external auditor for
the yaar ending 30" November 2017, representatives from KPMG
were also Invited to attend meetings to suppert a smooth transition
from Deloitte.

At least once a year, immediately following a Committee

meeting, the Committee meets separately with the external

audit engagement partner and with the Head of Intemal Audit

to give therm the cpportunity to discuss matters without executive
management being present. The Committee Chairman also holds
separate one to one mestings with the Group Finance Director,
the Head of Internal Audit and with Deloitte, typically ahead of
Committee meetings, to better understand the issues and areas
of concemns and to make sure adequate time is devoted to these
matters at the subsequent mesting. These arrangements will
continue following the appcintments of KPMG and PwC.

The Committee has direct access to the Head cof Internal Audit, the
external audit engagement partner and the external valuers outside
formal Committee meetings. Whilst permitted to do so, no member
of the Committee, nor the Committee collectively, sought cutside
professional advice beyond that which was provided directly to the
Committee during the financial year.

The performance of the Committee was evaluated during the year
oy way of a quastionnaire which was completed by all members
of the Committee as well as those who attended Committee
mestings. Feedback received was supportive of the manner in
which the Committee cperated, but recommended that a further
meeting be added to the annual schedule 1o better accommoedate
the Committee’s oversight of risk management and internal control;
this was introduced during the year. The scope and rescurcing

of the internal audit function was also highlighted; steps taken to
strengthen this during the year can be found in the section headed
‘Internal audit’ on page 69.

Activities of the Committee during the year

Reporting

The Committee’s primary responsibility in relation to the Group's
financial reporting is to review with both managerment and the
external auditor the integrity of the half year and annual financial
statements with particular focus on;

» the consistency of, and any changes to, accounting policies
and practices;

material areas in which significant judgements have been
applied or where significant financial issues have been
discussed with the external auditor;

the clarity of the disclosures and compliance with financial

reporting standards and relevant financial and governance
reporting requirements, such as staterments cn viability and
going concern; and

whether the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced
and understandable and provides the information necessary
for sharehclders to assess the Company’s position and
performance, business model and strategy.
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Audit Committee report
continued

i Accounting policies and practices

The Cormmittee received reports from management in relation to
i the continung appropriateness of accounting policies applied by
: the Group and any changes reguired as a consequence of the

i implementation of new accounting standards.

¢ During the year, the Group adopted the amendments to 14519

i Defined benefit plans: Employes contributions and the amendments
o IAS2T Equity method in separate financial staterments along with

{ amendments relating to IASB's annual improvements exercise.

i The adoption of these amendments had no material impact on

the Group financial statements.

Following consideration and discussions with Deloitte, the

Significant judgements and financial issues

The Committee pays particular attention to matlers it considers

to be important by virtue of their impact on the Group's results,

or the level of complexity, judgement or estimation involved in

their application to the Group financial statements. The significant
financial issues considered by the Committee in relation to the 2016
financial statements, and how these were addressed, are outlined
below. The Committee discussed these with the external auditor
and, where appropriate, how thase were addressed by Deloitie’s
audit scope.

Independent auditor’s report
See pages 104 10 109

i Committee was satisfied that the accounting policies and

i related disclosure in this Annual Report was appropriate.

Accounting policies
See pages 114 to 120

Significant ssue

Valuation of investment properties; 7

The valuation of St. Modwen's investment properties
is a key determinant of the Group's balance sheet
and performance as well as executive variable
remuneration.

Although the pertfolio valuation is conducted
externally by independent valuers, the nature of
valuation estimates is inherently subjective and
requires significant judgements and assumptions
o be made by the valuers. These include market
comparable yields, estimates in relation o future
rental income, void periods, purchaser costs,
together with remediation and other costs to
complete, some of which require management input.
These judgements and assumptions are subject to
market forces and will change accordingly.

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group's inventories, comprising property held
for sale, property under development commenced
with a view to sale and land under option, is of
significant value.

All inventory is carried at the lower of cost and néat
realisable value and appropriate alowances are
made for remediation and other costs to complete.
For the majority of inventories held, management rely
on their own internal procedures for assessing the
carrying value of inventory. These require a number
of judgements to be made, such as forecast revenue
and costs, that derive a profit margin over the
development and provide an indication of the
recoverability of the inventory.

St, Modwen Properties PLG
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Work undertaken by and conclusion of the Commitiee

The Committee adopts a formal appreach by which the valuation process,
methodology, assumptions and outcomes are reviewed and robustly challenged.
This includes separate review and scrutiny by both management and the
Committee, with members of the Committes discussing the valuations both prior
to and at Committee mestings in January and June. It also includes the external
auditor which is assisted by its own specialist team of chartered surveyors who
are familiar with the valuation approach and UK property market.

The external auditor has direct access to the Group’s valuers and their remit
extends to investigating and confirming that no undue influence has been
exerted by management in relation to the valuations. The external auditor
reviewed the valuations and process and reperted its findings to the Committee.

Both Cushman & Wakefield and JLL submit their valuation reports to the
Committee as part of the half year and full year results process. Both valuers
were asked to presant thelr valuation reports at Committee meetings and
highlight any significant judgements made or disagreements between
themselves and managemeant; there were none.

Against the backdrop of the uncertainty created by the UK's vote to leave the
EU, the Committee also considered the extent te which this could impact the
property investment and lettings market in terms of both activity and liquidity.

Based on the degree of oversight and challenge applied to the valuation process,
the Cormmittee concluded that the valuation as a whole had sach been
conducted appropriately, independently and in accordance with the valuers’
professicnal standards.

The Committee reviewed management’s assessment as to whether any
provision was required against the carrying value of inventory, either at Group
level or within any joint venture arrangements. The assessment process
undertaken t0 determine net realisabie value was considered by the Committee,
which included ongoing monitoring by management as well as detailed reviews
at both the half and full year. Cushman & Wakefield also provided valuations for
certain sites, tygically new build units not yet sold.

The Committee concluded that the judgements and estimates made by
management were in line with Group palicy, reasonable and appropriate.




Snificant 1ssue

New Covent Cgrd;n lGa rkét

Certain property transactions entered into by the
Group involve an element of complexity and the need
o exercise judgement to determine the most
appropriate accounting treatrment. Such transactions
include the regeneration of the New Covent Garden
Market site in Nine EIms, London, which became
unconditional in Apnl 2015,

Balance sheet recognition of the Group's interest
comprised accounting for the nght to secure the
interest in the surplus land together with the
associated obligation 1o procure the new market
for the Covent Garden Market Autherity.

As with the rest of the portfolio, significant
judgements and assumptions are made by

JLL, our independent vaiuers of this project,

in arriving at the valuation, some of which required
management input.

and

Work unidlertaken by and conclusion of the Comirmintee

Following the initial recognition in 2015, the Committee has continued 1o assess
the appropriateness of the accounting treatment adopted and associated
disclosure, particularly given the scale and complexity of the proposed
development.

In particular, the Committee:

» assessed with both JLL and management the valuation assumplions for the
surplus land, enabling costs and overage, and the costs of procuring the new
market facilties;

= reviewed the measurement of the liability to procure the new market faclites;

reviewed the classification of the Group's interest in the surplus land as
investment property.

The Committee concluded (and Deloitte concurred) that the accounting
treatment adopted and valuation assumptions made were appropriate,

Further information on the accounting judgements made is set out in the
accounting policies note cn page 1189.

Tax provisions

As a property group, tax and its treatment is often
an integral part of transactions undertaken by

St. Modwen. The outcomes of tax treatments are
recegnised by the Group to the extent the outcome
is reasonably certain.

Where tax treatments have been challenged by
HMRC, or management believe that there is a risk of
such challenge, or new tax regulation is introduced,
provision is made for the best estimate of potential
exposure based on the information available at the
reporting date.

Based on reports from management and PwC (the Group's tax compliance
advisor), the Committee has continued to assess the risk of challenge and
individual judgerments made by management in respact of tax provisions and
was satisfied that the mitigating actions and resultant level of tax provisioning
at both the full year and half year remained appropriate.

Further disclosure on taxation is set out in note 5 to the Group financiai
statements and the accounting policies note on page 120.

Viability and going concern

: The Gommittee provides advice to the Board on the form and basis
{ underlying both the going concemn statement and the longer-term
i viability statement.

As both statements rely on forecasts, the Committee considered
i the assumptions and judgements applied by management in

i relation to the timing of receipt and payment cash flows, the

i ongoing availability of funding and covenant compliance. The

i Committee also reviewed the sensitivity analysis prepared by

i management, including the assumptions made.

The Committee concluded that it remains appropriate for the
i financial statements to be prepared on a going concarn basis
i and recommended the viahility statement to the Board.

Going concern statement
See page 102

Viability statement
See page 52

Fair, balanced and understandable

When reporting to shareholders the Board ams to present a fair,
balanced and understandable assessment of the Company's
position and performance and is assisted in this by the Committee.
This responsibility covers the annual and half year reports and
financial statements, as well as trading updates and other financial
reporting.

The Committee is satisfied and has confirmed to the Board that
the 2016 Annual Report and financial statements are fair, balanced
and understandable and provide the information necessary for
sharehclders to assess the Company’s pesition and performance,
business model and strategy.

In reaching this view the Committee considered the robust and
well-established processes in place to prepare the Annual Report
and financial statements which includes:

= clear guidance and instruction is given to all contributors;

= revisions to regulatory requirements and governance principles,
including the Code, are continually monitored;

» meetings are held with the auditors in advance of the year
end reporting pProcess;

input is provided by senicr management to identify relevant
and rmaterial information and ensure accurate, consistent
and balanced reporting;

detailed debates and discussions regarding principal risks
and uncertainties;
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Audit Committee report
continuad

focused review and approval of specific sections by the relevant
Board Committees. supported by regular reporting by Board
Committees to the Board on their activities;

a review by the Committee of reports prepared by management
on accounting estimates and judgements, auditor reports on
internal controls, accounting and reporting matters and a
management representation letter concerning accounting

and reporting matters;

consideration of the draft Annual Report and financial
statements by the Committee in advance of final sign-off; and

review and approval by the external auditor,

¢ The Board takes into account the view of the Committae

i when undertaking its own review of the document prior to
i giving final approval.

External auditor

! Deloitte, as the external auditor, is engaged to express an opinion

i on the Company's and the Group's financial statements. Their audit
i includes a review and test of the systems of internal control and

i data contained in the financial statements to the extent necessary

to express an audit opinion on them.

. Audit plan
i In raspect of the audit for the financial year ended 30" November

i 2016, Deloitte presented thelr audit plan (prepared in consultation

i with managerment and the Head of Internal Audit) to the Committee.
i The audit plan took into account key changes in the business and

i the impact of these on matenality, scope and risk assessment.

The audit fee, which was approved by the Committeg, was feit

i to be appropriate given the scope of work whilst not adversely

: affecting Deloitte’s independence or cbjectivity,

Independence

¢ The Committee is responsible for menitoring and reviewing the

{ objectivity and independence of the external auditor. In undertaking
i its assessment, the Committee has reviewed:

the confirmation from Deloltte that they maintain appropriate
internal safeguards in line with applicable professional standards;

the Financial Reporting Council’s May 2018 Audit Quality
Inspection Report in respect of Deloitte’s audit engagements
and the firm's pdlicies and procedures supporting audit quality;

the mitigating acticns taken by the Committes in seeking to
safeguard Deloitte's independent status, including the operation
of policies designed to regulate the appointment of former
employees of the external audit firm and the extent of non-audit
services provided by the external auditor;

the tenure of the audit engagement partner (not being greater
than five years), and

the performance evaluation of Deloitte.

Taking the above review into account, the Committee concluded

i that Deloitte remained obiective and independent in their role as
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i external auditor.
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Non-audit fees

To help safeguard Deloitte’s objectivity and independence,

the Committee has approved a non-audtt senices policy which
sets out the circumstances and financial limits within which the
external auditor may be permitted to provide certain non-audit
gervices (such as tax and other senvicas).

This policy sets a presumption that Deloitte should only be
engaged for non-audit services where there is an obvious

and compelling reascn to do so (for example their expertise

or ability to provide the services) and provided such work does
not impalr thelr independence or objectivity and has no impact
on the audited financial statements, It prohibits Deloftte from
providing certain services including legal, valuation, actuarial
and internal audit. Where Deloitte can be engaged and their
fees are anticipated to exceed 225,000, advance approval

of the Audit Committee on the recomimendation of the Group
Finance Director is reguired; no such approvals were sought
in the year.

The Committes is advised of all non-audit services provided,
irespective of value, and reviews all expenditure annually. Save
for any fees payable for non-audit work required 1o be carried
out by the external auditor by law or regulation, the policy imits
the total fees payable to the external auditor for non-audit
services 1o no more than 70% of the average of the audit fees
paid in the last three consecutive financial years for the audit

of the Company and the Group.

Non-audit fees paid to Deloitte in the year totalled £22,000
{2015; £107,000), representing 5% {2015 31%; of the fees
paid for audit and audit-related assurance services, and
principally related to a minor piece of real estate advice.

Further information on the remuneration of the external auditor
can be found in note 3b to the Group financial statements.

Effectiveness

The Committee has undertaken a review of Deloitte’s performance
and the effectiveness of the external audit process. The review
was primarily undertaken by way of an extensive guestionnaire on
external audit effectivenass which was comgleted by management
and assessad by the Committee. The Committee alsc considered
a self-assessment carried out by Delcitte on audit objectives,
leadership, qualification, quality and independence, together with
Deloitte's expearience and expertise, the extent to which the audit
plan had been met, its robustness and perceptiveness with regard
to key accounting and audit judgements, and the content of its
audit reports.

The Committee remains satisfied with Deloitte’s performance and
i of the view that there is nothing of concern that would impact
the effectiveness of the external audit process.



Tender

Delcitte has been the Company's external auditor since 2C07.

i The current audit engagement partner, Jonathan Dodworth,

i was appointed for the 2011/12 financial year audit and. in line

i with ethical standards published by the Auditing Practices Board,
can remain in post until the conclusion of the audit for the financial
i year ended 30" Novermber 2016.

i During the year, in line with UK regulatory requirements and

i the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code, the

i Committee Undertcok a competitive tender for the external audit.

¢ Amanagement pans! was formed, led by the Committee Chairmean
¢ and involving the Chief Executive and Group Finance Director,

i to conduct the initial stages of the process which cormprised:

= meetings and follow up calls with the proposed audit teams to
i understand their audit approach and discuss key accounting
judgements, governance and internal controls;

sessions with relevant employees, including the wider finance
team, to better understand the Group’s operations;

tours of Longbridge Town Centre, Bay Campus at Swansea
University and Nine Elms in London in respect of the surplus
land at New Covent Garden Market;

discussions with Deloitte as to their experience of the audit
Process since appointment;

= interviews with suggested audit engagement partners; and
! = apresentation to the Audit Committee.

i Detailed evaluation criteria and a scoring matrix weare usad to assist
i the Committee in making its decision. Having taken appropriate

! references, the tender process concluded with a recommendation

i from the Committee to the Board that, subject to shareholder

i approval at the 2017 AGM, KPMG be appointed as external auditor
i for the financial year ending 30" November 2017 . The transition

i process is underway, with representatives from KPMG attending

i Commitiee meetings By invitation.

i There are no contractual obligations that restrict the Company's

i choice of an external auditor and the Company confirms that it has
: complied with the relevant parts of the Competition and Markets

: Authority Final Order on the statutory audit market for the year

i ended 30" November 2016.

Internal audit

¢ The Group has an internal audit function which reparts to the

i Committee and works under the supervision of the Group Finance

¢ Director. Its key objectives are to provide independent and objective
! assurance that each business area implements and maintains

i appropriate and effective controls. An Internal Audit Charter, which

i is reviewed annually, governs its remit and sets out the standards
against which activities are undertaken.

Internal audit is a standing agenda item at each Committee

i meeting. Reports from the Head of Internal Audit usualy include

i updates on audit activities, progress of the Group audit plan,

i the results of internal audits and the status of implementation of

i recomimendations to address any unsatisfactory areas. During the
i year, internal audits were carmied out across a number of areas

i including third party contract management, cyber and IT security
and the facilities management arrangements (St. Modwen Student
i Living) at Bay Campus. Swansea University.

The Committee reviews and approves annually the audit plan for
aroling three year period which is closely aligned 10 the key risks
the business faces. It also has input into ensuring that adequate
resources are made available and that the necessary support

is provided by the business to accomplish the agreed work
programme. The Committee Chairman meets with the Head

of Internal Audit regularty to discuss activities and the nature of
any significant issues which may have arisen.

During 2016 the Committee agreed 10 the extension of scope and
resourcing of the internal audit function to ensure that the agreed
audit plan could be delivered. BDO were initialty engaged on a
ce-sourcing basis o work alongside the internal audit function

and a number of improvements 1o enhance reporting were made.
However, as the complexity and reach of the business continues to
grow, the Committee recognised the benefits that a fully oulsourced
internal audit function could offer. Consequently, a competitive
tender process was undertaken and the Committee approved the
appointment of PwC 1o provide internal audit services with effect
from 1" Dacember 2016,

As PwC is engaged by the Group to provide tax compliance advice,
extensive enquiries were made prior to their appointment tc ensure
that this adviscry role did not compromise their independence. It is
also intended that no new areas of tax work be allocated to PwC.
Whilst both management and the Cormmittee were comfortable
that no potential conflicts arose from the foreseeable internal

audi activities, safeguards have been put in place to ensure that
alternative amangements will be made, with Committee approval

as necessary, should a conflict arise.

The effectiveness of the internal audit function is reviewed annually
by the Committee, primarily by assessing performance against
the Intemal Audit Charter. The Committee remained satisfied that
the function continued tc operate effectively throughout the vear.
It was the Committee’s intention 1o seek an independent extemal
review of the function in 2016, however, in light of the decision to
outsource, this has been postponed to allow PwC sufficient time
to transition into the role. During 2017 the Committee will review
PwC'’s activities and performance to ensure that the internal audit
services meet the scope and quality required.

Risk management and internal control

During the year, the Committee monitored and reviewed the
effectivenass of the Group’s internal control systems, accounting
policies and practices, standards of risk management and risk
management procedures and compliance controls, as well as
the Company's staternents on internatl controls, before they
ware agreed by the Board for this Annual Repaort.

In doing so the Committee considered:

» the Group's risk register, including significant and emerging risks,
mitigating controls in place and how exposures have changed
over the reporting period;

s infernal audit reports on key audit areas and any significant
deficiencies in the control environment;

= management reports on the systems of internal contrels and risk
management, including tax compliance;

= axternal audit reports from Deloitte which included details of their
risk assessment process for the purposes of audit;

« actual and potential legal claims and litigaticn involving the Group;

= internal audit reports on potential fraudulent activities perpetrated
against the Group,

v the effectiveness of the internal audit function; and

= the Group's approach to IT, cyber security and whistleblowing,
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Audit Committee report
continued

i A significant project to review the Group’s risk appetite, risk register
i and the menitoring and mitigation of nsks has taken place during

i the year, in consultation with REM. A risk appetite framework

i to ensure that St. Modwen continues to operate within a level of

: risk exposure acceptable to the Board is being developed. In 2017,
i the revised risk appetite framework, and associated tolarance

i levels, will be completed and will be regularty reassessed. A suite

i of key risk indicators will also be established and integrated into the
i overal framework for risk monitoring.

i The Committee has carried out a robust assessment of the principel
i risks facing the Company, including those that would threaten its

i business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity. The

i Group's risk management framework incorporates both a top-

i down and bottom-up approach to the evaluation of risk, to ensure

¢ that there is a common understanding of those risks to which the

i Group is exposed and their potential impact on the performance

! of the business and achievermsnt of strategy.

i Toinform the Committee’s assessment of the effectiveness of the

! internal control environment, BDO were engaged during the year

i 1o review management's self-assessment of the internal control

i environment and to feedback to the Committee. Positive assurance
i was derived from BDO being able to attest that the majority of

i the financial and non-financial control statements remained both

¢ relevant and in place. Control improverment recommendations

i made as a result of their review are in the procass of being

i addressed.

Risk management
Soe pages 4510 47
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Whistleblowing and fraud

The Group's ‘whistleblowing’ policy encourages employess

to report, in confidence and anonymously if preferred. concems
about suspected impropriety or wrongdoing in any matters
affecting the business. Reports can be made by confidential
telephone reporting fines and & secure website reporting facility
which are operated by an independent third party. Any matters
reported are investigated by management and, where
appropriate. reported to the Committee together with details of
any corrective action taken. During the year one whistleblowing
incident was reported to the Committee and. following review,
it was satisfied that matters had been dealt with agpropriately.

The Group's fraud prevention policy reguires employees to

be alert to the possibility of the threat of fraud and to report
immediately any concems they have. The Company remains
vigilant against such risk, including fraudulent payrnent requests,
and continues to ensure the adequacy of controls and procedures
to prevent such fraud, The Committee is made aware of all
potential fraudulent activity.



Nomination Committee report

IMAGE REMOVED)

- The Committee will continue
- to review succession plans

. in the context of the Group’s
- strategy.

! Bill Shannon
¢ Chairman of the Nomination Committes

. Principal role

! Raviews the succession planning and leadership needs of the

i Group and leads the procass for Board appointments, ensuring
i that directors have an appropriate range of skills and experience
i to deliver St. Modwen's strategy.

i Key activities in 2015/16

= Selacted and recommended the appointment of Mark Allan
i as Chief Executive.

» Reviewed and recommended the re-appointment of Simon
Clarke, Lesley James, Richard Mully and Bill Shannon.

» Development of a skills matrix against which Board
! competencies were assessed,

Areas of focus for 2016/17

! = Continue to monitor Board and senior management
i succession in the context of the Company’s medium
and longer-term strategy.

* Support management and the Board in promoting diversity
i across the workforce.

Terms of reference
v stmodwen.co uk/about us/corporato- governance

At a glance

Meztings

attended in

sear out ol
TEXIMUT == attended
Committee member Member since nossible N year
lary Buli Sep 2014 6/6 100%
Kay Chaldecott Mar 201§ 7 6/6 100%
Lesley James Qct 2009 6/6 100%
Richard Mully Sep 2013 6/6 100%
Bil Shannon Nov 2010 6/6 100%

Committee meeting attendees (by invitation)

= Bill Oliver {to 30™ Novernber 2016), Mark Allan (from
1+ December 2016) (Chief Executive)

« Simon Clarke (non-executive director)

= Tanya Stote (Company Secretary and secretary to
the Committee)

The Committee plays a vital role in ensuring that St. Modwen

is headed by a Board which is collectively responsible for the
long-term success of the Company and is best placed tc operate
affectively in the context of our strategic cbjectives.

lts core responsibility is to manage the appointment of new
directors to the Board and, in 2016, its primary focus was 1o
identify a successor for Bill Oliver, who retired as Chief Executive
on 30" November 2016. The Committee considered a number
of strong candidates for the role and, following a comprehensive
interview process, we were delighted to announce, in April 2016,
the appointment of Mark Allan. Mark, previously Chief Executive of
The Unite Group plc, has extensive knowledge and experience of
the property sector combined with strong cperational leadership
and financial and strategic management capabilty. He joined the
Board on 1% November 2016 as Chief Executive Designate and
became Chief Executive on 1% Decemnbzer 2016.

To be effective, Board succession planning must lock beyond
matters such as tenure of appointment and consider the extent

to which the collective skills, experience and capabilities of the
cdirectors support the Group's strategic direction. The Committee
has developed a skills matrix to support its assessment ¢f such
matters and to guide potential recruitment needs cver the medium-
term. The Committee also considers the matrix, togather with
matters such as independence and individual performance, when
making its recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of non-executive directors. In the year, Simon Clarke, Lesley James,
Richard Mully and Bill Shannon were re-appointed to the Board.

Looking forward to 2017, the Committee will continue to review
succession plans in the context of the Group’s strategy to ensure
that arrangements are in place for the orderly and pregressive
refreshing of the Beard and to identify key talent within the
business with potential for appeintment to senior management
and Board positions.

Recognising the benefits that diversity can bring, and noting
publications such as Sir John Parker’s report on ethnic diversity
and the Hampton-Alexander Review of gender diversity in

FTSE companies, the Committee will also continue to support
management and the Board in promoting parity of representation
across the workforce.
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Nomination Committee report
continued

i Meaningful reporting on the activities of the Committee 1s

i challenging due to the sensitive nature of the matters which fall

: within its remit. However, the remainder of this report attempts

i to provide insight into the way in which the Committee operates
i and its activities during the year; | hope you find it informative.

. Bill Shannon
¢ Chairman of the Nomination Committee
i 6" February 2017

Committee membership

¢ Allmembers of the Committee are independent non-executive
i directors, with each bringing broad financial and commercial

i experience at senior levels across a range of industries. The

¢ Committee is responsitle for keeping its composition under

i review and for making recommendations to the Board as to

i its membership.

¢ The Chairman of the Board chairs all meetings of the Committee
i unless they relate to the appeintment of his successor; for these
i meetings, the Senior INndependent Director (SID) is invited to take
i the Chair unless the SID is in contention for the role.

How the Committee operates

The Committee meets on an ad hoc basis, usually immediately pricr
i to or following a Board meeting, but on other occasions as may be
i needed. It met formally on six occasions during the year, primarily

i to progress the appointment of a new Chief Executive. A number of
informal meetings, conference calls and discussions also took place
i between Committee members, search consultants and potential

i candidates throughout the recruitment process. The Commiitee

i Chairman reports to the Board, as a separate agenda item, on the
activity of the Committee and matters of particular relevance o the

i Board in the conduct of its work.

¢ Only members of the Committea have the right to attend meetings.

¢ However, an invitation to attend mestings is extended to Simon

¢ Clarke, a non-executive director, and the Chief Executive attends for
i all or part of meetings by invitation in orcer that the Committee can

i understand his views, particularly on key talent within the business.

i Tanya Stote, Company Secretary, is secretary to the Comimittee.

i The performance of the Committee was evaluated during the year

¢ by way of a guestionnaire which was completed by all members

! of the Commiitee as well as those who attended Committee

i meetings. Feedback received was supportive of the manner in

i which the Committes operated, but highlighted that there was

i scope to improve further the structure and framework around its

i succession planning activities. Detalls of the steps taken to address
¢ this can be found below in the section headed ‘Succession

i planning’ on page 73.

Activities of the Commiittee during the year

Appointment and re-appointment of directors

The Committee leads the process for appointments to the

i Board and makes recommendations to the Board when suitable

i candidates have been identified in line with Board-approved

i procedures. When a vacancy arises, the Committee evaluates

i the balance of skills, experience, independence and knowledge on
i the Beard before preparing a description of the role and capabilities
i required for that appointment. Where appropriate external

i recruitment consultants are engaged to assist with the search

! process. Appointments are made based on merit whilst having

! regard to the need to mantain Board diversity in all its forms,
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Appointment of Chief Executive

In cenjunction with the announcemeant made in February 2016
regarding Bill Oliver's intention to retire on 30 November 2018,

the Commiittee engaged the Zygos Partnership, a leading executive
search firm, to assist with the search for an individual to replace

him as Chief Executive. Zygos has no other connection with the
Company other than in its capacity as a search consultant,

The search, led by the Chairman, commenced with an assessrment
by the Committee of the skills and experience required for the

role of Chief Executive in the context of the Group's strategy.

The cutturn of this assessment was used to form the basis of a
broad candidate specification which was agreed by the Committee
and used by Zygos to identify potential candidates. Zygos was also
given the opportunity to meet with the executive directors (including
Bill Qliver) in crder that they could gain further insights into the role
within the context of the organisation.

A list of potential candidates, including tboth men and women
that occupled Chief Executive or senicr operational roles in listed
and private companies across both property and other business
sectors, was considered and a shortlist of candidates who were
felt to offer the best ‘fit’ against the specification was drawn up.
Interviews were conducted, initially by the Chairman and the SID
and subsequently with all other non-executive directors. Once a
preferred candidate had been identified, Steve Burke (Group
Construction Director) and Rob Hudson (Group Finance DCirector)
were invited to meet with the individual.

The Cormmittee worked closely with the Remuneration Committee ¢
and its advisers to consider the detailed remuneraticn arrangements
in respect of the appointment in the context of the Company’s i
sharsholder-approved remuneration policy.

After careful consideration, the Committes unanimously conciuded
that the appointment of Mark Allan, then Chief Executive at

The Unite Group plc, be recommended to the Board. The Board
unanimously approved the recommendation and his appointment
was confirmed in April 2016. Mark joined the Company on

1% Novemizer 2016 as Chief Executive Designate to allow time
for a handover of responsibilities from Bill Oliver. He became Chief
Executive with effect from 1% December 2016.

Re-appointment of non-executive directors

Independent non-executive directors, including the Chairman, are
appeinted by the Board for an initial three-year term and typically
serve a second three-year term. Beyond this, a third term of up to
three years may be served subject to a particularly rigorous review
and taking into account the need for progressive refreshment of
the Board. Appointments are subject to satisfactory performance
reviews, re-election by shareholders and statutory provisions
relating to the removal of directors.

The terms of service of the Chairman and the other non-executive
directors are contained in letters of appeintment. These set out the
time commitment expected from each non-executive director 1o
ensure they perform their duties satisfactorily. Each non-axecutive
director confirms that they are able to allocate the time commitment
required at the time of their appointment and thereafter as part of
their individual annual effectiveness review undertaken by the
Chairman (cr the SID in the case of the Chairman's review).

During the year, the Committee considered the re-appointment
of Simon Clarke (non-executive director), Lesley James
{Remuneration Committee Chairman), Richard Mully (SID) and
Bill Shannon (Chairman). In making its recommendations, which
were approved by the Board and are set out on page 73. the
Committee considerad the relevant dirsctor's skills, experience, i
indapendence and parfermance, succession planning in the context
of the Company’s strategy and the extent to which it was satisfied ¢
that the director would be able to continue to dedicate sufficient
time to fulfil their role on the Beard,



i = Simon Clarke: completed 10 years' service and re-appointed

¢ for afurther one-year term. Whilst not considered to be
independent for the purposes of the UK Corporate Governance
Code, as the longest serving diractor Simon brings continuity
and extensive knowledge of the business to the Board as well
as strong commercial and management experience.

» Lesley James: completed seven years’ service. Appointment
I renewed for a further year and annually tharsafter as appropriate
to 2018.

Richard Mully: completed three years' service and
re-appointed for a second, three-year term.

= Bifl Shannon: completed six years' service, Appointment
i renewed for a further year and annually thereafter as appropriate
to 2019.

. Succession planning

Effective succession planning is critical to the long-term success
i of the Company. To support its activities in respect of succession
i planning at Board level, the Committes has developed a skills

i matrix which sets out the balance of skills and diversity of the

¢ Board inits current composition and assesses the extent to

i which these suppoert the Group's strategic direction.

i The matrix is intended o act as a guide as to potential recruitment
needs over the medium-term through the identification of any

: competencies or skills that will be required to support strategic

i delivery. Desired attributes, in terms of experience, general and
sector-specific skills, and diversity, wers established by the

: Committee and used as a benchmark against which to assess
the current composition of the Board.

¢ Whilst no immediate skills gaps were identified, the Committee

! intends to undertake a skills matrix assessment annually to ensure
¢ that succession planning remains closely aligned to the strategic

i direction of the Group and delivers the correct balance of

¢ knowledge, skills and attributes to enable the Board and its

i Committees to cperate effectively.

i The Board recognises the importance of developing emplcyses of

i St Modwen, particularly in relation to succession planning for senicr
i positions within the Company. People development is reviewed by

¢ both the Nomination Committee and the Board to ensure that plans
are in place to recognise and grow internal talent.

Independence and re-election to the Board

i Following his appointrment in Novemibar 2016, Mark Allan will retire
¢ and offer himself for election at the 2017 AGM. In accordance with
i the UK Comorate Governance Code all other directors will retire

! and offer themselves for re-election to the Board.

! Those directors who have been in post throughout the year

i have been subject to a formal performance evaluation process

i and both the Committee and the Board are satisfied that ail

i directors continue to be effective in, and demonstrate commitrment

i o, thelr respective roles on the Board and that each makes a

¢ valuable contribution to the leadership of the Cormpany. The Board

i therefors recommends that shareholders approve the resclutions

i 1o be proposed at the 2017 AGM relating to the election and

i re-election of the directors. Further supporting information in respect
¢ of the non-executive directors can be found on page 169.

I With the exception of Simon Clarke, who is not deemed to be

¢ independeant by virtue of his representation of the interests of the
! Clarke and Leavesley families. the Committee has also reviewed
¢ and confirmed the independence of each non-executive director
i seeking re-election at the 2017 AGM.

Board diversity

All aspects of diversity, including but not limited to gender, are
considered during the recruitment process at every level within
the business. including appointments 1o the Board.

Recognising the benefits that diversity can iring, the Board seeks
to recruit directors from different backgrounds with a range of
experience, perspectives, perscnalities, skills and knowledge.
Both the Committee and the Board have a fundamental obligation
to ensure that the best candidates, selected on merit against
objectve criteria, are appointed. Subject to this, the availabiity

of suitable candidates and compliance with the requirements of
the Equality Act, the Board is committed to strengthening female
representation at Board and senicr management level. It has not
however set prescriptive targets as it does not belisve these are
in the best interests of either the Company or its shareholders.

The Board currently comprises two female non-executive directors,
Lesley James and Kay Chaldecott, who together represent 22%
female Board membership. Gender diversity below Board level is
set out on page 27.

In support of its diversity policy, the Committee will only engage
executive search firms who have signed up to the Enhanced
Voluntary Code of Conduct which supports more female
appointments to FTSE 350 boards.

[CHART REMOVED]

[CHART REMOVED)]

[CHART REMOVED]

[CHART REMOVED]
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- Directors’ remuneration report

IMAGE REMOVED]

- Variable remuneration for
- the year reflects the financial
performance of the Group.

Lesley James, CBE
i Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

¢ Principal role

! Determines the policy for the remuneration of the exscutive

! directors, which is designed to promote the long-term success
i of the Company, be compatible with risk policias and controls
! and be aligned to the Company’s long-term strategic goals.

: Key activities in 2015/16
= Reviewed the remuneration policy and consulted with major

institutional investors and shareholder representative bodies
on proposed amendments.

Determined the application of the remuneration policy in
regpect of the recruitment of Mark Alian, Chief Executive,

Monitored market trends in and the governance environment
of remuneration arrangements.

Areas of focus for 2016/17

= Triennial review of the Committee's external advisers.

» Ensuring close alignment of performance metrics and
¢ targets with the strategic goals.

= Improving the clarity and transparency of performance
! target disclosure.

Terms of reference
weew SIMochwen.oo Uk about-us ‘corparate-governancs
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Committes mermter Member since possible I year
lan Bull Sep 2014 4/4 100%
Kay Chaldecott Dec 2012 4/4 100%
Lesley Jameas Oct 2009 4/4 100%
Richard Mully Sep 2013 4/4 100%
Bill Shannon Nov 2010 4/4 100%

Committee meeting attendees (by invitation)

= Bill Oliver {to 30" November 2018), Mark Allan (from
1" December 2016} (Chief Executive)

» Simon Clarke (non-executive director)

= Tanya Stote (Company Secretary and secretary
to the Committes)

» Representatives from New Bridge Street (Committee advisor)

Annual Statement

On behalf of the Board | am pleased to present the report
on directors’ remuneration for the financial year ended
30" November 2018,

Our approach to remuneration is governed by our directors’
remuneration policy, which was last approved by shareholders
in 2014. Whilst the policy has served the Company well over its
three-year life, a number of amendments are proposed to bring
it up to date with good practice and to help drive performance
cver the next three years. Details of the proposed amendments,
including the rationale, are set cut opposite. Shareholders will be
asked to approve the revised directors” remuneration policy at
the 2017 AGM by way of a binding vate. This annual statement,
together with the annual report on remuneration {pages 84 to 98),
will be put to an advisory shareholder vote at the 2017 AGM.

Remuneration outcomes in 2015/2016

In the year to November 2016, the Company delivered a solid
performance against the backdrop of an uncertain market :
ervironment. The undertying business performed well, as evidenced
by trading profits, and gearing levels were carefully controlled. :

Reflecting both the financial results for the vear and the individual
performance of the executive directors in post throughout the vear,
Bill Qliver, Rob Hudson and Steve Burke were awarded bonuses
of between 53.25% and 55.25% of their respective base salaries
for the year ended 30" November 2016. These are substantially
lower than the 125% of base salary awarded for the year

ended 30" November 2015. Further details of the Committee’s
assessment of performance against bonus objectives for the

year can be found on pages 85 and 86.

The 2014 Performance Share Plan awards were due to vest in
March 2017 based on performance over the three financial years
to 30" November 2016. Vesting of half of this award was subject
to TSR performance relative to the FTSE All-Share Redl Estate
investment & Services Index, with the remaining 50% subject to
an absolute TSR condition. Neither element met the performance
required for vesting set by the Committes, so this LTIP cycle has
delivered a zero payment for the executive directors. Actual
performanca is detailed on page 87.



i The level of vanable remuneration received by the executive

: directors in respect of the year ended 30" November 2016 has
i therefore reduced by 74% from the prior year. The Committee

i feels that this reflects the financial performance of the Group in
i the period, delivered in more challenging markets and against

: an uncertain economic backdrop.

} Base salaries for the Group Finance Director and Group

¢ Construction Director were increased by 2.5% effective

¢ 1" December 2016, in line with the general cost of living salary
} increase awarded to other employees across the business.

i The base salary for the new Chief Exgcutive. Mark Alan,

¢ is not being reviewed during the year ending November 2017,

Proposed changes to the remuneration policy

: Although the current directors’ remuneration policy was first

i approved by shareholders in 2014, our executive remuneration

¢ arrangements have in fact remained unchanged for many more

! yearsin both structure and cpportunity. We have consistently

! maintained our policies for annual bonus and the Performance

i Share Plan for almost a decade and believe that it is incumbent

i on us fo ensure that these arrangements remain both appropriate
: and competitive.

i The Committee has reviewed the current remuneration structure
and has concludied that the existing framework of base salary

i (plus pension and other benefits), annual bonus (part cash and

¢ partinvested in shares) and a single long-term incentive plan (LTIR)

remains best suited to the business. We are not therefore proposing
fundamental changes to the policy, but are recommending a
number of amendments to ensure, primarily, that:

= the alignment between the interasts of executive diractors
and shareholders is further strengthened;

= remuneration arrangements are competitive but not excessive,
and performance expectations are stretching;

= bonus and LTIP metrics are fully aligned with our KPIs and
promote the long-term success of the Company; and

= the paolicy is sufficiently flexible to remain applicable over the
intended three-year policy period.

We are also proposing best practice changes, including the
introduction of LTIP post-vesting holding periods and improved
disclesure of performance targets.

We have consulted with major investors and sharehclder advisory
groups on the proposed amendments to our policy. Taking account
of the feedback from the consultation, we made changes to the
proposals, including reducing the LTIP vesting level at threshold
performance, and placing a cap on how much of any bonus paid
out can be related to personal performance.

Sharsholders will also be asked 1o vote on separate resolutions to
approve arrangements o replace the current Perforrmance Share
Plan and also the Employee Share Option Scheme (which is used
below Board level). These votes are required as these plans will
both reach the end of their ten-year life in 2017.

! Remuneration elerment Summary of changes proposed

Rationale

Annual bonus

= Maximum opportunity 1o be set at 150% of salary,
compared to 125% under the pravious policy. However,
any increase in bonus paid to apply for above-target
performance only, as targat bonus will decrease as a
percentage of maximum. The higher maximum opportunity

The changes to annual bonus are intended to
help drive performance, enhance transparency,
and increase alignment with sharsholders
through greater investment of the bonug

in shares.

is to apply for new stretch performance requirements, to
be fully disclosed in each year's Remuneration Report.

On-target bonus level to reduce from 60% to 50% of

maximum opportunity, thereby remaining constant at

75% of salary.

» The portion of bonus invested in shares and retained
for a minimum period of three years to increase from

one-third to 40%.

25% of the bonus to relate to personal measures, but the

amount paid for personal performance will be capped at
one-third of the total actual bonus awarded. For example,
if a target bonus of 75% of base salary is awarded, nc more
than one-third of this can relate to personal performance

(i.e. 25% of base salary).

stretching targets.

. LTIP

Greater clarity and transparency in disclosure to evidence

Performance metrics will be relative TSR against a peer
group and growth in financial performance, in contrast
to the current policy which measures TSR only.

A two-year post-vesting share retention penod is deing
introduced 1o align executives with shareholders over
the full five-year period from the grant of an LTIP award.

The new approach provides more rounded
metrics and longer-term shareholder alignment.
The higher maximurm level, balanced by lower
threshold payouts, is important in enabling us
1o recruit and retain a high-calibre executive
team, and to help drive performance.

» Normal annual award limits to be set at 150% of base
salary, compared to 125% under the previous policy (200%
in exceptional circumstances, praviously 180%). However,
the amount paid at threshold performance will reduce to
20% of the maximum, meaning that a lower percentage
of salary is paid at threshold than under the previous policy.
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Directors' remuneration report
continued

: Changes to the Board

Wa were delighted to welcome Mark Allan to the Board on
i 1" November 2016. Mark succeeded Bill Oliver as Chief Executive
on Bill's retirement form the Board on 30" November 2016,

i Tha remuneration arrangements for Mark, details of which can

¢ be found on page 90, are fully consistent with our remuneration

¢ policy. In order to sscure his appointment, the Committee replaced
i unvested, share-based incentives awarded to him by his previous
i employer and forfeited as a consequence of him leaving o join
5t Modwen. The Committee took particular cars in ensuring

i that these arrangements were appropriate in fight of our policy

i and replicate, as closely as possible, the expected value, form,

i and time horizons of, and performance conditions applicable to,

i the forfeited awards. Mark’s base salary is 13% higher than

i his predecessor. Bill Cliver, but this takes account of the larger

i total remuneration package he had in his previous role as Chisf

i Executive of The Unite Group plc.

¢ Bil Olver's base salary and contractual benefits ceased at his

i retirement date, and he received no payment for loss of office.

! Hsis eligitle for an annual bonus award in respect of the

i financial year ended 30" Novermnber 2016. subject to the normal
! performance conditions, He retains the Performance Share Plan
I awards he held at retirement date, but pro rated for the period

i served, and subject to the normal parformance conditions and

i vesting dates.

. Conclusion

¢ |thank shareholders for their helpful and constructive feedback

§ during the consultation on our directors’ remunearation policy.

¢ We would welcome your support for the remuneration resolutions
which will be put to shareholders for approval at the 2017 AGM.

Lesley James
i Chairman of the Rermuneration Committee
{ 6" February 2617

Thig report complies with the requirements of the Large and
Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 as amended in 2013 (the Regulaticns), the
principies of the 2016 UK Corporate Governance Code and
the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority.
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Directors’ Remuneration
Policy

This directors’ remuneration policy will be put to shareholders
for approval by way of a binding vote at the 2017 AGM to be
held on 29 March 2017 If approved by shareholders, the
poficy will take formal effect from the conclusion of the 2017
AGM and will be subject to a shareholder vote at least every
three years.

How the Committee sets the remuneration
policy

The primary objective of the Company’s remuneration policy is
to promote the long-term success of the Company through the
operation of competitive pay arangements which are structured
50 as 10 be in the best interests of shareholders. Remuneration
includes a significant proportion of performance-related elements
with demanding targets to align the interests of directors with
sharehclders and to reward success. The policy is structured so
as to be aligned with key strategic pricrities and to be consistent
with a Board-approved leve! of business risk. The Committee also
considers developments in institutional investors’ best practice
expectations and the views expressed by shareholders.

In setting the remuneration policy for the executive directors, the
Cemmittee takes into consideration the remuneration practices
found in other UK companies of comparable size and scope and
has regard to the remuneration arrangerments for the Company’s
employees generally. The components and levels of remuneration
for other employees have some differences from the policy for
executive directors. Greater emphasis is placed on variable pay
for executive directors and sentor employees, albeit with lower
maximum incentive opportunities at levels below the Board.
Similarly, long-term incentives are offered only to those expected
to have the greatest impact on Company performance.

The Committee is aware of the support expressed by some
shareholders for the downward harmonisation of executive
pension allowances to bring them into line with percentages

for the wider workforce. Current allowances for the Company’s
executive directors are 15% of base salary, which reflects
mid-market practice and previous commitments made on
appointment; however, the Committes is closely monitoring

how markst practice and investor views about this topic davelop.

The Committee does not directly consult with employees
regarding the remuneration ¢f directors. However, when
considering remuneration levels to apply to executive directors,
the Committee takes into account the overall approach to reward
for employees across the business. Salary increases are normally
(in percentage of salary terms) no higher than those awarded to
the wider workforce.

How the Committee takes account of the
views of shareholders

The Committee is committed to an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders and seeks the views of its major investors when
considering significant changes to remuneration arrangements.
The Committee also considers shareholder feediback received in
relation to the Directors' remuneration report each year following
the AGM. This, plus any additicnal feedback received from time
to time, is then considered as part of the Committee’s annual
review of remuneration policy and its implementation,



: Changes to the remuneration policy
. approved by shareholders at the 2014 AGM

! The Committee has undertaken a thorough review of the existing

! remuneration policy, including extensive consultation with our major
! shareholders, considering the Company's objectives and in light

i of developments in the executive pay environment. As part of

¢ the revised policy the Committee proposes to renew the current

i Performance Share Plan which expires in 2017, Subject to the

i approval of shareholders at the 2017 AGM, the key changss 1o

i the policy are as follows:

. Annual bonus

« Maximum annua! bonus opportunity is set at 150% of base
¢ salary, compared to 125% of base satary currently.

However, the proportion paid out at the on-target level has
been reduced from 80% to 50% of maximum {resulting in the
on-target bonus level remaining constant at 756% of salary).

= The higher maximum bonus will be payable for new stretch
H performance reguirements, 1o be disclosed in the Remuneration
Report.

The proportion of bonus compulsorily invested in shares and
retained for a minimum period of three years has been increased
from one-third to 40%.

At least 75% of annual bonus to be based on corporate
measures, with nc more than 25% of the overall bonus based
on personal performance objectives. However, the proportion
of bonus that can paid for personal performance will be capped
at one-third of the total actual bonus awarded.

Purpose

Long-term incentives

= Performance metrics will be relative TSR against a peer group
and growth in inancial performance, in contrast to the current
policy which measures TSR only.

= A two-year post-vesting share retention period is being
introduced for awards made in 2017 and beyond, to align
executives with shareholders over the full five-year period from
the grant of an LTIP award. This holding period will rermain in
place if the executive leaves employment during the two-yeaar
holding peried.

» Normal annual award limits to be set at 150% of base salary,
compared 10 125% under the previous policy. However, the
amount paid at threshold performance will reduce to 20% of
the maximum, meaning that a lower percentage of salary 1s
paid at threshold than under the previous policy.

Shareholding requirement

= Executive directors will be additionally required to retain all
of the post-tax shares acquired as a result of the compulsory
investment of bonus into shares and half of the post-tax shares
vesting under the LTIP until the shareholding reguirement is met,

= The target achievement date for the shareholding requirement
i five years from appointment to the Board, but the Committee
has the discretion to extend this timeframe if necessary.

Revised directors’ remuneration policy

The remuneration policy that will apply, subject to shareholder
approval, from the conclusion of the 2017 AGM is set out on pages
77 to 83, Remuneration arrangements for the financial year ending
30" November 2017 will be in fine with this policy; further
information can be found on pages 93 and 96.

Hl Base salary

To attract, retain and motivate individuals of the necessary calibre to execute the Company's strategy.

To provide compstitive base remuneration relative to the external market.

To recogmse and reward performance, sklils and experience.

Operation

Normally reviewed annually with changes typically effective from 1% December. Rewew reﬂects

= individual and corporate performance;

» the individual's level of skill and experience;

= increases througheout the Company (including ‘cost of living' awards;

= internal relativities; and

prevailing market conditions through periodic benchmarking for comparable roles in companies of
a similar size and scope. The Committes is mindful of institutional investors’ concerns on the upward

ratchet of baee salaries and does not consider benchmark data in isolation.

Opbortunity

Salar\es may be adjusted and salary increases WIH normaﬂy be (in perceetage of“sa\ary terms) no higher

than those awarded to the wider workforce. Larger increases may be awarded at the Committee’s
discretion to take account of exceptional circumstances such as:

= changes in scope and responsipility of a role; and

= where a new director is appointed at a salary which is at a lower level to reflect their experience at that
point, the Committee may award a series of increases over time to achieve the desired salary position
subject to satisfactory performance and market conditions.

Actual salary levels are disclosed in the annual report on remuneration for thé relevant financial year
(eee page 93 for those effective 1% December 2016).

Performance measures
annual review.,

None, although overall performance of the individual is considered by the Gommittee as part of the
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Directors' remuneration report
continued

Purpose To provide a competitive and cost-effective benefits package.
To assist with recruitment and retention.

Operation The Company provides a range of non-pensionable benefits to executive directors which may, for
exampie, include a combination of a company car or car allowance, private fuel, driver, private medical
insurance, permanent health insurance, life assurance, holiday and sick pay, and professional advice
in connection with their directorship. Other bengfits such as relocation allowances may be offered if
censidered appropriate and reasonalzle by the Committes.

Executive directors will e eligible for any other benefits which are introduced for the wider workforce on
broadly similar terms.

Any reasonable business-related expenses can be reimbursed, including the tax thereon if determined
o be a taxable benefit,

Executive directors are alse eligible to participate in any all-employee share plans operated by the
Company, in line with HMRG guidelines currently prevailing fwhere relevant), on the same basis as
for other eligible employees.

Opportunity There is no maximum limit set. Benefits are set at a level which the Commitiee considers to be
‘ appropriately positioned against comparable roles in companies of a similar size and scope and
provides a sufficient level of benefit based on the role and individual circumstances.

Performance measures None,

Purpose To provide competitive post-retirement benefits in a cost-effective manner.

To assist with recruitment and retention.

Operation The Company offers an allowance (e;préés'erd asa percéﬁtage of base salary) which can be taken as:
= an employer contribution 1o the defined contribution section of the Company’s pension scheme;
» acash allowance (which is not bonusable); or
= abiend of the two.

As a result of historic contractual commitments retirement benefits for Steve Burke are also delivered
by membership of the defined benefit section of the Company's pension scheme which is closed to
future accrual.

The Committee may amend the form of any executive director's pension arrangements in response 1o
changes in pensions legislation or similar developments, so long as any amendment does not increase
the cost to the Company of a director’s pension provision.

Opportunity Up to 15% of base salary for all executive directors.

Performance measures None.
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#l Annual bonus

To incentivise and reward the delivery of stretching, near-term strategic. financial and opsrational
measures at Company and personal levels.

Corporate measures selected are consistent with and complement the budget and strategic plan.

An element of compulsory investment in shares to align to shareholders’ interests in the creation
of sustainable, long-term value.

All measures. weightings and targets are reviewed and set annually by the Committee at the beginning of
the financial year and specific performance criteria will be aligned to the Company’s strategic ctjectives at
that time. Lavels of award determined by the Committes after the year end wil be based on performance
against the targets set.

The Committee retains an overriding discretion to ensure that overall bonus payments reflect its view of
corporate performance during the year.

Bonuses are paid in cash and are non-pensicnable. Directors are required to invest an amount equal to
40% of the net bonus received in the Company's shares and 1o retain these shares for a minirmum period

Withholding imalus) and recovery iclawback) provisions apply to all bonuses paid such that, in exceptional
circumstances such as misstatement of performance or misconduct, the Committes has discretion to
reduce some or all of the value of an award within a period of four years following the end of the relevant

Purpose
Operation o
cf three years.
bonus year.
Opportunity

Performance measures

Maximum bonus potential of up 1o 150% of salary for all executive directors. On-target performance
would result in a bonus payment of half of the maximum potential.

Performance is assessed using the following metrics:
= amajority of the award will be based on corporate measures; and

* a minority (no more than 25% of the overall bonus opportunity) will be based on personal measures.”™
There is also a cap on the amount of bonus awarded for performance in respect of personal measures,
set at one-third of the total actual bonus awarded.

The specific measures that will apply for the vear ending 30" November 2017 are described in the annual
report on remuneration on page 94. Measures for subsequent years will be summarised in the annual
report on remuneration for the refevant year.

{1) The: annual bonus metncs are designed to ensure that annual performance is focused on key corporatc measures which support the Company's stralegic targets. Thase
are supported by ndividual performanca measures 1o ensure that executive directors are incenlivised 1o deliver across a range of objectves. Targets are set in line with
the: Cormpany's budget and strategic plan for the year with a stretch element to reward substantial cutperformance.
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Directors’ remuneration report
continued

Long-term incentives

Purpose » Toincentivise and reward the delivery of strong returns to shareholders and sustained,
long-term performance.

« Aligns the long-term interests of directors and shareholders.

s Promotes retention.

Awards are normally made annually with vesting dependent on the achieverment of stretching performance :

Opération
i conditions set by the Committee.

A holding period will apply to awards granted in the financial year ending 30 November 2017 and beyond.
The holding peried wil require executive directors to retain at least the after-tax value of shares acguired
for & minimum period of 24 months from the vesting date and will remain in place if the executive leaves
employment during the two-year holding period.

A dividend eqguivalent provision exists which allows the Committes to pay an amount (in cash or shareg)
gquivalent 1o the dividends paid or payable on vested shares between the date of grant and the vesting
of an award (or, if later, and only whilst an option remains unexercised in respect of vested shares, the
expiry of the holding period). An amount payable may assume the reinvestment of dividends.

Withheolding (malus) and recovery (Clawback) provisions apply to all awards granted such that, in exceptional
circumstances such as misstatemnent of performance or misconduct, the Committee has discretion to
reduce some cr all of the value of an award within a period of four years following the end of the relevant
performance period.

Opportunity The maximum annual grant level is 150% of salary (or 200% in exceptional circumstances, such as
: recrutment). The normal annual award imit is 150% of salary for all executive directors.

Awdards vest on the following basis:

= threshold performance delivers 20% of the shares awarded; and
= maximum performance delivers 100% of the shares awarded,
with straight line vesting between.

{ Performance measures Performance is normally measured over three years,

Awards to vest based on performance against stretching financial targets and relative TSR performance,
set and assessed by the Committee in its discration.” Within these parametears, the Committee may
introcuce or reweight specific performance measures so that they are directly aligned with the
Company’s strategic cbjectives for each performance period.

The Committee has discretion to decide whether and to what extent performance conditions have been
achieved and must also be satisfied that certain underpinning conditions are met before permitting awards
to vest {for exampls, that the extent of vesting under the performance cenditions is appropriate given the
general financial performance of the Company over the performance period). The underpin conditions will
be set so that they are directly aligned with the Company's strategic cbiectives for each performance
period.

The specific measures that will apply for the year ending 30" November 2017 are described in the annual
report on remuneration on pages 85 and 96. Measures for subseguent years will be summarised in the
annual report on remuneration for the relevant year.

1 11) The Committee believes that a combination of relative 1SR and key financial imeasures provides strong alignment with the interests of sharcholders and complerments the
; focus on operalional performance measures 1 the annual bonus arrangaments. TArgets are set to ensure that only modsst awards are avaliable tor delivering on-target
performance with maximum rewards requiring substantial outperformance of the Company’s budget and strategic plans,

Shareholding requirement

Purpose = To ensure alignment of interests of executive directors and shareholders.
Operation The Company operates a sharehclding requirement which is subject to periodic review.
Opportunity Executive directors are required to build up and maintain a shareholding worth at least 200% of base salary,

which is normally expected to be reached within five years of appointment.

Executive directors are required 1¢ retain all of the post-tax shares acquired as a result of the compulsory
investment of bonus into shares and half of the post-tax shares vesting under the LTIP until the shareholding
requirement is met.

Performance measures None,
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Fees payable to Chairman and non-executive directors

= To attract and retain the calibre of Chairman and non-executive directors necessary to promote
the long-term success of the Company by offering market competitive fee levels,

Purpose

B;eration

Normally reviewed annually with changes effective typically from 1+ December.

Any increase will be guided by changes in market rates, time commitment and responsibility levels. as well
as by increases made throughout the Company.

Fees are structured as follows:

» the Chairman is paid an all-inclusive fee for all Board responsibilities. This fee is determined by the Board
on the recommendation of the Committee; and

= non-executive directors are paid a basic fee, plus additional fees for chairing Board Committees
or for undertaking the Senior Independent Director role, which are determined by the Board on
the recommendation of the executive directors.

Fees are normally paid in cash.

Neither the Chairman nor the other non-executive directors participate in the annual bonus or long-term
inceritive arrangements or in the pension scheme, nor do they receive benefits in kind.

Any reasonable business-related expenses can be reimbursed, including the tax thereon if determined

to be a taxable b@peﬁt. )

_Op;;ortunity

Fees are set at a level which reflects the commitment and contribution that is expected and is
appropriately pesitioned against comparable rales in companies of a similar size and scope.

Overall fees paid to directors will remain within the limit set out in the Company’s articles of association.

Aclual fee levels are disclosed in the annual report on remuneration for the relevant financial year (see page
96 for those effective 1% Decermber 2016).

Performance measures

None, although overall performance of the individual is considered as part of the annual review.

¢ The Committes retains the discretion to make any payments,

! notwithstanding that they are not in line with the policy set out

i above, whers the terms of the payment were agreed (i) before the

i policy came into effect, or (i) at a time when the relevant individual

¢ was not a director of the Company and, in the opinion of the

i Commitiee, the payment was not in consideration of the individual
i becoming a director of the Company. For these purposes

i 'payments’ includes the Committee satisfying awards of variable

i remuneration and, in relation to an award over shares, the terms

i of the payment are determined at the time the award is granted.

i Details of any such payments will be disclosed in the annual report
¢ on remuneration for the relevant year,

i The Committes will operate the annual bonus and long-term

¢ incentive arrangements according 1o their respective rules and in
accordance with the Listing Rules where relevant. Consistent with

i market practice the Committee retains certain discretions in respect
i of the operation and administration of these arrangements which

i include, but are not limited 1o, the following:

: = the participants;
= the timing of the grant of an award or payment;

= the size of an award:

the determination of the extent to which performance measures
have been met and the corresponding vesting or payment levels;

discretion required when dealing with a change of control or
restructuring of the Group;

= determination of the treatment of leavers based on the rules
of the respactive arrangement and the approprigte treatment
chosen, including the pro rating of awards;

= adjustments required in certain circumstances (e.q. rights
issues, corporate restructuring events and special dividends);

the annual review of performance measures, weighting and
targets from year to year; and

the manner in which share awards can be satisfied (i.e. through
the use of new issue, markat purchased or treasury shares or
by way of a cash payment).

In addition, the Committes retains the ability to adjust the targets
and/or set different measures if events occur (e.g. a material
acquisition and/or divestment of a Group business) which cause
it to determine that the conditions are no longer appropriate and
the amendment is required o that the conditions achieve their
original purpose and are not materially less difficutt to satisfy.

Any use of the above discretions would be explained in the
annual report on remuneration for the relevant year and may,

as appropriate, be the subject of consultation with the Company’s
majcr shareholders,
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Directors' remuneration report
continued

. lllustration of remuneration policy

The following charts dlustrate the remuneration opportunity provided
i o each executive directar in ine with the remuneration policy at
i different levels of performance for the 201617 financial year.

i Three scenarios have been llustrated for each executive director:

t, Minimum performance: comprising the minimum remuneration
receivable (i.e. fixed pay only, being base salary affective
1 December 2016, pension allowances for the 2016/17
financial year and benefits calculated using the 201516
figure as set out In the table on page 84 for Steve Burke
and Rob Hudson {excluding the amount paid to him during
the year in respect of relocation). Benefits have been estimated
for Mark Allan).

i 2. On-target performance: comprising fixed pay, an annual

i bonus payment of 50% of the maximum opportunity (75%

of salary) and long-term incentive awards vasting at 20% of
maximurm cpportunity (30% of salary).

3. Maximum performance: comprising fixed pay, 100% of annuat
i bonus {150% of salary) and 100% vesting of long-tenm incentive
awards (150% of salary).

i Theillustrations do not take into account share price appreciation
i or dividends.

[CHART BEMOVED)

[CHART REMOVELD)

[CHART REMOVED,
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Recruitment arrangements

The remuneration package for a new executive director would

be set in accordance with the terms of the prevailing aporoved
remuneration policy at the time of the appcintment and take intc
account the skills and experience of the individual, the market rate
for a candidate of that level of experience and the importance of
securing the relevant individual.

Base salary levels for new recruits will be set in accordance with
the policy, taking into account the experience and calibre of the
individual recruited. Where it is appropriate to offer a lower salary
initially to reflect the individual's experience at that point, the
Committee may award a series of increases over tima to achieve
the desired salary position subject to performance and market
conditions. Pensicn arrangements will be in ling with the policy.

The maximum level of variable pay which may be awarded

to new executive directors, excluding the value of any buyout
arrangerments. will be in line with the policy. In addition, the
Cormmittee may offer additional cash and/or share-based elements
to replace deferred or incentive pay, or benefit arrangements,
forfeited by an executive leaving a previous employer, In aoing so
the Committee will take account of relevant factors including the
form {g.g. cash or shares), timing and expected value {i.e. lkelihood
of meeting any existing performance criteria) of the remuneration
being forfeited. The Committee will generally seek to structure
buyout awards on a comparable basis to awards forfeited.
Repiacement share awards, if used, wil,, to the extent possible,

be grantad using the Company’s existing share schermes, although
awards may also be granted outside of these schemes if necessary
and as permitted under the Listing Rules.

The Committee may also apply different performance measures,
performance periods and/or vesting periods for initial awards made
following appointment under the annual bonus and/or long-term
incentive arrangements, subject 1o the rules of the scheme, if it
determines that the circumstances of the recruitment merit such :
alteration. A long-term incentive award can be made shortly following
an appointment provided the Company is not in a closed period.

Where a position is filled internally, the Committee may honour any
pre-existing remuneration obligations or outstanding variable pay
arrangements in relation to the individual’s previcus role such that
these shall be allowed to continue according to the original terms
{adjusted as relevant to take account of the Board appaointment).

For internal and external appointments, the Committee may agree
that the Company will meet cartain relocation and/or inciclental
expenses as appropriate.

Fees payable to a newly-appointed Chairman or non-executive
director will ba in line with the fee policy in place at the time of
appointment,

External appointments

The Board recognises the benefit which the Company can cbitain
if executive directors serve as non-executive directors of other
companies. Subject to review in each case, the Board's general
policy is that an executive director can accept one non-executive
directorship of another company (but not the chairmanship) and
can retain the fees in respect of such appointment.



i Executive director service agreements
: and payments for loss of office

i The Company's policy is for executive directors to have service

i agreements which may be terminated by the Company for breach
¢ by the exacutive or with no more than 12 months' notice from

i the Company to the executive and six months' notice from the

i executve to the Company.

¢ Ifnotice is served by either party, the executive director can

! continue to receive base salary, benefits and pension for the

i duration of their notice period during which time the Company may
¢ require the individual to continue to fulfil their current duties or may

i assign a period of garden leave. The Company may elect to make

i apaymentin lieu of notice equivalent in value to a maximum of

¢ 12 months’ base salary and benefits, including pension contribution
i but excluding bonus, payable in monthly nstalments, which would
i be subject to mitigation if altemative employment is taken up during
i this time. Altermatively, the Committee retains discretion to provide

¢ this payment as a lump sum. In the event of termination for cause
{e.g. gross misconduct) neither notice nar payment in lieu of notice

In redundancy situations the Committeg will comply with prevailing
relevant legisiation. In addition, and congistent with market practice,
the Company may pay a contribution towards the executive
director’s legal fees for enterng into a statutory agreement, may
pay a contribution towards fees for cutplacerment services as part
of a negotiated settlement, or may make a payment to compromise
claims the executive director may have. There is no provision for
additional compensation on termination following a change of
control. Payment may also be made in respect of accrued benefits,
including untaken heliday entitlerment.

The principles set out in the table below will apply to annual bonus
and long-term incentive arrangements in the event of loss of office.

In respect of all-employee share schemes and the Company’s
Employes Share Cption Schemes, the same leaver conditions will be
applied to executive directors as those applied to other employees.

Non-executive director terms of appointment

The terms of service of the Chairman and the other non-executive
directors are contained in letters of appointment. Appointments

i wil be given and the executive directer will cease to perform their

i services immediately.

are for a fixed term of three years, during which period the

appointment may be terminated by three months’ notice
by either party.

Non-executive directors are typically expected o serve two
three-year terms subject 1o mutual agreement and satisfactory
performance reviews. There are no provisions for payment in
the event of termination, early or otherwise.

Remuneration elerment

‘Good’ leavers

Other lsavers

Annual bonus

Long-term incentive
awards

{As apply to the Company’s
current Performance Share
Flan, The terms cf the
replacement Performance
Share Plan, which
sharehclders will be asked
1o approve at the 2017
AGM, have been designed
o materially continue with
the main features of the
current Plan, but with
appropriate changes to
take account of prevailing
pest practice and the
revised policy.)

An executive director will be treated as a good
leaver in certain circumstances, for example if
he or she dies or ceases employment due to
injury, disability, retirement with the Company’s
agreement, or sale of the business in which he
or she is employed, or for any other reason at
the discretion of the Committee.

In these circumstances, the executive director
remains eligible to be paid a bonus, subject to the
applicable performance measures. Any payment
awarded may be pro rated to reflect the period of
time served from the start of the financial year to
the date of termination, but not for any pericd in
lieu of notice.

Unless the Committee exercises its d?écr;étidﬁ
to treat the executive director as a good leaver,
no benus will be payable.

An executive director will be treated as a good
leaver in certain circumstances, for example death,
injury, disability or for any other reason at the
discretion of the Committee.

Awards will normally vest at the normal vesting
date, subject to the satisfaction of the relevant
performance conditicns at that time and reduced
pro rata to refiect the proportion of the vesting
period actually served. However, under the plan
rules, the Committee has discretion to determine
that awards vest at cessation of employment and/
or to disapply the time pro rating if it considers it
approprigte to do so.

A good leaver may exercise their vested awards
for a period of six months (12 months in the

event of death) following the individual’s cessation
of employment and unvested awards may be
exercised for a period of six months (12 months
in the event of death) from vesting.

All awards will lapse in full where termination is
by reason of summary dismissal.

In other circumstances, unvested awards will lapse
in full unless the Committee applies discretion to
treat the executive director as a good leaver.
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Directors’ remuneration report
continued

Annual report on remuneration

This part of the report has been prepared in accordance with Part 3, Schedule 8 to The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 as amended in 2013 and with the requirements of the Financial Conduct Authority's Listing Rules.

Remuneration payable (audited information)

Pension
Shase plans contnbution
Case salary fess Bendhils Annual bonus wesing elowance Crther iterms Total
£°000 21000 £'000 000 21000 000 £000
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2ms° 2016 2015 2016 2015 206 2015

2016 2015

Executive directors

Mark Allan™ 47 - 2 - - - - - 7 - - - 56 -
Bill Cliver 499 485 27 31 266 606 - 736 75 73 - - 867 1,931
Steve Burke 329 320 16 1 182 400 - 488 49 48 15¢ - 591 1265
Rob Hudson 275 49 40 39 146 61 - - 4 7 4157 - 917 156
Non-executive

directors

Bill Shanncn 159 155 - - - - - - - - - - 159 155
ian Bull 53 49 - - - - - - - - - - 53 49
Kay Chaldecott 44 42 - - - - - - - - - - 44 42
Simon Clarke 44 42 - - - - - - - - - - 44 42
Lesley James 53 51 - - - - - - - - - - 53 51
Richard Mully 53 51 - - - - - - - - - - 53 51
1556 1244 85 81 594 1067 - 1222 172 128 430 - 2,837 3742

111 All benefits for the executive directors icampnsing manky the provisien of company car'car alowance, private fuel and medical insurance) arise from employrment wath the
Company and do not form part of final pensionable pay. Rob Hudson was also entitled to a relocaton aliowance of up to 25% of base salary in respect of reasonable and
appropriate costs to enable hint o relocate to the Midiands folowing his apporntrment on 287 September 2015 10 the year ended 30 November 2018 payments totaling
£26,342 (2015: L37,471) were made to Rob Hudson in connection with his relocation. Ne further payments are due.

i2y Bonus payable in respect of the relevant financial year. Further infarmation as 1o how the level of bonus awarded in 2016 was delarmined s provided on pages 85 and 86

{3 The perfermance penod for the 2014 I’8F awards cnded on 307 Novernber 2016, The performance conditions 1o which these awards were subject were not achicved,
hence the awards will lapse in full on 5 March 2017, F urther nformation on the awards and the performance conditions 1o which they were subject can be found on
page 87,

1) Relates to the 2003 PSP awards which vested and became exeraisable on 67 March 2018, The share price used 1o value the awards was 305.6 pence. being the share
price on the last dealing day irmmediately prior 16 the vesting date (which fell on a Sunday), plus 12.82 pence per share which was the value of the dwidend equivalent
telverable 1n shares on vesting. The dividend equivalent is based on dividends paid % shareholders with record dales ocourring between the dale of grant and the date
of vesting.

{5) Furiher detaits regarding pension entitlernents can be found on page 89,
{6) Appointed to the Board on 17 Novermber 2016 Further information on the recruitment arrangements for Mark Allan can be found on page 0.
(74 Retred trom the Board on 30" Novernber 2016, Further information on the remuneration arrangsmeants in connecticn with Bl Oliver's retirerment can be found on page 91,

(& Reflects {a) tho grant of a Sharesave option on 13" August 2016 ithe value is based on the market value on the date of grant {274 5 pence}, 1ess the option price
246.0 pencel, mutiphed by the number of options grantad); and by the exercise of a2 Sharesave option on 3+ Cotober 216 fthe value 18 based on the market value
art the date of exercise (298 4 pence), leas the option price (156.0 pencel, multipled by the number of options exercised). Further details can be found on page 88

91 As set out in the 2015 Remuneration Repart, the Commities agreed 1o compensate Reb Hudson for certain long-term incentives from his previous employer hat he was
required to forfeit on hirm leaving to join St Modwen in September 2015. This ncluded a one-off cash payment of £414,000 isubject to the deduction of tax and national
nsurance contributions) in recognition of an outstanding long-term incentive award which had reached the end of the performance measurement penod in March 2015
{such that the full value could be determined) but which was not due to vest untit Decermber 2015, As the vesting date fell soon alter his appointrent, a cash payment
fralher than an award of sharcs) was considered fair and reasonable. The amount shown in the lable above also reflects the grant of a Sharesave option on 158" August
2016, wath the value based on the market value on the date of grant (274.5 penca), less the option price (248.0 pencel. multiptied by the number of options granted.
Further details can be found on page 88.
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i Annual bonus outturn (audited information)

In the financial year ended 30" Novermbear 2016 all executive directors (excluding Mark Allan) had the opportunity to be awarded an annual
i bonus of up to 1256% of base salary as at 1% December 2015, Of this, 105% of salary was dependent on achieving corporate measures

{ and 20% on meeting personal objectives.

The Commiittee determined that it was appropriate to aliocate 10% of the corporate measures to New Covent Garden Market (NCGM),
i given that it represents approximately 10% of NAV, Weightings and targets for the corporate measures set at the teginning of the year
i reflected this allocation, with the resulting maximum opportunity for NCGM determined at 7%. Performance against targets and resulting

! bonus awards are set out in the tables below.

Corporate measures

Waoighting

Post dividend growth in shareholders’
equity net asset value per share

Profit before all tax
Total dividend for the year

Gearing levels™
Covenant compliance

Achieverment against a number of strategic
objectives which primarily included:

= achisving targeted development
milestones to support future profit
delivery; and

= progressing acquistions to enhance
the Company’s land bank.

New Covent Garden Market

27%

27%
9%

10%
10%

Total 7

100%

Threshold On-target Maximum
performance perlormance performance Award as a
250 of salary) 1857 of salary) (1055 of salary; Actual perforrmance “» 0of salary
4% growth 5% growth 6% growth 4.2% growth 6.75%
(to 431.00 pence}
£60m £90m £2120m £60.8m 6.75%
6.00 pence  6.05 pence B6.10 pence 6.00 pence 2.25%
per share per share per share per share
50% 49% 48% 48.9% 6.50%
N/A Full N/A Full 6.50%
Achievement determined by the On-target 6.50%
Committee against measurable performance
objectives set at the beginning of
the year
Performance to be assessed cn the No sale achieved 0.00%
extent to which the sale reflected inthe yearand a
book value £24.3m fallin
value recorded
35.25%

11 Defined as adusted gaanng, baing the level of the Group's net borrowings @t amortised cost and excluding finance leases) expressed a5 a percentage of Net assets,
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Directors’ remuneration report

continuer

Key persunal measures

Faximurm
performance

Cietarget
performance
(10~ of salary:

1205z of salary

Awvard as &

Actual performance -o of salary

Bill Oliver: =

Steve Burke: ]

Executive succession planning Achieverment determined by the
Committee against measurabls
objectives set at the beginning

of the year

Development of St. Mogwen Homes

Progress planned asset disposals

Achieverment determined by the

Committee against measurable

objectives set at the beginning
of the year

Delﬁery of interim flower market at
New Covent Garden Market

Delivery of the second phase of
accommedation at the Bay Campus.
Swanssa University

Continue to evolve the Company’s
CSR activities

Rob Hudson: =

Achieverment determined by the
Committee against measurable
ohjectives set at the beginning
of the year

Enhance funding structure

Continued development of risk
management activities

Finance team development and
succession planning

_-Refinancing programme

St. Modwen Homes  18.00%
delivered 49% growth in
profitin the year and is

now active on 18 sites

Completion of interim 20.00%
flower market and
successful delivery of
phase two at Bay
Campus. Driving
enhancement of
CSR through the
Steering Committee

18.00%
delivered increased
facilities at reduced cost.
Instrumental in driving
risk management
activities across
the business

1) Specihc commentary has not been provided for measures which are sensitive (Such as succession planningl.

In light of both corporate and individual performance, the Committee determined that the following bonus awards be made:

Execulve director

Award — Corporate
{@as a %o of salary)

Totlal award
[as a %o of salary

Award - Personal
[as a %o of salary)

Salary on which bonus

award 15 calculated Total bonus award

Bill Cliver™
Steve Burke
Rob Hudsen

35.25% 18.00% 53.25%
35.25% 20.00% 55.25%
35.25% 18.00% 53.25%

£499,351 £265,904
£329,481 £182,038
£275,000 £146,437

1) Retired from Ihe Board on 307" Novernber 2016,

Bonus payments 1o Steve Burke and Rob Hudson ware conditional upen the executive director undertaking to invest at least oné third of
i the bonus recelved, after payrment of incorme tax and national insurance, in the Company's shares and to retain those sharas for a minimum

i period of three years.
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Long-term incentives (audited information)
Performance Share Plan (PSP)

The three-year performance period for the 2014 PSP awards ended on 30" November 2016, The performance conditions which applied

to the awards together with actual performance are summarised in the table below.

Vesting of award

Vesting of award

Threshald at threshelkd Maxirmurm at maximum Actual Proportion of
Perfarrmance rmeasure Weighting performance perfarmance portormance performance performance arward to vest
Absclute TSR growth 50% of award 20% 12.5% 50% 50% (11.3)% 0.00%
TSR relative to FTSE
All-Share Real Estate
Investrment & Services Equal to 120% of Below the
index 50% of award Index 12.5% Index 50% Indlex 0.00%
Total 0.00%

The Committee therefore determined that the PSP awards granted in 2074 will lapse in full on the third anniversary of grant (5" March 2017).

On 227 February 2016, the following PSP awards were granted 1o executive directors as nil cost options:

Face value of award

%o of award that would vest for

Execulive directar Basis of award £°000 Number of shares threshold performance’
Bill Qliver 125% of satary £624 190,062 25%
Steve Burke 128% of salary £412 125,400 25%
Rob Hudson 125% of salary 2344 104,664 25%

11} Calculated using the average share price of 328.13 pence which was, in accordance with the rules of the PSP, used to determime the number of shares to be awarded

{being the average over the three dealing days immediately preceding the date of grant),

121 The performance measures that apply ta the awards mirrar those proposed for the 2014 awards which are described above. The performance penod started on

17 December 2015 and will end on 30™ November 2018.
13) Retired from the Board on 30" Novernber 2016,
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Directors’ remuneration report
continued

i Al PEP awards held by the executive directors who served during the year. togsather with any movements, are shown below,

Avvardds Aurarcds Awards

held on Auwards Awards lapaed.” held cn End ot
T Decernber Awards made  wested dunng exercised forfeited 30 November  performance

H Eixer(fweiﬂreclor Date: of grant 2015 durmgiﬁ.ar o ear dgr{ng vear  dunng year 2016 period  Fxercise penod
Bill Olver™ 06/A0313 23077 - 231077 2:077" - - 30/M11A5 06/03/16 to
: 05/03/23
05/03/14+ 150,111 - - - 13,0157 137126 30711716 050317 1o
04/03/24
09/0415 130,51 - - - 58,940~ 71,861  30/1117 09/04/1810
08/04/25
22/02/18 -~ 190.052 - - 41152 48,900 30/11/18 22/02/19 10
o 21/02/26

511,719 190,052 231,077 231,077 213107 257,587
Steve Burke 06/0313 152,466 - 182468 152488 - - 30/11A15 06/03/16 10
05/03/23
05/03/14™ 99,066 - - - - 99,066 30/11/16 05/0317 1o
04/03/24
09/04/15 86,107 - - - - 86,107 3071117 (09/04/181o
08/04/25
22/02/16 - 125400~ - - - 125,400 30/11/A18 22/02/1910
21/02/26

337,641 1264C0 152,468 152,468 - 310,573
Rob Hudsen 021015 119,018 - - - - 119,018  2011/17 027101810
01/10/25
22/02/16 - 104,6864¢ - - - 104,664 30/11/A18 22/02/191o
o 21/02/26

119,018 104,664 - - - 223,682

! (1) The performance conditions for all awards held on 30" Novernber 2016 mirror those for the 2014 awards as described on page 87, In addition. awards are subject 10 two
: underpin conditions, nancly that i) the extent of vesting under the performance conditicns is appropriate given the general Tinancial performance of the Company aver
the performance penod; and (b if no dividend has been paid on the last normal dividend date prior 1o the vesting date orif the Committee believes that no divdend will
ba paid n respect of the yoar in which the award vests, the award will not vest at that time and vesting vall be delayed (subject to continued employment} unid dividend
payments are resumed.

12} Retired from the Board on 30" Novernber 2016, PSP awards granted in 2014, 2015 and 2016 have been pro rated to reflect the time elapsed from the date of grant to
! 30" November 2016, Further informalion can be found on page 91,

(3) Awards exercised on 14" July 2016. The share price on exercise was 268.0 pence. In addition 1o the awards exercised, the executive directors received shares representing
i the value of dvidends paid from the dale of award 1o the dale of exercise as iolows: Bil Oliver 14 880 shares; Steve Burke — 9,686 shares,

1) Awards to lapse in full on 5" March 2017 as described on page 87.

15) The share price used to calculate the number of shares awarded, under the rules of the PSP, was 328.43 pence. The closing mid-market share price on the date
of the awarcl was 326.6 pence

Saving Related Share Option Scheme (SAYE)
SAYE awards held by the executive directors who served during the year, together with any movements, are shown below.

Options Oplions

hetd on Options Options Options heid on
1" December granted exercised lapsed 300 November Fxercise Exercise
Executive dircctor Date of grant 2015 dunngyear  dunng year during year 2016 price period
Steve Burke 16/08/11 9,887 - 9,887 - - 156 pence 0141011610
310317
15/08/16 - 3,658 - - 3,658 246 pence 0110/18t0
- 31/03/20

5,887 3,658 2,687 - 3,658

Rob Hudson 15/0816 - 3,658 - - 3,658 246 pence 01/10/18to
31/03/20

) Lxercsed on 3 Cetober 2048, The share pnce on the date of exercise was 298 4 pence.

The closing mid-market share price on 307 Novermber 2016 was 280.0 pence and the price range during the year was 222.2 pence
i to 428.8 pance.
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Pension entitlements (audited information)

All executive directors receive a pension contribution of 15% of base salary which is paid either into the defined contribution section of the
Company's pension scheme or as a cash allowance in lieu of pension contribution (or a combination of both). No compensation is offered
for any additional tax suffered by an executive director in the event that the value of their pension exceeds the statutery Lifetime Allowance.

Cash alowance in leu of

Pensicn cgnmbumn pension cgn!nhuuom Tolal
Executive director 2016 2015 2016 ) B QO‘ib o "7205’7 o 2015
Mark Allan - - 7,063 - 7083 -
Bl Giver” - - 74,903 70721 74,903 72721
Steve Burke 23,331 29,096 26,090 7,987 49,421 47933
Rob Hudsen - - 41,250 7344 41,250 7344
S 23331 30996 149,306 88052 172,637 128,048

111 Appointed to the Board on 1 November 2018.
12} Restired frorm the Board on 30 Novernber 2016.
Steve Burke is also a deferred member of the defined benefit section of the Company's pensicn scheme, which was closed to new

members in 1999 and to future accrual in 2009. Benefits are based on years of credited service and final pensionable pay; the maximum
benefit generally payable under the scheme is twe-thirds of final pensicnattle pay.

Information required by the Regulations in respect of defined benefit pension arrangements is set out below.

Increase: N

Accrued pensicn Accrued pension Increase in accrued pension

Ageat  at30° November  at 307 November accrued pension during the year

307 November 2018 2016 durng the year  {excluding inflation)

Executive director 2016 £pa pa pa pa
Steve Burke 57 28,3427 28,3427 0 o

M) The accrued annual pension includes entitlernents earmed as an emiployes prior o becoming an executive director as well as for qualifying services atter becoming
an executive director and 1s that which would be paid annually on retrement at age 65 based on service to the end of the year.

12} These igures have been calculated by applying deforred revaluation to Steve Burke's deferred pension as at 1 September 2009, being the date that accrual ceased
under the defined benefits section of the scheme.

131 The followeng is additional information relating to the delined benefit pension arrangements apphcable 1o Steve Burke:

= Normal retirement age is 55 years. Retirement may lake place at any age after age 55 subysct o Company consent. Pensions may be reduced to alow for their
earler payment.

= There are no death In service benefits payable and no additional benefits due on early retirernent.

= Deferred pensions are assumed 1o increase it ine with CFl capped at 540 per annum in the penicd before retirement.

Further information on the Company’s pension scheme is shown in note 18 to the Group financial statements.
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Directors’ remuneration report
continued

i Recruitment arrangements for Mark Allan

Mark Allan’s service agreement and remuneration arrangements are consistent with the Company’s remuneration policy approved by
i sharehciders at the 2014 AGM. Detalls are set out below:

i » Base salary of £565,000 per annum. Mark's base salary is 13% higher than his predecessor, Bill Oliver, but this takes account of the

i larger total remuneration package he had in his previous role as Chief Executive of The Unite Group ple (including maximum variable pay
at Unite being 94 percentage points higher than St. Modwen's current policy). Mark’s remuneration also takes account of his impressive
track record and the high regard in which he is held in the listed property sector. Mark’s salary was set af the point of recruitment in April
2016 and will not be subject to review before 1% December 2017, with any increase subject to satisfactory performance.

= Pension allowance of 15% of base salary and other beneflits in accordance with the remuneration paolicy.
* Higible to participate in the Company’s annual bonus arrangements,

= Eligible to participate in the Company's long-term share-based incentive arrangements, with the initial award tc be granted in 2017
at a value of 180% of base salary in line with the approved policy on remuneration in recruitment situations,

= Minimum shareholding requirement of 200% of base salary. The normal expectation is that this will be achieved no later than five years
i from appeintment.

The Company agreed to compensate Mark for unvested share-based incentives awarded to him by his previous employer and forfeited
i as aconsequence of him leaving to join St. Modwen. The compensation comprised the grant, on 2™ Noverber 2016, of an award over
{694,325 shares in the Company under and subject to the terms of a share award agreement entered into upon reliance of FCA Listing

i Rule 9.4.2(2).

The award was on a like-for-like basis at a level consistent with fair value at the time of recruitment, and comprises distinet nil-cost option
! tranches exercisable in accordance with the onginal vesting timeframe which applied to the forfeited awards subject 1o the achieverment
i of the refevant performance condiition (where applicable) as noted in the table below,

Number of shares Tranche’s relevant

Tranche comprised within tranche vesting date  Refevant performance condition

One 138,532 10 April 2017 None

Two 211,353 10 April 2017 - That which would have applied to the relevant former employer LTIP award granted
in April 2014 with a normal performance period ended 315 December 2016

Three 105,708 10 April 2018 That which would have applied to the relevant former employer LTIP award granted
in April 2014 with a normal performance period ended 31° December 2016

Four 159,134 2 Aprit 2018  That which would have applied to the relevant former employer LTIP award granted
in April 2015 with a normal performance period ending 31 December 2017

Five 79,581 2 April 2019 That which would have applied to the relevant former employer LTIP award granted

in April 2015 with a nermal performance period ending 31% December 2017

The tranches will normally vest on their vesting date subject to Mark’s continued service and the extent to which the relevant performance
¢ condition (if any} is satisfied. The tranches will narmally remain exercisable to their vested extent for a period of six months from time of
¢ vesting {or such longer period as the Beard approves during such period).

On exarcise the tranches will be satisfied using existing shares only.

The award includes an entitlernent to a cash payment following a tranche’s vesting date in respect of dividend eguivalent value that would
have accrued under the forfeited awards to the extent they had vested.
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: Paymenis to past directors and for loss of office (audited information}

Michael Dunn

¢ Further to the disclosure in prior yaar's reports. Michael Dunn stepped down from the Board on 31+ May 2015. He remained on garden
leave for the remainder of his notice period to 18" December 2015 when he ceased to be an employee of the Company.

For the period from 17 December 2015 to 187 Decernber 2015 Michael received £14,772 in base salary, £571 in benefits and £1,826
i in pension contribution,

On 8" June 2016 Michae! exercised the SAYE award that had been granted to him in 20711 to the extent of his accumulated savings
i {plus any applicable interest), At the point of exercise this comprised an option over 9,160 shares at an option price of 156 pence per share.

On 6™ July 2016 Michael exercised the PSP award that had been granted to him in 2013, The award. in the form of a nil-cost option. had
i been pro rated to reflect the time elapsed from the date of grant to 317 May 2015 and had vested in full. In addition to the award exercised
i {103,468 shares), Michael received 6,816 shares representing the value of dividends paid from the date of award to the date of exercise,

The PSP award granted tc Michael in 2014, in the form of a nil-cost option, had been pro rated 1o reflect the time elapsed from the date
¢ of grant to 31% May 2015, As noted on page 87, neither absolute nor relative TSR measures achieved the leval of performance required
for vesting set by the Committee, such that the award (over 37,275 shares) will lapse in full.

i Bill Oliver

Bill Cliver retired from the Board as Chief Executive and an executive director on 30" November 2016. His employment with the Company
i also ended on this date.

Details of Bill's remuneration for the financial year ended 30 Novernber 2016 can be found in the table on page 84. He remained eligible
i to be awarded a bonus, subject to the achisverment of perforrmance measures, in respect of the financial year ended 30" Novemtber 2016;
further details can be found on pages 85 and 86.

The Committes has exercised discretion under the rules of the PSP to allow unvested awards to continue subject to time pro rating and

i performance assessment. Awards have been pro rated to reflect the time elapsed from the date of grant to 30" November 2016; defails

i can be found on page 88. Satisfaction of the performance conditions will be assessed at the end of the relevant performance periods in line
i with the PSP rules and vesting will remain subject to the Committee’s determination as to whether the two financial underping {details of

i which are set cut in note 1 1o the first table on page 88) have been met. To the extent that they vest, awards will be exercisable for a period
i of six months from the third anniversary of the date of grant. Bill will also receive shares representing the value of dividends paid on vested
shares from the date of award to the date of exercise. All awards will continue to be subject to recovery and withholding provisions.

Statement of directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited information)

The interests of the directors and thelr connected persons in the issued ordinary share capital of the Company are shown in the table below.

Asat 30 Novemnber 2016

Long-term

Incentive Long-term

Ordinary veb?(\:c’ﬁagi? AV\:nggg tr‘w\g?
sharcs unexercised vet vested  SAYE awards

Executive directors
Mark Allan - - 694,326 -
Bill Oliver™ 1,009,876 - 257,587 -
Steve Burke 526,615 - 310,573 3,658
Rob Hudsen 8,208 - 223,682 3,658
'Non-executive directors 7 :

Bill Shannon 95,000 - - -
lan Bull 25,000 - - -
Kay Chaldecott 21,025 - - -
Simon Clarke 3,225,157 - - -
Lesley James 30,000 - - -
Richard Mully 70,000 - - -

11} Retired from the Board on 30 November 2016,

There were no changes in these sharsholdings or interests between 30" Novernber 2016 and the date of this report.
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Directors’ remuneration report
continued

In order to reinforce the alignment of their interests with those of shareholders, executive directors are required to build up a holding of
ordinary shares in the Company worth at least 200% of their base salary. Until this has been achieved, an executive director is required
to retain all the shares acquired through the bonus investment process as wel as 50% of any exercised long-term incentive award,

Both Bill Cliver and Steve Burke had met and exceeded the shareholding reguirement as at 30" Novermnber 2018; Mark Allan and Rob
Hudson have {unless the Commiittee deem it appropriate 1o extend the timeframel until 17 Novermber 2021 and 28™ September 2020,
respectively, to meet the shareholding requirement.

Value of shareholding at

Ordinary shares held as at Shareholding requerenient as 30 November 2016
Extecutrie directar 30 Novermber 2016 Zo of base salary as °c of base salary
Mark Alan - 200% -
Bill Oliver ™ 1,009,876 200% 556%
Steve Burke 526615 200% 448%
Rab Hudson 8,298 200% 8%

1) Based an the closng mid-market share price an 307 November 2018 of 280.0 pence and salary as at 307 Novernber 2016
12) Apponted to the Board on 1- Novernber 2018,
13) Retired fram the Board on 307 November 2018

External appointments

The Company is supportive of executive directors who wish to take on non-executive directorships in order to broaden their experience
and they are entitled to retain any fees they may receive. Mark Allan is a trustee director on the non-executive board on Anchor Trust.
Feor the pericd from 1% November 2016 to 30" November 2016 he received and retained fees from Anchor Trust of £22,083.

Historic Company performance and Chief Executive remuneration

The following information allows comparison of the Company’s TSR (based on share price growth and dividends reinvested) with the
: remuneration of Bill Oliver, Chief Executive, over the last eight financial years.

[CHART REMOVED]

The chart is prepared In accordance with the Regulations, It shows the Company's TSF and that of the FTSE 250 and the FTSE All-Share Real Fstate Investiment & Services
Indices based on an intial investment of £100 on 30" Novemnber 2008 and values at intervening financial yvear ends over an eight-year period 1o 30" Novernber 2016, Since the
Comparly was a constituent of both the FTSE 250 and the FTSE All-Share Real Estate wvestment & Services Indices during 1he year. these are considered to be appropnate
benchmarks for the graph.

Chiet Lxecutive remunerabion for

vedr ended 307 Novaermber - 2009 2010 201 202 203 2014 205 2016
Total remuneration (£°000)" 876 G2 1,049 1672 2418 3.083 1,931 867
Annual benus awarded

fas a % of maximum opportunity) 50.007 80.00 95,00 90.00 95.00 100.00 100.00 53.25
PSP vesting

fas a % of maximum opportunity) 0.00 Q.00 0.00 45774 100.00 100.00 100.00 0.00

1) Total rernunaration nciudes those elements shown inthe single tolal igure of remuncration takle on page 84,

2} N addition 1o the annual bonug, the Chiet Fxecutive was also awardead &2 one-ofl. exceptionat paymeant of C100,000 m relation 16 the successiul equity rasing and Iinancial
restructunng undertaken in the year

(31 Comprises 45.684% of the 2009 PSP awards and 40.89% of the 2010 PSP awards,
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: Change in remuneration of Chief Executive compared to employees

The table below shows the percentage change in salary. benefits and annual bonus between the years ended 30" November 2015 and
¢ 30" Novernber 2016 for both Bill Oliver, the then Chief Executive, and for all permanent employees of the Company.

Change in base Ch-aﬂge N Changes nannual
: salary 7z henefits ¢ honus s
i Chief Executive 30 007 (56.1)
i Al permanent employees 30 00" (21.3)°

it Generat cost of Iming Increase fur permanent empicyees. Including adjustments for promations and recognition of excephonal perfaormance, the weighted average increase
N salary was 4.9%.

P12} The year on year decrease n benefits shown in the single total figure of remuncration table on page 84 reflects a reduction N taxabie benefit ansing following a change

of comparny car,

U131 There was no change 10 the overall structure of benefite avallable to permanent employess.

L4 Weighted average decrease:

. Relative spend on pay
: The table below shows the total expenditure on remuneration for all employees of the Company (including pension. variable pay and social

security costs) compared 10 other key financial indicators as reported in the auditad Group financial statements for the last two financial
[ years. Information in respect of profit and net asset value performance has been provided for context.
Relevant note o B
to the Group Year ended Year ended
financial 30" November 30" November
Measure statements 2015 2016 %y Increase
Total spend on pay 3c £21.8m £23.7m 8.7%
Profit before all tax 2a £258.4m £60.8m {76.5)%
Dividends paid 7 £11.1m £12.8m 15.3%
Equity attributable 1o cwners of the Company 2f £914.7m £955.2m 4.4%

Implementation of remuneration policy for 2016/17

! Base salary

In line with the general cost of living salary increase awarded o the Company’s permanent employees, Rob Hudson and Steve Burke
i received an annual salary increase of 2.5% with effect from 1% December 2016. In accordance with his service agreement, the first such
i review for Mark Allan will take place in respect of an effective date of 1% December 2017,

Basc salary

Base salary as at with effect from

30" Novernber 1+ December
Lxecutive director 2016 ) 2018 %z Increase
Mark Allan'™ 565,000 £565,000 -
Steve Burke §2329,481 £337,718 2.5%
Rob Hudson £275,000 £281,875 2.5%

1) Appointed to the Board on 17 Novernber 2016

i Benefits and pension arrangements

Berefits and pension arrangements for the financial year ending 30" Novermnber 2017 will be consistent with the respective policies detailed
i onpage 78.
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Directors’ remuneration report
conhnued

: Annual bonus

Subject to shareholder approval of the proposed remuneration policy. executive directors will have the opportunity to be awarded a bonus
i of up to 150% of salary in the financial year ending 30" Novermber 2017, Arrangements will be congistent with the annual bonus policy

i detaled on page 79.

! Bonus awards will based on achievement of the following measures:

: "W(ngmmg as Ihreshold On target Stretch Super stretch
: w.-.._ o }I:Wk to strategy oz of avard performance performance per!oimrlélze performance
Corporate:
Trading profit Reflects profitability of the 25% Budget Budget Budget Budget
busingss after operating costs -10% +10% +20%
Total accounting return Recognises the delivery of 25% Budget Budget Budget Budget
significant adided valus -15% +15% +30%
See-through loan-to-value  Ensures continued balance 25% Budgst Budget Budget Budget
B sheet strength +5% -5% -10%
Personal:
Individual targets for Ensures that each director 25%  Substantially Met Exceeded  Significantly
executive directors focuses on his individual met exceeded
contribution in the broadest
sense through business
performance, leadership role,
people and team, and
personal development
ohjectives
Award (% of salary) 37.5% 75.0% 112.5% 150.0%
Award (% of maximum opportunity) 25.0% 50.0% 75.0% 100.0%

The Committee has set specific targets for all corporate measures, which reflect the Committee’s judgement of the ability of management
i toinfluence performance within the year. On-target performance will deliver 50% of the maximum opportunity. Stretch targets are
i demanding and will require & very substantial cutperformance of budget to achieve maximum paycut.

Achigvement of personal chjectives will be determined through a formal performance review process. The proportion of the bonus that can
: be paid out in respect of the achieverment of personal objectives will be limited to not more than one-third of the total actual bonus awarded.

The threshold, target, stretch and super stretch performance requirements for financial objectives, togsther with outcomes, will be disclosed
i In the Remuneration Report for the year ending 30™ November 2017. This report will also include detailed commentary on the key
i deliverables, and assessment of outcomes, for personal objectives.

Any bonus awarded will be subject to the requirement to invest 40% of the net amount paid in purchasing shares in the Company and
i toretain these shares for at least three years, irespective of whether the executive director has met the shareholding requirement.
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: Long-term incentives

Subject to shareholder approval of the proposed remuneration policy and 2017 Performance Share Plan (PSP) at the 2017 AGM, PSP

awards 1o be granted to executive directors in the financial year ending 30" Novernber 2017 will be over shares worth 150% of salary
i (180% of salary for Mark Allan as detalled on page 90) and will be consistent with the long-term incentives pokcy detailed on page 80.

Noting the concems of some investors with regard to the use of absclute TSR as a performance measurg, it s proposed that, for the

§2018/17 awards. this be replaced with total accounting return {TAR). TAR measures growth in net asset value (NAV), a key measure for
i the business. plus dividends and can be used effectively as an indicator of longer-term performance. The Committee believes that relative
i TSR remains an appropriate measure of performance for the Company and so intends to retain this for the 2016/17 awards, with equal
i weighting between relative TSR and TAR measures.

\ Relative TSR performance will be assessed on a median to upper guartle ranking approach, which the Committee believes is more

appropriate than the current index outperformance basis. The TSR peer group, previously comprising all the constituents of the FTSE

All-Share Real Estate & Investment Services Index, will be replaced with a bespoke comparator group of rezl estate companies but
i excluding specialist sub-sectors such as estate agencies, self-storage and healthcare. The constituents of the comparator group wil
i be considered in advance of each award; the constituents of this bespoke group for the 2016/17 awards are set out below,

| A8 Muckiow Group
: British Land Company

: Capital & Counties Properties
= Capitat & Regional

Derwent London

Grainger Land Securities Group Shaftesbury

Great Portland Estates LondonMetric Property St. Modwen Properties
Hammerscn Ficten Property Income Town Centre Securities
Hansteen Hoidings Regional REIT Uand | Group

Helical SEGRC Workspace Group

i The Committes is satisfied that the targets proposed for the 2016/17 awards, set out in the table below, are suitably stretohing. Performance
i against sach target wil be measured independently over the three financial years ending on 30" November 2019. The vesting percentage

i for threshold performance has been reduced from 25% to 20% of the maximum cpportunity: this will deliver less value as a percentage

of salary at, and requiring stretching performance for vesting beyond, threshold performance.

Vesting of award Vesting of award
Threshold at threshold  Maximum at maximurn
Performance measure Link 1o strategy performance performance  performance performance
Relative TSR perfermance = Rewards outperformance of the returns  Company’s 20% Company's 100%
(50% of award) generated by a comparator group TSR is ranked TSRis ranked
comprising listed company peers at median at or above
= Directly correlates reward with the retun of the t the UﬁDe:( h
delivered 10 shareholders through share comp?\ra or quartile o1 he
price growth and dividend payments group’s TSR comparator
group’s TSR
= Provides an objective measure of the
Company’s long-term success
Total accounting return » Rewards delivery of continued long-term 5% average 20% 11% average 100%
(50% of award) significant added value per annum per annum

Key internal measure of the Company’s
long-term performance

Reflects value added by the Company's
asset management activities

Vasting of awards between threshold and maximum performance will be on a straight-line basis. Performance below threshold would result

i in nil vesting for that measure.
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Directors’ remuneration report
contnued

i Incalculating TSR, a three-month average is used at both the start and the end of the performance period to ensure that the calculation is
i notimpacted by potential volatility arising from day-to-day share price lluctuations. The TSR data and relative positioning of St. Modwen
i Is provided by New Bridge Street to ensure that performance is independently verified. Total accounting return performance will be subject

i to audit by the Company’s audiitor,

The 2018/17 awards will be subject to an underpin condition which the Committee must be satisfied has been met before permitting
! awards to vest, namely that the extent of vesting under the performance conditions is appropriate given the general financial performance

of the Company over the three-year performance period.

The 2016/17 awards will also be subject to a cormpulsory two-year post-vesting holding period, which will require executive directors to
i hold any shares vesting (after tax) for a pericd of two years, meaning there can be no disposal of shares for a period of at least five years
i from grant. The holding perod wil remain in place if the executive leaves employment during the two-year holding period.

{ Chairman and non-executive director fees

Following a review by the Board, the annual fees payable to the Chairman and non-executive directors have been increased in ling with
i the cost of living salary increase awarded to the Companry's employees with effect from 1% December 2016.

Fee with
Fee as at effect from
30 November 17 Decermber
2018 2016 “s Incroase
Base fee
Chairman £159,135 £163,113 2.5%
Non-executive directors 743,709 £44.801 2.5%
Additional fees
Senior Independent Director ££8,000 £9,000 -
Audit Committee Chairman £9,000 £9,000 -
Remuneration Committee Chairman £29,000 £9,000 -

Dates of appointment of directors

Director

Date of appontment

Date of contract/original lelter
of appeintment

Exécutive directors
Mark Allan'™

Steve Burke

Rob Hudsen

1 November 2016
30" Novernber 2006
28" September 2015

6" April 2016
18" January 2016
20" April 2015

Expiry of current term

N/A
NZA
N/A

Non-executive directors
Bill Shannon™

lan Bull

Kay Chaldecott

Simon Clarke

Lestey James

Richard Mully

1 Novermnber 2010
1% September 2014
227" Qctober 2012
11" Qctober 2004
18" October 2009
1 September 2013

18" Cctober 2010
21* August 2014
22" Qctober 2012
40 QOctober 2004
19" October 2008
16" July 2013

31= October 2017
31 August 2017
21 Cetober 2018
10" October 2017
18" October 2017
31 August 2019

1 Appointed Chief Executve on 17 December 201G
@) Appointed Chairman on 227 March 2011,
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Dilution limits

In line with the rules of the PSP and Employee Share Option Plan, for which shareholder approval will e sought at the 2017 AGM, and the
¢ rules of the current SAYE, the Company cbserves the recommendation of the Investment Association that the number of new shares that
. may be issued to satisfy awards is restricted to 10% (5% for discretionary schemes) of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company

£ inany roling 10-year period.

The total number of shares which could be allotted under the Company's share schemes compared to the dilution limits as at 30" November

i 2016 was as follows:

Type of scherre Lirmit Actual
All schemes 10% 3.82%
Executive schemes only 5% 3.64%

i Asat 30" Novermber 201 6, the Company's Employee Share Trust (the Trust) held 269,334 shares (2015: 690,274 shares) in the Company

! to enable it to satisfy the vesting and exercise of awards. In accordance with the Trust deed, the Trust has waived the right 1o receive
dividends paid on these shares with the exception of a hundredth of a penny per share.

Committee membership

The Committee’s composition is kept under review by the Nomination Committee, which is responsible for making recommendations
i to the Board as to its membership.

Al members of the Committee receive an appropriate induction to ensure that they have a socund and objective understanding of the
i principles of, and recent developments in, executive remuneration matters. Ongoing training is undertaken as required.

Committee meetings and attendance during the

! Remuncration Commitiee members year ended 30 November 20167

VEIey James ~ Chairmen 4
lan Bull Member 4/4
Kay Chaldecott Member 4/4
Richard Mully Member 4/4
Biil Shannon Member 4/4

i Actual attendancedmaximum number of meetings a director could attend.

Remuneration Committee attendees (by invitation)

Bill Oliver Chief Executive (to 30" November 2016)

Mark Allan Chief Executive (from 1% December 2018)

Simon Clarke Non-executive director

Tanya Stote Company Secretary and secretary to the Committes
Representatives from New Bridge Street Remuneration Committee advisor

i Advice provided to the Committee
New Bridge Strest (NBS), a trading name of Aon Hewitt Ltd (the parent company of NBS), was re-appointed by the Committee in

i 2014 following a tender process to provide independent advice on remuneration matters. Representatives from NBS attend Cormmittee

rmeetings and provide advice to the Committee Chairman outside of mestings as necessary. In 2015/16 NBS provided specific advice
i to the Committee In respect of its review of the Company's remuneration policy for directors and subsequent shareholder consultation

i on proposed amendments, rermuneration arrangements relating to the retirement of Bill Cliver and the appointment of Mark Allan, and TSR
i monitcring services. NBS also provides advice in relation to non-executive director remuneration. Fees are charged on a cost incurred basis

with advice to the Committee totaling £136,000 in the year ended 30° November 2018,

NBS is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and operates veluntarily under the Group's code which sets out the scope
i and conduct of the role of executive remuneration consultants when advising UK listed companies. NBS does not undertake any other
i work for the Company, and the Committee is satisfied that the advice provided by NBS remains objective and independant.

! The Committee also receives input from the Chief Executive on the remuneration arrangements of the other exacutive directors and of

the Company Secretary, and advice from the Company Secretary on governancs matters. Neither the Chief Executiva nor the Company

I Secretary were present when their own remuneration was discussed.
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Directors’ remuneration report
conunued

. Activities of the Committee
The Committee met on four oceasions in the financial year encied 307 November 2016 to consider the following matters:

to consider invastor feedback on the Company's remuneration policy and the report on directors’ remuneration for the
2015 Annual Report;

to review market trends and the governance environmenit in respect of remuneration arrangements;

to determine proposed amendments to the Company's rermuneration policy for directors and consult with major institutional investors
and shareholder representative bodies on the intended changes ahead of the 2017 AGM at which sharehclder approval will be sought;

to agree the rules of replacement long-term incentive arrangements for which sharehclder approval will alse be scught at
the 2017 AGM;

to determine the application of the remuneration policy for the recruitment of Mark Allan and the retirement of Bill Oliver;
to review the executive directors’ base salaries and the fee payable to the Chafrman;

to set corporate and personal objectives for the 2016/17 annual bonus arrangements for executive directors and undertake
an assessment of performance against targets for 2015/16;

to approve the outturn of PSP awards granted in 2013;
to approve share awards granted in 2016 together with associated performance criteria; and

to prepare this repert on directors’ remuneration.

Statement of shareholder voting at the AGM

The table below details the results of the shareholder vote to approve the Directors’ remuneration report at the 2016 AGM and the
i shareholder vote to approve the current remuneration policy at the 2014 AGM.

Resolution a f\GMV ) Yoies for Co of vote for Votes against %o of vote against  Totalvotes cast  Votes withheld!
Approval of Directors’ remuneration report 2018 148,367,066 89.65% 17125133 10.35% 165,492,199 1.681,491
Approval of remuneration policy 24 156,644,976 898.79% 1,916,724 1.21% 168,561,700 3,062,858

{1} Avote withheld 1s not a vote in law and is not counted in the calculation of the proportion of votes cast for or against a resolution.

This report on remuneration has been approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Lesley James

¢ Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

i 8" February 2017
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Directors’ report

The drrectors present their report for the year ended
i 30" November 2016,

i As permitted by legislation, some of the matters historically

i included in this repart have instead been included in the Strategic

i report on pages 1 to 52 as the Board considers them to be of

i strategic importance. Specifically these relate to the Company's

i business model and strategy, future business developments and

i risk management. The corporate governance statement as required
i by the Disclosure and Trangparency Rules of the Financial Conduct
¢ Authority (FCA) is set out on pages 53 to 98 and is incorporated

i into this report by reference.

Annual general meeting

i The AGM will be held on Wednesday, 29" March 2017 in the

i Evolution Suite, Innovaticn Centre, 1 Devon Way, Longbridge

i Technology Park, Birmingham B31 218, commencing at 12.00

i noon. The natice of meeting, which includes the special business
! 10 be transacted and an explanation of all the resolutions to be
considered at the mesting, is set cut on pages 166 to 177.

. Dividend

An interim dividend of 1.94 pence per ordinary share (2015: 1.8 pence)
¢ was paid on 5" September 2016.

i The directors recommend a final dividend of 4.06 pence per

! ordinary share in respect of the year ended 30" November 2016
i (2015: 3.85 pence). making a total dividend for the year of 6.00

i pence per share (2015: 5.75 pence), payabie on 4" April 2017

! fo shareholders on the register on 10" March 2017,

¢ Other than as referred to under the heading ‘Share capital’ below,
¢ during the year there were no arrangements under which a

i shareholder had waived or agreed to waive any dividends nor

i any agreement by a shareholder to walve future dividends.

Share capital

Capital structure

i The Company has a single class of share capital which is divided
i into ordinary shares of 10 pence each, all ranking pari passu.

i Each share carries the right 1o one vote at general meelings of

i the Company.

i At 30" Novemnber 2016, there were 221,876,988 ordinary shares in
i issue and fully paid. Further details relating to share capital, including
i movements during the year, are sef out in note 17 to the Group

i financial statements.

Share allotments

i At the 2016 AGM, shareholders renewed the directors’ authority

i to aiot shares in the Company. No shares were allotted during the
i year. A resolution to renew this standard authority will be proposed
i at the 2017 AGM.

Purchase by the Company of its own shares

i Atthe 2016 AGM, shareholders renewed the Company's authority
to make market purchases of up to 22,187,698 ordinary shares,

¢ representing 10% of the issued share capital at that time. No shares
i were repurchased during the year and the Gormpany does not hold
i any shares in treasury. This standard authority will expire at the

i 2017 AGM and a resoluticn to renew it will be proposed.

Employee Share Trust (Trust)

i Asat 30" Novermber 2016, the Trust held 269,334 shares

i (2015: 890,274 shares), representing 0.12% (2015: 0.31%)

i of the Company’s issued share capital. The Trust deed contains
¢ a dividend waiver provision in respect of shares held by the Trust,

such that dividends are waived with the exception of a hundredth
of a penny per share. Any voting or cther similar decisions relating
to shares held by the Trust would be taken by the Trustee. who
may take account of any recommendations of the Company. There
were no purchases of shares by the Trust during the financial year.

Further detalls regarding the Trust and of shares issued pursuant
to the Cormpany’s share-based incentive arrangements are set out
in note 17 to the Group financial statements.

Rights and obligations attaching to shares

The holders of ordinary shares in the Company are entitled to
receive dividends when declared. 1o receive the Company’s annual
report, to attend and speak at general meetings of the Company,
to appoint proxies and 1o exercise voting rights. Full details of the
deadlines for exercising voting rights in respect of the resolutions to
be considered at the 2017 AGM are set out in the notice of meeting
on pages 166 to 177.

Restrictions on the transfer of shares

As at 30" November 2016 and the date of this report, except as
referred to below:

» there were No restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares
in the Company;

= there were no limitations on the holding of crdinary shares;

» there were no requirements to obtain the approval of the
Company, or of other holders of ordinary shares in the
Company, for a transfer of shares; and

= no person held shares in the Company carrying any special
rights with regard to control of the Company.

The directors may refuse to register the transfer of a share in
certificated form which is not fully paid or on which the Company
has a lien, where the instrument of transfer does not comply with
the requirements of the Company’s articles of asscciation {Articles),
or if the transfer is in respect of more than one class of share orisin
favour of more than four joint holders. The directors may also refuse
to register a transfer of a certificated share, which represents an
interest of at least 0.25% in a clags of shares, following the failure
by the member or any other person appearing to be interested in
the shares to provide the Company with information requested
under section 793 of the Companies Act 2006 (Act).

Transfers of uncertificated shares must be carried out using
CREST and the directors can refuse to register the transfer of an
uncertificated share in accordance with the regulations governing
the operation of CREST.

The Company is not aware of any agreements between
shareholders that may result in restrictions on the transfer
of shares or on voting rights.

Interests in voting rights

Information provided to the Company pursuant to the FCA's
Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTR 5) is published on a
Regulatory Information Service and on the Company’s website.
As at 30" November 2018, the infermation overleaf had been
received in accordance with DTR 5 from holders of notifiable
interests in the Company's issued share capital.

The information provided was correct at the date of notification;
however, the date the notification received may not have been
within the current financial year. It should be noted that these
holdings are likely to have changed since the Company was
notified. Notification of any change is not required until a notifiable
threshold is crossed.
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Directors’ report

comtinued
Sharcholder - Date of notification N-:n-t,lre of holding Total voting nghis ",Of ‘ro1ai vo1r|ﬁg rghls {
Simon C\arké and connected part?aé 3™ April 2014 Direct mterestri 18,575,196 N 8.48%
J.D. Leavesley and connected parties 23" April 2015 Direct interest 13,447,099 - 6.07%
Avivaplc 19" September 2014 Direct {nterest 8,889,142 4.02%
Indirect interest 5,562,087 2.52%
Tolal 14,472,129 6.54%
Royal London Asset Management Ltd 7' October 2015 Direct interest 11,186,531 5.04%
TR Property Investment Trust plc 12" July 2012 Direct interest 6.802,636 O 340%
Norges Bank 14" September 2016 Direct interest 6,680,599 O 301%

Henderson Group plc

Shareholder

Zate of notihication

av Fet-JrQary 2017 Indrrect interest

Changes to the interests in the voting rights which have been notified to the Company in accordance with DTR 5 between 30™ Novernber
2016 and 6" February 2017 are set out below:

MNature of holding Total voting nghts

= of total voting nghts

500% i

11,157,532
Contracts for
o Jifference 55,000 0.02%
Total 1,212,532 5.05%

. Directors

The Board

The following served as directors during the year ended
i 30" November 2016:

Mark Allan (appointed on 1% Novermber 2016)
lan Bull

Steve Burke

Kay Chaldecott

Simon Clarke

Rob Hudson

Lesley James

Richard Mully

Bill Oliver (retired on 30" November 2016)

Bil Shannon

The biographical details of alf the directors senving at 30" Novemnber

i 2018, including details of their relevant experience and other significant

i commitments, are shown on pages 54 and 55.

The Directors’ remuneration report, which includes details

¢ of directors’ service agreements and their interests in the
Company's shares, is set out on pages 74 to 98. Copies of

i the senvice agreements of the executive directors and the letters
i of appointment for the non-executive directors are available for

i inspection at the Company's registered office during normal

¢ business hours and will be available for inspection at the

10

i Company's AGM.
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Appointment and replacement of directors

The appeintment and replacemeant of directors is governed by the
Avrticles, the UK Corporate Govemance Code (Code), the Act and
related legislation. Under the Articles:

the number of directors is not subject to any maximum but
must not be less than three, unless otherwise determined by
the Company in general meeting;

directors may be appointed by an crdinary resolution of the
Company or by resolution of the directors, either te fill a casual
vacancy or as an additionai director; and

all directors must retire at each AGM and shall, subject to his or
her terms of appcintment, be eligible for election or re-election.

At the 2017 AGM Mark Allan, who was appointed tyy the directors
in November 2016, will retire and offer himself for election; all other
directors will offer themselves for re-election.

A director may be removed by a special resolution of the Company.
In addition, a director must automatically cease to be a director if
he or she:

resigns from his or her office by nctice in writing to the Company
or, in the case of an executive director, the appointment is
terminated or expires and the directors resolve that his cor her
office be vacated;

becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition
with his or her creditors generally;

a registered medical practitioner who is treating the director
gives a written opinion to the Company stating that he or she
has become physically or mentally incapatle of acting as a
director and may remain so for more than three months;

is absent from meetings of the directors for more than six
censecutive months without permission of the directors and
the directors resolve that his or her office be vacated; or

becomes prohibited by law from acting as a director.



Powers of the directors

The Board may exercise all the powers of the Company. subject to
: the Articles, UK legislation including the Act and any directions given
: by the Company In general meeting.

¢ The directers have been authorised by the Articles to allot ordinary
i shares and to make market purchases of the Company's own

i shares. These powers are referred to sharehclders for renewal

i at each AGM. Further information is set out under the heading

i "Share capital’ on page 99.

Conflicts of interest

i With the exception of service agreements or those contracts

i detailed in note 21 to the Group financial statements, no director

i had a material interest in any significant contract with the Comparny
or any of its operating companies at any time during the year.

¢ Under the Act, directors have a statutory duty to avoid conflicts

i of interest with the Company. As permitted by the Act, the Aricles
i enable non-conflicted directors to authorise actual or potential

i conflicts of interest, either with or without imits or conditions.

i Formal proceduras for the notification and authorisation of such

i conflicts are in place. Any potential conflicts of interest in relation

i 1o newly appointed directors are considered by the Board prior

i to appointment. All directors have a continuing duty to update

i any changes to conflicts.

i Indemnities and insurance

i The Company has granted indemnities to each of its directors and
i the Company Secretary to the extent permitted by law in respect

i of costs of defending claims against them and third party liabilities.
i These provisions, desmed to be qualifying third-party indemnity

E provisions pursuant 1o section 234 of the Act, were in force during
i the year ended 30" November 2016 and remain in force as at the
i date of this report.

A copy of the indemnity is available for inspection at the Company’s
! registered office during normal business hours and will be available
i for inspection at the Company's AGM.

The Company alsg maintains dirsctors’ and officers” liability
¢ insurance which gives appropriate cover for any legal action
taken against its directors.

Articles of Association

The Articles can only be amended, or new Articles adopted, by

i aspecial resolution passed at a general meeting of the Compary.
i The Company’s current Articles are avallable on its website

P owww strodwen.co.Uk.

Change of control

i There are a number of agreements that take effect, alter or

¢ terminate upon a change of control of the Company following a

i takeover bid. These include committed bank facilities, which would
i be terminable at the bank’s discretion, and the Company’s retail

i and convertible bonds, holders of which would have an option

i to require the Company to redeern the bonds.

i The Company’s share-basad incentive arrangements contain

¢ provisions that take effect in the event of a change of contro! but
i do not entitle participants to a greater interest in the shares of the
i Company than created by the initial grant or award under the

i relevant plan.

Thera are no agreements between the Company and its directors
i or employees providing for compensation for loss of office or
i employment that occurs specifically as a result of a takeover bid.

Financial instruments

The Group's exposure tc and management of capital risk, market
risk, credit nsk and liquidity nsk is set out in note 16 to the Group
financial statements.

Employee involvement

St. Mochwen is committed to regular communication and consultation
with its employaes and encourages employee understanding of and
involverment in its performance. News conceming St. Modwen, its
activities and performance is published on the Company’s intranet.
Regular management meetings are held to inform senior staff

about matters affscting them as employees, at which their feedback
Is sought on decisions likely to affect their interest. and where &
commoen awareness of the financial and economic factors affecting
the Company’'s performance is developed; this information is then
cascaded 10 all employees. A performance-related annual tonus
scheme and share option arrangaments are designed 1o encourage
and support employes share ownership.

Employment of disabled persons

It is the policy of the Company to give full and fair consideration

to applications for employment received from disabled persons,
having regard to their aptitudes and abilities. The policy includes,
where practicable, the continued employment of those who may
become disabled during their employment with the Company and
the provision of appropriate training. St. Modwen provides the same
opportunities for training, career development and promotion for
disabled as for other employees.

Greenhouse gas emissions

The disclosures required by law relating to the Group’s gresnhouse
gas emissions {GHG) are set out in the table overleaf. GHG from
those sources for which the Company is deemed 1o be directly
responsible are monitored for reporting purposes, namely gas

and electricity purchased for consumption at properties under

the Company's cperational control (such as Head Office, certain
regional offices, St. Modwen Homes™ sales offices and vacant
space), and petrot and diesel used in Company cars.

For information on our energy inftiatives, please see our CSR Report
and www.stmodwen.co.uk/corporate-social-responsibility
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Directors’ report

continued
o ) o 2018 intensiy ratio N 2015 intensity ratio
- o tCO - T T -_t-CO 1C0o
[ SIMISSIONS ermissions £m (6] RImISsIons.’ 2mIssIonNs m
BMTISSIONS full-tirme property EMmISsions fuli-tirme property
CGHG B ftonnes) omployecs ' porticho tornes; emgloyees portfolio
: Scope 1 o o o
| Totel purchased gas 129 433 B
Petrol and dierselw o 955 5867 -
TotalScopet 1,084 3. 0.5 1019 33 05
Scope 2:
Total purchased electricity 788 ) ] : 1,529
Total Scope 2 788 23 0.4 1,529 1.9 07
Total Scope 1 &2 - 1,872 5.4 0.9 0548 B2 1.2

1) Equivalent (0 emissions per ful-ime employee.
12y Caualerd CO. per £ of property portfolio held by the Comparsy.
Methodology

Ermizsicns frem gas and elsclricity consumpton have been calculated using the man reguirements of the GHG Protocol Standard revised sedition) and snmission factors from
LK Government's GHOG Conversian Factors for Company Beporting 2014, The measurement of ermissions from Company cars s based on the "Ervironmental Reporting
Guidelines: Including mandatary greenhouse gas emissions reporting guidance' (June 2013) issued by the Departrment for Environment, Nood and Rural Aftairs (Delra)

Defra's 2013 conversion factors have also boen used within the reporing methodology.

Qrganisation boundary and responsibility

The Company does not have responsiblity for GHG that are beyond the boundary of the Company's operatonal control. As such, gas and electricity purchased and
consumed by tenants 1s not included within the Scope 1 and 2 data above, Data also excludes the purchase for and consumption by those sites which fall within the

Persimmon joint venture as Persimmaon controls the procurement of utilitios to these sites. GHG for all other jomt ventures has bean included as the Company is deemed

10 be wholly responsible for such GHG,

Political donations

in accordance with the Company’s policy, no political donations
were made and no political expenditure was incurred during
the year.

Going concern

i The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to
affect its future development, performance and position, are set out
in the Strategic report. The directors have considered these factors
and reviewed the financial position of the Group, including its joint
ventures and associates.

i The review included an assessment of future funding requirements
i based on cash flow forecasts extending for 18 months from

the date of signing the financial statements, valuation projections
and the ability of the Group to meet covenants on existing
borrowing facilities. The directors were satisfied that the forecasts
and projections were based on realistic assumptions and that

the sensitivities applied in reviewing downside scenarios

WEre appropriate.

As described in the financial review on pages 41 to 44, there are

no corporate or joint venture facilities requiring renewal before 2018,
Ag aresult, the directors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient
ongaing faciiities available to meet its financing requirements.

Based on their assessment, the directors are of the opinion that
the Group has adeguate available resources to fund its operations
for the foresesable future and so determine that it remains
appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on

a going concern basis.
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Disclosure required by Listing Rule 9.8.4R

The information requirad to be disclosed by LR 9.8.4R of the

FCA's Listing Rules can be found on the following pages of this

Annual Report:

Section

Topic

Page rcfcrence
1 Interest capitalised . N/A
{2) Publication of unaudited N/A
information .
{4 Details of long-term incentive Q0
schames established specifically
to recruit or retain a director
o) & (6) Waiver of emoluments by N/A
a director
{7 & (8) Non-pre-emptive issues of equity 144
for cash B
)] Parent company participation N/A
in placing by a listed subsidiary
1o _Cpntracts of significance N/A
11) Provision of services by a N/A
controlling shareholder
12) & (13}7 Siarehorder waiver of dividends 99
(1) Agreements with controlling N/A

sharsholders




. Important events since 30" November 2016

There have been no important events affecting the Company or any
i subsidiary since 30" November 2016,

. Auditor
i Resolutions to appoint KPMG LLP as auditor of the Company and

¢ to authorise the Auclit Committee to determine their remuneration

will be proposed at the 2017 AGM.

Management report

The Strategic report and the Directors’ report together comprise the
: ‘management report’ for the purposes of the FCA's Disclosure and
: Transparency Rules (DTR 4.1.8R,.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual report
¢ and financial staterments in accordance wilth applicable law
¢ and regulations,

: Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements
¢ for each financial year. Under that law the directors are required

i 1o prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with

i International Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) as adopted by
i the European Union and Artidle 4 of the IAS Regulation and have

i elected to prepare the Company financial statements in accordance
i with United Kingdorm Generally Accepted Accounting Pragtice

! (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law),

i including FRS 161 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework”. Under

i company law the directors must not approve the accounts unless

i they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of

i affairs of the Company and of the Group and of their profit or loss

i for that period.

In preparing the Group financial statements, Internaticnal
Accounting Standard 1 reguires that directors:

= properly select and apply accounting policies;

» prasent information, including accounting policies, in a manner
i that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information;

i = provide additional disclosures when compliance with the

i specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users

to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance; and

» make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as
{  agoing concem.

In preparing the Company financial statements, the directors are
! orequired to:

= sclect suitable accounting policies and then apply them

! consistently;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
i and prudent;

« state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards
! have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements; and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business.

The directors are rasponsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time

the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial staterments comply with the Act. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other iregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the corporate and financial information included on the Company's
website (www.stmodwen.co.Uk), Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Each of the directors in office as at the date of this report, whose
names and functions are set out on pages 54 and 55, confirm that
to the best of their knowledge:

= the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a wholg;

= the management report (which comprises the Strategic
report and the Directors’ report} includes a fair review of
the development and performance of the business and the
position of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidaticn taken as a whole, together with a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties that they face; and

» the Annual Report and financial statements, taken as a whole, is
fair. batanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's position
and performance, businass model and strategy.

Each of the directors in office as at the date of this report also
confirms that:

= s0 far as the director is aware, there is no refevant audit
informaticon of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and

= the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have
taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s
auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of section 418 of the Act.

The Directors’ report, prepared in accordance with the
reqguirements of the Act and the FCA's Listing and Disclosure
and Transparency Rules and comprising pages 99 to 103,
was approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Tanya Stote
Company Secretary
6" February 2017
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- Independent auditor’s report to the members of
- St. Modwen Properties PLC

Opinion on financial statements of St. Modwen Properties PLC
In our opinicn:

* the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs
:  as at 30" November 2016 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended;

» the Group financia! statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
! (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unicn;

= the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
i Accepted Accounting Practice, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,
¢ asregards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The firancial statements that we have audited comprise:

= the Group income staterment:

» the Group and Company balance sheets;

« the Group and Company statements of changes in equity;

= the Group cash flow statement; and

= the related Group and Company accounting policies, Group notes 1 to 21 and Company notes A tc J.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and IFRSs as ¢
i adopted by the Europaan Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial
i statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), :
including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Frarmework.

Summary of our audit approach

Key risks The key risks that we identified in the current year were:

» Valuation of investment properties;

= Accounting for the NCGM site;

= Completeness of tax provisions;

= Valuation of inventory; and

» Property disposals and valuation of revenue recognition under 1AS 11.

These key risks are consistent with those identified in the pricr year. Last year our auditor's report included
‘One-off property transactions” as a key risk. in the current year we have refined this risk to *Accounting for

o the NCGM site”. o
Materlallty The materiality that we used in the current year was £10.0m which was determlned on the basis of
o net assets. B o
Scoping Our Group audit scope is consistent with our scope in the previcus year and all audit procedures were

performed directly by the Group audit team. Less than 1% of assets, revenue and profit before tax were
notin our audit scope.

Significant changes in In the absence of substantive changes to the Group 3 business model or activities our audrt approach
our approach is consistent with the previous period, there were no new kay risks identified or changes in basis for
determining materiality.

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued by the IASB

As explained in the Group accounting policies, in addition to complying with its legal cbligation to apply IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean
i Union, the Group has also applied IFRSs as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

In our opinion the Greup financial statements comply with IFRSs as issued by the IASB.
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: Going concern and the directors’ assessment of the principal risks that would threaten
. the solvency or liquidity of the Group

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors’ statement regarding We confirm that we have
the appropriateness of the going concern basis of accounting contained within the Group nothing material to add or
accounting policies and the directors’ statement on the longear-term viability of the Group draw attention to in respect
centained within the Strategic report on page 52. of these matters.

We are required 1o state whether we have anything matenal to add or draw attention to in relation to: We agreed with the directors’
adoption of the going concern
basis of accounting and we did
not identify any such material
uncertainties. However, because
the disclosures on pages 48 to 52 that describe those risks and explain how they are being not all future events or conditions
managed or mitigated; can be predicted, this statement
is not a guarantee as to the
Group’s ability to continue

as a going concern.

» the directors’ confirmation on page 45 that they have carried out & robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business model. future
performance, solvency or liquidity;

the directors’ statement in the Group accounting policies on page 118 about whether they

considered it appropriate to adopt the geing concern basis of accounting in preparing them
and their identification of any material uncertainties to the Group's ability to continue to do so
over a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial staterments; and

= the directors’ explanation on page 52 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group,
over what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their
statemment as to whether they have a reasonakle expectation that the Group will be able to continue
in cperation and meet its liabilities as they fall dug over the period of their assessment, including any
related disclosures drawing attention 10 any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

. Independence
We are required to comply with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standards for Auditors We co;flrm that we are
and confirm that we are independent of the Group and we have fulfilled our other ethical independent of the Group
responsibilities in accordance with those standards. and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities

in accordance with those
standards. We also confirm

we have not provided any of the
prohibited non-audit services
referred to in those standards.

Our assessment of risks of material misstatement

The assessed risks of material misstaternent described below are those that had the greatest effect on our audit strategy, the allocation
of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

Valuation of investment properties

Risk description The Group owns a UK-wide property portfolio comprising income producing properties together with residential
and commercial land. The Group's investment property balance, as detailed in note 8 is £1,133m (2015: £21,061m)
which is held at fair value. The Group's accounting policy is disclosed on page 115 and further details of
investment properties are disclosed in note 8. Valuation of investment property is a significant judgement area
and includes a number of estimates. The directors employ an external valuer to assist in determining the fair
value, who makes a number of key estimates and assumptions, in particular assumptions in relation to market
comparable yields and estimates in relation to future rental income increases or decreases, void periods,
occupancy rates, lease incentives, break clauses, lease lengths and purchaser costs.

The Audit Committee report on page 66 discloses it as a significant financial matter.

How the scope of Together with our real estate experts, who are Chartered Surveyors, we met with the third party valuer

our audit responded appointed by those charged with governance with the am of understanding the valuation methodology

to the risk adopted. We assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the external valuer. We selected a
sample of investrment properties for further investigation (pased on value, absolute and percentage moverment,
and some random properties). For this sample, we assessed and challenged the reasonableness of the
significant judgements and assumptions applied in the valuation model for each property in our sample.
We assessed the completeness and accuracy of the data provided by St. Modwen to the valuers for the
purposes of their valuation exercise.

With the assistance of expert members of our audit team who are Chartered Surveyors, we reviewesd the
significant assumptions in the valuation process, tested a sample of properties by benchmarking against
external appropriate property indices and understood the valuation methodolegy and the wider market analysis.
We reviewed the information provided by the valuers both in the meeting and contained in the detailed valuation
reports; and we undertock our own research into the relevant markets to evaluate the reasonableness of the
valuation inputs and the resulting fair values.
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Independent auditor's report to the members of

St. Modwen Properties PLC

continued

Accounting for the NCGM site

Risk description

As disclosed in the Group accounting palicies on page 19, the contractual agreement between VEM (NCGM)
Ltd and the Covent Garden Market Authority (CGMA} involves VEM (NCGM; Ltd committing t¢ procure a new
market for the CGMA and in return receiving an option to acquire the surplus land on the site. Subseguent to
the initial recognition of an asset and a matching liability for the delivery of the development in the Financial
statements of VSM INCGM) Ltd. the investment property asset is revalued externally at each reporting date.
The consaclidated financial statements of the Group recognise the investment in the joint venture company

VEM (NCGM) Ltd using the equity method of accounting. Since 307 November 2015, the joint venture company
continugs 1o deliver the 57 acre regeneration. VEM (NCGM) Ltd recognised a valuation loss during the year

of £48.6m, with the Group's share of this loss being £24.3m.

The total liability of VSM (NCGM) Lid for procurement of the new market is valued at £197m as at 30" Novernber
2016 (2015: £187m). The increase in the value results from a discount unwind of £10m which is recognised in
finance costs in the joint venture company. VSM (NCGM) Ltd has commissioned £48m {2015: £11m) of work
against this total liability.

NCGM is valued by external valuer Jones Lang LaSalle LLP (JLL). There are a number of judgements and
assumptions applied by different parties involved in the valuation of the surplus land element, including gross
value of residental property, forecast construction costs, an estimate of the inflationary iImpact of costs over
the course of construction, profit margin and third party liability costs.

Further, the liability, which was recorded on initial recognition for the obligation to procure the new market,
has been recorded based on estimates as disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements.

Given the complexities of the medet, the significant judgements and estimates involved, which depend on both
internal and external inputs, many of which are interrelated, accounting for the NCGM site was considered to
be a key risk.

The Audit Committee report on page 67 discloses it as a significant financial matter.

How the scope of
our audit responded
to the risk

We involved cur real estate experts to review and challenge the assumptions used by the external valuer in their
valuation. In cur testing we:

Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the external valuer; and

Held a meeting attendsd vy senior members of cur core engagement team, our real estate experts, whe are
also Chartered Surveyors, and the external valuer. During this meeting, the valuation basis and assumptions
were challenged by our experts and the audit team by obtaining market evidence and testing supporting
documentation. Cur experts alsc performed sensitivity analysis around the key assumptions used by JLL

to illustrate how the property responds to changes in those assumptions. Cur experts reviewed the cost plan
and compared the estimates contained therein with the vaiuers appraisals.

Completeness of tax provisions

Risk description

As set out in the Group's key sources of estimation uncertainty on page 120, tax and its treatment is often an
integral part of transactions as the Group is a property group. Further details of the provision are disclosed in
note 5. The outcome of tax treatments are recognised by the Group to the extent the cutcome is reasonably
certain. Given significant judgements and estimates involved in calculation of the tax provision, we consider it
to be a key risk.

The Audit Cormmmittee report on page 67 discloses it as a significant financial matter.

How the scope of
our audit responded
to the risk

We tested the Group tax workings and considered the current and deferred tax implications of property
acquisitions, disposals and valuation movements which occurred during the year. We utilised our tax specialists
o appraise the likely outcome of uncertain tax pesitions, including reviewing any correspondeance with HMRC
and considered the adequacy of disclosures made in the annual report.
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Valuation of inventory

Risk description

How the scope of
our audit responded
to the risk

The Group's accounting policy on inventory is discicsed on page 115 and further details of inventory in note 12.
The Group's inventory balance of £228.7m (2015:; £183.7m) includes properties under construction {80%), land
under option (8%) and assets held for resale, which are being actively marketed (2%). The Greup have continued
to use their own internal appraisal monitoring process during the year to assess the net realisable value (NRY)

of those properties held within inventories through the preparation of appraisals for each site. The risk within

the valuation of inventory is that management site appraisals include a number of judgements that could be
manipulated. Appraisals include forecast revenue and costs that derive a profit margin over the development
and provide an indication of the recoverability of the inventory. We also considered sites that have been written
down in prior periods. Events that have occurred since the criginal write-down might otherwise prove the site

1o be recoverable at the pre-written down value,

Given the quantum of the inventories balance recorded by the Group in its financial statements, a misstatement
n this balance could have a material impact on the financial statements as a whole.

The Audit Commitiee report on page 86 discloses it as a significant financial matter.

We identified the various compenents of the Group’s inventories and have audited and challenged management’s
appraisal documentation for a representative sample of properties covering £2191.0m of the total Group balance
of £229.7m, mainly representing housebuilding sites under the St. Modwen Homes brand. For each site within
the sample of properties we obtained the internal documentation to suppaort the rationale for any transfers from
investment properties to inventory; obtained evidence supporting classfication as inventory; and challenged
whether the expected revenues in site appraisals have been updated to reflect the revenue seen on similar assets
in the inventory portfolic and tested the key cost assumptions within the appraisals to supporting evidence. Where

a site has been appraised by management over a period of time, we also sought to understand the changes to
assumptions over time. We also visited a sample of sites and held meetings with local management to support
the appropriateness of classification as at 30" November 2016.

In addition we have reviewed marketed sites and post year-end sales prices to assess whether stock held is
marketed below its valuation.

Property disposals and valuation of revenue recognition under IAS 11

Risk description

How the scope of
our audit responded
to the risk

ISA 240 (UK and Ireland) The auditor’s responsibility to consider fraud in an audit of financial staternents requires
auditors to consider which types of revenue transactions may give rise to risk of fraud. The standard requires

us to presume that there are risks of fraud in relation to revenue recognition and to conduct our audit testing
accordingly to address this risk.

Developrment revenue represents 79% of total revenue of the Group, including £150m of revenue from residential
projects. Consistent with our prior year assessment of the risk within revenue recognition in the Group, we have
identified a revenue risk tc the valuation of revenue recognised for properties under develcpment in accordance
with IAS11 Construction Cortracts and IFRIC Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate.
This is due primarily to the fact that judgement is required as to whether revenue can be recognised on a
contract basis. Judgement is also exercised in determining the costs to complete for each site and the stage
of completion at the balance sheet date. A key risk in relation 10 revenua recognition also arises from property
disposal transactions occurring near the year-end being recognised in the wrong year. The Group's accounting
policy on revenue is disclosed on page 117 and further revenue details in note 1.

We tested a sample of revenus recognised under IAS 11 during the year to ensure the Group poelicy is in line
with the accounting standards. We assessed whether the stage of completion at the balance sheet date was
reasonable by testing the sample of sites for the assessment of stage of completion to independent certification
whaere possible or 1o the Group’s best estimate and contractual terms, recalculating any profit recognised and
through our audit of inventories assessing the costs to complete for reascnableness.

With respect to St. Modwen Homes, for a sample of homes sold during the year, we have cbtained a copy of
the Council of Mortgage Lenders’ certificates in order to confirm that the properties were physically complete
prior to legal completion.

We have also considered all significant property transactions entered into near the year-end date 10 determine
whether the Group policy with regard to revenue and profit recognition has been adhered to.

Thase matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whale, and in forming our opinion thereon,
¢ and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
St. Modwen Properties PLC
contimed

. Our application of materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstaterment in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic decigions of a
! reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in
i svaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement. we determined materiality for the: financial statements as a whole as follows:

. Group materiality  £10.0m (2015 £9.0m)

Basis for We applied 1% 2015: 196} to the Group's fgregas-te-d equity fér determiini;g materiafity. We did not subseguerily
determining revisit our materiality, as the percentage is within the ncrmal range used for public entities in St. Modwen’s
materiality industry of between 1% and 2%. This percentage takes intc account cur knowledge of the Group. our

assessment of audit risks and the reporting requirements for the financial statements.

Rationale for the We have used the equity value as at 30" November 2016 as the benchmark for determining materiality, as this
benchmark applied benchmark is deemead o be a key driver of business value, is a critical component of the financial staterments
and is a focus for users of those financial staterments for property companies.

i We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £0.5m (2015: £0.18m) as

¢ well as differences below that thresheld that, in our view, warranted reporting on guafitative grounds. In the current year we increased the

i percentage applied to calculate the threshold based on market practice. We alsc report to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that
i we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our Group audit scope is consistent with our scope in the previous year. We carried out a full scope audit of the Group, to enable us to
i sign off an audit epinion under Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

i Qur audit scope is summarised as follows:

» For those entities subject to a statutory audit by Deloitte UK, we performed our audit procedures on these entities to a local statutory
materiality. The range for standalone materialities was from less than £1,000 to £29.0m {2015: less than £1,000 to £8.1m) for entities in
scope. There were no significant change in standalone materialities this year;

= For those entities where Delgitte UK are not the statutory auditors we performed our audit procedures to a component materiality
i of 50% of Group materiality levei for the purpose of our Group opinion,

Less than 1% of assets, revenue and profit before tax were not in our audit scope.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
i In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
» the part of the Directors’ remuneration repcrt to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006;

= the information given in the Strategic report and the Direciors’ report for the financial year for which the financial staternents are
i prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

= the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowiedge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not
: identified any material misstaternents in the Strategic report and the Dirsctors” report.
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i Matters on which we are required to report by exception

i Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records ' 7 We have nothing to report in
! respect of these matters.

Uinder the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our cpinion:
= we have not received all the information and explanations we requrre for our audit; or

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company. or returns adequate
for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us: or

= the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records
and refums.

Directors’ remuneration We have no_t}';ing to report
arising from these matters.

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures
of directors’ remuneration have not been made or the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to
be audited is not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

Corporate Governance Statement We_have nothing to report

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review part of the Corporate Governance arising from our review.

i Statement relating to the Cempany’s compliance with certain provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code.

We confirm that we have

not identified any such
inconsistencies or misleading
statements.

Our duty to read other informaii&n in fh; annual report

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), we are reguired o report to you if,
in our opinion, information i the annual report is:

= materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements; or

= apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of
the Group acquired in the coursa of performing our audit; or

= otherwise misleading.

In particular, we are required o consider whether we have identified any inconsistencies between
our knowledge acquired during the audit and the directors’ statement that they consider the
annual repart is fair, balanced and understandable and whether the annual report appropriately
discloses those matters that we communicated to the Audit Committee which we consider shouid
have been disclosed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

i As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities staternent, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial

! statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinien on the financial

¢ statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). We also comply with International
i Standard on Quality Control 1 (UK and Ireland). Cur audit methodology and tools aim to ensure that our quality control procedures are

¢ sffective, understood and applied. Qur quality controls and systems include our dedicated professional standards review team and

! independent partner reviews,

i This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Gompanies Act 2006.
¢ Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them
¢ in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
¢ other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinicns we have formed.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

{An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance

! that the financial staterments are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:

i whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and the Parent Company’s circumnstances and have been consistently

i applied and adequately disclosed: the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall

! presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to identify

! matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based

i on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowiedge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent
i material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

i Jonathan Dodworth (Senior statutory auditor)
¢ for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

i Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

i Birmingham, UK

i 6" February 2017
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- Group income statement
for the year ended 30" November 2016

2016 2015
: Noles Lm m
Revenue S 1 2877 2875
Nt rental income - S 1 405 a8
Development profits I 51.7 s
i Gaing on diéposals of investments/investment properties 1 9.5 B ﬁ 77
-Rfe_staem property revaluation gains 8 30.3 - 78 9_
Othernet income - 1 42 4.2
(iosiseg)/aogsgf ﬁnﬂ&ﬂe@ ;dzs;oaatés (post tax) - 10 (28..';} 106.8
Administrative expenses - - 3 (33. 6)_ (26.1)
Profit before interest and tax - - 75.0 255.0
Finance costs - - 4 (23 0} 25.2)
i Finance income - o 4 14.9 54
. Profit before tax I - 66.9 285.2
Taxaon - 5 (13.3) (7.9
! Profit for the year I 536 217.3
Attributable to: :
Owners of the_C_(Smpany - - _ 53.4 21(54_
N_on_co_ntroH\ng interests B - 0.2 o 05 ;
Profit for the year o ) 53.6 - o173
o o - 5016 2015
Noles Fence Pence i
‘Basic éarningswber share o o s} 241 - 97.9
Diluted earnings per share o - - -6 19.8 904
. Group statement of comprehensive income
. for the year ended 30" November 2016
- ) B - B o018 2015
Notes Em £m
Profit fortheyear o ) 53?5 217.3
_\te_msT that WI|| not be reclassified to profit and toss - i S
Pension fund actuarial Iosses B 18 7 (0.1} {01}
De-ferred tax thereon . - - 18 - -
Total comprehenswe income for the year . - - 53.577 217.2
Attributable to:
‘Owners of the Company ] B - 53.3 216.3
Non-controlling interests B 0.2 0.9
Total comprehensive income for the year _535 217?

1 1 0 8t. Modwen Properties PLC
Annual repert and financial statements 2016



- Group balance sheet
~asat 30t November 2016

2016 2012

Notes £m £m
Non-current assets - N - S
i Investment properties o 8 1,133.07 a 1,081.0
Operating_ property. plant;naé&&)rﬁeﬁ} R ) é ) 4.2 4.2
\nvestme;nts-injoint ventu;é; ar{d érlésiéciiétgéi - - 10 ) 184.8 227.3
Trade and Sther receivables 11 B 8.2 6.1
B 133.2 13186
Current assets - -
Inventories - 12 2293 - 7@
Trade and other receivables 11 115.5 - 1047
Cerivative financial instruments 16 16_ - o _OE
Cash and cash equivalents - _42 - _QE_
- 351.3 2940
Current liabilities o -
Trade and other payables - 1B (150.5) (146.6)
Derivative financial instruments - o 16 (8.8) {8.0)
Borroa-rgsja—na fi-r-wa-n-cé \éasg obligétioné - 14 (0.4) o ((5.4)
Curfent tax Iiébﬂitigs__ a 5 _(7])_ B 7(1171)7
o - (166.8) (166.1)
Non-current liabilities B o
Trade and cther payables - - 13 3.6 - (81)
“Borrowings and finance lease obligations .  (527.0) (506.5)
Deferred tax - 5 (22.0) (15.4)
o - (552.6) T B0
Net assets - i - 9624 - _%
Eap;lta| and“reserves - o
! Share capital - o 17 22.2 Y
Share premium account o - 1028 B 102.8
Retained egrnTngs - ) . 779.7 7393
Share incerﬁi\g reserve 7_ o 4.9 o 52
Own shares o  (0.6) (1.0)
i Other reserves o o 46.2 482
Equity attributab}eit'oﬁoﬁn'ers of_th_e Company _: i o 955.é 7 914.7
Non—con;o-\%g;interest - 7 6.9 6.8
Total equity N 962.1 921.5

Total equity

These financial statemeants were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 8" February 2017.

Rob Hudson
Group Finance Director

. Mark Allan
i Chief Executive

Company Number: 00349207
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- Group statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30" November 2016

Equrty
attriutabyle
Shiare Shiare 10 owners Nen-
Share  premum  Betancd  ncentive Ciher of the  controling Tota
capial account eamings rescrve reserves  Company IMtercsts equity
£m T £m £m om em m Zm
i Equity at 30" Novernber 2014 221 102.8 544.0 4.8 (1.8  46.2 7181 5.8 7240
i Profit for the year alt_r_igutable to shareholders - - 2164 - - 2164 0.8 2173
”Pension fund actu;;ﬂa“ossgs (ﬁote 178) 77777 - - {01 - - (0.1} - (o1
Icga\icomprehensive inceme for the year - - 216.3 - - 218.3 0.8 217.2
: Equity is_sue (m_ote 17} _0.1 - - - - - -
‘Share-based payments . - - (8.6) 0.4 - (8.2) - (8.2
Share transfers - - {0.9) - - - - -
Adjustment arising from change in
i non-controlling interest - - - 0.4 - - (0.4 - 0.4
Dividends pald (ncte 7) - - (11.9) - - (111 - {111
Equity at_30_f“ November 2015 22.2 1028 7393 75.2 (1.0) 46.2 914.7 68 9215
i Profit for the year attributable
i to shareholders - - 534 - - 534 02 536
Pension fund actuarial losses (note 18) - - (0.1) - - _(O._'I) - (0.1)
i Total comprehensive income for the year - - 53.3 - - 53.3 0.2 53.5
. Share-based payments - - - - 18 - 1.6 - 16
Defetred tax on share-based payments - - - (g - {0.8) - (0.8)
Settlement of share-based payments - - !0.1) B _{E) - {0.8) - (0.8) :
Divideng§ pai_&_:_l (note 7) - = 12.8) - - 7(1?.8_) (o (12.9)
Equity at 30*" November 2016 22.2 1028 779.7 4.9 46.2 955.2 69 9621

Own shares reprasent the cost of 269,334 (2015: 890,274) shares held by The St. Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust.
i The open market value of the shares held at 30" Novemnber 2016 was £754,135 (2015: £2,085,435).

The other reserves comprise a capital redemption reserve of £0.3m (2015: £0.3m) and the balance of net proceads in excess of the nominal

! value of shares arising from an eguity placing in 2013 of £45.9m (20151 £245.9m).
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- Group cash flow statement
for the year ended 30" November 2016

i - 2016 o oos
Notes om e

: Operating activities -

Proﬂﬁaefore interest and tax 75.0 255.0
Gains on disposal of investme;‘nts/ in\;esjrﬁeim properties o (9.5) (11.7)
Share of losses/(profits) of joint ventures and associates (post-tax w0 28.2 (106.8)
Investrment property revaluation gaing - S a8 - (30.3) {73.9)
Depreciation - '9 0.7 0.8

Impairment losses on inventories 2 0.3 - 14

ncrease innventories (31.2) B (;19.0)
Increase in trade and other receivables B (14.3) (2’)279)7

: Ee;s-adgc-éés_eﬁw trade and other payables - - 4.3 8.3

Share options and share awards B o - (7.8)

| Tax paid - 5 (10.7) ©.4)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities - 12.5 (A2.6)

in;es_tlrﬁ activities - -

Proceeds from investment property disposals o o 64.3 - ; - éﬁl:ﬂf

Investment property addiions N o (90.0) (180.5)
nterest received o S 4 54 39

Acquisition of subsid@r;unidertaking_ B - o - 0.2)
"Property, plant and equipment additions S (0.6) ©6)
Dividen'dsvreceived from joint ventures and associates o S 14.3 a 6.7_
Net cash outflow from investing activities o o (6.6) 883

i Financing activities - -

: Dividends paid - 7 (129 (11.1)
Dividends paﬁt(; non-coniro-llThg interests - - oy -
imérest péid_ ] B (72077) (18.0)
Amounts advanced under finance lease arrangefﬁe?wts B 0.6 325

¢ Net borrowings drawn o - - 160.5 190.9

Repayment of borrovan(jé 7 o o {134.0) 77(858)7
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities o (6.5) 105

. (Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents o (0.6) 16

Cash and cash eguivalents at start 61‘ y-éar ~ B - 4.8 32
Cash and cash_équivéléﬁts at end of year n 4.2 B 4.8
Cash 4.2 4.8
éank overdrafts B o o - .
éagﬁ_and cash equivalents at erﬁ df yearﬁ o - 4.2 4.8
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- Group accounting policies
for the year ended 30" November 2016

Basis of preparation

The Group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued
i by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and as adopted by the EU as they apply to the Group for the year ended
: 30" Novernber 2016, applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companiss Act 2006.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the revaluation of certain properties, dervative financial
¢ instruments, convertible bonds and the defined benefit section of the Group's pension scheme.

In the current year the Group has adopted:

« Amendments t0 IAS 18 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

s Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate financial statemerits

» Amendments to IFRSs Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle

v Amendments to IFRSs Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle

The adopticn of the above amendments has had no material impact on the Group's financial statements.

The Company’s functional currency (together with that of all of its subsidiaries} and the presentation currency for the Group is pounds
i sterling and its principal IFRS accounting policies are set out below.

. Basis of consolidation

i The Group's financial statements consolidate the financial statements of St. Modwen Proparties PLC and the entities it controls. Gontrol
i comprises exposure, or nghts, to variable returns, the power to direct the relevant activities of the investee and the ability to use its power
i over the investee to affect the returns. This is achieved through direct or indirsct ownership of voting rights or by contractual agreement.

i Alist of the entities controlled is given in note D to the Company financial statements.

All entities are consobdated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consclidated until the date that such
I control ceases. Al intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expense are eiminated on consolidation.

Non-controling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets that are not held by the Group and are presented separately
i within equity in the Group balance sheet,

Interests in joint arrangements

i Amrangements under which the Group has contractually agreed to share control with ancther party or parties are assessed tc determine

i whether they represent joint ventures or joint operations. Joint arrangements are classified as joint ventures where the parties have rights

i to the net assets of the arrangement. Should the parties have rights to assets and obligations for liakilities relating to the arrangement they
i wolld instead be classified as joint operations. Currently, all arrangements where the Group has contractually agreed to share control have
i been determined 1o be joint ventures.

The Group recognises its interests in joint ventures using the equity methed of accounting. Under the equity method, the interest in the joint
i venture is carried in the Group balance shest at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of its net assets, less distributions

! received and less any impairment in the value of individual investrments. The Group income staternent reflects the Group's share of the joint
venture's results after interest and tax.

Financial statements of joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting peried as the Group. Where necessary, adjustments are made
i to bring the accounting policies used into line with thoese of the Group.

The Group statement of comprehensive income reflects the Group's share of any income and expense recognised by the joint venture
: entities outside the Group income staterment.

. Interests in associates

The Group's interests in its associates, being those entities over which it has significant influence and which are neither subsidiaries nor joint
i arrangements, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, as described above.

. Business combinations

i The acquisition methed of accounting is used to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a

i subsidiary comprises the fair vaiues of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners and the equity interests issued by
! the Group. The consideration transfered also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration arrangement and is adjusted to reflect
i the fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurrad. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilties assumed in a business
¢ combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition cate.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controling interest in the acqguiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acguiree’s net identifiable assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred {adjusted to reflect the fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary) and

i the amount of any non-controlling irterest in the acguiree over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets acquired
i is recorded as goodwill, If those amourts ara less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary and the
measurement of all amounts has been reviewed, the difference is recognised directly in the Group income statement as a release of

! negative goodwill to income.
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i Where settlemment of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value as
i atthe date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, which 1s the rate that a similar borrowing could
! be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified ether as eqguity cr a financiat liabilty. Amounts classified as & financial fiability are subsequently
i remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Group iIncome statement.

Properties

Investment properties

Investment properties, being freehold and leasshold properties held to earm rental income, for capital appreciation and/or for undetermined
i future use, together with land options where the land is for an undetermined future uss, are carrisd at fair value following initial recognition

i at the present value of the consideration payable. To establish fair value, investment properties are indapendently valued on the basis of

! market value. Any surplus or deficit arising is recognised in the Group income statement for the year.

Once classified as an investment property, a property remains in this category until development with a view 1o sale commences, at which
i point ths assetis transferred to inventories at current valuation.

Where an investment property is being redeveloped for continued use as an investment property, the property remaing within investment
I property and any movernent in valuation is recognised in the Group income statement.

Investment property disposals are recognised on completion. Profits and losses arising are recognised through the Group income statement
i and the profit or loss on disposal is determined as the difference between the sales procesds and the carrying amount of the asset.

Investrment properties are not depreciated.

! Inventories

Inventories principally comprise properties previcusly developed and held for sale, properties under construction with a view to sale and
i land under option with a view to future sale. All inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises land, direct materials and, where applicable, direct lalbour costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventonies to their

i present location and condition. When inventory includes a transfer from investrment properties, cost is recorded as the book value at the

i date of transfer. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred to completion and
i diisposal, Inventory is transferred to investment properties enly when the asset meets the defintion of an investment property and there has
! been a change In use evidenced by commencement of an operating lease.

i Due to the scale of the Group's developments, the Group has to allocate site-wide deveiopment costs between properties on the site.
i Such site-wide costs are allocated to properties based on the forecast value of each individual unit as a proportion of the aggregate forecast
i value of the individual units on the site. In making these assessments, there is a degree of inherent uncertainty.

The Group has developed intemal controls to assess and review carrying values and the appropriateness of estimates made.

Operating property, plant and equipment

Operating property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumudated impairment losses. Such cost
i includes costs directly attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended.

i Depreciation is proviced on all operating property, plant and ecuipment &t rates calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value
i of each asset evenly over its expected useful life as follows:

» leasehold operating properties — over the shorter of the lease term and 25 years; and

= plant, machinery and equipment - over two to five years.

Leases

The Group as lessee

! Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
i lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

¢ Non-property asssts held under finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease with a corresponding liability being recognised for
i the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportionad betweaen

i the reduction of the lease liability and finance charges in the Group income statement so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the

i remaining balance of the liabiity. Non-property assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life
i of the asset and the lease term.

Interests in leasehold investment properties are accounted for as finance leases with the value of guaranteed minimum rents inherent within
: the carrying value of the property and the liakility reflected within long-term liabilities. On payment of a guaranteed rent, initially the majority
i of such costs is charged to the Group income statement as interest payable, with the balancea reducing the liability.

Rentals payable undsr operating leases are charged in the Group income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Group accounting policies
for the year ended 30" November 2016
continued

: The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases, adjusted for the impact of any cash incentives given to the lesses and to reflect any rent-free incentive
i periods, is recognised in the Group income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

. Income taxes

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recoverad from, or paid tc, the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

The tax currantly payaible is based on the taxable result for the year. The taxable resutt differs from the result as reported in the Group
i income statement because it excludes items of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes iterns
i that will not be taxable or deductible.

Deferred income tax is recognised on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
i amounts in the financial statements, using the rates of tax expected to apply based on legislation enacted or substantively snacted at the
i balance sheet date. with the following exceptions:

» in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, jcint ventures and asscciates, where the timing
i of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future; and

» deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
I deductible temporary differences, carried forward tax credits or tax losses can be utilised.

! Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the

i related asset is redlised or fability is settled, based on tax rates and laws substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax

i assets and labilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets agalnst current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the sarme authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equny or other comprehensive income if it refates to items that are credited or charged to equny
i or other comprehensive income. Ctherwise, income tax s recognised in the Group income statement. :

: Asaproperty group, tax and its treatment is often an integral part of transactions. The outcome of tax treatments, including tax planning,

i are recognised by the Group to the extent that the outcome is reasonably certain. Where tax treatments have been challenged by HMRC,
: or management believe that there is a risk of stich challenge, provision is made for the best estimate of potential exposure based on the
information available at the balance sheet date where such exposure is considered more likely than not to occur.

. Pensions

The Group operates a pension scheme with both defined benefit and defined contribution sections. The defined benefit section is closed
i to new members and, from 1% September 2009, to future accrual.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined beneft section is determined using the projected unit credit method, which attributes

i entitlerent to benefits to the current period {te determine current service cost) and to the current and prior periods (to determine the

i presert value of defined benefit obligation) and is based on actuarial advice. Past service costs are recognised in the income statement
i on the earlier of;

= the date on which the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; or
= when the Company recognises related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

Net interest is calculated by applying a discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset and is recegnised in the Group income
i statement as finance costs.

i Actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the assel ceiing {f applicable) and the return on scheme assets {excluding interest) are recognised
L full in the Group statement of comprehensive inceme in the year in which they occur. The defined benefit pension asset or fiability in the
! Group balance sheet comprisas the present value of the defined benefit cbligation, less the fair value of plan asssts cut of which the

! obligations are to be settled directly.

When & pension assst (net surplus) arises from the above calculation, it is limited to the present value of any economic benefits that wil
i be avalabie to the Company in accordance with the requirernents of IFRIC 14.

Contributions to defined contribution schemes are recognised in the Group income statement in the year in which they become payable.

. Own shares

Shares in St. Modwen Properties PLC held by the Group are classified as a deduction from equity attributable to owners of the Company
i and are recognised at cost.

. Dividends

Dividends declared and approved after the balance shaet date are not recegnised as liabilities at the balance sheet date.
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i Revenue recognition

! Revenue s recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will fliow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably
i measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received (including the fair value of any residential properties

i received in part-exchange), excluding discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales taxes or duty. Where required, revenue is allocated

! between components in a multi-element transaction {e.g. where there is simultanecusly a sale of land and a construction contract

! with the purchaser of the land) based on therr respective fair values of the components.

i The following criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

! Sale of property
Revenue arising from the sale of property is recognised on legal completion of the sale.

Construction contracts

Revenue arising from construction contracts is recognised in accerdance with the Group's accounting policy on construction contracts
i {see below). An appropriate proportion of revenue from construction contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
: contract activity.

! Rental income

¢ Rental income arising from investment groperties is accounted for on a straight-line Hasis over the lease term.

Management and performance fees

Where the Group is solely providing development management services (without being responsible for the performance of the undertying
i construction), management fees receivable are recognised over time as the service is performed in the period to which they relate.

i Performance fees are recognised when the Group has substantially fulfiled its cbligations in respect of the transaction and hence the

i amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group.

: Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial agset to that asset’s net carrying amaount.

: Dividend income
Dividend income from joint venturas is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

i Construction contracts

i Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of

i completion of the contract activity at the balance sheset date, The extent to which the contract is complete is determined by the total costs
! incurred to date as a percentage of the total anticipated costs of the entire contract. Varialions in contract work, claims and incentive

i payments are included to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue,

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated rellably, contract revenue is recognised only 1o the extent of contract
i costs incurred where it is probable they will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
i incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Government grants

Govemment grants relating to property are treated as deferred income and released 1o profit or loss over the expected useiul life of the
; assets concemed.

Share-based payments

Share-based payments to employees are equity-settled and are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date,
i using an appropriate option pricing model. The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
i period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest.

| Fair value hierarchy

Assets and liabilities that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, are required to be grouped into Levels 1 10 3 based
i on the degree to which the fair value is cbservalle.

= Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets.

= Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
i for the asset, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices); and

! » Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation technigues that include inputs for the asset that are not based on
observable market data {uncbservable inputs).
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Group accounting policies
for the year ended 30" November 2016
continued

Financial instruments

i Financial assets and financial labilties are recognised on the Group balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual

! provisions of the instrument. The Group derecognises a financial asset onfy when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset

¢ axpire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset 1o another entity.

i If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
i the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an asscaiated liabllity for any amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains

¢ substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of & transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset

¢ and also recognises a colateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when.
the Group's cbligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised and carried at the lower of their original invoiced value or recoverable amaount. Provision is made when
i there is evidence that the Group will not be able to recover balances in full. Balances are written off when the probability of recovery is

i assessed as being remote.

: Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances and short-term deposits with banks with initial maturity less than three months.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recorded at amortised cost. Where payment is on deferred terms the liability 1s initially recorded by discounting
i the nominal amount pavable to net present valus, The discount to nominal value is amortised over the period of the deferred amangement i
i and charged to finance costs.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. After intial recognition, loans and
! borrowings are measured at amortised cost.

Gains and losses arising on the repurchase, settlement or ctherwise cancellation of liabllities are recognised in finance income or finance
i expense, as appropriate.
i The effective interest rate method is used to charge interest to the Group income statement.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge its risks associated with interest rate fluctuations.

i Such instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
i fair value. The Group has determined that the derivative financial instruments in use do not qualify for hedge accounting and, conseguently,
any gaing or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken to the Group income statement.

Equity instruments

An aquity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the asssts of the Group after deducting aif its fiabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received less direct issue costs.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds are assessed on issue as to whether they should be classified as a financial liability, as equity or as a compound financial
i instrument with both debt and ecuity components. This assessment is based on the terms cf the bond and in accordance with 1AS 32
! Financial Instruments: Presentation. The Group's convertinle bonds have been designated as at fair value through profit and loss.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

i In the application of the Group's accounting pelicies outlined above, the directors are reguired to make judgements relating to the carrying

i amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
i involving estimations {which are dealt with separately below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
i policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

i Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concemn basis, This is discussed in the Strategic report and as confirmed in the
¢ Directors’ report it is considered appropriate to prepare the financial statemeants for the vear ended 30™ Novemnber 2016 on & going concem
basis, Further detail is contained in the viability statement included in the Strategic report on page 52.

Valuation of investment properties

The Group adopts the valuation performed by its independent valuers as the fair value of its investment properties, following review by
¢ management. The valuation is performed according to RICS rules, using appropriate levels of professicnal judgerment for the prevailing
: market conditions. Professional judgement is applied in determining such things as an appropriate yield for a given property, estimated
: rental values and the appropriateness of remediation expenditure and costs to complete,
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i Complex transactions

Certain property transactions entered intc by the Group involve an element of complexity and the need to exercise judgement to determing
: the most appropriate accounting policy. Such transactions include the accounting for the right to secure the interest in the surplus land at

¢ New Covent Garden Market togethar with the associated obligation to procure the new market for the Covent Garden Market Authority

i {further details of which are set out below].

- New Covent Garden Market

¢ The contractual arrangement between VSM (NCGM) Lid (the group’s 50:50 joint venture with VINCI in respect of New Covent Garden

i Market) and the Covent Garden Market Authority (OGMA) involvas VSM (NCGM) Ltd committing to procure a new market for the CGMA

i andin return receiving an option to acquire the surplus land on the site. In substance the arrangemeant represents a barter of development
i and constructicn services for the interest in the land.

i In determining the most appropriate accounting policy for the arrangement, consideration was given as 1o whether to account for

i the transaction as the acguisition of an interest in the surplus land for non-cash consideration or to account for the development as a

i construction contract under IAS 11 Construction Contracts, with the consideration taking the form of the non-cash interest in the surplus
i land. It was concluded that the former more faithfully and fairly represented the substance of the arrangement, reflecting that the key

i strategic rationale for entering intc the transaction was to secure the interest in the surplus land and then to unlock its significant value,

! rather than to secure construction activity in building a new market.

¢ Judgement was also applied in determining the appropriate classification for the interest in the surplus land, which legally takes the form

i of an option. Given the intention to take physical defivery of the land and that, at the point of inftial recognition, it had not been determined
i whether to hold the surplus land for capital appreciation or to sefl it en to a third party, the surplus fand interest was judged to meet the

i definition of an investment property under |1AS 40 Investment Properties, and hence has been accounted for in this way (rather than as

i afinancial asset or as inventory).

¢ Subseqguent to initiat recognition of the interest in the land as investrment property and the recognition of the liabiity to procure the new

i market faciities, judgement was also applied in determining whether there should be any on-going interaction between the two balances
i —for example, whethar any subsequent adjustment to the estimate of the liability should be accounted for as an adjustment to the original
¢ investrent property purchase price (which ultimately would give rise to an investment property revaluation gain or loss) or 2s a separate

i provision remeasurement gain or loss in the income statement, As, going forward, the two balances operate antirely independently of

i each other, it was determined that thay should also be accounted for separately in accordance with the requirements of their respective

i applicable accounting standards.

Consaguently, remeasurerents of both the investment property valuation and provision liability are recognised, separately, in VSM INCGMY's
i income statement in accordance with the requirements of 1AS 40 investment FProperty and |1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

i Corttingent Assets respectively. Remeasurements of both the investment property valuation and provision liability are reflected togsther

i as component parts of the ‘profits/losses of joint ventures and associates (post-tax)' ine within the group iIncome statement.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

! in the application of the Group's accounting policies outlined above, the directors are required to make estimates and assumptions about
i the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
i are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant and so actual results may differ from these

! estimates. The estimates and underlying assurnptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis and revisions to accounting estimates are

i recognised in the period in which the estimate is revisad if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future

i periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The key assurmnptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting period that may have a
i significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amcunts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
! below,

Net realisable value of inventories

i The Group has ongoing procedures for assessing the camying value of inventories and identifying where this is in excess of net realisable

i value. The estimates and judgements for both revenue and costs were based on information available at, and pertaining to, 30" November
{2016, Any subsequent adverse changes in market conditions may result in additional provisions being required, although it would require

i afallin average house prices in excess of 10% before any additional net realisabble value provisions would be required on residential

i development land.
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Group accounting policies
for the year ended 30™ November 2016
continued

Taxation

: As a property group, tax and its treatment is often an integral part of transactions. The outcome of tax treatments are recognised by the
: Group to the extent the outcome is reascnably certain. Where tax treatments have been challenged by HMRC, or management believe
: that there is a risk of such challenge, provision is made for the best estimate of potential exposure based on the information avallable at

: the balance sheet date. Management's assessment of the level of provision required is, where applicable, supported by the Group’s tax
: advisors. If HMRC were to be successful in challenging tax treatments to a greater extent than has been provided at the balance shest

i date then additional provisions may be reguired.

: The tax currently payable is based on the taxable result for the year. The taxable result differs from the result as reported in the Group

i income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other vears and it further excludes

i iterns that wili not be taxable or deductible. In paricular, 83 a property group. the effective tax rate for the year reflects the benefit of

i certain investment gains not being taxable because of indexation, capital allowances, iand remediation and other reliefs on certain property
i expanditure, the utilisation of capital tax losses brought forward and the property ownership structure of the Group. The effect of these

i adiustments have to be estimated at the balance sheet date, based on historical corporation tax computations and the expected outcome
i fremn the preparation of the tax computations for the current year. in consultation with the Group's tax advisors.

Standards and interpretations not yet effective

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following standards, amendments and interpretations which have not been
i adopted in these financial statements were in issus but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EL):

. = IFRS @ Financial Instruments

» [FRS 14 Reguiatory Deferral Accounts

= [FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

| = IFRS 16 Leases

» Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

= Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Saie or Contribution of Assets batween an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
= Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consofidation Exception

» Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of interests in Joint Operations

= Amendments 10 1AS 1 and 1AS 7 Disclosure Initiative

» Amendmenits to |1AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

= Amendrments o 1AS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
» Amendments to I1AS 18 and 1AS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

= Amendments to IFRSs Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

The directors are still assessing the impact that the adoption of these standards, amendments and interpretations will have on the financial
i statements of the Group in future periods. Adoption of the majority of these standards, amendments and interpretations are expected to
have littls or no impact on the reported rasults of the Group, atthough amended disclesures may be required.

IFRS 9 will impact both the measurerment and disclosures of financial instruments and is effective for the Group's year ending
i 30" Novernber 2019. The Group has not yet completed its evaluation of the effect of the adoption.

IFRS 15 may have an impact on revenue recognition and relatad disclosres and is effective for the Group’s year ending 30™ Novermber
2019, Beyond the information above, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until a detailed review
i has been completed.

¢ IFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabiities for all leases unless the lease term
i is 12 months or less or the undertying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16's

i approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17. The Group has not yet completed its evaluation of
: the effect of the adoption and this standard is not effective until the Group’s year ending 30" Novernber 2020.
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- Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016

1. Segmental information

. a. Reportable segments

i IFRS 8 Operating Segmenits requires the identification of the Group's operating segments, defined as being discrete components of the
! Group’s operations whose results are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (being the Chief Executive) to allocate
resources to those segments and to assess their performance. The Group divides its business into the following segments:

= residential development, being housebuilding activity through St. Modwen Homes and the Persimmon joint venture; and

« the balance of the Group's portfolic of properties which the Group manages internally, and reports, as a single business segment.

The accounting palicies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.

i b. Segment revenues and results

2015 20y

FResidential Residential
Porticlo development Total Portfolo developrment 1otal
2 e o m £ £m
Rental income 53.1 - 5341 41.2 - M2
Development 77.8 150.0 N 227.8 8984 140,5 238.9
Other income 6.8 - 6.8 74 - 7.4
Revenue 137.7 150.0 287.7 147.0 140.5 2875

All revenues in the table above are derived from continuing operations exclusively in the UK.
The Group's total revenue for 2016 was £302.5m (2015: £300.8m) and in addition to the amounts above included service charge income

of £9.4m (2015: £9.4m), for which there was an eguivalent expense and interest income of £5.4m (2015: £3.9m).

2016 2015
Residential o o Residential
Portfolic development” Total Paortfolo development”’ Tedal
£m rm em £m £m £m
Net rental income 405 - 40.5 32.8 - 32.8
Development profits o _20.1 3TG 51.7 228 B 001 F
Gains on disposal of investrments/ S '
investment properties 9.5 - 9.5 n.r - 1.7
--I-rlvesfriﬂént property revaluation gains 30.3 - 30.3 73.9 - 738
Other net income - o 4.2 - 4.2 _1-.2 o - 42
{Losses)/profits of joint ventureg B N
and associates™ (18.4) - (18.4} 125.6 125.6
Administrative expenses (28.5) (4.5) (33.0) Ce3n @4 (26.1)
© Allocation of administrativgéxpenéés 5.2 (5.2) - o 2.8 (2.8) -
Finance costs® (19.2) - (19.2) (15.9) (2.0 (471
i Finance income”-r 5.4 B - 54 39 - - 3.8
| Attributabie profit 491 21.9 710 2387 219 2606
! Other losses of joint ventures
and associates™ (9.8) o (_18ﬂ
Other finance costs” N (3.8} {8.1)
: 7%&* finénce income™ . o 95 n : ii —TS_
Profit before tax - o 66.9 2352

113 Inthe Strateqic report, housetulding profit of £27.1m 2015 £26.7m 1s stated before the allocation of admmistralive expenses and inance costs of £5.2m {2015: €4.8m).

I 12 Stated before mark-to-market of denvatives, amertisation of loan arrangement fees, other non-cash iterns and tax of T9.8m 2015: D18 .8m). These amounts are reclassified

to athar loases of jont ventures and associates.

{3} Stated before mark to-market of derivatives, amortisation of loan arrangemant fees and other non-cash fems of £3.8m 2015: E8.Am). These amounts are reclassified

to other finance costs,

14) Stated before mark-to market of dervatives and other non-cash itemns of £9.5m (2015, £1.5m). These armounts are reclassified to other finance income.

5t. Modwen Properties PLC
Annual report and financial staternents 2016

121

podad pionzig

AoURLLBAOE apzodioD

LOTELICIU [BUCHIPDRY  SIURWSIe)S [B1DUBU)Y



Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016
corinued

. 1. Segmental information continued
Other net income of £4.2m (2015 £4.2m) comprises revenue of £6.8m (2015: £7.4m) less associated costs of £2.6m {2015: £3.2m).

Cost of sales in respect of rental income compnse direct operating éxpenses (including repairs and mantenance) related to the investrment
i property portfolio and total £12.6m (2015: £28,4m), of which £0.3m (2015: £0.6m} is in respect of properties that did not generate any
i rental income.

Curing the year the following amounts were recognised (@s part of development revenue and cost of sales) in respect of construction contracts:

2016 p015
Lm &m i
Revenue o 275 g7
Cost of sales (21.5) ” (75.2)_
Gross profit 6.0 o 72.5

Armounts recoverable on contracts as disclosed in note 11 comprise £12.1m (2015: £23.5m) of contract revenue recognised and £3.2m
¢ (2015: £7.8m) of retentions,

Contracts in progress at 30" November 20186 include the aggregate amount of costs incurred £17.2m (2015: £134.3m), recognised profits
i less recognised losses to date £8.6m (2015: £35.5m) and advances received £25.6m (2015: £27.4m).

There were amounts due to customers of £nil (2015: €nif) included in trade and other pavailes in respect of contracts in progress at the
i balance shest date.

¢. Segment assets and liabilities

2015 T

Homder%f?rir - i “Res;d-;ntial_ S

Portfolic development Total Portfalio development Total

£m em £m £m £ £m

Investment property 14330 - 1,133.0 10810 - 10810

Iventories 103.5 126.2 2297 84.2 995 183.7
|H\%st%éntginjcgr1t ventures and associates 184.8 - 184.8 2273 - 2273 1§
Attributable assets 1,421.3 126.2 1,5475 13925 995 14920

Operating property, plant and equipment 4.2 4.2

Trade and other receivable-s_- - 124.0 S _@?:

Cash and cash equivaents a2 48

Trade and other payables - (154.1) (149.7)
Derivative fina-gial-in_strur-ﬁents - S {7.2) 72y i
Borrowings and finance lease obligatio-n_s- o (527.4) o __— _(5_0@)
Taxpayable @y (111
Deferred tax - (22.0) (154) i
Net assets - . 962.1 o 9215

2. Non-statutory information

i The purpose of this note is to explain, analyse and reconcile a number of non-statutory financial performance and financial position

i metrics, which are used extensively by the Group to monitor its performance. These metrics reflect the way in which the Group is run

i and in particular that the Group revews and reports performance of s joint ventures and associates in the same way as it would if they

i were subsidiaries, meaning that proportionally consolidated (see-through) measures are particularly relevant whilst also having the benefit
i of removing the taxation effects on equity accounted entities frem the statutory profit before tax figure. A number of these measures are

i explained below:

i Profit before all tax (note 2a): This proportionally consolidated measure adjusts profit before tax to remove taxation on joint venture and

i associate profits from the profit before tax figure and as such, Group profit before tax of £66.9m (2015: £235.2m) can be reconcled to profit
i before all tax of £60.8m (2015: £258.4m) by adjusting profit before tax for the tax credit relating 1o joint ventures and associates of £6.1m

i (2015: charge of £23.2m).

i Trading profit (note 2a): Trading profit 1s derived similarly to profit bafore all tax, but is stated before the principal non-cash income

i statement items included in this measure, being revaluation gains and non-cash financing charges. For a property company with a low
! depreciation charge and no amertisation, this therefore represents a more useful measure than the EBITDA alternative perfermance

i measure used by many other companies.
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i Property profits (note 2a): This measure represents propertionally consclidated development profits plus proportionally consolidated gains
i on disposals of investment properties and therefore, like profit before all tax, ostensibly represents the proportionally consolidated amounts
i in respect of these two income statement lines, after a (historically de minimis) adiustrment for net realisable value provisions,

i EPRA NAV per share (note 2g): Whilst it 1s a non-GAAP measure, EPRA NAV is a standard real estats measure. Its objective is to highlight
i the fair value of net assets on an ongoing, long-term basis. Assets and liabilities that are not expected to crystallise in normal circumstances
¢ such as the fair value of derivative financial instruments and deferred taxes on property valuation surpluses are therefore excluded, which

: faciitates a more chbjective comparison with peer companies.

Total accounting retum (note 2g): Our shareholders measure their returns in terms of both the Group’s growth and the dividend return.

¢ Total accounting return combines these two ttems by adding EPRA NAV per share (defined above) to the annual dividend paid per share

¢ and measuring this against opening EPRA NAV per share. Whilst this is often measured by Total Shareholder Retum which combines share
¢ price growth and dividend return, in the real estate sector. it is alse insightful to consider net asset growth, which therefore directly reflects

i the most recent valuation of assets.

a. Trading profit and profit before all tax

20158 2015
- o ) Jaint véntures o N Joint ventures o
(Jrr;; 5)1 and ass;ociag;ﬁ I%t:‘\ Grorgg and assocuaggri 1(;};\\
. Netrentalincome 405 5.4 459 328 59 387
. Deveiopment profit™ 52,0 - 52,0 531 - 531
Gains on disposal of investments/ -
investment properties 9.5 0.5 10.0 1.7 26 14.3
Other income a2 - 42 4.2 - 42
Administrative expenses o (50) (0.8} (33.9) (26.1) 0.4 (26.5)
Finance costs” (19.2) 9.2) (28.4) (71) 83 (254
Finance income** 54 08 6.2 39 ) 1.0 4.9
Trading profit 50.4 3.3) 56.1 62.5 0.8 63.3
Investment property revaluation ) o o B -
gainsflcsses)™ 30.0 (25.9) 441 725 129.2 2017
Other net finance costs”™ (3.8) (5.8) YY) 06) 67)
i Other finance income™ 7 95 07 102 15 06 21
. Profit/lloss) beforealltax Y (34.3) 60.8 128.4 1800 2584
| Taxaton (13.3) 6.1 (7.2) 179 (23.2) @11)
Profit/{loss) for the year 81.8 @8.2) 536 10.5 106.8 2173
Effective tax rate 14.0% 17.8% 11.8% 13.9% 17.8% 15.9%

{1} Stated betore the deduction of net realisable valuation provisions within the Group of £0.3m {2015: £1.4m) and for jont ventures and associates of Snil (2015: Crul).
1hese tems are reclassified 1o investrment property revaluation gamns.

12 Stated before mark-to-market of derivatives. amortisation of loan arrangement fees and other non cash tems within the Group of $23.8m 2015: C81my) and for joint venlures
and associates of €5 8m 2015 £0.6mI. These items are reclassified] to other finance costs.

13) Stated before mark 1o market of dervatives and other non-cash items within the Group of £9.5m (2015: £1 bm) and for joint ventures and associates of £0.7m (2015 £0.8m).
These iterns are reclassified 1o other inance Nncome.

b. Property valuations

The split of property valuations gains and iosses between added value and market movements, including the Group’s share of joint ventures
¢ and associates, is based on analysis of the total property valuation movements provided by the Group's external valuers as set out below:

2016 2015
Joint ventures - Joint ventures

Group and associates Total (3roup and associates Total

&m j m m £m tm

i Property revaluation gainé}(losses) 30.3 (25.9) 7;1.4 739 129.2 2031
| Net realisable value provisions 03) - (03) (14 - (14)

Property valuation gains/{losses) 30.0 (25.9) a1 725 129.2 2017

i Addedvalue 275 0.8 28.3 377 1283 1880

Market movements o o 2; ' (26.?) L (24.2} B ﬁ 0.9 357

Property valuation gains/{losses) 30.0 (25.9} 4.1 725 129.2 2017
g:‘;nﬂ:\) m‘;ﬂ Zrl;g?ﬁgig;g%;emems 2018 1 23
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016
continued

. 2. Non-statutory information continued

. c¢. Balance sheet

The balance sheet, Including the Group's share of joint ventures and associates, is derived from the Group balance sheet as follows:

20 1(, ZO“O
Jomt metum% ‘cmt ventures
Group and associales Tatal Group and associEtes Tetal
) o U om orm £ &m m :
Property portfolio o _ 1,370.5 381.8 1,752.3 1,272.7 418 9 ) 1,691.8
Other assets - - 126.2 7 44.4 170.6 1126 48 9 L 156.5
! Gross assets o - 1,496.7 426.2 1,922.9 1,385.3 462 8 1, 8481
Net borrowings L o (470.0) {47.0) {517.0) {442.9) (46 4) 489 3)
5 Fmance leases L {56.8) (0.9) (57.7) (55.1) ( 2) (56 3
"Other liabilities {192.6) (193.5}) (386.1) (193 1) 187 9) ] (381.0)
Gross I_|_ab|I|t|es_____ (719.4) (241.4) {960.8) B91.1) (285 5) (926 6)
Net assets 7773 184.8 962.1 694 2 227 3 - 9215
Non controlling interest 6.9 - {6.9) _ (6 8} 3 - (6.8)
Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 7704 184.8 955.2 6874 227.3 9147
d. Property portfolio
The property portfolio, including the Group's share of joint ventures and associates, is derived from the Group balance sheet as follows:
-~ T e o —
Joaint ventures Jonnt ventures
Group and associates Total Group and assoclatas Total
Em m £m £m £m em
Invesiment properties 1,133 o 375.6 1,508.6 1,081.0 - 4168 14978
Less assets held under finance leases
not subj_eﬂp revaluation (3.9) {0.9) 777(4.8) (3.9) (1.2) (B
Add back lease incentives (recorded in
receivables) L 1.7 0.7 12.4 11.8 1.4 13.3
Inventories (held at lower of cost and net
realisable value) 229.7 6 4 236.1 1837 1.9 1 85.6
Property portfolio 1,370.5 381 8 1,752.3 12727 4189 1,691.6

As at 30" November 2016 the Group had assets of £328.3m (2015: £633.2m} included within the Group property portfolio (excluding joint
: ventures and associates) which were wholly owned, unencumbered and able to be pledged as security for the Group’s debt facilities.

The Group's property portfolio, including share of joint ventures can be split by category as detailed below:

Industrial and logistics

Retail

Residential and other

Income producing property

Residential fand

i Commercial land

Property portfolio

2016 2014

om £m

o ) 2835 o472
o 3422 3337
161.0 1482 |
B 7887 721

B 742.0 7577

223.6 206.8

B 1,752.3 15916
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e. Movement in net debt

The movement in net debt is set out below:

2016 215
i &m m
Maovement in cas? énd cash equwalents - (0.6)_ B 16
Borrowings drawn N (160.5) (190.9)
Repayment of borroWﬁjs 134.0 83.8
Increase in net borrowmgs (271) ?ﬁ
Fair value movements on convernble bonds 7.7 (4 1)
Finance leases RE; (@25
Increase in net debt - (21.1) (142.1)
f. Trading cash flow
Trading cash flows are derived from the Group cash flow statement as set out below:
T 2016
bperating nvesting anncmg”?im Joint ventures
aclvities activities activlies Total and associates Total
: 2m om £m £m £m Pm
Net rent and other income I 44.7 - : - 44.7 54 - 50 1
Property dispbsa\s -_ 2449 - 64.3 - 309.2 251 E
Property acquisitions - (38.5) - (38.5) - (38.5)
Capital expenditure . (208.8) (52.1) - (260.9) (10.1) (271.0)
Wo?king bapital and other movements - (25.3) - - (25.3)__- 3.8 (21.5)
| Overheads and interest - (323 5.4 (207) (47.6) 9.2) (56.8)
L Taxation - (10.7) - - (10.7) (1.0) K
Trading cash flow 12.5 (20.9) (20.7) (29.1) 14.0 (15.1)
Finance leases 7 - - 0.6 0.6 (0 3) 03
Net borrowings - - 26 5 26.5 (2.8) 23 7
Netdividends - 143 (12.9) 1.4 (14.3) (12.9)
‘Movement in cash and cash equivalents 12.5 (6.6) (6.5 10.6) (3.4) 4.0)
o 2015
Op@rﬂiﬂgﬁﬁ \mv_esting Financing Joint veritures
activities activitios activities Total and asscciates Totat
: om om £m £m £m m
| Net rent and other income ' 070 - - @ 5.9 429
: Property disposals ’ 180.5 844 - 264.9 12 2661
Property acquisitions - (57.2) - 572 _ (57.2)
Capital expenditu-re 208 2) (1041} - (312 3) 14.2) (326.5)
Wérking capital and other movements - (@4 - - 9.4 20.8 B 11.5_
‘Overheads and interest @3 38 (80 (47.2) 77) (51.9)
| Taxation R —) - - 9.4) 03 ©.7)
. Trading cash flow @28) (73.0 8.0, 133.8) 58 (278
Finance leases - - - 325 325 - 325
Net borrowings ' - - 1071 1071 36 107
Net dividends ] - 6.7 (1) @4 ®7) (11.1)
Moverment in cash and cash eqﬁivalents (42:6)” {66.5) 110.6 1.6 27 4.3
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2018
cantinued

i 2. Non-statutory information continued

g. Net assets per share and total accounting return

Net assets per share and total accounting return are calculated as set out below:

2016 5015
Moveﬂ;.m T Movomc;wt
Pence per Pence per Pence per Pence per
: share share o £m shara share 3
L Total equity 962.1 s B
: ?ﬁ%n;é@%!ling interests (6.9) o - {6.8) B
Equity NKV attributable to owners N
of the Company 955.2 431.0 17.5 4.2 8147 M35 88.4 27.2
Ad_j-u-stmems of inventories to fair value 13.6 B 11.9 - - i
EPRA NNNAV 968.8 437.2 183 44 9266 4189 886 268 |
Deferred tax on capital allowances o i - -
and revaluations 47.9 500
Mark-to-market of derivatiﬁ-e_ - - a
¢ financial instrumants 3.8 10.9
© EPRANAV 1,0205  460.5 14.1 32 9875 4464 1041 304 |
D\vw_dend paia per share (note 7) 7 5.8 o 7 56
. Total accounting return 199 4.5 1091 319 |
(1) The number of shares inssue used to calculate the net asset values per share is 221,607,654 (2015: 221,186.714). excluding those shares held by The St Modwen
: Properties PLC Employee Share Trust, as disclosed in note 17,
h. Net borrowing and net debt
Net borrowing and net debt are calculated as set out below:
T o ) 2018 2015
£m £m
Cash and cash équiva\énts N - 4,2 B 48
Bgrro-\jvingé due within cne year N B - - :
: _Borrowings due after more than_one_s-/eari B : (470.6} B (47513)
: Less fair value move_ments on convertible bonds o {3.6} 41 :
{ Netborrowings B (470.0) @4429)
Fair value -rn_ovemie'nts on convertitle bonds ; N 3.6 n 74.1) ;
Finanﬁce lease liabilities due within oneiyrear - {0.4) o (0.4 :
Finance lease liabifities due aftéFhwore than one year - (56.4)7 {6a.7)
Net debt B ) (523.2) (502.1)

! i. Gearing and loan-to-value

The Group's capacity to borrow is primarily linked to the quantum of the property portfolio excluding assets held under finance leases.
¢ Accordingly both adjusted gearing and loan-to-value are calculated using the comparable measure of net borrowings.

! The table overleaf shows the caloulation of:
i = gearing, being the ratic of net debt to total equity;

= adjusted gearing, being the ratio of net borrowings 1o total equity;

= |pan-to-value, being the ratio of net borrowings to the property portfolio excluding valued assets held as finance leases (representing
i amounts that could be used as security for that debt); and

= loan-to-value excluding residential land, being the ratio of net borrowings to the property portfolio excluding valued assets held
! asfinance leases and residential land (reflecting that resiciential land is a less attractive asset for security purposes).
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2016 I ' 2015
- Tlownit've;ures T Joint ventures o -
Group and associates Total Group and assooiales Total
: £m £m Em £m £ £m
. Property portiolio fnote 20 1,370.5 381.8 17523 12727 418.9 16916
Less valued assets under finance leases (57.8) - {57.8) N 6537.1) - (_53.71)7
| Net property portfolio 1,312.7 381.8 1,694.5 12196 4189 16385
Less residential land (note 2q) (460.2) 281.8)  (742.0) @azhy @158 (7577)
Netproperty;or;foﬁo:xcluding o -
i residential land 852.5 100.0 952.5 7775 103.3 880.8
L Totalequity 962.1 N/A 962.1 9215  NA 9215
| Net debt note 2h) 5232 4719 5714 5021 a8 5497
© Nt borrowings {note 2h) 4700 47.0 517.0 4429 484 4803
Gearng 54.4% 59.4% 54.5% 59.7%
Adjusted gearing 48.9% 53.7% 481% ) o _5_31¥
Loan-to-value 35.8% 305%  B3% £9.9%
Loan-lo-value excluding residential land N/A © B543%  NA 55.6%

Banrk covenant compliance is based on the ratio of gearing being net debt to equity of 54.4% (2015: 54.5%) against a covenant of 175.0%
L (2015: 175.0%).

3. Other income statement disclosures

. a. Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses have been arrived at after charging:

2016 2015
R . o £m [V}
i Depreciation _ o 0.7 08
i Operating lease costs 1.5 15

! b. Auditor's remuneration
i The table below sets out the fees payable to the Company's auditor and their associates for the following services:

2016 - ' 2015
Auchit and Audit and
audit-related audit-related
ServIces Other services Total SErVICES Other services Total
£000 000 £°000 £'000 go00  £000
The audit of the Company's Annual Report
and financial statements 130 - 130 o 125 - 125
The audit of the Company's subsidiaries
and joint ventures 259 - - 250 16% 7 ) ——162
:  Total audit fees - 380 - 380 o 287___ o - 287
Audit-related assurance services 67 - ) 61 - 60 - 60
Other assurance services 25 - 25 3 - 3
i Tax compliance services - - - - 16 16
Tax advisory gerv&ces - - - = 20 20
Property consulting - 20 gO _ - B 8s
Other i - i - 2 - 2 2
Total non-audit fees B 92 B 22 o 114 63 107 o ___170
Total fees 472 22 494 350 107 457

i The Group continues to monitor the provision of audit and other senvices by the auditor. Fees charged for other services in 2016 were 5%
{{P015: 319%) of audit and audit-related fees. The Group's policy permits the auditor to provide non-audit services where alternative providers
i do not exist or where it is cost effective or in the Group's interest for the external auditor to provide such services, as long as such services

i are permissible under the Audit Regulations. Further information is included in the Audit Committee report.
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30 November 2016
cortinued

3. Other income statement disclosures continued

c. Employees

The monthly average number of full-time employees (inclucing executive directors) employed by the Group during the year was as follows:

2016

2015

Nurnber Number

Property“and administration - - 301- o _-257

Leisure and other activities - - 44 o 5§

Total employees o 345 309
The total payroll costs of these employees were:

- - - 2016 I

Em £m

TNargesand salaries N - - 20.1 o 18.6

: Sociaisiecur}t-ya)-sg- ) N 2.8 R 2-4

Pension E:osts B B B (_)_8 - 0?3

: ?oﬁipayroll costs B 23_7 218

d. Share-based payments

The Group has a Save As You Earn share option scheme open to al employees. Employees must ordinarily remiain in service for a period of
i three or five years from the date of grant before exercising thair options. The option period ends six menths following the end of the vesting

{ period.

¢ The Group also operates a discretionary Executive Share Option Schermne (ESOS). Options are granted at a fixed price equal to the market
! price at the date of grant. With the exception of awards made to executive directors in conjunction with PSP awards granted in 2012, there
i are no performance conditions attached to ESOS awards. Employees must ordinarily remain in service for a period of three years from the
i date of grant before exercising their ESOS awards. The option ends ¢n the 10" anniversary of the date of grant.

Details of the Group's Performance Share Plan (PSP) are given in the Directors’ remuneration report.

The following table illustrates the movements in share options during the year. As the PSP includes the grant of options at £nil exercise

Number of 7

2018

price, the weighted average prices below are calculated inciuding and excluding the options under this plan.

Wetghted average pnce

All options Excluding PSP Number of Al eptions Excluding PSP

ophons e i oplions e £

Oulstanding at start of year 6,000,088 2.33 2.89 9,117,437 187 031

L Granted 3,045,446 1.70 268 1288365 3.46 4.67
. Forfeited T (637,445) 2.42 ‘364 (398,247) 3.23 323
© Exercised - (811,487) ' 0.67 168 (3917473 157 203
Outstanding at end of year 7,686,602 2.27 283  6000,088 2,33 2.89
Exercisable at year end 2,637,505 218 218 1,887,986 1.75 1.75

Share options are priced using a Black-Scholes valuation model. The aggregate of the fair values calculated and the assumptions used for

i share options granted during the year are as follows:

| 30" November 2016

Aggregate of far - Risk-free nterest Fxpected
values rate volatility Diviclend vigld Share price
B 2m % o 1"_&:_ o %5 N
3.2 01-0.3  22.3-32.9 11 269-3.28
2.1 11-2.0 31.0-50.3 1.1 A37-4.75

30" Novernber 2015

{1) Based on the closing share price on the date of grant,
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i The charge to the Group income statement in respect of share-based payments during the year was £1.6m (2015: £2.0m).

The fair value of the share incentive reserve in respect of share options ocutstanding at the year end was £4.9m (2015: £5.2m) and included
P 22.2m (2015: £1.8m) in respect of options that had vested at the year end.

In arriving at fair valus it has been assumed that, when vested. share options are exercised in accordance with historical trends, Expected
i volatility was determined by reference to the historical volatility of the Group's share price over a period consistent with the expected life of

L the options.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise was £2.76 {(2015: £4.63). The executive share options outstanding at the year end
! had a range of exercise prices hetween £1.78 and £4.75 (2015: £1.75 and £4.74) with PSP options exercisable at between £nil and £4.71
(2015 Dnil and £4.71). Quistanding opticns had a weighted average maximum remaining contractual life of 4.7 years (2015 5.8 years),

. 4, Finance costs and finance income

2016

2015
em rm
Interest payable on borrowings-_ - ) i 1841 i 7 176.57
Amortisation of loan arrang'eiment fees - 1.2 1.1
: Ah;orgsétion of discount on deferred paymenrérr;hgemen-ts 0.4 11
_Head rents treated as finance leases o o ) - 14 08
. Movement in fair value of convertible bond N - - B 41
i Movement in fair value of dervative %air%cial inst_run:ents B 1.3 - 0.8 )
Interest on pension scheme iabiites o e 0.9 - 1.0
Total finance éb_sts o - B 23.0 252
a - B 206 2015
£m 2m
interest rec;aivablei S 5; 38
R/Ioveméht?fair value of convertible bond i 7 B 7.7 .
Movement in fair va_lue of derivative financial instruments B 0.8 04
Interest ianme ”on pension scheme assets B - . 1.0 1.1
Totéi fi;ance income 7 B N B 14.9 - _SI
. 6. Taxation
a. Tax on profit on ordinary activities
The tax charge in the Group income statement is as follows:
o - N o N 2016 R
£m £m
‘Current tax ) B 7 B B
Current yéér tax ) - B B 1.9 B 13.9
Adjustmemté}n reépecl of previous years N o (5.2) i 77(().78)
: 7Tc7fa| curr_ént tax i o B ) B 6.7 B 13.1
beferred tax ) B
Impact of current year revéiuaﬂons and indexation - 2.§ 4.3
Net use of tax Ibsség - B - - 0.5 -
Other te?mporary differences - N - 11 0.4
Ehahge -i;1 rate for provision of deferred iax 777777 B - N _(OR)
Kdﬁstmentswin respect of previousj yeérs - - B 24 02
Total deferred tax - B &8 A8
Total_tax charge in the G-roup income statemen? - 13.3 17.97

The tax charge relating to actuarial losses on pension schemes in the Group statement of comprehensive income s £nil (2015 £nil).
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016
continued

. 6. Taxation continued

b. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

£m _ om

Profit before tax S 66.9 235.2
i Less loss/Aprofit) of joint ventures and associates (post-tax) 28.2 a (106.8}
Pre-tax profit attit%umiblggrtr};(}aip - B - _951 1284
| Corporation tax at 20.0% (2016: 20.3%) T 100 261
“Effect Of'hon'-aedLHi’bEéxpenses and non-chargeable income 0.5 0.3
: "Impact of Cufféntyieeifafélﬁghs and indexation (3.1) o —(ﬂ

Digerengé-béavé-en_c-:-h:;gjeaaé-gams and éccounting profit _ - 7 OE
Chanrge;r;rétieius&ﬂifo;provis'ion of deferred tax - - {on)
T?%gnabn ci)f'prer\)iously unre-cog'risedidefe;éd tax asgsiétsﬁrrreégéctwgbégs - - (1.7}
aent_yeaf E:harge - 164 185
. Adjustments inrespect of previous years 3.) 0.6
| Taxchargefortheyear ' - 13.3 179
: Effective rate of tax 14.0% 13.9%

The post tax results of joint ventures and associates are stated after a tax credit of £6.1m (2015: a charge of £23.2m). The effective tax
i rate for the Group including joint ventures and associates is a charge of 11.8% (2015: 15.9%).

Legislation substantively enacted at 30" November 2016 included provisions which reduced the main rate of corporation tax from 20%
{10 19% from 1% April 2017 and 179 from 17 April 2020. Current tax has therefore been provided at 20% and deferred tax at rates from

© 17% 1o 20%.

! c. Balance sheet

2016 2015
Current {ax Deferred tax Current tax Deterred tax
£m £m £ £m
Balance at start of the yea; . 1.1 154 7.3 ns
Charg_éd to the Grfbup income statement 67 6.6 138 48
Net payment @y - (©.4) -
Gther - - 01 (1.1)
Balance atend of the year 7 220 11 15.4
An analysis of the deferred tax provided by the Group is given below:
- a 2016 2015 ) -
Assel Liabiity Net Assct  Liabiity Nel
o £m £m m £m rm
Property revaluations_- - - 19.4 19.4 - 164 _16:{ )
Capital alowances - - 5.1 51 - 7 379 38
Appro?iatirons té t_rading stock - 7 ﬁ - 0.3 - 0.5 0.5
Unutilised tax losses _ _: o - - (1.7) - (.7}
Othertemporary differences 2.8) - (2.8) (37) - (3.7)
Total deferred tax B (2.8) 24.8 220 B4 208 15.4

i At the balance shest date, the Group has unused tax losses in relation to 2016 and prior years of £0.8m (2015: £2.9m), of which Lnii (2015:
i £1.7m) has been recognised as a deferred tax asset. A deferred tax asset of £0.8m (2015: £1.2m) has not been recognised in respect of
i current and prior year tax losses as it is not considered sufficiently certain that there wil be taxable profits available in the short-term against
i which these can be offset. These unrecognised losses arise predominantly from pre-acguisition activity or within connected parties, which

are not able to be group relieved.
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. 6. Earnings per share

2016 2015

Number of shares Nurmber of shares

. Weighted number of shares In 1ssue - 221,368,096 001,076,984

Weighted number of diluted shares relating to tﬁgcoﬁértaa_ b;]_d__ 15,867,52-5__- i 1886_7925

7\Ne\ghted number of diluted shares relating to share options - 1,923,809 i _},SQOBB
Weighted number of shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 2421 59,856_ - 246‘327.55?
- Cmie 201

£m £rm

Earﬁnggor Eprpbsefs-oﬁéic"gamngs per share béiﬁg na o o o

profit attributable to owners of the Company 53.4 216.4

Féfect of dilutive potential ordinary Sh_are; - - -

Interest on conver‘[-iE)\e b_o_nd"(-n_ét"n;tax) i 23 2.3

: Mbvémégt \ﬂ?&]f’ vamérahe convertible bond B - (7.7) 41

7Eér7rﬁngis for the p-:-J-rpo_s_es of diluted earnings per share - . 48.0 2228
T o 2016 C oo

Pence Pence

| Basic earnings per share o 24.1 97.9

Diluted e;fnin_g-s per share B a 19.8 S Q04

Shares held by the St. Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust are excluded from the above calculation,

As the Group is principally a development business FPRA earnings per share on a basic and diluted basis are not provided, These
i calculations exclude all revaluation gains, including value added by management actions, and development profits, These are the key
activities of the Group and excluding such gains and profits would net provide a meaningful measure of the performance of the business.

. 7. Dividends

Dividends paid during the year were in respect of the final dividend for 2015 and interim dividend for 2016. The proposed final dividend
i is subject to approval at the annual general meeting and has not been included as a liabiity in these financial staterments.

2016 2015

- Perce per ;Fare £m ) Er-wcc per sha;ei £m
Paid ) o - o
Final dividend in respect of previous year 3.85 78.5 o 314 6.9
Interim dividend in respect of CL;fem year 194 - 4.3 1.90 o 42
Totalpaid 579 12.8 o 504 "
Proposed
Current year final dividendwr B 4.06 o . 9.0 3.85 ' 8.5

The St. Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust waives its entitlemeant to dividends with the exception of 1/100p per share.
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30™ November 2016
continued

. 8. Investment property

i a. Fair value reconciliation

Frashoid investment

| easehold mvestrment

properties propertics Total

: £ £ £m

| AL 30" Novernber 2074 - _ 723.9 1329 856.8

'Aidditionswjnew properties o - 7 57.2 - 57.2

Other additions - 7 06 105.3
Net transfers frorhiinventOries {note 12 - 751,67 13.3 649 i
Disposals By 217) N 771y
(ga}n (;n revaLahoF o - _67.8_ 6.1 - 739
At 30" November 2015 - 947.8 133.2 10810 |
Additions -Iﬁeﬁfoperties 38.5 - 37857
Other additions - 50.7 08 515 :
Net transfers to inventories (note 12) - o (13.3) - (13.3) !

. Disposals B B (51.3) @7 (85.0)

. Gain on revaluation o - 24.0 6.3 30.3

At 30" November 2016 - 996.4 1366 1,133.0

Investment properties were valued at 30" Novemnber 2016 and 30" November 2015 by Cushman & Wakefield, Chartered Surveyors, in
i accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Roval Institution of Chartered Surveyors, on the basis of market value. Cushman
i & Wakefield are professionally qualified independent external valuers and had appropriate recent experience in the relevant location and

category of the properties being valued.

The historical cost of investrnent propertias at 30" November 2016 was £883.3m (2015: £840.5m).
As at 30" Novernber 2016, £800.5m (2015: £488.2my} of investrment property was pledged as security for the Group's foan facilities.
Included within investment properties are £61.7m (2015: £57.0m) of assets held under finance leases.

b. Fair value measurement disclosures
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement disclosures in respect of investment property are detailed below,
¢ The following table provides an analysis of the catagorisation of the Group’s investment properties measured subsequent to initial

recogniticn at fair value:

! Income producing properties

Residential land

Commercial land

Assets held under finance leases'
Lease incentives {recerded in receivables)

Investment property

2016 2015
£m o
7 Level 3 7014 656.6
Cleveld 319.1 3328
- Level 3 120.3 26 |
B N/A 39 39
B N/A (11.7) IRER
- ' 11830 10810 |

1) £3.8rm (2015 £3.9my of the Group's assets hald undor Inance leases are not subject to valuation. These assets represent head leascs on certain investment property
and are carmed at the value recogmsed at inception less repayments of principal. [his does not include lease arrangements al Swansea Lnversity, which are subject

to revaluation,

5t. Modwen Properties PLC
Annual report and hinancial staterments 2016

132



i Income producing properties

Income producing properties have been valued using the investment method which involves applying a vield to rental income streams.
i Inputs Include equivalent yields, current rent and astimated rental value (ERV). The resulting valuations are cross checked against the
i resulting initial vields and. for certain assets, the land value underpin if the assats werg to be redeveloped.

Equivalent yields and ERV are considered to te unobservable inputs and details of the aggregate ERV and weighted average equivalent
! vields used for each category of income producing properties is provided in the following table:

7 Aggregate ERV Average equivalant yield
Fair value at High vielding Investment High yslding Irvestment
30 Novemnber 2018 properties porttolio properties portfolio
tm £m o 7o Uy
Industrial and logistics 223.7 18.6 6.0 8.7 6.9
Retaif 327.9 9.6 17.0 9.0 6.6
Residential and other 149.8 0.8 8.8 9.8 54
Total income producing properties 7014
Aggregate ERV Average eqguivalent yield
Faur value at High yielding Irvestment High yielding Investment
30" Novernber 2015 properties portfolio properties portfolio
em O m EPS Ty
industrial and logistics 202.5 16.2 58 B7 78
Retail 3100 92 16.6 9.0 6.6
Residential and other 1441 C.4 8.3 10.0 55
Total income producing properties 656.6

As the Group holds property both directly and through joint ventures and associates the Strategic report discusses vields applied to investrment

i property on a weighted average see-through basis. This provides a composite position with respect to the Group’s exposure to asset types
¢ by sector. The equivalent yisld ranges provided above are consistent with those for assets held by the Group together with joint ventures

: and associates,

The Group's portfolio has a wide spread of vields as it includes assets that are at various stages of the property lifecycle. Income producing
i assets are generally acquired at high yvislds where the Group has the opportunity to add significant value. As assets are enhanced and
i development activity is undertaken, improved and new assets are created and valued at lower yields.

! Al other factors being equal. a higher equivalent yield would lead to an decrease in the valuation of an asset and an increase in the current
! or estimated future rental stream would have the effect of increasing the capital value, and vice versa. However, there are interrelationships
! between the unobservable inputs which are partially determined by market conditions, which would impact on these changes.

{ Residential land

Residential land is valued using the residual development method. Te derive the value of land the valuers will estimate the gross development
i value of completed resiclential units on a site from which deductions will be made for build costs (including costs to remediate and senvice

¢ land), finance costs and an appropriate profit margin.

Sales prices, build costs and profit margins are considered to te uncbservable inputs and details of the ranges used is provided in the

i following table:

Sales price Build costs
Farr value per sguare foot per square foot Profit margin
: m I E %
© At 30" November 2016 3191 144-310 83-110 20.0
i AL 30" Novernber 2015 338.8 144-270 82-110 20.0

1 All other factors being equal, a higher sales price would lead 1o an increase in the valuation of an asset, a higher profit margin would lead

! 10 a decrease in the valuation of an assat, and a decrease in the build costs would have the effect of increasing the capital value, and vice
i versa. However, there are interrelationships between the unobservable inputs which are partially determined by market conditions, which
¢ would impact on these changes.
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016
continued

. 8. Investment property continued

i Commercial land

! Commercial land is valued on a land value per acre less costs to remediate and senvice the land. Land value per acre 1s considered to be

an unobservable input and details of the ranges used are detailed in the following table:

Far value Land value per acre

At 30™ November 2016
At 30" November 2015

£m £000
B S 1203 75-500
926 125-595

Alt other things being equal, a higher value per acre would lead to an increase in the valuation of an asset and vice versa.

9. Operating property, plant and equipment

Operaling

(perating plant

properiies and equiprment Total
m £m £m
. Cost R - -
AL30" Novermnber 2014 - 7.0 59 129
Additions S _ o6 06
! Disposals - o 2.5 08 Y
| At30" November 2015 S 4.5 60 105
Additions - 06 0.6
Disposals - - (0.1) (0.1)
At 30" November 2016 o - 45 6.5 11.0
Depreciation :
| At30" Novemoer 2014 B - 10 a9 59
Charge for the year “ - 01 oz 08
. Deposals B o 0.4) o4
{ At30" November 2015 - o 11 52 63 |
Charge for the year __ . - - o7 0.7
Disposals o - - {0.2) ]05)
| At30" November 2016 S 57 68
Net book value
| AL30" Novernber 2014 - 80 10 70
AL30" November 2015 - 34 0.8 a2
At 30" November 2016 - 3.4 " 08 4.2

All operating properties are freehold operating properties.
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i 10. Joint ventures and associates
The Group has the following four material joint venture companies, for which information is provided separately in this note:

Name

Key Propeﬁyﬁﬁéstr%eﬁtsita 7
VSM Estates Uxbridge (Group) Ltd
VEM Estates (Holdings) Ltd

VSM (NCGM) Ltd

Status

Joint veriture

Joint venture

Joint venture

Joint venture

Interest

50%
50%
50%
50%

Actrity

Property investment and development

Property investment and davelopment

Property development

Property development

The remainder of the Group’s joint ventures and associates are listed in note D to the Company financial statements.

The Group's share of the results for the year of its joint ventures and associates is:

- 2016 -
VSM Lstates Other yoint
Key Property Lxbncige VEM Estales ventures and
Investments Ltd Group) Lid {Holdings) Lid - WSM (NGGM) | (d associates Total
£m om £m £m em £m
Revenue 7.5 - - - 0.2 7.7
Net rental income 5.5 (0.1) - - - 5.4
Gains/{losses) on disposal of
investments/investment properties 0.8 - (0.2) - {0.1) 0.5
Investment property revaluation
gains/{losses) 1.2 (1.8) (1.1) (24.3) 0.1 (25.9)
Administrative expenses (0.3) - (0.1) (0.1} (0.3) (0.8}
Profit/(loss) before interest and tax 7.2 (1.9) (1.4) (24.4) (0.3) {20.8)
Finance cost {2.2) (3.4) {1.9) (7.3) (0.2) (15.0}
i Finanqe income 04 7"074 . _O.Z_ _ - - 1.5
Profit/{loss} before tax 5.4 (4.9) (2.6) (31.7) {0.5) {34.3}
Taxation (0.6) 0.9 {0.5) B 9@ - 6.1
Profit/({loss) for the year 4.8 (4.0) (3.1) (25.4) (0.5) (28.2)
- N a R -
VEM Fslates Other jant
Key Property Uxbricige VSM Estates ventures and
Investments | td (Group) Lid {Holdings) Ltd - VEM (INCGM) Ltd associates Total
£m £m cm £m ,EWL o 7{‘1
Revenue 16.8 - - 04 4.6 21.8
Net rental income 59 .2 - - 0.2 59
GainsAlosseas) on disposal of
investments/investment properties 2.8 - 0.9) 0.4 0.3 26
Investment property revaluation
gainsflosses) 6.7 (3.9 1.3) 1274 0.3 129.2
/idministrative expenses o 3 N - 0.1) {OR)} _ (QJL o (0.4
Profit/{loss) before interest and tax 153 @an 2.3 1277 0.7 137.3
Finance cost (2.3} {3.3) {(1.6) (1.5) 0.2} (8.9}
Finance income 0.5 0.4 ) 70.7 - - 16
Profit/lloss) before tax 135 (7.0 (3.2 126.2 0.5 130.0
: Taxation - - _(2.3) 1.8 2.8 _ (_25._5) - ) _(_23_.2)_
Profitdloss) for the yvear 1.z 5.2) {0.4) 100.7 0.5 106.8

Inciuded in othar joint ventures and associates above are results from associated companies of £0.1m (2015

CE20.3m).
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016
continued

i 10. Joint ventures and associates continued
The Group’s share of the balance shest of its joint ventures and associates is:

2016
- VEM Lstates N O1herj0|rll—" o
Key Property Lxbndge VSM Lstates vantures and

Investments (Lm {C3rou Hrg Hokdngs: EEI% VEM INCGM; SLE assocwaéene; T%ﬁ\

-Non-current aséets h - 97;4 - 47.6 327 B 197.g o 7.5 382.7

Current assets 5.8 5.0 26.3 1.1 5.3 43.5
Current liabilities (10.5) {20.1) {22.4) (29.8} (3.2) {86.0) :
Non-current liabilities (36.6) (211} {1.9) (93.6} (2.2) (155.4)

Netassets - se1 14 34.7 752 74 184.8

Equity at 30" November 2015 65.8 15.4 37.9 100.7 75 2273

¢ Profit/(loss) for the year 4.8 4.0) (3.1) (25.4) {0.5}) (28.2)

. Dividends paid (14.3) - - - - (14.3)

© Equity at 30" November 2016 63 14 348 153 10 184.8

2015
Key Praperty vsmﬂ'fggétg; VEM Estates ver%m:g; Jgr‘;?jl

Investmemszzlrg 1C3roup ES { Inlckngs {gi] VEM INGGEM) Sﬂ aSSOCIaSIj?i T%tri\

‘Non-current assets 104.8 £2.0 16 2200 20 4214

Current assets 19 47 285 - 6.3 N4

Current fiabilities 8.7 (17.2) (25.4) (5.5) {3.4) (58.2)

Non-current liabilities (34.2) (241 8.8} (113.8) 1.6 (177.3)

Nat assets R 658 154 379 1007 75 2073

Equity at 30" November 2014 61.3 206 38.3 - 7.0 127.2

Profit/toss) for the year 1.2 {(5.2) {0.4) 100.7 0.5 106.8

i Dividends paid 6.7) - - - - B

. Equiyat 30" November2015 658 15.4 379 1007 75 2073

Included in other joint ventures and associates above are net assets in relation to associated companies of £3.3m (2015: £3.3m). These
net assets comprise total assets of £3.9m (2015: £3.9m) and total liabilities of £0.6m (2015: £0.6m).

In the Strategic report a series of commercial contracts with Persimmen are referred to as the ‘Persimmon joint venture', This is not a statutory
i entity and the results from these commercial contracts are not included in the figures disclosed in this note. Revenue and profit from the
¢ Persimmon joint venture are recognised in Group development profit on legal completion of housing unit sales to third party customers.

Many of the shareholder agreements for joint ventures and associates contain change of control provisions, as is common for
i such arrangements.
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New Covent Garden Market

New Covent Garden Market (NCGM) received uncenditional status in the prior year and the valuation of the site continues to have a

significant impact on the results and net assets of the Group's joint ventures. The figures below represent the Group’s share of this site.

NCGM was valued at 30" November 2016 and 30" Novernber 2015 by Jones Lang LaSalle LLP, Charterad Surveyors, in accordance with
i the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, on the basis of market value. Jones Lang LaSalle LLP
i are professionally gualified independent external valuers and had appropriate recent experience in the relevant iocation and category of the

i property being valued.

The liabitity of VSM (NCGM] Ltd to procure a new market facility for CGMA has been caiculated by:
= the Board of VM (NCGM) Ltd, including representatives of VINCI and St. Modwen, assessing the costs of procuring the market facility

at current rates;

« applying a current estimate of inflation for the period of the build of 4%; and
» discounting the forecast cash flows to today's value using a discount rate of 5%, considered by the Board of VSM (NCGM; Ltd

to appropriately reflect the risks and rewards of the procurement.

The following information on unobservable inputs on the NCGM valuation is detailed below for undierstandling and completeness:

Range of AvErage Average
sales prices per sales price per build costs per
Far value square foot square foot square foot Profit margin
: em N 3 o
At 30" November 2016 1975  875-1,419 1,244 433 20.0
At 30" November 2015 2200 900-1,566 1,326 434 20.0
11. Trade and other receivables
- - - 2016 - 2015
£m £m
Non-current o B B i B
Other debtors 2.2 0.1
Amounts due from joint ventures 6.0 6.0
Non-current receivables N 8.2 o 8.1
Current
Trade receivables 8.2 56
Prepayments and accrued income 81 8.6
Other debtors 22.0 222
Amounts reccverable on contracts 15.3 313
Amounts due from joint ventures 62.2 370
Cﬁfrént receivables i ) 115.8 104.7
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016
continued

12. Inventories

2016 2015
£'m im:
Properties held for sale S 5.1 53 |
Properties under construction 206.6 1616 .
Land under option 18.0 16.8
Inventories - ) - 229.7 _183_.7
The movermnent in inventories during the two years ended 30" Novemnber 2016 is as foliows:
- - emo
At 30" November 27014h . - - B 201.0 .
Additions 234.8
Net transfers 10 investment property incte &) 64.9)
Disposals {transferred to development cost of sales) (187.2)
At 30" November 2015 o - 183.7
Additions 208.8
Net transfers from investment property (note 8) 13.3
Disposals (transferred to development cost of sales) {176.1)
'At30" November 2016 - - 229.7

The directors consider all inventories to be current in nature. The operational cycle is such that a proportion of inventories will not be reafised
! within 12 months. It is not possible to determing with accuracy when specific inventory will be realised as this will be subject 10 a nurmber of
i issues including the strength of the property market.

Included within disposals of inventorias are net realisable value provisions made during the year of £0.3m (2015: £1.4m).
As at 30" November 2016 £19.7m (2015: £43.4my) of inventory was pledged as security for the Group's loan facilities.

13. Trade and other payables

208 2015

1l m
“Current a B -
Trade payables 411 385
Amounts due to joint ventures 17.8 154
i Cther payables and accrued expenses 82.9 756
Other payables on deferred terms 8.7 171
Current paya bles o 7 - 1505 1468
Non-current
Other payables on deferred terms - o 3.6 31
Non-current payables - - 3.6 341

The payment terms of the other payables on deferred terms are subject to contractual commitments. In the normal course of events the
¢ payments will be made in line with either the disposal of investment properties held on the Group balance shest, or the commencement
i of developrment. Net cash outflows on the settlement of the deferred consideration will therefore be limited.
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. 14. Borrowings and finance lease obligations

20168 205

'm 'm
édrrent - N B N
Finance lease liabilties due in less than one year 0.4 04
Current borro;ings and finance lease obligations o 7 0.4 - 04
Non-current
Amounts repayable between two and five years 470.6 344.3
Amounts repayable after more than five years - 1075
Nor_*l-cdrré;it;(;l;ow-ing; - B _470.6 - 451.8
Finance leases liabilities due after more than one year 56.4 54.7
Non-current borrowings and f?ria;be ]ease obliéétias B 52%.0 506.5

Where borrowings are secured, the individual bank facility has a fixed charge over a discrete portfolio of certain of the Group’s property assets.

i a. Borrowings

Maturity profile of committed borrowing facilities

The Group's debt is provided by floating rate bilateral revolving credit facilities {providing the flexibility to draw and repay loans as required)
! together with an £80m retall bond and £100m convertible bonds. The maturity profile of the Group's committed borrowing faciities is set

i out below:

- B 2015 -
77;:&«6' -“-Un-tgwn Totat Drawn’ _U-nd_r_awr} - m

£m £m v m em £m

Secured-fl_o-ati-ng I;;t; borrowings - B o

Two to three yvears 23.2 101.7 124.9 89.0 10.0 939.0

Three to four years - - - 7.2 53.8 125.0

¢ Fourto five years 271.0 92.0 363.0 70.0 30.0 100.0

More than five years - - - 375 12.5 50.0

P 2042 1937 487.9 2677 1083 3740

Unsecured fixed rate borrowings

Two to three years 176.4 - 176.4 - - -

Three to four years - - - - 1844 - 1841

Total committed borrowing facilities 4706 103.7 6643 4518 106.3 558.1

11 In addinon 1o the principal amounts included abave, ©1 8m (2015 1,807 of iInterest payable was comwnitted at the year end. These amounts all fall due within thrée months

of the year end.

interest rate profile

The interest rate profile of the Group's borrowings after taking into account the effects of hedging is:

206 2015 N
om _ Applicable nterest rate i‘j o Apphgat@wterest rate
Floating rate bank debt 139.2 Margin + 3 month LIBOR 1377 Margin + 3 month LIBOR
Margin + 2.10% weighted Margin + 2.76% weighted
Fixed rate bank debt 155.0 average swap rate 130.0 average swap rate
Retail bond (matures in 2019} 80.0 6.25% fixed rate 80.0 6.25% fixed rate
2.875% fixed rate — 2.875% fixed rate —
swapped to 1.43% swapped to 1.43%
+ 6 month LIBOR until + & month LIBOR until
Convartible bonds (mature in 2019 96.4 6t MgrcE 2017 1041 g‘" March_?OZ
Total borrowings 470.6 451.8
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016
cantinued

. 14. Borrowings and finance lease obligations continued

Convertible bonds

i On 6" March 2014 St. Modwen Properties Securtties (Jersey) Ltd (the ‘issuer’) issued £100.0m 2.875% Guaranteed Gonvertile Bonds
i due 2019 at par. The Company has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the due and punctual performance by the issuer of all its
i obligations (including payments) in respect of the convertible bonds and the obligations of the Company, as Guarantor, constitute direct,
¢ unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Company.

Subject to certain conditions, the convertible bonds are convertible into preference shares of the issuer which are automatically transferred
i to the Company in exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or {at the Company's election) any combination of ordinary shares and
i cash. The convertible bonds can be converted at any time from 167 April 2014 up to the seventh dealing day before the maturity date.

i The initial exchange price was £5.29 per ordinary share, a conversion rate of approximately 18,889 ordinary shares for every £100,000

¢ nominal of the convertinle bonds, Under the terms of the convertible bonds, the exchange price is adjusted on the occurrence of certain
i events including the payment of dividends by the Company in excess of & yield of 1.00% of the average share price in the 90 days

! preceding the dividend ex date. No changes to the exchange price have baen made up to 30" November 2018,

The convertible bonds may be redeemed at par at the Company’s option subject to the Company's crdinary share price having traded at
i 30% above the conversion price for a specified period. or at any time once 85% of the convertible bonds have been traded or cancelled.
i If not previously converted, redesmed or purchased and cancelled, the convertible bonds will be redeemed at par on 6" March 2019,

i Atotal of £100.0m nominal vakue of the convertible bonds were issued and remain outstanding at 30" Novermber 2018, The convertible

i bonds are designated as at fair value through profit of loss and s are presented on the balance sheet at fair value with alt gaing and losses
i taken to the income statement through the movement in fair value of derivative financial instruments line. At 30™ November 2016 the fair

! value of the convartible bonds was £96.4m (2015: £104.1m) with the change in fair value charged to the income statement. The convertible
I bonds are listed on the Official List of the Channel Islands Security Excharge.

b. Derivative financial instruments

The Group's derivative financial instruments, which are classified as fair value through profit or loss, consist of sterfing denominated interest
¢ swaps. The change In fair value of all derivative financial instruments charged or credited to the Group income staterment is disclosed in note
¢ 4. Further detail of the instruments held by the Group are detailed below:

Sterling denominated interest rate swaps from fixed rate to floating rate

Following the issue of the convertible bonds disclosed above, the Group was in an over-hedged position with an excess of debt at fixed

i rate. In order to reduce the level of fixed rate borrowings an interest rate derivative financial instrument was entered into to swap the interest
! rate in the convertible bonds from a fixed rate of 2.875% o a floating rate of 6 month LIBOR plus 1.43% through to its third anniversary in

i March 2017,

Sterling denominated interest rate swaps from floating rate to fixed rate

! These swaps hedge the Group's floating rate bank dabt as at 30" Novemnber 2016, The fixed rates for these swaps range from 0.49% to

| 5.168% (2015: 2.01% to 5.16%;} and details of their maturity profile are given below. Certain of the interest rate swaps are extendable at the
bank’s option; the tables beiow therefore show the dates of normal termination and extended termination. The weighted average maturity

i of the interest rate swaps below to the earliest termination date is 3.6 years (2015: 2.0 years).

2016 2015
- 7a;liesi Vlermin‘cltion o -_l alest lermination Earlest termination Latest ter_rrﬁatior-l

n om %! EmM % m ‘To B L‘r-n_ 7%
Less than one year - 1.0 487 1.0 2.01 500 306 400 254
One to two years - - 10.0 5.16 20.0 2,01 200 2.01
Two to three years 50.0 3.00 50.0 3.00 - - 100 516
i Three to four years 10.0 1.60 10.0 1.60 50.0 3.00 50.0 3.00
Four to five years 84.0 1.26 840 1.26 10.0 1.80 10.0 1.80
P 1550 210 1550 240 1300 276 1300 276

{1} Weighted average interest rate,
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; Forward starting sterling denominated interest rate swaps from floating rate to fixed rate

These swaps provide continuity of hedging beyond the term of the interest rate swaps applicable as at 307 November 2016 and increase
i interest rate certainty through to bank facility renewal dates. The fixed rates for these swaps range from 2.90% to 2.97% (2015: 272% to
i 2.87%) and details of their maturity profile are given below.
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2015 2015
: m Vo om 2
Commencing in less than one year,
¢ terminating in two to three years 25,0 2.96 - -
Commencing in one to two yaars,
terminating in two to three years - - 15.0 272
Commencing in cne to two years,
terminating in three to four years - - 250 296
Commencing in less than one year,
terminating in more than five years - - 20.0 290
25.0 2.96 60.0 2.88
(1) Weighted average interest rate,
¢. Obligations under finance leases
Finance lease liabilities payable in respect of certain leasehold investment properties are as follows:
o o - 2016 o 2015 -
Minimum lease Minimum lease
payrments Interast Principal payrments Interest Principal
m £m £m £m m £m
Less than one year 27 2.3 0.4 2.7 23 0.4
Between one and five years 13.6 1.2 24 13.6 11.4 2.2
More than five years 163.7 109.7 54.0 164.2 M7 52.5
Total 180.0 123.2 56.8 180.5 1254 551

Finance leases are for periods of up to 999 years from inception and a discount rate of 6.0% (2015: 6.0%) has been used to derive the fair
value of the principal amount outstanding. All lease obligations are denominated in stering.

15. Operating leases

Operating lease commitments where the Group is the lessee

The Group leases certain of its premises, maotor vehicles and office equipment under operating leases. Future aggregate minimuim lease
i rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m

In one year or less ) B 1.5 0.9
Between one and five years 241 24

In five years or more . 0.1 0.2
Total min'irrﬁ-xr-n iease rentals payable o o 3-.-7__ 35

Operating leases where the Group is the lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties under operating leases. The future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable
i operating leases are as follows:

2016 2015

£m £rm

In one year or 1ess ) 43.6 557
Between one and five years 126.4 1561
In five years or more L 743.4 4314
Total mihimum Iease?entalgs payable o 913.4 643.2

Contingent rents, calculated as a percentage of turnaver for a limited number of tenants, of £0.7m {2015: £0.7m) were recognised during

i the year.
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Notes to the Group financial statements
far the year ended 30" November 2016
continuccd

16. Financial instruments

a. Categories and classes of financial assets and liabilities

06 2015
Financial assets £m £m
Lcans and receivables:” -
Cash and cash equivalents 4.2 438
Trage and other receivables 86.7 551
Fair value through profit or loss:
¢ Derwvative financial instruments 1.6 0.8
| Total financial assets _ S 92.5 807
- 2016 w5
Financial liahiliies 2m £
Amortised cost:™ -
Bank lcans and overdrafts 294.2 2677
Retail bend 80.0 80.0
Trade and other payables 96.0 86.5
Other payables on deferred terms 123 20.2
Finance lease liabilities (head rents) 56.8 551
Fair value through profit or logs:™
Convertible bonds 96.4 104.1
i Derivative fimancial instrumeants 8.8 20
| Total financial liabilites 6445 6218

{1) The directors consider that the carrying amount recordead in the inancial statements approximates tharr fair value.

{2) Fair values are calculated using quoted market prices relevant for the term and instrurnent.

! Trade and other receivables above comprise other debtors, trade receivables and amounts due from joint ventures as disclosed in note 11,

for current and non-current amounts, after deduction of £13.9m (2015: £15.8m) of non-financial assets.

Trade and other payables above comprise trade payables, amounts due from joint ventures and cther payables and accrued expenses
i as disdiosec in note 13, for current and non-current amounts, after deduction of £45.8m (2015: £43.0m) of non-financial lisbilities.

i Derivative financial instruments and the convertible bonds are externally valued based on the present value of future cash flows estimated
i and discounted based on the applicable vield curves derived from market expectations for future interest rates at the balance sheet date.
¢ Where applicable, the value of early termination or conversion options in favour of the issuing party are included in the external valuations.
i The following table sets out the net assets and liabilities in respect of financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss:

205

2016

m £m
Derivative financial ‘rnstrumen;a_ééets Level 2 - 1.6 6.87
Derivative financial instrument liabilities Level 2 (8.8) B.0
Convertible bonds liability Level 2 (96.4) {104.1)
) o B (103.6) g
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i b. Risk management objectives

Capital risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in the Group will be able to continue as a geing concern while maximising the
i retum to sharsholders through the optimisation of the debt and eguity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists of debt (as
i disclosed in note 14), cash and cash equivalents and equity, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained eamings as disclosed in the

Group statement of changes in equity.

Market risk

Market risk is the potential adverse change in the Group's income or the Group's net worth arising from movements in intarest rates or other
i market prices. Interest rate risk is the Group's principal market risk and the Group is exposed to interest rate risk as some of its borrowings

! are at varlable nterest rates. The Group uses a combination of variable rate borrowings and interest rate swaps to manage the risk.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity, after tax, to a 1% change in interest rates based on year end levels of delbt:

2016 2015
1% INCrease N nterest rates Em £m
Interest on borrowings {2.3) o H
Fffect of interest rate swaps 0.4 0.2
Net impact on profit (15}777 (E
- 2016 2015
12z decrease in nterest rates £m £m
Interest on borrowings B o -2.3 21
Effect of interest rate swaps (0.4) 0.2}
Nef imaééi_on pfofit 1.9 1.9

. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss where counterparties are not able to meet their obligations as they fall due.

The cradit risk on the Group's liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with strong
¢ (generally A and above) credit ratings. Bank deposits are only placed with banks in accordance with Group policy that specifies minimum

¢ credit rating and maximum exposure. Credit risk on derivatives is closely monitored.

Trade and other receivables consist of amounts due from a large number of parties spread across geographical areas. The Group does
¢ not have any significant concentrations of credit risk as the tenant base is large and diverse with the largest individual tenant accounting

i for £7.2m (2015: £4.0m) of gross rental income.

The carrying amount of financial assets, as detailed above, represents the Group's maximum exposure 1o credit risk at the reporting date.

Included within trade and other receivables is £0.6 (2015: £0.4m} which is provided against as it represents estimated irecoverable amounts.
i This allowance has been determined by a review of all significant balances that are past due considering the reason for non-payment and
the creditworthiness of the counterparty. A reconciliation of the changes in this account during the year is provided below:

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Al start of year
impairment losses recognised
Amouritg written off ag uncollectable

impairment losses reversed

At end of year

2016 2015
om £m
0.4 0.6
0.4 0.4
(0.1) 0.4
(0.1) (0.2)
0.6 0.4

Trade and other receivables include £1.5m (2015; £20.8m) which are past due as at 30" November 2016 for which no provision has been
i made because the amounts are considered recoverable. The following table provides an ageing analysis of these balances:

Number of days pasl dug but not impaired

1-30 days
: 31-60 days
i B0days+

PG
£m

0.5
0.2
0.8

1.5
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016
continucd

16. Financial instruments continued

: Liquidity risk

: Uguidity risk is the risk that the Group does not have sufficient financial resources available to meet its obligations as they fall due.

¢ The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, matching the maturity prefiles of financial
¢ assets and liabilities and through the use of fixed rate bilateral faciities, overdrafts and cash with a range of maturity dates to ensure

I continuity of funding.

The maturity profile for the cash flows of the Group's non-dervative financial liabilities, on an undiscounted basis is as follows:

o i 2016
Less than Cneto Three months One o More than

one month thres months 10 one vear fve yoars e years lotal

m om em £m | £

Bank loans and overdrafts and bonds 0.6 3.5 12.0 533.3 - 549.4

Trade and other payables 60.3 3.6 3241 - - 96.0

Finance leases — minimum lease

i payments (note 14) 0.7 - 2.0 13.6 163.7 180.0

¢ Other payables on deferred terms - - 8.7 3.6 - 12.3

: 61.6 71 54.8 550.5 163.7 837.7

o B 2015
Less than One to Three months Oneta Maore than
ane month three months to one yoar five years five years Total  :
Cm i em £m Enj ) 2

Bank loans and overdrafts and bonds 1.2 27 1.6 4525 375 505.5

Trade and other payables 573 5.8 233 - - 86.4
Finance leases — minimum lease payments

(note 14) o7 - 2.0 136 164.2 180.5

Other payables on deferred terms - - 174 31 o - 20.2

59.2 85 54.0 469.2 2am.y 7926

The Group's approach to cash flow, financing and bank covenants is discussed further in the financial review section of the Strategic report.

. 17. Share capital
' 2018 o - 2015
Ordinary 1();&3?#&% o Equity share capgril Ordinary 10;?\]&5?;"1&25; Equity share caprétgwlr
At start of vear o 221,876,988 222 001,376,988 221
lssue of shares - - 500,000 01
Atend of year 221,876,988 22.2 001,876,988 202

¢ During the year ended 30" November 2015, the Group issued 500,000 Ordinary shares of 10p sach at par. The shares were allotted
i and issued to The St. Modwen Properties PLC Employea Share Trust to satisfy the exercise of awards made under the Company’s

i share-based incentive arrangements. No shares were issued during the year ended 30" Novermber 2016. See note 3d for detalls

¢ of outstanding options to acquire ordinary shares.

Excluding 269,334 (2015: 650,274} of own shares held by The St. Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust, shares in issue
at 30" November 2016 are 221,607,654 (2015: 221,186,714).
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i 18. Pensions

The Group operates a UK based pension scheme, the St. Modwen Pension Scheme, with both defined benefit and defined contribution
i sections. The defined bensfit section is closed to new members and, from 1+ September 2009, future accrual. The Group income
¢ statement includes the following charges:

2018 2015

£m £m

Defined benefit section 0.3 0.2
Defined contribution section 0.8 0.7

The St. Modwen Pension Scheme is governed by the trustee company, St. Modwen Pensions Ltd. It is regulated by the UK regulatory
i regime. overseen Dy the Pensions Regulator.

The last formal actuarial valuation of the scheme was at 5™ April 2014, when the market value of the net assets of the scheme was £38m and
i the funding level was 97% based on the Trustees’ proposed assumptions for technical provisions. The main actuarial assumptions were:

“o pEr annum

Investment rate of return (pre-retirement} 56
Investment rate of return (post-retirerment) 38
Increase in pensions 27

i Funding policy
As the scheme is almost fully funded, the current schedule of contributions requires the Group to fund the Scheme to such an extent as to

cover administrative expenses only. The contribution for year ended 30" Novemnber 2017 is expected to be Cnil, consistent with the current
i year contributions of £nil. From 1¢ January 2015 the administrative expenses were met by 5t. Madwen Properties PLC.

The actuaria valuation of the defined benefit section, a final salary scheme, was updated to 30" Novermber 2016 on an IAS basis by a qualified
i independant actuary. The valuation was performed using the Projected Unit Credit Method under 1AS 19 Employee Benefts. The major
i assumptions used by the actuary were:

2016 2015
Rate of increase in defe-rred pensions o 240 210
Rate ofincrease in pensions in payment {pre 6 April 1997 benetits) 2.55 3.00
Rate of increase in pensions in payment (post 5 April 1997 benefits) 3.30 310
Discount rate 2.80 3.50
Inflation assumption 2.40 210

! Following the closure of the defined benefit section to future accrual, the assurnption regarding the rate of increase in salaries is no longer
i applicable as retirement benefits wilt be based on salaries at 317 August 2009. Benefits earned up to the point of the scheme closure

i will be protected and will be increased in line with inflation, subject to a maximum of 5% per annum. From 2010 the basis of the inflation

¢ assumption has been amended, in line with market practice, from the Retail Price Index to the Consumer Price Index.

The mortality rates adopted are from the VITA Tables with CMI_2013 ‘core’ projections and a long-term improverment of 1% pa with peaked
i short-term improvernents and improvements remaining level at the oldest ages. The resultant assurmptions are, for example:

= Average future life expectancy (in years) for a pensioner aged 65 at 30" November 2016: 23.2 (male} and 24.0 (female).
= Average future life expectancy (in years) at age 65 for a non-pensioner aged 40 at 30" Novermniber 2016: 24.1 (maleg) and 26.3 (female).
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016
continued

18. Pensions continued

Analysis of the fair value of assets

2016 2015
£ £m
Equities: o -
UK aquity 3.5 4.2
Overseas equity 2.5 2.4
Debt securities:
UK corporate bonds 6.9 7.0
Overseas corporate bonds 1.9 1.2
UK Government bonds 0.3 04
UK index-linked gilts 10.0 83
Property 4.7 53
Infrastructure 0.3 04
Cash 1.3 06
Fair value of assets o - - 314 29.8
i Actuarial value of liabilities (29.4) 278 !
LUnrecognised surplus (2.0 (2.3)

Recocgnised surplus in the scheme - -
Related deferred tax liability o - _

Fair value of pension asset net of deferred tax 7 - -

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses (before the unrecognised surplus of £2.0m} recorded in the Group statement
i of comprehensive income is a logs of £3.4m (2015: £0.1my.

Analysis of the amounts recognised in the Group income statement

2016 2015
£2rm m
Reé&g}ﬁ?s_éd W|th|n acT ministrative expenses S
Current service cost and total operating charge {0.4) 0.3)
Recognised within finance costs and %i-l:lé_nce |nco;ne ) -
Interest inccme on scheme assets 1.0 11
Interest on pension scherme liabiliies o {0.9) (1.0
Total net interest " 01 01
Total 0.3 0.2)
The actual return on pension scheme assets was a gain of £3.5m (2015: £1.3m).
Analysis of the amount recognised in the Group statement of comprehensive income
LT - 2016 o5
£m 2m
The retumsﬁdﬁ échemé f-a-ssets {excluding amounts included in net inté-r-e-st) 25 0.2
Experience gains and losses arising on fair value of scheme liabilities 0.4 05
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumpticns (3.3) 0.2)
Change in unrecognised surplus 0.3 0.6)
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit asset - - - 777(0.1) {C)

146 5t. Modwen Properties PLC
Annual report and financial statements 2016



: Analysis of the movement in the present value of the scheme liabilities

2016 2015
£m £
At start of year - ' 27.5 286
Interest cost 0.9 1.0
Experience gains and losses arising on fair value of scheme liabilities {0.4) 0.5)
i Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assurmptions 33 0.2
© Benefits paid (1.9) (1.9
-A_t end of year - S ' N 29.4 o 2%?
Analysis of the movement in the fair value of the scheme assets
: oo 205
£m £m
At start of year o ) 7 29.8 30.3
Interest income 1.0 11
Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest 25 0.2
Benefits paid {1.9) (1.8)
At énd of year 31.4 o 29.-8_
Information about the defined benefit obligation
- 2018 20
Lability splt Duration Liability spht Duration
% Years % Years
Active members ’ - - - -
Deferred members 36 19 34 20
Pensioners 64 " 66 12
Total - ' ) 100 14 100 s

: Risk factors
! The Group is exposed to a number of risks related to its defined benefit scheme, the most significant of which are detalled below.

Asset volatility

! Pension scheme liabilities are calculated using discount rates set with reference to bond vields. If the assets within the scheme deliver a retum
I which is lower than the discount rate this will create or increase a deficit within the scheme. This risk is reduced by holding a significant proportion
i of the scheme assets in matching assets (bends or similar). As the scheme matures, 1 is anticipated that this proportion wil increase to

¢ better match the assets and liabiities of the scheme.

Changes in bond yields

A decrease in bond yields will typically increase liahilities, although this will be partially offset by an appreciation in the value of scheme
i assets held in bonds.

Inflation risk

As the pension obligations are linked to inflation, higher inflation expectations will lead to higher liabilities. The asset portfoiio includes
i a significant proportion of inflation linked bonds to reduce this risk.

. Member longevity
The pension obligations provide benefits for the life of the members, therefore increases in life expectancy will result in an increase
i in liabilites {and vice-versa).
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016
continued

18. Pensions continued

Sensitivity analysis

Change in assumptions compared with 30" November 2016 actuarial agsumptions:

» A(.5% decrease in the discount rate would increase the actuarial value of liabilities by £2.1m to £31.5m.

» A one-year increase in life expectancy would increase the actuarial value of liabilities by £0.9m to £30.3m.

= A 0.5% increase in the inflaticn rate would increase the actuarial value of liabilities by £71.4m to £30.8m.

» A (0.5% increase in the rate of increase in deferred pensions would ingrease the actuarial value of liabilities by £0.2m to £29.6m.

= A(.6% increase in the rate of increase in pensions in payments would Increase the actuarial value of liabilities by £1.2m to £30.6m.

19. Capital commitments

At 30" Novernber 2016 the Group had contracted capital expenditure of £21.6m (2015: £12.2m), In addition the Group’s share
¢ of the contracted capital expenditure of its joint venture undertakings was £8.9m (2015: £1.4m). All capital commitments relate
¢ toinvestment properties.

. 20. Contingent liabilities

The Group has a joint and several unlimited liability with VINCI plc and the Ministry of Defence under guarantees in respect of the financial

i performance of V5M Estates (Holdings) Ltd (VSM). This is a guarantee in the ordinary course of business and would require the guarantors
; to step into VSM's place in the event of a default on Project MoDEL. Completion of the project is not considered onerous as the forecast

i revenues exceed the anticipated costs and it is not expected that there would be any net outflow in this regard.

The Group, together with VINCI plc has orovided a joint and several parent company guarantees in respect of the £26.3m bank facility
provided to VSM Estates {Uxbridge) Ltd, a subsidiary of VSM Estates Uxbridge (Group) Lid.

The Group. together with VINC! plc, has provided a joint and several guarantees in respest of the obligations of VEGM (NCGM) Ltd relating

i 10 the recevelopment of New Covent Garden Market, London, This is a guarantee in the ordinary course of business and would reguire the
i guaraniors to comply with the terms of the development agreement and tc indemnify Covert Garden Market Authority against any breach
: of those terms.

The Group, together with Salhia Real Estate K.S.C. has provided a parent company guarantee in respect of the £80.0rm bank facility
i provided to Key Property Investrments Ltd. The guarantee provided by the Group is capped at 50% of the total commitment under the
agreement from time to time, limiting the Group guarantee to £40.0m as at 30" Novernber 2016,

St. Modwen Properties PLC has guaranteed the liabilities of the following subsidiaries in order that they qualify for the exemption from
i audit under Section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006 In respect of the year ended 30" November 2016

Name of subsidiary 7 Cormpany }egistratm H
Blackpole Trading Estate (1978) Lid - - 00581658
Boughton Holdings 04112012
Broomiford Vange Ltd 05687168
Festival Waters Ltd 04354481
Holaw (462) Ltd 03666441
Shaw Park Developments Ltd 04625000
St. Modwen Developments {Meon Vale) Ltd 05294589
St. Modwen Securities Lid 00460301
St. Modwen Developments (Connan's Quay) Ltd DE726352
St. Modwen Developments (Eccles) Ltd 05867740
St. Modwen Developments (Hillington) Lid 04150262
St. Modwen Developments (Holdemass) Ltd 05726985
St. Modwen Developments (Hully Ltd 05593517
St. Modwen Developments (Kirkby 2) Ltd 09746395
St. Modwen Developments (Longbridge) Lid 02885028
St. Modwen Developments (Telford) Lid 05411357
St. Modwen Developments (Weston) Ltd 05411348
St. Modwen Investments Ltd 00528657
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. 21. Related party transactions

i Al related party transactions irvolving directors, and those involving a change in the level of the Group's interest in non-wholly owned
¢ subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are specifically reviewed and approved by the Board. Monitering and management of

¢ transactions between the Group and its non-wholly owned subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is delegated 10 the executive

! drectors. All related party transactions are clearly justified and beneficial to the Group, are undertaken on an arm's langth basis on

¢ fully commercial terms and in the normal course of business. Related party transactions are detailed as folows:

: Joint ventures and associates

The following table sets out the income and expenditure with joint ventures and associates during the year, together with the balances
i outstanding at the year-end:

2016

s
Virl\ra‘i;agé—i B i Manage - -

Teone  mteme epad recevibe neome meome repad recowatle

l‘exneﬂé‘ﬁ: lexpe%ﬁ lprovidgg:: (payaté\r(i (expergﬁl [expen{sr? (providgﬂq} [paya%lli)
Barton Business Park Lid - - - @ - - - (3.8)
Key Property Investments [td 0.7 - 1.0 1.0 0.4 - - 1.3
Meaford Energy Lid - - (0.2) 0.5 - - {0.3) 0.3
Meaford Land Ltd - - {(0.1) 0.1 - - - -
Skypark Development Partnership LLP™" - 0.1 0.5 1.5 - 0.1 (©.6) 19
VEM (NCGM) Ltd - 2.2 (17.6) 24.4 - - (1.7} 46
VSM Estates (Ashchureh) Lid - - - 0.2 - - - 0.2
VSM Estates (Holdings) Ltd - 0.4 - - - 11 - 0.4
VSM Estates Uxbridge (Group) Ltd™ - 25 (0.2) 249 - 2.6 - 22.2
Wrexham Land Ltd - - - 0.1 - - - 0.1
Wrexham Power Ltd - - (0.3) 1.5 - - 0.2) 1.2
- o7 52  (169)  50.4 04 38 2.8) 276

{1} Included within the balance due to the Group at the year-end was £1.5m {2010: £1.4m) of loan notes.

(2] Included wathin the balance due to the Group at the year-end was £6.0m (2015: £26.0my) of loan notes.

i Pension

The Group occupies offices owned by the St. Medwen Pansion Scheme with an annual rental payable of £0.1m {(2015: £0.1m). The balance
¢ due from the Group at year end was £0.1m {2015: £ni).

Non-wholly owned subsidiaries

i The Company provides administrative and management services and provides a central purchase ledger system to subsidiary companies.

i Inaddition, the Company also operates a central treasury function which lends to and borrows from subsidiary undertakings as appropriate.
: The following table sets out the income and expenditure during the year, together with the balances cutstanding at the year-end, with

i subsidiaries in which the Company has a less than 20% interest:

2016 2015
Interest incomer Balance recevable’ Interest ncome!’ _B_a\an_c-e rc:ma&»
fexpenss) (payable) [expense) ipayable
fm £m £m m
Nortbn éipr(;%irtt'aavelopments Lid a - o 757.%77 o -0.8
Stoke-on-Trent Regeneration (Investments) Ltd - (0.6} - (0.6}
Stoke-on-Trent Regeneration Ltd 04 {21.0} 02 21.7)
i Uttoxeter Estates 1td - 1.9 - -
| Widnes Regeneration Ltd - {1.5) - 20
- - __021 (15.5) O.é_ W(VETO)

Al amounts due to the Group are unsecured, will be settled in cash and are stated before provisions for doubtful debts of £nil (2015: £nil).
No guarantees have been given or received from related parties.
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016
continued

. 21. Related party transactions continued
Transactions in which directors have an interest

Branston Properties Lid

During the year ending 30™ November 2015, £0.1m was paid by the Group as consideration for the acauisition of the remaining 12.5%
i of the issued share capital at market value of Branston Properties Ltd, a company of which Simon Clarke was & shareholder. No amounts
were paid during the year ending 30" November 2016.

| Key management personnel

The directors are considered to be the Group’s key management personnel and their remuneration is disclosed in the Directors’
i remuneration report,
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. Company balance sheet
_as at 30" November 2016

2016 2015
Notes £ £m
Non-éarrent'a;seitsﬁ o - o
Investment properties B 0.3 0.3
Operating pfant and egquipment G 0.5 06
Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures D] 735.7 1.037.2
Trade and other receivables E 6.0 6.0
Deferred tax F 2.8 27
- - 745.3 B 77,(7)46.8
Current assets
Trade and other recsivables E 967.2 608.6
Derivative financial instruments 0.8 0.8
Tax receivables 4.5 18.9
Cash and cash eguivalents 4.0 37
- 976.5 632.0
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables G (350.0) 1339.9
Derivative financial instruments (8.8) (17.0}
o o (358.8) (3569
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings H (407.8) (354.3)
S - (407.8) (354.3)
Net assets o o @552 9676
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 222 22.2
Share premium account 102.8 102.8
Retained earnings 3501 249
Fair value reserve 429.6 767.3
Share incentive reserve 4.9 52
Own shares (0.6) (1.0}
Other reserves 46.2 o 46.2
Total equity o _ 955.2 967.6

These financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 6" February 2017.

Rob Hudson
Group Finance Director

. Mark Allan
i Chief Executive

| Company Number: 00349201
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. Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30" November 2016

Share Share

[rernmiurm Retainecd Far value INCent e Other
Share capial Account Sarmngs reserve reserve  Owin shares reserves  Total eguity

H °m m im im £m £m £ jx
Equity at 20" Novernber 2014 221 1028 482 5269 48 A8 462 7492
Profit for the year attributable to sharehoiders - - 2378 - - - - 237.8

; Peansion fund actuarial losses (note 18] - - (0.1} - - - - {00

P Total comprehensiv;a income for the year - - 2377 - - - - 2377
Fquityissue note 179 0 - - - - oy - -
Share-based payments - - (8.6) - 0.4 - - (8.2)
Share transfers - - 0.9 - - 0.9 — -
Transfer of unrealised gains to fair
value reserve - - (240.4) 240.4 - - - -
Bividends paid rote 7} - - (1.7) - - - - mi
Equity at 30" November 2015 222 1028 249 7673 5.2 (1.0) 462 9676
Profit for the year attributable to
shareholders - - 0.5 - - - - 0.5
VPension fund actuarial losses (note 18) - - {0.1) - - - - {0.1)
Total comprehensive income for S
the year - - 04 - - - - 0.4
Share-based paymentsm - . - - - 1.6 - - TG_
Deferred tax on share-based payments - - - - (0.8) - - (0.8)
Settlement of share-based payments - - {0.1) - (1.1) 0.4 - (0.8)
Transfer of unrealised losses to fair

i value reserve - - 337.7 {337.7) - - - -

Dividends paid {note 7) - - {12.8) - - - - {12.8)
Equity at 30" November 2016 222 1028 35041 4206 49  (0.6) 462  955.2

Own shares represent the cost of 269,334 (2015: 690,274) shares held by The St. Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust.
i The open market value of the shares held at 30" Novernber 2016 was £754,135 (2015: £2,985,435). In addition the Trust has £0.1m
i (2015: £0.1m) of cash and an intercompany recaivable of £14.8m (2015: £13.8m), that can only be used for the benefit of employees.

The other reservas cornprise a capital redemption reserve of £0.3m (2015: £0.3m} and the balance of net proceeds in excess of the
i nominal value of shares arising from an equity placing in 2013 of £456.9m (2015: £45.9m).

Unrealised gains and losses arising from the revaluations of investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures and investment properties
¢ are recognised with profit for the year and subsecuently transferred to the fair value reserve,
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- Company accounting policies
for the year ended 30" November 2016

Basis of preparation

The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework as issued by the
i Financial Reporting Coungil as it applies to the Company for the year ended 30" Novernber 2016, applied in accerdance with the provisions
i of the Companies Act 2006.

Tre financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the revaluation of certain properties, derivative financial
i instruments, the convertible bonds and the defined berefit section of the Company’s pension scheme.

i The Company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 Application of Financial Reporting Requirernents. Accordingly.

i in the year ended 30" November 20186, the Company has changed its accounting framawaork from UK GAAP to FRS 107, In doing so,
I the Company has applied the requirements of IFRS 1.6 - 33 and related appendices, but has taken advantage of the exempticn in

i FRS 101 (September 2015) not to present a third statement of financial position. For more information see note J.

The Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions included within paragraph & of FRS 101. The main impact of these
i disclosure exemptions is that these separate financial statements do not include a cash flow staternent, financial instruments and related
i party disclosures and comparative informaticn for plant and equipment and investment properties.

Certain disclosures required for the Company are included within the Group financial statements and are therefore not repeated within these
! separate financial statements. Specifically, the folowing information relevant to the Company is found in the respective notes to the Group
i financial statements:

= Share-based payments (note 3d)

» Dividends (note 7)

= Share capital (note 17)

= Pensions {note 18)

= Contingent liablities (note 20)

= Related party transactions (ncte 21)

As explained above, the Company has adopted FRS 101 for the first time in the current year. As part of this adoption, all IFRS Standards
i and Interpretations applicable for the year ended 30" November 2016 have been appfied 1o these financial statements.

The Company’s functional and presentational currency is pounds sterling and its principal accounting policies are as set out for the Group
i on pages 114 10 120, except for the additional policy below:

Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

i The Company recognises its investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures using the equity method of accounting. Under the squity

¢ method, the interast in the subsidiary or joint venture is carried in the Compary balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in

i the Company’s share of its nat assets, less distributions received and less any impairment in value of individual investrents. The income
statement reflects the Company’s share of the subsidiary's or joint venture's results after interest and tax.
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. Notes to the Companx financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016

A. Income statement disclosures

a. Result for the financial year

The Company has taken advantage of Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not included its own income statement or
! statement of comprehensive income in these financial statements. The Company's profit for the year ended 30" November 2016

: was £0.5m (2015: £237.8m).

b. Auditor’s remuneration

The table below sets out the fees pavable to the Company's auditor and their associates for the following senvices:

- 208 ots -
Aulcht and Audit and
aucht-related aucht-relatod
ervices Other services Total SEFVICES Oiher services Total
000 Co0n £7000 £000 000 £o00
The audit of the Company's Annual Report
and financial statements 130 - 130 125 - 125
Total audit fees 130 - 130 125 - 125
Audit-related assurance services 50 - 50 50 - 50
Other assurance services 25 - 25 3 - 3
Tax compliance services - - - - 16 16
Tax advisory services - - - - 20 20
Cther - 2 2 - 2 2
Total non-audit fees 75 2 . 77 53 38 N
Total fees 205 2 207 178 38 218

. B. Investment property
The fair value of long leasehold investment property at 30" November 2016 was £0.3m (2015: £0.3m).

Investment properties were valued at 30" November 2016 and 30" November 2015 by Cushman & Wakefield, Chartered Surveyors,
i in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, on the basis of market value.

i Cushman & Wakefield are professionally gualified independent external valuers and had appropriate recent experience in the relevant
i location and calegory of the properties being valued,

The historical cost of investment properties at 30 November 2016 was £0.7m (2015: £0.7m).

C. Operating plant and equipment

°m

Cost

At 30" November 2015 3.8
Additions 0.4
At 30" November 2016 o 4.2
Depreciation

At 30" Novermber 2015 3.2 _
Charge for the vear 0.5
At 30" November 2016 Y
Net book value

At 30" November 2015 ) 0.6
At 30" November 2016 0.5
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. D. Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Valuation

Cost
Investrnent in Investment Investrment in Investment

subsilianes N jeint ventures Total subsianes 0 joint ventures Total

P £m m 7£m em g
At 30" November 2015 26.5 304.9 777.0 260.2 1,037.2
. Changes to cost (1.2) 36.2 374 {1.2} 36.2
Revaluation of investments - - {263.5) _{74.2) {337.7)
At 30" November 2016 315.8 25.3 3441 550.9 184.8 735.7

The following is a list of all subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures and associates owned by the Company or Group at 30" November 2016.
i Unless otherwise stated, all are incorporated in England and Wales with registered office at Park Point, 17 High Street, Longbridge, Birmingham
B31 2UQ. The share capital of each of the companies, where applicable, comprises of ordinary shares.

Proportion of Progortion of
Cormpany entity owned  entity owned by
registration  direclly by the  a subsidiary of

P MName number Cormpary  the Company

_Wholi_)(?\n_rﬁa subsidiariesr -

' Blackpole Trading Estate (1978) Lid 00581658 100.0% 0.0%
Blue lce (Widnes) Ltd 06180283 0.0% 100.0%
Boltro Properties Ltd 02616865 C.0% 100.0%
Boughton Enterprises Ltd 05068420 0.0% 100.0%
Boughton Holdings 04112012 0.0% 100.0%
Branston Properties Ltd 02893827 0.0% 100.0%
Broomford Vange Ltd 05697168 0.0% 100.0%
Chaucer Estates Ltd 00456386 100.0% 0.0%
Chertsey Road Property Ltd 26899060 0.0% 100.0%
Coed Darcy Estates Management Ltd (7848407 0.0% 100.0%
Coed Darcy Management Ltd 06477385 100.0% 0.0%
Festival Waters Lid 04354481 100.0% 0.0%
Glan Liyn Management Lid 07848409 100.0% 0.0%
Great Yarmouth Regeneration Ltd 05594264 100.0% 0.0%
Heenan Group Pensicns Lid 00548316 100.0% 0.0%
Holaw 462) Lid 03656441 0.0% 100.0%
Killingholme Energy Ltd 08320277 0.0% 100.0%
Kilingholme Land Ltd 08320297 0.0% 100.0%
Lawnmark Ltd 04089229 0.0% 100.0%
Leisure Living Ltd 02108984 100.0% 0.0%
Longbridge Innovation Centre Lid 06163526 100.0% 0.0%
Newcastle Regeneration Partnership Ltd 02741086 C.0% 100.0%
Petre Court Management (Nurmber 1) Lid 06160268 100.0% 0.0%
Radclyffe Estates Ltd 05816682 100.0% 0.0%
Redman Heenan Properties Lid 00073265 100.0% 0.0%
Sandpiper Quay (Management Company No.2} Lid 02485456 0.0% 100.0%
Shaw Park Developments Ltd 04625000 0.0% 100.0%
SMP 14H S.arl™ B187462 0.0% 100.0%
Soworest Ltd 02948648 0.0% 100.09%
St Modwen Developments {(Meon Vale) Lid 05294589 0.0% 100.0%
St Modwen Securities Lid 00460301 100.0% 0.0%
St Modwen (SAC1) Lid 08296927 100.0% 0.0%
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LIimate
percentage
holding

Activity

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

Property investment
Dormant

Ceased trading
Daormant

Dormant

Property development
Property investment

Property investment/
development

Dormant

FProperty management
Dormant

Property investment
Property management
Dormant

Dormant

Ceased trading
Property development
Property development
Dormant

Property development
Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Property investment/
dlevelopment

Dormant

Ceased trading
Investment

Property investment
Ceased trading
Property development
Daormant
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016
continued

. D. Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures continued

Froportion of Sroportion of

Company chtity cwned  entity ovened by Uttimate
registration directly by the  a subsichary of percentage
Narme ) L number Company  the Company halding Activity
St. Modwen (SAC2) Ld 08206934 100.0% 00%  1000%  Properly investment
St. Modwen (Shelf 1) Ltd 02741186 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Modwen Corporate Services Ltd 061683437 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Property management
St. Modwen Develepment (Coed Darcy) Ltd 06163563 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Modwen Developments (Bedford) Ltd 05411282 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dorrmant
St Modwen Developments (Belle Valg) Ltd 04145782 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Modwen Developments (Blackburn) Ltd 05732825 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Property investment
St. Modwen Developments (Bognor Regis) Ltd 06160250 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dormant
St Modwen Developments (Brighton West Pier) Ltd 04068008 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dommant
St. Modwen Developments (Chorley) Lid 05727011 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Medwen Developments (Colne) Ltg 05726325 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dormant
St Medwen Developments (Connah's Quay) Ltd 05726352 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Ceased trading
St. Modwen Developments (Cranfisld) Lid 08163509 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Modwen Developments (Daresbury) Lid 06163550 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Modwen Developments (Eccles) Ltd 05867740 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Property investment
St. Modwen Developments (Edmonton) Ltd 02405853 0.0% 100.0% 100.0%  Property investment/
development
St. Modwsn Developments (Facility Services) Ltd (08096358 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Modwen Davelopments (Hatfield) Lid 04354480 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Property investment/
development
St. Modwen Developments (Hilington) Ltd 04150262 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Ceased trading
St. Modwen Developments (Holdermness) Ltd 05726995 100.0% 0.0% 100.0%  Property development
St. Modwen Developments (Hull) Lid 05593517 100.0% 0.0% 100.0%  Property development
St. Mogwen Davelopments (Kirkby 2) Ltd 09746385 0.0% 100.0% 100.0%  Property development
St. Modwen Developments (Longbridge) Ltd 02885028 0.0% 100.0% 100.0%  Property investment/
developrnent
St. Modwen Davelopments (Queens Market) Ltd 05289380 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Modwen Davelopments (Quinton) Ltd 01479159 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% Darmant
St. Modwen Davelopments (Silverstong) Ltd 05594232 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Modwen Developments (Skelmersdale) Lid 06163591 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Darrmant
St. Modwen Developments (St Helens) Lid 05726666 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Modwen Developments (Telford) Lid 05411357 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Ceased trading
St. Modwen Developments (Weston) Ltd 05411348 100.0% 0.0% 100.0%  Property development
St. Modwen Davelopments (Wythenshawe 2 Ltd 05851760 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Mogwen Davelopments (Wythenshawe) Ltd 05594279 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Modwen Developments Ltd 00892832 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Property investrment/
development
St Modwen Holdings Ltd 01991339 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Modwen Homes Ltd 09085820 100.0% 0.0% 100.0%  Property development
St Modwen Hungerford Ltd 08160323 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Modwen Investments Ltd 00528657 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Ceased trading
St. Modwen Neath Canal Lid 06160309 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% Dormant
St. Modwen Pensions Lid 00878604 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% Dormant
St, Modwen Properties 11 S.arl. " B189875 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% Investrent
St. Moawen Properties | S.arl!" B154036 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% Property investment
St. Modwen Properties 1 S.arl.™ B154040 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% Property investrment
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Narne

St Modwen Properties Il S.arl
St. Modwen Properties IV S.arl’
St. Modwen Preperties IX S.arl.
St. Modwen Properties S.arl.”™

St. Modwen Properties Securities (Jersey) Ltd <
St. Modwen Properties V S.arl.»
St. Modwen Properties VI S.arl.”
St. Modwen Properties VI S.arl.’
St. Modwen Properties VIll S.arl™
St. Modwen Properties X S.arl™
St. Modwen Residential Living Ltd
St. Modwen Services Ltd

St. Modwen Ventures Lid

Statedale Ltd

Trentham Gardens Ltd

Trentham Leisure Lid

Tukdev 11 Ltd

Walton Securities Ltd

Woking Developments Ltd

Woodingdean Estate Management Company Ltd

Carnpar,
regisiration

number

' B154089
B154061
B154099
5153339

114977
8154141
B154133
3154003
B154097
B154153

09266033

02885024
01486151

03656832
00533242
03246930
(2885000
02314059
05411325
00293061

Non-wholly owned subsidiaries, with non-controlling interest

Castle Hill Dudley Ltd
Stoke on Trent Regeneration {Investments) Lid
Stoke-on-Trent Regeneration Ltd

Uttoxeter Estates Ltd
Widnes Regeneration Lid
Norton & Proffitt Developments Ltd

The Company of Proprigtors of the Neath
Canal Navigation

Littlecombe Community Interest Company
Joint ventures

Barton Business Park Ltd

Bay Campus Devetopments LLP™

Key Property Investments Lid

Meaford Energy Ltd

Meaford Land Lid

Skypark Development Partnership LLP
Spray Street Quarter LLP*

VSM (NCGM) Litd

VSM Estates (Ashchurch) Lid

V5M Estates (Holdings) Ltd

VEM Estates Uxbridge (Group) Ltd
Wrexham Lang Ltd

Wrexham Power Lid

05411315
042838476
02265579

02725709
03643210
03717397

ZC000173

05896419

03807742
0OC38a022
03372175
08575649
08575760
OC343583
0404205
08333203
(9494284
05867718
08083799
06748467
06762265

Preportion of
entity cwned
direclly by the
Company
0%
0.0%
0.0%
100.0%
100.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

0.0%
0.0%
100.0%
0.0%
100.0%
100.0%
0.0%

81.0%
0.0%
81.0%

81.0%
81.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%
50.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
50.0%
50.0%
50.0%
50.0%
0.0%
0.0%

Proportion of
entity cwned by | imate
atﬁzlzj r()jlo(rjr‘?r;!g pemﬁrﬂgﬁg Activity
) 100.0% 100.0% Property investm(;nt
100.0% 100.0% Ceased trading
100.0% 100.0% Ceased trading
0.0% 100.0% Holding company
0.0% 100.0% Financing company
100.0% 100.0% Ceased frading
100.0% 100.0% Ceased trading
100.0% 100.0% Ceased trading
100.0% 100.0% Property investrment
100.0% 100.0% Ceased trading
0.0% 100.0%  Property management
0.0% 100.0% Dormant
0.0% 100.0%  Property investment/
development
100.0% 100.0% Dormant
100.0% 100.0% Cormant
0.0% 100.0% Property investment
100.0% 100.0% Dormant
0.0% 100.0% Dormant
0.0% 100.0% Dormant
100.0% 100.0% Dormant
0.0% 81.0% Property development
100.0% 81.0% Property investment
0.0% 81.0% Property investment/
development
0.0% 81.0% Property investment
0.0% 81.0% Property development
75.0% 75.0%  Property investment/
davelcpment
64.4% 64.4% Property investment
51.0% 51.0% Property management
50.0% 50.0% Property investment
50.0% 50.0%  Property development
0.0% 50.0% Holding company
50.0% 50.0% Property development
50.0% 500%  Property development
50.0% 50.0%  Property development
50.0% 50.0% Property development
0.0% 50.0%  Property development
0.0% 50.0% Property development
0.0% 50.0%  Property development
0.0% 50.0%  Property development
50.0% 500% Property development
50.0% 50.0%  Property development
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Notes to the Company financial statements

for the year ended 30" November 2016
continued

D. Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures continued

Proportion of Proportien of

Carmpany entity owned  entily owned by Ultmatc
reqislration directly by the  asubsidiary of percentage
Name nurmber Company  the Company holdhing Actrity
Associates - -
Coed Darcy Ltd~ 00577934 0.0% 49.0% 48.0%  Property development
Saxon Business Centre {(Management) Lid 02470756 0.0% 40.0% 40.0% Dormant
Snipe Centre (Management) Ltd (02485535 0.0% 33.3% 33.3% DCormant
Baglan Bay Company Ltd= 06383208 0.0% 25.0% 25.0% Property development
Swan Business Park (Management) Lid 02424524 25.0% 0.0% 25.0% Dormant
111 Ihe registered office of these companics s 121, avenue de la Faienceris. L1511, Luxembourg.
12) The registered office of this company s 47 Esplanade, St Heler, Jersey JL1 0B, United Kingdom,
13) The registered office of this lirmited liability partnership is Finance Department, Swansea Univeraity. Singicton Park, Swansea, Wales SAZ 8PP, United Kingdom
14) The registered office of this imited ability partnership is Bruce Kennck House, 2 Killck Street, London. England N1 9F1 . United Kingdom.
13) The registered office of these companies 1s Dumines Fouse, Dumines Place, Cardiff, South Glamorgan, Wales CF10 37F, United Kingdom
Many of the shareholder agreements for joint ventures and associates contain change of control provisions, &3 is common for
such arrangements.
E. Trade and other receivables
o 216 ZOT
e £m
Non-current
Amounts due from joint ventures 6.0 6.0
Non-currentrlzécei'\r.rables 6.0 6.0
Current
Trade receivables 0.6 0.3
Prepayments and accrued income 5.6 47
Cther debtors 0.4 07
Amounts due from subsidiaries 900.8 569.2
Amounts due from joint ventures B 59.8 343
Current receivables 967.2 B608.6
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F. Deferred taxation

2015

2016
: o om em
Eaiance at start of the y_éar o S 2.7 2.2
. Charged to the Company income statement 0.1 0.5
Balance at end of the year ) 7 2.8 27
An analysis of the deferred tax provided by the Coempany is given below:
- S oo s
I R R
Cther temporary differences (2.8) - (2.8) - (2.7)_ - (2.7
Total deferred tax (2.8) - (2.8) 7) - 27)
G. Trade and other payables
: o - 2016 2015
£m £
Current I
Trade payables 1.4 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries 320.3 311.8
Amaounts due to joint ventures 17.7 15.5
Taxaticn and sccial security 0.9 1.6
Other payables and accrued expenses 9.7 1.0
Curreaﬁpayables o 350.0 3399
. H. Borrowings
T o o 2016 2015
£m em
Non-current S )
i Amounts repayable between two and five years 407.8 316.8
Amounts repayable after more than five years - 375
| Non-current borrowings - 407.8 3543

Whare borrowings are secured, the individua! bank facility has a fixed charge over a discrete portiolio of certain of the Company and its
i subsidiaries’ property assets. All borrowings are secured. other than the retail bond and convertible bond disclosed innote 14.

l. Operating leases

Operating lease commitments where the Company is the lessee

The Company leases certain of its premises, motor vehicles and office equipment under operating leases. Future aggregate minimum lease
i rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as foliows:

In one year or less
Between one and five years
i Infive years or more

Total minimum lease rentals payable

2016
£m

1.5
21
0.1

a7

2015
£m

0.9
24
0.2

25
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MNotes to the Company financial statements
for the year ended 30™ November 2016

contnued

J. Transition to FRS 101

This is the first year that the Company has presented its financial statements in accordance with FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework
¢ issued by the Financial Reporting Council. Previously, the Company reported under UK GAAP. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect
i of the transition to FRS 101 are set cut below:

Company balance sheet as at 1" December 2014:

Reclassification

As restated

As previously reported Transmion eftact” adjustrents under FRS 101
O m £m £m
Non-current assets B
Investment properties 03 - - 0.3
Operating plant and equipment 07 - - 07
Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures 796.8 - - 796.8
Trade and other receivables 2126 - (206.6) 6.0
Deferred tax - - 22 2.2
10104 - @044 8060
Current assets
Trade and other receivanles 335.0 - 206.6 541.6
Derivative financial instruments 1.0 - - 1.0
Tax receivables 12.5 - - 12.5
Deferred tax 2.2 - 2.2) -
Cash and cash eguivalents 3.2 - - 3z
3539 - 204.4 558.3
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables {311.8) - - 311.8)
Borrowings 3.7 - - (3.7)
Derivative financial instruments 13.0) - - {13.0)
T ’ (328.5) - ) - @ess
Non-current liakilites
Borrowings (286.6) - - (286.6)
- (286.6) L - (2866}
Net assets 7482 - - 749.2
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 221 - - 221
Share premium account 102.8 - - 102.8
Revaluation reserve 526.9 (526.9) - —
Retained eamings 48.2 526.9 {(526.9) 48.2
Fair value reserve - - 526.9 526.9
Share incentive reserve 48 - - 4.8
Own shares (1.8) - - (1.8
Other reserves o 46.2 - . - 4Bz
Total equity - o 749.2 - - 749.2
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i Company balance sheet as at 30" Novernber 2015:

Reclassdication A restated
As previously reported Transiton effect” adustments under FRS 101
£ o £m £m
Eﬂ—current assets o - o
Investment properties 0.3 - - 0.3
Operating plant and equipment 0.6 - - 06
Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures 1,037.2 - - 1.037.2
Trade and other receivables 2128 - (206.6) 6.0
Deferred tax - - 27 27
S ) 12507 o - {203.9) o 1,046.8
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 402.0 - 206.6 6086
Derivative financial instruments 08 - - 0.8
Tax receivables 189 - - 189
Deferred tax 27 - 2.7 -
Cash and cash equivalents 37 - - 37
42811 - 203.9 6320
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (339.9) - - (339.9)
Barrowings - - - -
Derivative financial instruments {17.0 - - (17_0)_
o (356.9) - - (356.9)
Non-current liakilities
Borrowings (354.3) - - {354.3)
o (354.3) - - C (3543)
Net assels - 9676 - - - 9eis
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 222 - - 22.2
Share premium account 102.8 - - 102.8
Revaluation reserve 7687.3 (767.3) - -
Retained earmings 24.9 7673 (7687.3) 249
Fair value reserve - - 767.3 7673
Share incentive reserve 52 - - 52
Own shares (1.0 - - (1.0
i Other reserves 45.2 - - 46.2
| Tolalequty 9676 - - 9676
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the year ended 30" November 2016
continued

J. Transition to FRS 101 continued

Cormpany resuit for the vear ended 30" Novermber 2015:

Reclassification As restated

As previously reportedd Transttion effect’ adiustments under FRS 101

£m £m £ e

Result for the year (2.7 240.5 - 237.8

1) Under UK GAAP. the revaluation of investmeants in subsichanes and joint venturas and nvestimeant properties was taken to the revaluation reserve, Under FRS 101, such
revaluations are debited or crediled to the ncome staterment and ncluded within retained earnings. therefore the impact of these current year and cumulative revaluations

15 transterred from the revaluation reserve to the ncome statoment and retained eamings respectively.

21 Under FRS 101, certain ntercormpany balances and deferred tax assets have been reclassfied on the balance sheet to reflect the expected settlernent as due within less
than one year or more than one year, In addition, any cumnulative retained earnings that have been derived from revaluations of investments n subsidiaries and joint venlures
and investment properties are considercd o represent non distnbulable reserves As a resull, these have been transferred from retained earnings to a separate far value

reserve to bettor distinguish those reserves that are distributable,
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 Five year record

2016

o1 2013 2014 2015
m tm Cm e m

Rental income 36.2 36.3 371 387 459
Property profits ™ 29.0 377 51.3 67.4 62.0
Revaluation surplus - 28.0 381 935 2017 4.1
Profit before all tax 52.8 V7.2 1354 2584 60.8
Earnings perf share (pence) 21.3 30.8 -5-3.8 - 97.9—_ 24.;17
Dvidends paid per share (pence) 3.4 375 413 504 5.79
Dividend cover (times) 6.2 8.2 13.0 19.4 4.2
Shareholders' equity net assets per share (pence) 250.8 278.8 3251 413.5 431.0
Increase on prior year 8.2% 11.2% 16.6% 27.2% 4.2%
Net assets employed o
Investment properties 7704 7446 856.8 1,081.0 1,133.0
Investments 75.2 120.1 127.2 2273 184.8
Inventcries 175.2 1097 2010 1837 229.7
Other net liabilities {141.1) (112.9} (101.0) 68.4) (62.2)
Net debt (366.0) 334.9 {360.0) (502.) {523.2)
Minority interests {11.1 {4.5) {5.9) 6.8) 6.9)
Equity attributabl-é to bwners of the Company 502.6 612.1”7 7181 9147 955.2
Financed by
Share capital 20.0 220 22.1 22,2 22.2
Reserves 4831 590.4 697.8 893.5 933.6
Own shares {0.5) 0.3) (1.8} (1.0 (0.6)

' 5026 6121 718.1 9147 955.2

1} Including share of joint ventures and associates.

{
{ (?) Staled before nel realisable value provisions.
f

3] Includling net realisable value provisions and, where applicable, negative goodwill arsing on acquishons as a result of fair value adjustments to property assets.

1} Stated before taxation of joint ventures and associates.

The figures above are all presented uncer IFRSs as restated, where applicable.
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Glossary of terms

Active management/added value — the component of property revaluations delivered as a direct result of management actions and
i initiatives, for example obtaining planning consent, achieving remediation milestones and improving lease terms,

Adjusted gearing - the level of the Group's net borrowings (at amaortised cost and excluding finance leases) expressed as a percentage
¢ of net assets,

Average lease length - the weighted average lease term to the first tenant break.
Cost cover ratio — the ratio of recuning rental and other income to operating costs excluding direct overheads incuned by St. Modwen Homes.

EPRA - the European Public Real Estate Association. a body that has put forward recommendations for best practice in financial reporting
i by real estate companies.

EPRA net asset value (EPRA NAV) - the Group balance sheet net assets, adjusted to include the fair value of inventories and exclude
i deferred tax on capital allowances and revaluations, and mark-to-market of derivative financial instruments,

EPRA net asset value per share — EPRA net asset value divided by the number of ordinary shares in issue at the period end (excluding
i shares held by The St. Modwen Properties PLC Employee Shars Trust).

EPRA triple net asset value (EPRA NNNAV) - the Group balance sheet net assets, adjusted 1o include the fair vaiue of inventories.,

Equivalent yield — a weighted average of the initial yield and reversicnary vield and represents the return a property will produce based
i onthe timing of the income received.

Estimated rental value (ERV) — the Group's external valuers’ opinion as to the open market rent which, on the date of valuation, could
reasonaily be expected to be obtained on a new letting or rent review of the property.

Gearing — the level of the Group's net debt expressed as a percentage of net assets,
Gross development value (GDV) - the sale value of property after construction.

High yielding portfolio — income generating assets with high yields that provide the Group with opportunity for further development
i and value creation in the longer term.

IFRIC - Intermational Financial Reporting Interpretations Comemittee.
IFRSs - International Financial Reporting Standards.
Initial yield - the annualised net rent of a property expressed as a percentage of the property’s valuation.

Interest — net finance costs (excluding the mark-to-market of derivative financial instruments, amortisation of loan arangement fees and
i other non-cash items) for the Group (including its share of joint ventures and associates).

Interest cover — the ratic of operating income less overheads to interest for the Group {including its share of joint ventures and associates).
Investment portfolio — income generating assets where the Group's development and asset management activities are substantially

i complete.

Land bank — 100% of the land and property owned and controlled by the Group together with joint ventures and associates (including land
i under opticn and development agreements).

LIBOR - the London interbank offered rate is the interest rate which banks charge when lending to other banks.

Loan-to-value (LTV} - the level of the Group’s net borrowings expressed as a percentage of the Group’s property portfolio excluding
¢ valued assets held under finance leases (representing amounts that could be used as security of that debt).

Market value — an opinion of the best price at which the sale of an interest in the property would complete unconditionally for cash
i consideration on the date of valuation, as determined by the Group’s external valuers. In accordance with usual practice, the Group’s
i external valuers report valuations net, after the deduction of the prospective purchaser's costs, including stamp duty, agent and legal fees.

Net asset value (NAV) per share — equity attributable 1o owners of the Company divided by the number of ordinary shares in issue at the
i period end {excluding shares held by The St. Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust).

Net borrowings — total borrowings (at amortised cost and excluding finance leases and fair value movements on the Group’s convertible
i bonds) less cash and cash equivalents.

Net debt - total borrowings and finance leases including fair value moverments in the Group's convertible bonds less cash and cash
i equivalents.

Net equivalent vield {NEY} - the weighted average income raturn (after adding notional purchaser’s costs) a property will produce based
i upon the timing of the income received. In accordance with usual practice, the equivalent yields {as determined by the external valuers)
i assume rent is receved annually in arrears.

Net initial yield (NIY) - the yield that would be receivad by a purchaser, based on the current annualised rental income, net of costs,
i expressed as a percentage of the acquisition cost, being the market value plus assumed actual purchasers’ costs at the reporting date.
i The calculation is in ling with EPRA guidance.

Net rental income - the rental income receivable in the period less nen-recoverable property costs for the Group (including its share
i of joint ventures and associates),

Qccupancy rates/levels — the ERV attributable to vacant units as a proportion of total ERV (including the Group’s share of joint ventures
i and assoclates).

1 64 5t. Modwen Properties PLC
Annual report and finanoial staternents 2016



i Operating costs/business running costs - administrative expenses plus net finance costs (excluding the mark-to-market of derivative
i financial instruments, amortisation of loan arrangement fees and other non-cash items) for the Group (ncluding its share of joint ventures
! and associates).

Operating income — the total of net rental Income, other Income and property profits for the Group (including its share of joint venture
i and associates).

Other income — other rental type income generated from the operating assets of the Group (including its share of joint ventures and
i associates).

Persimmon joint venture — a seres of commercial contracts with Persimmon to develop residential units on agreed sites within

i St Modwen's land bank.

Pre-sold properties under construction - those properties we are constructing that have been specified by and designed for, or adapted
¢ by, a specific client under a specific construction contract. On such projects, profit is recognised using the stage completion methed.

Profit before all tax — profit before tax stated before the deduction of tax payable by joint ventures and associates,

Project MoDEL - Project MoDEL originally saw six former London-based RAF sites freed up for disposal and development as the McD
i relocated to an integrated site at RAF Northolt. VINCI St. Modwen (VSM) was appointed by the MoD in 2006 to secure planning consent
i toredevelop the six sites of which VM disposed of four, retaining BAF Mill Hill and BAF Uxbridge. The latter was removed from the MoD
; arangement and transferred to a separate joint venture with VINCI in 2012.

Property portfolio — investment properties and inventories of the Group (including its share of joint ventures and assoeciates) comprising
¢ income producing properties together with residential and commercial land, but excluding assets held under finance leases not subject
i to revaluation and including accrued income relating to lease incentives.

Property profits — development profit (hefore the deduction of net realisable value provisions made during the period) plus gains on
i disposals of investments/rivestrment properties for the Group (including its share of joint ventures and associates),

Rent roll — the gross rent plus rent reviews that have been agreed as at the reporting date.
Reversionary yield - the anticipated vield to which the initial yield will rise or fall once the rent reaches the ERV.
! RICS — Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

Section 106 agreement - planning obligations attached to a development, often improvements to local infrastructure and facilities,
i to ensure that wherever possible a development makes a positive contribution 10 the local area and comimunity.

See-through loan-to-value - the level of the Group’s net borrowings expressed as a percentage of the Group's property portfolio
i excluding valued assets held under finance leases, calculated on a proportionally consolidated basis (including the Group's share of
¢ jts joint ventures and associates).

See-through loan-to-value excluding residential land - the level of the Group's net borrowings expressed as a percentage of the
i Group's property portiolio excluding assets held under finance leases and residential land, calculated on a proportionalty consolidated basis
i {including the Group’s share of its joint ventures and associates).

Serviced land value - the value of the land held at New Covent Garden Market (NCGM) assuming that all the necessary pre-development
i work has been performed and any third party obligaticns had been settled, such that the site was ready for the scheme to be implemented
i (orto be scld to a third party developer to implement).

SIC - Standards and Interpretations Committee.

Total accounting return (TAR) — the increase in EPRA NAV per share for the period, plus dividends paic per share during the period,
i expressed as a parcentage of EPRA NAV per share at the start of the period.

Total shareholder return {TSR) - the growth in value of a sharehclding over a specified period, assuming that dividends are reinvested
i 1o purchase additional units of stock.

Trading profit - operating income less operating costs.

Weighted average term of borrowings - each tranche of the Group's borrowings is multiplied by the remaining pericd te its mafurity
i and the result is divided by total Group borrowings at the period end.

Weighted average interest rate — the Group’s annualised loan interest and derivative financial instrument costs at the period end, divided
i by total Group borrowings at the pericd end.
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. Notice of annual general meeting

Notice is hereby given that the seventy sixth annual general meeting
i tAGM) of St. Modwen Properties PLC (the Company) will be held

i in the Evolution Suite, Innovation Centre, 1 Devon Way, Longbridgs
i Technology Park, Birmingham B31 2T5 on Wednesday, 29" March
i 2017 at 12.00 noon to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the

i following resolutions. Resolutions 11¢ 18 inclusive will be proposed
i as ordinary resolutions and rasclutions 19 1 22 will be proposed

i as special resolutions.

Ordinary business

Annual Report and financial statements

1. Toreceive the Company’s Annual Report and financial
: statements for the financial year ended 30" November 2016.

. Directors’ remuneration report and directors’
i remuneration policy

i 2. Toapprove the Directors' remuneration report (excluding
: the part containing the directors’ remuneration policy) as
set out on pages 74 to 88 of the Annual Report and financial
statements for the financial year ended 30" November 2018.

3. To approve the directors’ remuneration policy as set out on

: pages 76 to 83 of the Annual Report and financial statements
for the financial year ended 30" November 2016, 1o take effect
: immediately at the conclusion of the 2017 AGM.

| Dividend

i 4. To declare a final dividend for the financial year ended

: 30" November 2016 of 4.00 pence per ordinary share,
payable on 4" April 2017 to those shareholders on

the register of members at the close of business on

10" March 2017.

Election and re-election of directors

To elect Mark Allan as a director.

To re-elect lan Bull as a director.

To re-elect Steve Burke as a director.

To re-elect Kay Chaldecott as a director,

© N oo oo

9. Tore-glect Simen Clarke as a director.
10. To re-elect Rob Hudson as a director.
11. To re-elect Lesley James as a director.
12. To re-elect Richard Mully as a directar.

i 13.To re-elect Bil Shannon as a director.

Appointment and remuneration of auditor

{14, To appoint KPMG LLP as the Company's auditor until the
: conclusion of the next general meeting of the Company at
which accounts are laid.

15. To authorise the Audit Committee to determine the remuneration
of the Company’s auditor on behalf of the Board.
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Special business

Share-based incentive plans

16. Te approve the rules of the St. Modwen Properties PLC 2017
Performance Share Plan {the 2017 PSP), the principal terms of
which are summarised in Appendix 1 1o this notice and the draft
rules of which are produced to the mesting and signed by the
Chairman of the meeting for the purposes of identification, and
to autharise the directors to make such modifications to the
2017 PSP as they may consider appropriate to take account of
any applicable statutory or regulatory reguirements or prevailing
best practice and to adopt the 2017 PSP as so modified and
to do all such other acts and things as they may consider
necessary or appropriate (o implement the 2017 PSP.

17. To approve the rules of the St. Modwen Properties PLC 2017
Employee Share Cption Plan (2017 ESOP), the principal terms
of which are summarised in Appendix 2 1o this notice and the
draft rules of which are produced to the meeting and signed by
the Chairman of the meeting for the purposes of identification,
and 1o authorise the directors to make such modifications to
the 2017 ESCP as they may consider appropriate to take
account of any applicable statutory or regulatory requirements
or prevailing best practice and to adopt the 2017 ESOP as
so medified and to do all such other acts and things as they
may consider necassary or apprepriate to implement the
2017 ESOP.

Authority to allot shares

18. To generally and unconditicnally authorise the directors in
accordance with section 551 of the Companies Act 2006
{the Act} to exercise all the powers of the Company to:

fa) allot shares in the Company or grant rights tc suscribe
for or to convert any security intc shares in the Company
up 1o an aggregate nominal amcunt of £7,395,899; and

(o) allot equity securities (within the meaning of secticn 560(1)
of the Act) up to a further aggregate nominal amaount of
£7,395,899 in connection with an offer by way of a rights
ISSUE t0:

{ii ordinary shareholders in proportion (as nearly as may
be practicable) to their existing holdings; and

(it holders of other equity securities, as required by the
rights of those securities or, subject to such rights,
as the directors otherwise consider necessary,

subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the
directors consider necessary or appropriate to deal with
treasury shares, fractional entitlements, record dates, or
legal, regulatory or practical problems in, or under the laws
of, any country or terrtory or any other matter.

Unless previously renewed, revoked or varied, the authorities
conferred by this resolution 18 shall apply in substitution for

all existing authorities under section 551 of the Act until the
conclusion of the next AGM of the Company after the date on
which this resolution is passed or, if earlier, 28" June 2018, but,
in each case, so that the Company may make offers and enter
into agreements before the authority expires which would or
might require shares 10 be allotied or rights to be granted after
the authority expires and the directors may allot shares or grant
such rights under such an offer or agreement as if the authority
had not expired.



by used only for the purposes of financing (or refinancing, if
the authority is to be used within six months after the criginal
transaction) a transaction which directers determine to
be an acquisition or other capital investment of a kind
contemplated by the Statement of Principles on Disapplying
Pre-Emption Rights most recently published by the
Pre-Emption Group prior to the date of this notice.

Disapplication of pre-emption rights

! Special resolution

19. That, subject 1o the passing of resclution 18, the directors

: be generally empowered pursuant 10 section 570 of the
Companies Act 2006 (the Act) to allot equity securities (within
the meaning of section 560(1) of the Act) for cash pursuant to

the authority conferred by resolution 18 and/or 1o sell ordinary
shares held by the Company as treasury shares for cash as

if section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such allotment
or sale, provided that this power shall be limited to:

{a) any such allotment and/or sale in connection with an offer

Unless previously renewed, revcked or varied, the powers
conferred by this resclution 20 shall apply in substitution for all
existing powers under sections 570 and 573 of the Act until the
conclusion of the next AGM of the Company after the date on
which this resolution is passed or. if earfier, 28" June 2018, but,
In each case, so that the Company may make offers and enter

or issue by way of nghts or other pre-emptive offer or issue,

‘ i fore th i hich id ight
open for acceptance for a period fixed by the directors, 1o: nto agresments before the power expires which wouid or mig

require eguity securities to be allotted or equity securities held
as treasury shares to be sold for cash after the power expires
and the directors may allot equity securities and/or sell equity

securities held as treasury shares for cash under such an offer
or agreement as if the power had not expired.

{h  ordinary shareholders in proportion (as nearly as may
be practicable) to their existing holdings; and

(it holders of other equity securities, as reguired by the
rights of those securities or, subject to such rights,

as the directors otherwise consider necessary, Purchase of own ordinary shares by the Company

subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the
directors consider necessary or appropriate to deal with
treasury shares, fractional entitements, record dates,

Special resolution
21. That the Company be generally and unconditionally authorised

or legal, regulatory or practical preblems in, or under the
laws of, any country or territory or any other matter; and

=3

any such allotment and/or sale, other than pursuant to
paragraph (@) of this resolution 19, having, in the case of
ordinary shares, an aggregate nominal amount or, in the
case of other equity securities, giving the right to subscribe
or convert into ordinary shares having an aggregate nominal
amount, not exceeding £1,108,384.

Unless previously renewed, revoked or varied, the powers
confarred by this resolution 19 shall apply in substitution for all
existing powers under sections 570 and 573 of the Act until the
conclusion of the next AGM of the Company after the date on
which this resolution is passed or, if earier, 28" June 2018, but,
in each case, so that the Company may make offers and enter
into agresments before the power expires which would or might
reguire equity securities to be alotted or equity securities held
as treasury shares to be gold for cash after the power expires
and the directors may allct eguity securities and/or sell equity
securities held as treasury shares for cash under such an offer
or agreement as if the power had not expired.

. Special resolution
i 20. That, sublect and in addition to the passing of resolution 19,

the directors be generally empowered pursuant to section 570
of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act) to allot equity securities
{within the meaning of section 560(1) of the Act) for cash
pursuant to the authority conferred by resolution 18 and/or to
sall ordinary shares held by the Company as treasury shares
for cash as if section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such
allotment or sale, provided that this power shall be:

(a) limited to any such allotment and/or sale of equity securities
having, in the case of ordinary shares, an aggregate nominal
amount or, in the case of cther equity securities, giving the
right to subscribe or convert into ordinary shares having an
aggregate nominal amount, not exceeding £1,108,384; and

for the purposes of section 7071 of the Companies Act 2006 {the
Act) to make market purchases (as defined in section 593 of the
Act) of ordinary shares of 10 pence each in its capital (Ordinary
Shares) on such terms and in such manner as the directors
may from time o time determine provided that:

{a) the maximum aggregate number of Ordinary Shares hereby
authorised to be purchased is 22,187 ,698;

b} the minimum price which may be paid for an Ordinary Share
is 10 pence (exclusive of expenses);

fc) the maximum price which may be paid for an Orclinary
Share is the highest of (in each case exclusive of expenses):

i anamount equal to 105% of the average market
value of an Ordinary Share for the five business days
immediately preceding the day on which the Ordinary
Share s contracted to be purchased; and

(i) the higher of the price of the last independent trade and
the highest current independent bid for any number of
Crdinary Shares on the London Stock Exchange; and

(d) this authority shall, unless previously renewed, expire at the
conclusion of the next AGM of the Company after the date
on which this resolution is passed or, if earlier, 28" June
2018, except in relation to the purchase of any Crdinary
Shares the contract for which was concluded before the
date of expiry of the authority and which would or might
be completed whally or partly after that date.
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MNotice of annual general meeting
continuedd

i Notice of meetings other than AGMs

! Special resolution

i 22, To authorise the Company to call a general mesting other than

: an AGM on not less than 14 clear days’ notice, provided that
this authority shall expire at the conclusion of the next AGM of
the Company after the date cn which this resolution is passed.

. Recommendation
: The Board confirms that, in its opinion, all of the resolutions are in

i the best interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

¢ The directors unanimously reccmmend that shareholders vote in
i favour of each of the above resolutions, as they intend to do in
i respect of their own beneficial shareholdings.

By order of the Board

Tanya Stote
i Company Secretary
i 18" February 2017

St. Modwen Properties PLC
Registered number: 348201

Registered office: Park Point, 17 High Street, Longbridge,
¢ Birmingham B31 20)Q
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Explanatory notes to proposed resolutions

Ordinary resolutions

For a resolution proposed as an ordinary resciution 10 be passed,
more than half of the votes cast must be in favour of the resclution.

Resolution 1 — Annual Report and financial statements

Resolution 1 is an orcinary resolution to receive the Annual Report
and financial statements for the financial year ended 30" November
2018. Copies will be available at the AGM.

Resolutions 2 and 3 - Directors’ remuneration

Resolution 2 is an ordinary resolution to approve the Directors’
remuneration report, other than the part containing the directors’
remuneration policy. In accordance with the Companies Act 2006
this vote is adviscry only and the directors’ entfitlement to receive
remuneration is not conditional on it. The resolution and vole
provide a means for shargholders to give feedback to the Board
on directors’ remuneration.

Resolution 3 is an ordinary resolution to approve the directors’
remuneration policy. Following a review of the policy approved by
sharehclders at the 2014 AGM, a new remuneration pclicy is being
proposed to be applied frem the current financial year and is being
put to a binding sharehclder vote. The policy, described on pages
76 10 83, has been developed taking into account the principles of
the UK Comorate Govemance Code and the views of our major
sharehclders and shareholder advisory groups. If approved by
shareholgers, the directors’ remuneration policy will take effect
from the conclusion of the 2017 AGM.

Resolution 4 - Declaration of final dividend

Resolution 4 is an ordinary resolution by which shareholders
are asked to declare a final dividend. The directors recommend
a final dividend for the financial year ended 30" November
2016 of 4.06 pence per ordinary share. If approved, this will

be paid on 4™ April 2017 to sharehclders on the register of
members at the close of business on 10" March 2017,

Resolutions 5 to 13 - Election and re-election of
directors

Resolutions & to 13 are ordinary resolutions which deal with

the election and re-election of the directors, In accordance

with the Company’s articles of association and the UK Corporate
Governance Code, all directors must retire at each AGM and shall,
subject to his or her terms of appointment, be eligible for election
or re-election.

Following his appcintment to the Board on 1% Novermber 2016,
Mark Allan will retire and offer himself for election; all other directors
will retire and offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of all directors are set out on pages 54 and 55.
The performance of and contribution made by individual directors
has been reviewed by the Chairman during the course of the year
and the Chairman has confirmed that the performance of each
director continues to be effective, that they continue 1o demonstrate
commitment to their respective roles, and that their respective skills
complement one ancther to enhance the overall operation of the
Board. The Board theretore recommends the reappointment of all
directors standing for re-election. Further supporting information
regarding the non-executive directors can be found opposite.



i fan Bull {resolution &)

i lan was appointed to the Board in September 2014 and is

! Charman of the Audit Committee. He is currently Chief Financial

i Officer of Parkdean Resorts UK Ltd. His career in finance spans

¢ over 25 years, including board level finance roles at Ladbrokes plc
i and Greene King plc. lan brings to the Board a wedlth of corporate
i and financial knowledge, together with a sound understanding of

! accounting and regulatory matters,

During the past year, lan led the Audit Committee through the

i selection process for the Company's external auditor and was a

¢ member of the interview panel for the tender of the internal auditor
: appointment. As Committes Chair he also ensured that the Audit

: Committes considered a number of significant matters in relation

¢ 1o financial reporting, including the valuation of the Group's

¢ property portfolio.

Kay Chaldecott (resclution 8)

! Kay was appointed to the Board in October 2012, She is currently

i anon-executive director of NewRiver REIT plc. Her executive career
i in property spans over 25 years with Capital Shopping Centres

i Group plc (now Intu Properties plc} where she also served as a

¢ main board director.

With her extensive knowledge of the retail property sector, including
i the retail development process, retail mix and leasing and shopping
i centre operations, Kay makes a meaningful contribution to discussions

i and brings effective challenge at Board and Commitiee meetings.

Simon Clarke {resolution 9)

i Simon was appeintad to the Board in October 2004 following
i the death of his father, Sir Stanley Clarke, the founder and

¢ former Chairman of St. Modwen. He is currently Chairman

¢ of Dunstall Holdings Lid, Trustee of Racing Welfare and

i Chairman of Racing Homes.

¢ Whilst not considered to be independent for the purposes of the UK
i Corporate Governance Cods, as the longast serving director Simon
i brings continuity and extensive knowledge of the business 1o the
Board as well as strong commercial and management experience.

Lesley James, CBE (resolution 11)

i Lesley was appointed to the Board in October 2009 and is

i Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. She has considerable

i board experience across public, private, voluntary and education

¢ seclors and, as HR Director at Tesco plc for 14 years, has extensive
¢ knowiedge of executive remuneration.

¢ During the past year, Lesley led the Remuneration Committee’s

i discussions in respect of the remuneration arrangerments for Mark
i Allan, who was appointed Chief Executive on 19 December 2016,
¢ She also guided the Remuneration Committee’s strategic review

¢ of the Company’s remuneration policy, engaging with the Group’s
¢ major investors and sharehoider advisory bodies. A revised

! remunaration policy will be presentad to shareholders for

! approval at the 2017 AGM {resolution 3.

Richard Mully (resolution 12)

Richard was appointed to the Board in September 2013 and
became Senior Independent Director in December 2013, He is
currently a non-executive director of Aberdeen Asset Management
pic and Great Portland Estates plc, and Vice Chairman of Alstria
Office REIT-AG.

Richard brings to the Board broad financial knowledge and
experience gained over a long career in investment banking,
fund management, capital markets and real estate private equity
investing. He has been an active Senior Independent Directar,
acting as a sounding board for the Chairman and meeting with
the non-executive directors without the Chairman being present.

Bill Shannon (resolution 13)

Bil was appointed to the Board in November 2010 and became
non-executive Chairman in March 201 1. He chairs the Nomination
Committes and is currently Deputy Chairmnan and Senior Independent
Director of LSL Property Services plc ang a non-executive director
of Johnson Service Group plc.

Bill has proven ability in leading large public and private companies
as Chairman and has significant management and board level
experience across retail, leisure, financial services and property
sectors. He continues to oversee succession planning for Board
appointments, heading the recruitment for the role of Chief
Executive and guiding the induction programme for Mark Allan.

Bill also supported the remuneration policy review to ensure that
the views of major shareholders were communicated to and
understocd by the Board.

Resclutions 14 and 15 - Auditor appointment and
remuneration

As detailed in the Audit Committee report on page 69 a competitive
tender process for the Company’s external audit was undertaken
during the year, resulting in a recommendation by the Audit
Committee to the Board to appoint KPMG LLP. Resolution 14

is an ordinary resolution to appoint KPMG LLP as the Company’s
auditor with effect from the conclusion of the AGM and resolution
15, also an ordinary resolution, authonses the Audit Committee

to determine the auditor’s remuneration on behalf of the Board.

Resoclution 16 — Approval of the St. Modwen Properties
PLC 2017 Performance Share Plan

The Company's existing long-term incentive arrangement for

its executive directors is the St. Modwen Properties PLC 2007
Perforrmance Share Plan {the 2007 Plan). Since its approval by
shareholders, the 2007 Plan has provided for annual share-based
awards ordinarily vesting three years from grant, subject to the
participant’s continued service and 1o the extent to which objective
performance criteria are met over a three-year measurement period.
The 2007 Plan reaches the end of its 10 year life on 26™ Aprit 2017.

The Remuneration Committee has undertaken a review of

the 2007 Plan and concluded that, through resolution 16,
shareholder authority be sought for a replacerent arrangement,
the St. Modwen Properties PLC 2017 Performance Share Plan
{the 2017 Plan).

The terms of the 2017 Plan have been designed to materially
continue with the main features of the 2007 Plan, but with
appropriate changes to take account of prevailing best practice
expectations and the new directors’ remuneraticn policy proposed
for approval under resolution 3. One such update in line with best
practice is the inclusion of a two-year post-vesting holding period
for the Company’s executive directors (and other participants at
the discretion of the Remuneration Committee}.
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Notice of annual general meeting
continued

i Resolution 16 seeks the approval of shareholders to the 2017 Plan
i and authonses the Board to do all such acts and things necessary
¢ to give effect to the amendments.

i Asummary of the principal terms of the 2017 Plan is set out in

i Appendix 1 to this notice. A copy of the draft rules of the 2017

¢ Plan will be available for inspection at the registered office of the

i Company, and at the offices of New Bridge Street (an Aon Hewitt

i Ltd company) at 10 Devonshire Square, London EC2M 4YP, during

i normal busingss hours from the date of this notice of AGM until

! the close of the AGM, and at the place of the AGM for at least
15 minutes pricr to and during the AGM.

The 2017 Plan is proposed to be adopted as an employees’
i share scherme within the meaning of section 1168 of the
¢ Companies Act 2008.

Resoclution 17 - Approval of the St. Modwen Properties
¢ PLC 2017 Employee Share Option Plan

i The Company’s existing long-term incentive arrangement for
: employees below Board level is the St. Modwen Properties PLC
i 2007 Executive Share Option Schemne (the 2007 ESOS) The
i 2007 ESOS reaches the end ¢f its 10 year life on 26" April 2017.

i The Remuneration Gommittee has undertaken a review of

i the 2007 ESOS and concluded that, through resolution 17,

i shareholder authority be sought for a replacement arrangemennt,
i the St. Modwen Properties PLC 2017 Employes Share Option

¢ Plan ithe 2017 ESOP).

i The terms of the 2017 ESOP have been designed to materially

i continue with the main features of the 2007 ESOS but with

i appropriate changes to take account of prevailing best practice

! expectations and changes in relevant legislation governing HVRC
! tax advantaged share options.

Resolution 17 seeks the approval of shareholders to the 2017
i ESOP and authorises the Board to do all such acts and things
i necessary to give effect to the amendments.

¢ Asummary of the principal terms of the 2017 ESOP is set out

i in Appendix 2 to this notice. A copy of the draft rules of the 2017

¢ ESOP will be available for inspection at the registered office of the

i Company, and at the offices of New Bridge Street (an Acn Hewitt

¢ Ltd company) at 10 Devonshire Square, London EC2M 4YP, during

i normal business hours from the date of this notice of AGM until

the close of the AGM, and at the place of the AGM for at least
i 15 minutes prior to and during the AGM.

The 2017 ESOP is proposed 1o be adopted as an employees’
i share scheme within the meaning of section 1168 of the
i Companies Act 2006.

Resolution 18 — Authority 1o allot shares

The authority conferred on the directors at last year's AGM to allot
i shares in the Company expires at the conciusion of the 2017 AGM.
i Resolution 18 is an ordinary resolution to renew this authority.

¢ The Investment Association (IA) guidelines on directors’ authority to
i allot shares state that |A members will permit, and treat as routine,

i resolutions sesking authority to allot new shares representing

i up to one-third of a company’s issued share capital. In addition,

i they will treat as routing a request for authority to allot shares

i representing an additional one-third of a company's issued share

! capital provided that it is only used to allot shares pursuant tc a

¢ fully pre-emptive rights issue.
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Paragraph (a) of resolution 18 will, if resclution 18 is passed,
authorise the directors to allot shares up to a maximum aggregate
neminal amount of £7,395,898, which represents one-third of the
Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at 8" February 2017
{being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the
notice of AGM). Paragraph (b) of resolution 18 proposes that, in
accordance with 1A guidance, an additional authority be conferred
on the directors to allot shares in connection with a rights issue up
to a further maximum aggregate nominal amount of £7,395,898,

The authorities scught in paragraphs (@ and (b) of resolution 18 are
in substitution for all existing authorities granted in the Company's
articles of association or otherwise, and are without prejudice to
previous allotments or agreements or offers to allot made under
such existing authorities. The authorities will each expire at the
earlier of the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company or

28" June 2018.

The directors have no present intention of exercising these
authorities other than to fulfil the Company’s cbligations under
its share incentive plans approved previously by shareholders,
but believe that it is in the best interests of the Company 1o have
the authorities available to respond to market developments and
to enable allotments to take place without the need for a general
meeting should they determine that it is appropriate to do so.

Special resolutions

For a resolution proposed as a special resolution to be passed,
at least three-quarters of the votes cast must be in favour of
the resolution.

Resolutions 19 and 20 - Authority to disapply
pre-emption rights

If the directors wish to allot new shares and other equity securities,
company law requires that these shares are offered first to
shareholders in proportion to their existing holdings. At last year's
AGM a special resolution was passed, under section 570 of the
Companies Act 2008, empowering the directors to allot equity
securities for cash without first being required 1o offer such shares
to existing shareholders. It is propesed that this authority be
renewed in line with institutional shareholder guidelines.

Under resolution 19, it is proposed that the directors be authorised
to issue shares for cash and/or sell shares from treasury (if any are
s held) without offering them first to existing shareholders in
proportion to their current holdings:

fa) inrespect of a rights issue, open offer or other offer that
generally provides existing shareholders with the cpportunity
te subscribe for new shares pro rata to their existing holdings.
This part of the authority is designed to give the directors
flexibility to exclude certain sharehclders from such an offer
where the directers consider it necessary or desirable to do
s0 in order 1o aveid legal, regulatory or practical problems that
would otherwise arise; or

(b} up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,10%,384 (Up to
11,093,840 new ordinary shares of 10 pence sach}, This
amount represents approximately 5% of the Company's issued
ordinary share capital as at 8" February 2017 (being the latest
practicable date prior to the publication of the notice of AGM).
Thig part of the authority is designed tc provide the Board with
flexibility to raise further equity funding and to pursue acquisttion
opportunities as and when they may arise.



i The authority proposed under resclution 20 s in addition to

i the authority granted by resolution 19, Under resolution 20, it is

i proposed that the directors be authorised to disapply statutory

i pre-emption rights in respect of an additional 5% of the Company’s
i issued ordinary share capital as at 8™ February 2017 (being the

i latest practicable date prior to the publication of the notice of AGM).
i This further authority may only be used in connection with an

i acquisition or specified capital investment which is announced

i contemporaneously with the issue, or that has taken place in the

i preceding six-month period and is disclosed in the announcerment
i of the issue as contemplated by the Pre-Emption Group's March

i 2015 Statement of Principles.

i Excluding any shares issued in connection with an acauisition

i or specified capital investment as described above, the directors
! do not intend to issue more than 7.5% of the Company’s issued
I ordinary share capital on a non-pre-emptive basis in any rolling

i three-year period without prior consuttation with shareholders.

¢ The authorities sought in resolutions 19 and 20 are in substitution

: for all existing authorities granted in the Company’s articles of

i association or stherwise, and are without prejudics to previous

i dlotrments or agreements or offers to allot made under such existing
i authorities. The authorities will each expire at the earlier of the

i conclusion of the next AGM of the Company or 28" June 2018,

i The directors have no present intention of exercising these

i authorities other than to fulfil the Company’s obligations under
i its share incentive plans approved previously by shareholders,
! but consider it prudent to obtain the flexibility that these

i authorities provide,

Resolution 21 — Authority to purchase shares

i Resolution 21 is a special resolution to renew the authority granted
! to the diractors at last year's AGM to make purchases of its own

i ordinary shares through the market as permitted by the Companies
{Act 2006 and in line with institutional shareholder guidelines. No

! shares were purchased during the year and the Company does

i not hold any shares in treasury.

i If passed, the resolution gives authority for the Company ¢ purchase
! upto 22,187,698 of its ordinary shares, which represents 10%

i of the Company's issued ordinary share capital as at 8" February

i 2017 (peing the latest practicable date prior to the publication

i of the notice of AGIV). The resclution specifies the minimum

i and maximum prices which may be paid for any ordinary shares

¢ purchased under this authority. The authority will expire at the

¢ earlier of the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company and

P 28" June 2018.

i The directors have no present intention for the Company to exercise
¢ the authority granted by this resolution to purchase its own shares.

i They would do so only after taking account of the overall financial

i position of the Company and in circumstances where to do so

i would be regarded by the Board as being in the best interests of

i shareholders generally and result in an increase in earnings per

¢ ordinary share. The Company may either cancel any shares it

! purchases under this authority or transfer them into treasury (and

i subsequently sell or transfer them out of treasury or cancel them).

As at 8" February 2C17 {being the latest practicable date prior to

i the publication of the notice of AGM), the Company had options

i outstanding cver 8,960,649 ordinary shares, representing 2.14%

¢ of the issued share capital on that date. If the Company was to

i purchase the maximum number of shares permitted pursuant to

i this resolution, the options outstanding at 8™ February 2017 would
i represent 3.92% of the issued share capital.

Resolution 22 — Notice period of general meetings

The Company must give at least 21 clear days’ notice of any
general mesting, but is permitted to call meetings other than

the AGM on at least 14 clear days’ notice if anrual shareholder
approval is obtained beforehand. The Company must also offer,
for any meeting held on less than 21 clear days’ notica, a facility
to vote by electronic means that is accessible to &l shareholders.

Resolution 22 is a special resolution to renew the authority granted
at last year's AGM to allow the Company to hold general meetings
(other than AGMSs) on not less than 14 clear days’ notice. This
authority will be effective until the Company’s next AGM,

The shorter notice pericd would not be used as a matter of routing
for such mestings, but only where the flexibility is merited by the
business of the meeting and is thought 1o be to the advantage of
shareholders as a whole.

Shareholder notes

1. Entitlement to attend and vote

To ke entitled tc attend and vote at the AGM (and for the purpose
of determining the number of votes they may cast), shareholders
must be entered on the Company’s register of members at 6.30pm
on Monday, 27" March 2017 {or, in the event of any adjournment,
at 6.30pm on the date which is two days before the date of the
adjoumed meeting). Changes to the register of members after the
relevant deadline shall be disregarded in determining the rights of
any person to attend and vote at the meeting in respect of the
number of shares registered in their name at that time. It is
proposed that all votes on the resclutions at the AGM will be
taken by way of a pall.

2_Appointment of proxies - general

A shareholder entitied to attend and vote at the meeting convened
by the notice of AGM is entitied to appoint a proxy to exercise all

or any of his or her rights to attend and 1o speak and vote on his

or her behalf at the meeting. A shareholder may appoint more than
one proxy in relation to the meeting provided that each proxy is
appointed tc exercise the rights attached to a different share or
shares held by that shareholder. A proxy need not be a shareholder
of the Company but must attend the meeting in person.

For the appointment to be effective, a proxy form {(or electronic
appointment of proxy, see note 4 below) must be received

by the Company’s registrar not less than 48 hours before the
time of the mesting, i.e. not later than 12.00 noon on Monday,
27" March 2017. The appointment of a proxy will not prevent a
shareholder from subsequently attending the meeting and voting
in person if he or she is entitled to do so and so wishes.
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Notice of annual general meeting
contnued

i 3. Appointment of proxies - proxy form

¢ Aform which may be used to appoint a proxy and give proxy

i Instructions has been sent to shareholders. If you do not have a

i proxy form and believe that you should have one, or if you reguire
i additicnal forms to appoint more than one proxy, please contact

: the Company’s registrars, Equiniti, on 0371 384 2198 (overseas
callers should dial +44 (01121 415 7047). Lines are open from

i 8.30arm to 5.30pm (UK time), Monday to Friday. excluding public
i holidays in England and Wales, Alternatively, photacopy the proxy
i form which has been sent to you, All forms must be sigred and

i should be returned together in the same envelope.

i The notes to the proxy form explain how to direct your proxy to

i wvote on each resolution or withhold their vote. Please note that the

¢ vote withheld option on the proxy form is provided to enable you

i 1o abstain on any particular resclution; it 1s not a vole In law and

i will not be counted in the calculation of votes for or against the

¢ resolution. If you sign the proxy form and return it without any

i specific directions your proxy will vote or abstain from voting at

i his or her discretion. lf you wish to appoint a proxy other than the

i Chairman of the meeting, please insert the name of your chosen

i proxy holder in the space provided on the proxy form. If the proxy

i is being appaointed in relation to less than your full voting entitlement,
i please enter in the box next to the proxy holder's name the number
i of shares in relation to which they are authorised to act as your

i proxy. If left blank your proxy will be deemed to be authorised in

i respect of your full voting entiterment {or if the proxy form has been
¢ issued in respect of a designated account for a shareholder, the full
i voting entitlerment for that designated account).

i In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior joint holder who

i tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, in respect of the

i holding will be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other

i joint holders, For this purpose seniority is determined by the order

I in which the names appear in the Company’s register of members

3 in respect of the joint holding. In the case of a corporate shareholder,
¢ the proxy form must be executed under its common seal or signed
I onits behalf by a duly authorised officer or attorney. In the case of an
¢ indhvidual, the proxy form must be signed by the appainting shareholder.
: Any alterations made to the proxy form should be initialled.

4. Appointment of proxies electronically

Shareholders who would prefer to register the appointment of their
: proxy electronically via the internet can do so through Equiniti’'s
} website at www.sharevote.co.uk using their personal Volting ID,
i Task |D and Shareholder Reference Number (which are printed
i on the proxy form). Alternatively, shareholders who have already
! registered with Equiniti's cnline portfolio service, Shareview, can
i appoint their proxy electronically by logging on to their portfolio
{at www.shareview.co.uk. Full details and instructions on these

i electronic proxy facilities are given on the respective websites.

i A proxy appeintment made electronically will not be valid if sent
i to any address other than those provided or if received after

i 12.00 noon on Monday, 27" March 2017,
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5. Appointment of proxies through CREST

CREST members who wish 1o appoint a proxy or proxies for

the AGM, and any adjournment(s) thereof, through the CREST
electronic proxy appointrment service may do so by using the
procedures described in the CREST Manual. CREST Personal
Members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST
members who have appointed a voting service provider(s), should
refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will
be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf.

In order for a proxy appeintment or instruction made using the
CREST service to be valid. the appropriate CREST message (a
CREST Proxy Instruction) must be properly authenticated in
accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Ltd’s (EUI) specifications
and must contain the information required for such instructions, as
described in the CREST Manual (avallable at www.eurcclear.com),
The message, regardless of whether it relates o the appointment
of a proxy or an amendment to the instruction given to a previously
appointed proxy must, in order 1o be valid, be transmitted so as
1o be received by Equinitt (D RA19} by the latest time for receipt

of proxy appointments specified above. For this purpose, the time
of receipt wil be taken to be the time (as determined by the time
stamp applied to the massage by the CREST Applications Host)
from which Equiniti is able to retrieve the message by enguiry to
CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time any
change of instructions to proxies appcinted through CREST
should be communicated to the appaintee through other means.

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors

or voting service providers should note that EUI does not make
available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages.
Normal system timings and limitations will therefore apply in relation
to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of
the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST memiber
is a CREST Personal Member or sponsored member or has
appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST
spensor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be
necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the
CREST system by any particular time. In this connection, CREST
members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting
service providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the
CREST Manual concerning practical imitations of the CREST
system and tmings.

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the
circumstances set cut in Regulation 35(5)(a} of the Uncertificated
Securities Regulations 2001.

6. Changing and revoking proxy instructions

To change your proxy instruction simply submit & new proxy
appointment using the methods set out abzove. Where two or
more valid separate appointments of proxy are received in respect
of the same share and for the sarme meeting, those received last
by Equiniti will take precedence.



i Inorder to revoke a proxy instruction. & shareholder will need to

i inform the Company by sending a signed hard copy notice clearty

i ostating his/her intention to revoke & proxy appointment to Equinit

i Ltd, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing BN9S BDA. In the case
i of a corporate sharehclder, the revocation notice must be executed
i under its common seal or signed on its behalf by a duly authorised
i officer or attorney. Any power of attorney or any other authority

i under which the revocation notice is signed (or a duly certified copy
i of such power of attorney} must be included with the revocation

i notice. Termination of proxy appointments made through CREST

: must be made in accordance with the procedures described in

: the CREST Manual.

7. Corporate representatives

i Acorporate shareholder can appoint one or mors corporate

i representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its powers

i as a shareholder provided that they do not do so in relation to the

i same shares. Representatives of shareholders that are corporations
i wil have to produce evidence of their proper appointment when

i attending the AGM. Please contact Equiniti for further guidance.

8. Nominated persons

Any person to whom this notice is sent who is not a shareholder

i butis a perscn nominated by a shareholder under section 1486 of

i the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy information rights {& Nominated

i Person) may, under an agreament with the shareholder who

i nominated him/her, have a right to be appointed, or have someone
i else appointed, as a proxy for the AGM, If a Nominated Person has
i no such right or does not wish to exercise it, ne/she may, under any
i such agreement. have a right to give voting instructions to the

! sharehclder.

i The statement of the rights of shareholders in relation to the

i appointment of proxies set out in nates 2 to 7 above does not

¢ apply to Nominated Persons. The rights described in those notes
i can only be exercised by shareholders of the Company. If you are
i aNominated Person it is important to remember that your miain

¢ contact in terms of your investment remains the registered

i shareholder or the custodian or broker who administers the

i investment on your behalf,

9, Shareholder participation

i Any shareholder attending the AGM has the right to ask questions
! relating to the business of the meeting and the Company has an

i obligation to answer such questions unless () to do 8o would

¢ interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve the

! disclosure of confidential information, (i) the answer has already

¢ been given on a website in the form of an answer to a question,

¢ or i it is undesirable in tha interests of the Company or the good

order of the mesting that the guestion be answered.

10. Availability of information on a website

A copy cf this notice of AGM, and other information required by
i section 311A of the Companies Act 20086, can be found on the
¢ Company’s website at www. stmodwen.co.uk.

11. Website publication of audit concerns

Shareholders satisfying the threshold requirements in section 527
of the Companies Act 2006 can require the Company to pubhsh

a statement on its website setting out any matter that such
shareholder proposes to raise at the meeting refating to (a) the audit
of the Company’s accounts (including the auditor's report and the
conduct of the audit) that are tc be laid before the AGM or (D) any
circumstances connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing
to hold office since the last AGM. The Company cannct reguire the
shareholders requesting the publication 1o pay its expenses in
complying with the request. Any statement placed on the website
must also be sent to the Company's auditor no later than the time
the statement is made available on the website. The business which
may be cealt with at the meeting includes any statement that the
Company has been required to publish on its website under section
527 of the Companies Act 2006.

12. Total voting rights

As at 8" February 2017 (being the latest practicable date prior to
the publication of the notice of AGM), the Company’s issued share
capital consisted of 221,876,888 shares carrying one vote each.
Therefore the total voting rights in the Company as at 8% February
2017 was 221,876,888,

13. Documents available for inspection

The following documents are available for inspection at the
registered office of the Cornpany during normal business hours
and will be at the place of the AGM for at least 15 minutes prior
to and during the AGM:

@ copigs of the directors’ service agreements with the Compary;

o)

1 copies of the non-executive directors’ letters of appointment;

c) acopy of the Company’s articles of association;

o)

{
{
{d) acopy of the Company’s indemnity for directors;

fe) a cc(j)py of the draft rules of the 2017 Performance Share Plan;
an

ffi acopy of the draft rules of the 2017 Employee Share Option
Plan.

14. Communication with the Company

You may not use any electronic address provided in this notice
of AGM or any related documents (including the proxy form) to
communicate with the Company for any purpeses other than
those expressly stated,
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Notice of annual general meeting

— Appendix 1

Summary of the principal terms of the St. Modwen Properties
i PLC 2017 Performance Share Plan (the Plan)

Operation

The Remuneration Committee of the Board {the Committee) will
supervise the operation of the Plan.

 Eligibility

Any employee {including an execultive director) of the Company
i orits subsidiaries will be eligibie to participate in the Plan at the
! discretion of the Committee. It is currently anticipated that

i participation in the Plan will e limited to the Company’s

i executive directors and selected senior management.

. Grant of awards

i The Committee may grant awards to acquire ordinary shares in

i the Company (Shares) within six weeks following the Company’s

i announcement of its results for any period. The Committee may

i also grant awards within six weeks of shareholder approval of the
¢ Plan or at any cther time when the Committee considers there are
¢ sufficiently exceptional circumstanceas which justify the granting

! of awards.

i The Committee may grant awards as conditional share awards,
i nil {or nominal) cost options or forfetable shares. The Committes
i may also grant cash-based awards of an equivalent value to

i share-based awards, and satisfy share-based awards in cash,

¢ although it does not currently intend to do so.

An award may nct be granted more than 10 years after shareholder
i approval of the Plan.

No payment is required for the grant of an award. Awards are not
: Transferable, except on death. Awards are not pensicnable.

it is proposed that the first awards under the Flan would be made
i within six weeks following sharenclder approval of the Plan or as
i so0n as reasonably practicable thereafter.

¢ Participation in the Plan by the Company’s executive directors wil

¢ be limited to participation consistent with the relevant approved
remuneration policy (which initially would be that for which approval
i is sought pursuant to resolution 3).

. Individual limit

An employee may not receive awards in any financial year over or
¢ in relation to Shares which have a market value in excess of 150%
i of their annual base salary in that financial vear, save in exceptional

i circumstances in which case this limit increases to 200% of their

{annual base salary. Market value for the purpeses of the above

¢ limits shall be based on the market value of Shares on the dealing
! day immediately preceding the grant of an award or Dy reference
i 1o ashort averaging period.

. Performance conditions

i The extent of vesting of awards granted to the Comparny's

i executive directors will be subject to the achievernent of

i performance condtions set by the Committee when awards

i are granted. Performance conditions may also be set for other
participants in the Plan, as determined by the Committee.

Details of the performance conditions applied to executive

¢ directors’ awards will normally be set cut in the regpective Directors’
i remuneration report for the year in which the award is granted and

i will be in line with the shareholder-approved remuneration policy.
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The Committee may vary the performance conditions applying
to any cutstanding award following grant if an event or set of
circumstances ocours which causes the Committee to consider
that it would be appropriate to do so. In the case of any awards
held by the Company's executive directars, the Committee must
be satisfied that the varied conditions are fair and reascnable and
not materially less challenging than the original conditions would
have been but for the event or set of circumstances in guestion.

Vesting of awards

Awards granted to executive directors shall normally vest on

the third anniversary of grant or, if later, when the Committee
determines the extent to which the perfermance conditions have
been satisfied. Awards granted 16 executive directors wil have a
normal vesting period of not less than three years. The Committee
may specify different vesting or performance periods on or prior to
the grant of awards to participants who are not executive directors.

Where awards are granted in the form of options, once vested,
such options will then be exercisable up until the tenth anniversary
of grant (or such shorter period specified by the Committee at the
time of grant) untess they lapse earlier. Shorter exercise periods
shafl apply in the case of 'good leavers’ and/or vesting of awards
in connection with corporate events.

Holding period

The terms of the Plan require that executive director participants
{and such others, if any, as the Committee requires) will ordinarity
be required to retain any vested Shares (on an after-tax basis)
acquired under the Plan {or, where relevant, the full number of the
vested Shares whilst held under an unexercised but vested option)
until at least the second anniversary of the vesting of the relevant
award. Such holding pericd will continue post cessation of
employment unless the Committee determines otharwise.

Exceptionally, the Committee may, in its discretion, allow such
participants to sell, transfer, assign or dispose of some or all of
these Shares before the end of the holding period, subject to such
additional terms and conditions that the Committee may specify.

Dividend equivalents

The Committea may decide that participants will receive a payment
{in cash and/or Shares) of an amount equivalent to the dividends
that would have been payable on an award’s vested Shares
between the date of grant and the vesting of an award (or if later,
and only whilst an option remaing unexercised in respect of vested
Shares, the expiry of any halding period). This amount may assume
the reinvestment of dividends and shall be paid at the same time as
the delivery of the related vested Shares (cr cash payment as relevant).

Leaving employment

As a general rule, an award will lapse upen a participant ceasing

to hold employment or be a diractor within the Company’s group.
However, if a participant ceases to be an employee or a director
because of death, injury or disability or in other cireumstances at
the discretion of the Commiittee, then their award will normally vest
cn the date when it would have vested if they had not ceased such
employment or office.



i The extent to which an award will vest in these situations will depend
i upon two factors: () the extent to which the performance conditions
i (if any) have been satisfied; and (1) pro rating of the award 10 reflact

i the proportion of the ariginal vesting period which has elapsed at

i the time of cessation, although the Committee can decids not to

i prorate an award {or prorate 1o a lesser extent) if it regards it as

! appropriate to do s in the particular circumstances and where it

i is permitted by the Company’s approved remuneration policy.

i Altermatively, if a participant ceases to be an employae or a director
! in the Company's group for one of the ‘good leaver’ reasons

! gpecified above (including in the case of a discretionary good leaver)
¢ the Committee can decide that therr award will vest when they

i leave, subject to: (i the performance conditions {if any) measured at
¢ that time; and (i) pro rating by reference to the time of cessation as
¢ described above (including, as above, discretion retained for the

¢ Committee in respect of pro ration).

The Committee may make 'good leaver' status contingent on the

i satisfaction of such (ordinarity, post-cessation of service) terms as

i the Committee considers appropriate and in such circumstances

i shall retain discretion to revoke ‘good leaver’ status to such extent
i 1t considers appropriate upon the discovery of a breach of the

i relevant terms.

Corporate events

i In the event of a takeover or winding up of the Company (not

! being an internal corporate recrganisation) all awards will vest early

i subject to: {i) the extent that the performance conditions (if any)

i have, in the opinicn of the Committee, been satisfied at that time;

i and {ij the pro rating of the awards to reflect the reduced period of
i time between their grant and vesting, although the Committee can

¢ decide not to pro rate an award (or pro rale to a lesser extent) if it

i oregards it as appropriate to do so in the particular circumstances.

i Inthe event of an internal corporate recrganisation, awards will be
replaced by equivalent new awards over shares in a new holding
i company uniess the Committee decides that awards should vest
on the basis which would apply in the case of a takeover.

i If a demerger, special dividend or other simiar event is proposed
i which, in the opinion of the Committee, would affect the market
i price of Shares to a material extent, then the Committee may

! decide that awards will vest on such basis as it decides.

Participants’ rights

Awards settled in Shares will not confer any shareholder rights
i until the awards have vested or the cptions have been exercised
i asrelevant and the participants have received their Shares.

Rights attaching to Shares

Any Shares allotted when an award vests or is exercised will
i rank egually with Shares then in issue {except for rights arising
¢ by reference to a record date prior to their alotment).

 Variation of capital

¢ In the event of any variation of the Company’s share capital or in

i the event of a demerger, payment of a special dividend or similar

! event which materially affects the market price of the Shares, the

: Committee may make such adjustment as it consiclers appropriate
¢ 1o the number of Shares subject to an award and/or the exercise

¢ price payable (if any).

Overall Plan limits

The Plan may operate over new issue Shares. reasury Shares or
Shares purchased in the market. In any 10 calendar yvear period,
the Company may not issue (or grant rights to issue) more than:

fa) 10% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company
under the Plan and any other empicyee share plan adopted
by the Company; and

by 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company
under the Plan and any other discretionary share plan
adopted by the Company.

Treasury Shares will count as new issue Shares for the purposes
of these limits unless institutional investor guidelines provide that
they need not count,

Recovery (clawback) and withholding (malus)

The Committee may apply the Plan's recovery and withholding
provisions if, not later than four years following the vesting of an
award, it is discovered that there has been any c¢f the following:
a material misstatement of the Company’s financial results or
performance; an emror of calculation (including on account of
inaccurate or misleading information); serious misconduct by
the relevant participant; or in other excepticnal circumstances
{for example, failure of adequate nisk control),

The recovery and withholding may be satisfied by way of a
reguction in the amount of any future bonus, subsisting award or
future share awards and/cr a reguirement to maka a cash payment.

The discovery pericd may be extended by the Committee for
an additional period of up to two years in the event of cngaoing
investigation as at the expiry of the nomal four year discovery panod.

Alterations to the Plan

The Committee may, at any time, amend the Plan in any respect,
provided that the prior approval of shareholders is obtained for any
amendments that are to the advantage of participants in respect of
the rules govemning gligibility, limits on participation, the overall limits
on the issue of Shares or the transfer of treasury Shares, the basis
for determining a participant’s entitlement to, and the terms of, the
Shares or cash to be acquired and the adjustment of such awards.

The requirement to obtain the pricr approval of shareholders

will not, however, apply to any minor alteration made to benefit

the administration of the Plan, to take account of a change in
legislation or to obtain or maintain favourakle tax, exchange control
or regulatory treatment for participants or for any company in the
Company’s group.

Shareholder approval will alse nat be required for any amendments
to any performance condition apphing to an award under the Plan
to the extent that it is amended in accordance with the constraints
relating to adjusting performance conditions described above.
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Notice of annual general meeting

- Appendix 2

Summary of the principal terms of the §t. Modwen Properties
: PLC 2017 Employee Share Option Plan (the Plan)

Operation

The Remuneration Committee of the Board (the Committee) will
supervise the operation of the Plan.

 Eligibility

Any employee (excluding an executive director) of the Company
i orits subsidiaries will be eligible to participate in the Plan at

i the discretion of the Committee. It is currently anticipated that

i participation in the Plan will be imited to those employees

i who do not participate in the 2017 Performance Share Plan.

Grant of options

i The Committee may grant options to acquire ordinary shares in

i the Company (Shares) within six weeks following the Company’s

i announcement of its results for any period. The Committee may

i also grant opticns within six weeks of shareholder approval of

i the Plan or at any other time when the Committes considers there
i are sufficiently exceptional circumstances which justify the granting
i of options.

An option may not be granted more than 10 years after shareholder
i approval of the Plan.

No payment is required for the grant of an option. Options are nct
i trangferable, except on death. Options are not pensicnable.

It is proposed that the first options under the Flan would be made in
¢ line with the Compariy’s nommal grant cycle following the publication
i of the half-year results in July 2017,

i The Plan has two parts. Part A provides for the grant of HMBC tax
! advantaged options, and Part B provides for the grant of non-tax

¢ advantaged options. Save for minor differences to take account

i of relevant tax legislation governing HMRC tax advantaged opticns,
! the terms of such parts are materially identical. Part B will also allow
i the Committee to grant cash-based awards of an equivalent value
i 1o share-based awards or to satisfy share-based awards in cash,

¢ although it does not currently intend to do so.

. Individual limit

I An employee may not receive options in any financial vear over or
i in relation to Shares which have a market vaiue in excess of 150%
i of their annuai base salary in that financial year, save in exceptional
i circumstances in which case this limit increases to 300% of their
 annual base salary. Market value for the purposes of the above

¢ limits shali be based on the market value of Shares on the dealing
i day immediately preceding the grant of an option or by reference

i 1o a short averaging period.

i The individual limit on tax advantaged options available under Part A
¢ of the Plan is & maximum holding of no mere than £30,000 worth of
: such options at any one time by reference to grant value. or such othar
¢ limit that may apply from to time under the relevant tax legislation.
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Option price

The price per Share payable upon exercise of an option will not
be less than:

fay the micidle market price of a Share on the London Stock
Exchange on the dealing day immediately before the date
of grant (or by reference to a short averaging pariod not
exceeding five days locking back from the date of grant): and

(k) if the option relates only to new issue Shares. the nominal value
of a Share.

Performance conditions

The Committee may, at the time of grant of options, impose a
performance condition on the exercise of options.

The Committee may vary the performance conditions apphlying

1o any outstanding options following grant if an event or set of
circumstances occurs which causes the Committee to consider
that it would be appropriate to do so, previded the Committee is
satisfied that the varied conditions are fair and reascnable and not
materially less challenging than the original conditions would have
been but for the event or set of circumstances in guestion.

Exercise of options

Opticns will normally become capable of exercise three years

after grant to the extent that any performance condition has been
satisfied and provided the participant remains employed in the
Company's group. Unexercised options will lapse on the day
before the tenth anniversary of the date of grant or after such
shorter pericd as determined by the Committee at the time of grant.

The Committee may specify different normal vesting periods on
or prior to the grant of options under Part B of the Plan.

Shares will be allotted or transferred to participants within 30 days
of exercise. The Committee can decide to satisfy options which are
not tax advantaged by the payment of a cash amount or Shares
egual in value to the gain made on the exearcise of the option.

Leaving employment

As a general rule, an option will lapse upen a participant ceasing

to hold employrment within the Company’s group. However, 1If &
participant ceases 1o be an empioyee because of injury, disability,
retirerment, reclundancy, their employing company or the business
for which they work being scld cut of the Company’s group or in
other circumstances at the discretion of the Committee, their option
will usually vest on the normal vesting date, unless the Committee
decides otherwise. Options will be exercisable for a period of

12 months from the date of vesting.

The extent to which an option will vest in these situations wil

depend upon two factors: {j) the extent to which the performance
conditicns {if any) have been satisfied; and (i) pro rating of the option |
to reflect the proportion of the original vesting period which has ;
elapsed at the time of cessation, although the Committee can

decide not to pro rate an option {or to pro rate to a lesser extent) if
it regards it as appropriate 1o do so in the particular cireumstances.

Alternatively, if a participant ceases to be an employee in the
Company’s group for one of the ‘good leaver’ reasons specified
above {including in the case of a discretionary good leaver), the
Committee can decide that their option will vest when they leave,
subject to: (i) the performance conditions (if any) measured at that
time; and {ji) pro rating to the time of cessation as described above
(including, as above, discretion retained for the Commiitteg in
raspect of pro ration). Options will then be exercisable for a period
of six months from the date of vesting, unless the Commitiee
determines otherwige.



i Inthe case of death. any unvested options will vest immediiately,

i subject to any performance conditions and tme pro rating as

i above. Options will be exercisable for a pericd of 12 months from
i the date of death.

{ For options granted under Part B of the Plan. the Cormmittee may

! make 'good leaver’ status contingent on the satisfaction of such

! (ordinarily, post-cessation of service) terms as the Committee

i considers appropriate and in such circumstances shall retain

i discretion to revoke ‘good leaver’ status to such extent It considers
i appropriate upon the discovery of a breach of the relevant terms.

Corporate events

i Inthe event of a takeover or winding up of the Company {not

i being an internal corporate recrganisation) all options will become

i exercisable early for a limited time subject to: (i) the extent that

i the performance conditions {if any) have, in the opinion of the

i Committee, been satisfied at that time; and i) the pro rating of

i options to reflect the recuced period of time between their grant

i and vesting, atthough the Committee can decide not to pro rate

¢ anopticn {or pro rate to a lesser extent) if it regards it as appropriate
i 10 do soin the particular circumstances.

¢ Inthe event of an internal corporate recrganisation, options will be
i replaced by equivalent new ogtions over shares in a new holding
! company unless the Committee decides that options should vest
¢ on the basis which would apply in the case of a takeover.

i If a demerger, special dividend or other similar event is proposed
which, in the opinion of the Committes, would affect the market
i price of Shares to a material extent, then the Commitiee may

i decide that options wilt vest on such basis as it decides.

Rights attaching to Shares

Any Shares allotted when an option 15 exercised will rank equally
! with Shares then in issue (except for rights arising by reference
i to arecord date prior to their allotment).

Variation of capital

¢ In the event of any variaticn of the Company’s share capital or in

i the evenit of a demerger, payment of a special dividend or similar

! avent which materially affects the market price cf the Shares, the

: Committes may make such adjustment as it considers appropriate
¢ 1o the number of Shares under option and/cr the price payable on
the exercise of an option.

Overall Plan limits

The Plan may operate over new issue Shares, treasury Shares or
i Shares purchased in the market. In any 10 calendar year period,
i the Company may not issue (or grant rights to issug) more than:

{a) 10% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company under
the Plan and any other employee share plan adopted by the
Company; and

) 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company under
: the Plan and any other discretionary share plan adopted by
the Company.

Treasury Shares will count as new issue Shares for the purposes of
! these imits unless instituticnal investor guidelines provide that they
i need not count.

Recovery (clawback) and withholding (malus}

The Committee may apply the Plan's recovery and withholding
provisions if, not later than four years following the vesting of an
option, it is discovered that there has been any of the following:
a material misstaternent of the Company’s financial results or
performance; an errer of calculation (including on account of
Inaccurate or misleading information); serious misconduct by
the relevant participant; or in other exceptional circumstances
(for example. failure of adequate risk control).

The recovery and withholding may be satisfied by way of a
reduction in the amount of any future bonus. subsisting award/
option or future share awards/options and/or a reguirermeant 10
make a cash payment.

The discovery period may be extended by the Commiittee for
an additional pericd of Up to two years in the event of ongoing
investigation as at the expiry of the normal four year discovery period.

Alterations to the Plan

The Committee may, at any time, amend the Plan in any respect,
provided that the prior approval of shareholders is cbtained for any
amendments that are to the advantage of participants in respect of
the rules governing eligibility, limits on participation, the overall limits
on the issue of Shares or the transfer of treasury Shares, the basis
for determining a participant’s entitiement to, and the terms of, the
Shares or cash to be acquired and the adjustment of such awards.

The requirement to obtain the prior approval of shareholders wil
not, however, apply 1o any minor alteration made to benefit the
administration of the Plan, to take account of a change in legislation
or to obtain or maintain favourable tax, exchange control or
regulatory treatrment for participants or for any company i the
Company’s group.

Shareholder approval will also not be required for any amendments
to any parformance condition applying to an option under the Plan
to the extent that it is amended in accordance with the constraints
relating to adjusting performance conditions described above.

St. Modwen Properties PLG
Annual report and financial statoments 2016

177

UOIBWOJUI [EUOIHIPPY  SIUCLWIEAELS [RIouel ) ooueulaaofl opiodinsy  Jodos aifop s



Information for shareholders

. Financial calendar
Ordinary shares guoted ex-dividend
2015/16 final dividend record date

- AGM

9" March 2017
10" March 2017
25" March 2017

2015716 final dividend payment date 4" April 2017
Announcement of 2017 half yearresults July 2017
i Announcement of 2017 final results February 2018

. Annual general meeting

i The AGM will be held on Wednesday, 29" March 2017 in the

i Bvolution Suite, Innovation Centre, 1 Devon Way, Longbridge

i Technology Park, Birmingham 831 2TS, commencing at

i 12.00 noon. The notice of mesting, together with an explanation
i of the resolutions to be considered at the maeting, is set out

i onpages 16610 177,

Website

Information about St. Modwen, including this and prior years'’
i Annual Reports, results announcements and presentations,
together with the latest share price information, is available on
i our website at www.stmodwen.co.uk/investor-relations.

Shareholding enquiries and information

All generat enguiries conceming holdings of shares in St. Medwen
i should be addressed to our registrar:

i Equinit

i Aspect House
¢ Spencer Road
i Lancing

¢ West Sussex
i BNSY 6DA

Telephone: 0371 384 2198" (+44 (0)121 415 7047 if calling from
outside the UK}

¢ Arange of shareholder information is available online at Equiniti's

{ website www.shareview.co.uk. Here you can also view information
¢ about your shareholding and obtain forms that you may need to

¢ manage your sharsholding, such as a change of address form

i or astock transfer form.

Dividend mandate

i If you are a shareholder who has a UK bank or building scciety

i account, you can arrange 1o have dividends paid direct via a bank

¢ or huilding society mandate. There is no fee for this senvice and

¢ notification confirming detalls of the dividend payment will be sent to
¢ your registered address. Please contact Equiniti on 0371 384 2198”
¢ or go to www.shareview.co.uk for further information,

Overseas dividend payment service

i If you are resident outside the UK, Equiniti {by arrangement with

¢ Citibank Europe PLC) can provide dividend payments that are

{ automatically converted into your local currency and paid direct 10

{ your bank account. For more information on this overseas payment
i service please contact Equinti on +44 (0)121 415 7047 or
download an application form at www.shareview.co.uk.

s Lines are open 8.30am to 5 30pm (UK tmer, Monday to Tnday, excluding publhic
¢ holdays in England and Wales.
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Share dealing service

If you are UK resident, you can buy and sell shares in St. Modwen
through Shareview Dealing, a telephone and intemet based service
provided by Equiniti Financial Services Ltd. For further details please
visit www.shareview.co.uk/dealing or call Equiniti on 03456 037037.
Equiniti Financial Services Ltd is authorised and regulated by the
Financial Conduct Authority. Other brokers and banks or building
sccieties also offer share dealing facilities.

Electronic communications

Ag an alternative to receiving documents in hard copy, shareholders
can elect 1o be notified by email as scon as documents such as cur
Annual Report are published. This notification includes details of
where you can view or download the documents on our website.
Shareholcers who wish to register for email notification can do

so via Equiniti’s website at wwaw.shareview.co UK.

Shareholder security

Shareholders are advised to be very wary of unsolicited mail or

telephone calls offering free investment advice, offers to buy shares
at a discount or sell shares at a premium, or cffers of free company
reports. Such contact is typically from overseas based 'brokers’ who
target UK shareholders through cperations commonly known as
‘boller rcoms’. These 'brokers’ can be very persistent and extremety £
persuasive and often have webslites 1o support their activities. :

To avoid share fraud:

= Keep in mind that firms authorised by the Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) are unlikely to contact you unexpectedly with
an offer to buy or sell shares,

= Do not get into a conversation, note the name of the person and
firm contacting you and then end the call.

= Check the Financial Services Register at www.fca.org.uk to see
if the person and firm contacting you is authorised by the FCA.

= Beware of fraudsters claiming to be from an authorised firm,
copying its website or giving you false contact details.

» Use the firm's contact details fisted on the Register if you want
to call it back.

= Call the FCA on 0800 111 6788 if the firm does not have contact
details on the Register or you are told they are cut of date.

= Search the list of unauthorised firms to avoid at www.fca.org.uk/
Consumers/scams.

= Consider that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthorised firm
you will not have access to the Financial Ombudsman Service
or the Financial Services Compensation Scheme.

= Think about getling independent financial and professional
advice before you hand over any money.

» Remember: if it sounds too good to e true, it probably is!

If you are approached by fraudsters please tell the FCA using
the share fraud reporting form at www.fca.org.uk/consumers/
report-scam-unalthorised-firm, where you can find ocut more
about investment scams. You can also call the FCA Consumer
Helpline on 0800 111 6768.

If you have already paid money to share fraudsters you should
contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040,



i Shareholder analysis
Hcldings of ordinary shares as at 30" November 2016:
- Shareholders Shares S

! Nurmber Nurmper

By shareholder - o T

L Individuals 2,991 7520 11132563 502
Directors and connected persons 45 113 28,651,241 12.87

¢ Insurance companies, nominees and pension funds 867 21.82 181,495,863 81.80

Other limited companies and corporate bodies 70 176 697,221 0.21

o 3,073 100.00 221,876,988 100.00
By shareholding
Up to 500 1,033 26.00 255,923 011
501 to 1,000 B850 16.36 503,91 0.23
1,001 to 5,000 1,393 35.06 3,330,326 1.50
5,001 to 10,000 351 8.84 2,565,503 116
10,001 to 50,000 279 702 5,853,305 2.64
50,001 1o 100,600 74 1.86 5,402,144 243
100,001 to 500,000 105 264 26,060,473 1.75
500,001 1o 1,000,000 37 093 27042137 1219
1,000,001 and above 51 1.29 150,863,186 67.99

o 3,073 100.00 221,876,988  100.00
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Contacts

St. Modwen Properties PLC
i Company No. 349201

. Head Office
¢ Park Peint

{17 High Street

¢ Longbridge

i Birmingham

i B3120Q

L 0121 222 9400

London and South East

180 Great Portland Street
¢ London
P WiIwW BQZ

! 0207788 3700

. Midlands

! Park Point

¢ 17 High Street
: Longbridge

i Birmingham
{B312uQ

L 0121647 1000

Northern Home Counties

P IMEX

i 575-599 Maxted Road
i Hemel Hempstead

i Hertfordshire

f HP2 7DX

| 01727 732690

North West

i Chepstow House

i Trident Business Park
i Daten Avenue

i Hisley

: Warrington

: WA36BX

| 01925 825950
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South West and South Wales

Green Court

Kings Weston Lane
Avonmouth

Bristol

BS11 8AZ

0117 316 7780

St. Modwen Homes

Park Point

17 High Street
Longbridge
Birmingham
B31 2UQ

0121847 1000

The Trentham Estate

Stone Road
Trentham
Stoke-on-Trent
ST48JG

01782 8645222

Yorkshire and North East

Ground Floor
Unit 2
Landmark Court
Eland Road
Leeds

LS11 &8JT

M13 272 7070



Disclaimer

This Annual Repaort and financial staternents has been
prepared for the members of St Modwen Properties
PLC and should not be rehed upon by any other party
or for any other purpose. The Company, its directors
andd employees, agents and advisors do not accent
or assume responsibility o ary other person to whom
this ciocument 1s shown or into whose hands it may
come and any such responsibiity or hatilty s
expressly disclaimed.

The Annual Report and financial statements contams
certain forward leoking statemerts which, by ther
nature, nvolve nsk and uncertanty bocause they relalc
1o future svents and croumstances. Actual outcomes
and results may ditfer matenalty from any outcomes
or results expressed or impled v such forward
looking statements. Any forward looking statements
rmade by or on behalf of the Company are madea n
good faith based on the information avalable at the
time 1he statement s made: no representation or
warranty 1S given in relation to them, ncluding as

to their completeness or accuracy or the basis on
which they were prepared. The Company does not
undertake 1o update forward looking statemeants

1o reflect any changes in its expeclatons with regard
therelo or any changes in events, condiions or
circumstances on which any such staterment is based.
Nething in this Annual Report and financial statements
should be construed as a profit forecast.
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